
  TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY (TRPA)   
TAHOE METROPOLITAN PLANNING AGENCY (TMPO) 

AND TRPA COMMITTEE MEETINGS 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that on Wednesday, January 25, 2017 commencing at 1:00 p.m., at the 
North Tahoe Events Center, 8318 N. Lake Blvd., Kings Beach, CA, the Governing Board of the Tahoe 
Regional Planning Agency will conduct its regular meeting. The agenda is attached hereto and made part 
of this notice.       
 
  NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Wednesday, January 25, 2017, commencing 8:00 a.m., at the 
North Tahoe Events Center, the TRPA Local Government Committee will meet. The agenda will be as 
follows: 1) Public Interest Comments; 2) Approval of Agenda; 3) Update of Broadband DigOnce Policy; 4) 
Future agenda Items; 5) Member Comments; (Committee: Chair – McDermid, Vice Chair ‐ Sass, Aldean, 
Berkbigler, Sevison, Novasel); 6) Public Interest Comments 
 

    NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Wednesday, January 25, 2017, commencing at 9:00 a.m.,  
at the North Tahoe Events Center, the TRPA Operations & Governance Committee will meet. The  
agenda will be as follows: 1) Public Interest Comments; 2) Approval of Agenda; 3) Recommend approval  
of December Financial Statements; (Page 1) 4) Resolution to enter into a CAL FIRE grant agreement for  
the Lake Tahoe Pre‐Attack Planning Project; (Page 21) 5) Resolution to enter into a CAL FIRE grant  
agreement for the Lake Tahoe Fire Prevention and Native Plants Outreach Project; (Page 21) 6) Resolution  
approving Quagga/Zebra Mussel Infestation Prevention Grant Program Application and Funding  
Agreement in the amount of $131,138; (Page 27) 7) Appoint the Executive Director, or designee, as agent  
of TRPA, to enter into Agreement #00503S, funded by the State of California, Department of  
Transportation; (Page 33) 8) Quarterly Treasurers Report; 9) Review of potential topics for Governing  
Board Retreat; 10) Member Comments; Committee: Chair –Cashman, Vice Chair –Sevison, Beyer, Carlson,  
Bruce, Cegavske); 11) Public Interest Comments       
 
  NOTICE IS FURTHER GIVEN that on Wednesday, January 25, 2017, commencing at 10:30 a.m., at  
the North Tahoe Events Center, the TRPA Environmental Improvement Program & Public Outreach  
Committee will meet. The agenda will be as follows: 1) Public Interest Comments; 2) Approval of Agenda;  
3) Update on AIS Control/Tahoe Keys Integrated Weed Management Plan; 4) Overview of the Regional  
Transportation Plan concepts; 5) Member Comments; (Committee: Chair – Carlson, Vice Chair – Beyer,  
Cashman, Faustinos, McDermid, Yeates, Lawrence, Bruce); 6) Public Interest Comments     
 

   
       

January 18, 2017         
   

 
Joanne S. Marchetta,                                                                                                                                       
Executive Director                 

This agenda has been posted at the TRPA office and at the following locations: Post Office, 
Stateline, NV, North Tahoe Event Center in Kings Beach, CA, IVGID Office, Incline Village, NV, 
North Tahoe Chamber of Commerce, Tahoe City, CA, and South Shore Chamber of Commerce, 
Stateline, NV 

 
 



 TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY  

GOVERNING BOARD 

   

North Tahoe Events Center  1:00 p.m. 

Kings Beach, CA   

   

All items on this agenda are action items unless otherwise noted. Items on the agenda, unless 
designated for a specific time, may not necessarily be considered in the order in which they 
appear and may, for good cause, be continued until a later date.   

All public comments should be as brief and concise as possible so that all who wish to speak 
may do so; testimony should not be repeated. The Chair of the Board shall have the discretion  
to set appropriate time allotments for individual speakers (3 minutes for individuals and 5 minutes for 
group representatives as well as for the total time allotted to oral public comment for a specific agenda 
item). No extra time for speakers will be permitted by the ceding of time to others. Written comments 
of any length are always welcome. So that names may be accurately recorded in the minutes, persons 
who wish to comment are requested to sign in by Agenda Item on the sheets available at each meeting. 
In the interest of efficient meeting management, the Chairperson reserves the right to limit the 
duration of each public comment period to a total of 2 hours. In such an instance, names will be 
selected from the available sign‐in sheet. Any individual or organization that is not selected or 
otherwise unable to present public comments during this period is encouraged to submit comments in 
writing to the Governing Board. All such comments will be included as part of the public record. 
 
“Teleconference locations for Board meetings are open to the public ONLY IF SPECIFICALLY MADE 
OPERATIONAL BEFORE THE MEETING by agenda notice and/or phone message referenced below.”   
 
In the event of hardship, TRPA Board members may participate in any meeting by teleconference.  
Teleconference means connected from a remote location by electronic means (audio or video). The 
public will be notified by telephone message at (775) 588‐4547 no later than 6:30 a.m. PST on the day 
of the meeting if any member will be participating by teleconference and the location(s) of the 
member(s) participation. Unless otherwise noted, in California, the location is 175 Fulweiler Avenue, 
Conference Room A, Auburn, CA; and in Nevada the location is 901 South Stewart Street, Second Floor, 
Tahoe Hearing Room, Carson City, NV. If a location is made operational for a meeting, members of the 
public may attend and provide public comment at the remote location. 
 
TRPA will make reasonable efforts to assist and accommodate physically handicapped persons that 
wish to attend the meeting. Please contact Marja Ambler at (775) 589‐5287 if you would like to attend 
the meeting and are in need of assistance. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



AGENDA 

I.  CALL TO ORDER AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM   

II.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

III.  PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS – All comments may be limited by the Chair. 

Any member of the public wishing to address the Governing Board on any item listed or not listed on the 
agenda including items on the Consent Calendar may do so at this time. TRPA encourages public comment 
on items on the agenda to be presented at the time those agenda items are heard. Individuals or groups 
commenting on items listed on the agenda will be permitted to comment either at this time or when the 
matter is heard, but not both. The Governing Board is prohibited by law from taking immediate action on 
or discussing issues raised by the public that are not listed on this agenda.  
 
IV.    APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
V.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

 
VI.  TRPA CONSENT CALENDAR (see Consent Calendar agenda below for specific items)   

 
VII.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 

 
               A.  Certification of Placer County Tahoe Basin Area                     Approval                     Page 39 
                      Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Final Environmental  
                      Impact Statement 
 
               B.    Adoption of Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan                 Approval                     Page 39 

  
               C.   Tahoe City Lodge and Tahoe City Golf Course                          Approval                     Page 155  
                      Improvement Project, 255 and 265 North Lake  
                      Boulevard, Tahoe City, Placer County, California,  
                      Assessor’s Parcel Numbers (APNs) 094‐070‐001 and  
                      094‐070‐002, TRPA File Number ERSP2015‐0857  
 
VIII.  REPORTS  
                    
         A.   Executive Director Status Report                                                Informational Only  
 

1) Strategic Initiatives Monthly Status Report                      Informational Only   Page 237 
 

B.   General Counsel Status Report                                                   Informational Only               
 
IX.  GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER REPORTS 

X.  COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

A. Legal Committee                     Report 
 

B. Operations & Governance Committee           Report   
 

C.   Environmental Improvement Program &  Report 
Public Outreach Committee 



 
    D.   Catastrophic Wildfire Committee                                              Report 
 
    E.    Local Government Committee                                                   Report 
 

F.    Regional Plan Implementation Committee             Report 
 
XI.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
XII.  ADJOURNMENT 

      TRPA CONSENT CALENDAR 

Item                Action Requested  

     1.    December Financials                                  Approval   Page  1  
       2.  Resolution to enter into a CAL FIRE grant agreement for the                 Approval   Page 21 
             Lake Tahoe Pre‐Attack Planning Project     
       3.    Resolution to enter into a CAL FIRE grant agreement for the                 Approval   Page 21 
              Lake Tahoe Fire Prevention and Native Plants Outreach Project 
     4.    Resolution approving Quagga/Zebra Mussel Infestation Prevention    Approval   Page 27 
              Grant Program Application and Funding Agreement in the amount  
              of $131,138      
       5.    Appoint the Executive Director, or designee, as agent of TRPA,            Approval   Page 33 
              to enter into Agreement #00503S, funded by the State of  
              California, Department of Transportation 
       6.    APC Membership Reappointment for the Tahoe Transportation          Approval   Page 37 
              District Representative, Steve Teshara     
 
    
The consent calendar items are expected to be routine and non‐controversial. They will be acted upon by 
the Board at one time without discussion. The special use determinations will be removed from the 
calendar at the request of any member of the public and taken up separately. If any Board member or 
noticed affected property owner requests that an item be removed from the calendar, it will be taken up 
separately in the appropriate agenda category. Four of the members of the governing body from each 
State constitute a quorum for the transaction of the business of the agency. The voting procedure shall be 
as follows: (1) For adopting, amending or repealing environmental threshold carrying capacities, the 
regional plan, and ordinances, rules and regulations, and for granting variances from the ordinances, rules 
and regulations, the vote of at least four of the members of each State agreeing with the vote of at least 
four members of the other State shall be required to take action. If there is no vote of at least four of the 
members from one State agreeing with the vote of at least four of the members of the other State on the 
actions specified in this paragraph, an action of rejection shall be deemed to have been taken. (2) For 
approving a project, the affirmative vote of at least five members from the State in which the project is 
located and the affirmative vote of at least nine members of the governing body are required. If at least 
five members of the governing body from the State in which the project is located and at least nine 
members of the entire governing body do not vote in favor of the project, upon a motion for approval, an 
action of rejection shall be deemed to have been taken. A decision by the agency to approve a project 
shall be supported by a statement of findings, adopted by the agency, which indicates that the project 
complies with the regional plan and with applicable ordinances, rules and regulations of the agency. (3) 
For routine business and for directing the agency's staff on litigation and enforcement actions, at least 
eight members of the governing body must agree to take action. If at least eight votes in favor of such 
action are not cast, an action of rejection shall be deemed to have been taken.  



 
Article III (g) Public Law 96‐551 Tahoe Regional Planning Agency Governing Board Members: Chair, 
James Lawrence, Nevada Dept. of Conservation & Natural Resources Representative; Vice Chair, 
William Yeates, California Senate Rules Committee Appointee; Sue Novasel, El Dorado County 
Supervisor; Belinda Faustinos, California Assembly Speaker’s Appointee; Shelly Aldean, Carson City 
Supervisor Representative; Marsha Berkbigler, Washoe County Commissioner; Larry Sevison, Placer 
County Supervisor Representative; Nancy McDermid, Douglas County Commissioner; E. Clement 
Shute, Jr., California Governor’s Appointee; Casey Beyer, California Governor’s Appointee; Barbara 
Cegavske, Nevada Secretary of State; Mark Bruce, Nevada Governor’s Appointee; Timothy Cashman, 
Nevada At‐Large Member; Austin Sass, City of South Lake Tahoe Mayor; Tim Carlson, Presidential 
Appointee 





1 

  TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                                 
GOVERNING BOARD  

 
TRPA                    December 14, 2016 
Stateline, NV 
 

Meeting Minutes 
 

 
I.  CALL TO ORDER AND DETERMINATION OF QUORUM   

 Chair Mr. Beyer called the meeting to order at 10:49 a.m. 
 

Members presents: Ms. Aldean, Mr. Beyer, Mr. Bruce, Mr. Cashman, Mr. Carlson, Ms. Faustinos, 
Ms. Matijevich for Mrs. Cegavske, Mr. Lawrence, Mr. Sass, Mr. Sevison, Mr. Shute, Mr. Yeates 

 
  Members absent: Ms. Berkbigler, Ms. McDermid, Ms. Novasel 
 
II.  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

III.  PUBLIC INTEREST COMMENTS                                                                                                 

               Mr. Teshara, Chair of the South Shore Transportation Management Association 
requested that the Governing Board pull Consent Calendar Item Number 4 for 
discussion; Allocation FY 2016‐2017 funding from the California, Department of 
Transportation (Caltrans) Funding Agreement #00503S, in the amount of $225,000 to 
the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency through the Systemic Safety Analysis Report 
Program (SSARP) to support the Lake Tahoe Region Safety Action Plan 

IV.    APPROVAL OF AGENDA  
 
  Mr. Lawrence moved approval. 

Motion carried unanimously.  
 

V.    APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
 
Mr. Sevison moved approval of the October 26, 2016 minutes. 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 

VI.  TRPA CONSENT CALENDAR   
 

     1.    November Financials                                    
     2.    Allocation of FY 2016‐2017 State Transit Assistance Funds of $134,118 to Placer County for 

Transit Operations in the Placer County Portion of the Tahoe Region  
       3.    Allocation of FY 2016‐2017 Local Transportation Funds of $596,128 to Placer County for Transit  
              Operations in the Placer County Portion of the Tahoe Region 
       4.    Allocation FY 2016‐2017 funding from the California, Department of Transportation (Caltrans)  
              Funding Agreement #00503S, in the amount of $225,000 to the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency  
  through the Systemic Safety Analysis Report Program (SSARP) to support the Lake Tahoe Region  
              Safety Action Plan 



GOVERNING BOARD 
December 14, 2016 
 

2 

 

       5.  Fiscal Year 2015 Financial Statements and Final Audit Results  
       6.    Resolution of Enforcement Action, Graham Trust and Ed Maslanka, Unauthorized Tree Removal,  
              271 Wren Circle, Douglas County, NV, Assessor’s Parcel Number 1418‐27‐810‐017  
       7.    Implementing Ordinance for Amendments to Code of Ordinances as previously approved for  
              Chapter 84 for Essential Public Safety Facilities within the Shorezone   
       8.  Appointment of Belinda Faustinos to Governing Board Committees: Environmental 

Improvement Program & Public Outreach and Catastrophic Wildfire Committees       
       9.    APC Membership Reappointment for El Dorado County Lay member, Jason Drew                       
 

Mr. Cashman made a motion to remove consent calendar item number four. He said the 
Operations and Governance Committee recommended approval of item numbers one, two, 
three, and five. He said a presentation was made at the Operations and Governance Committee 
by Mark Davis, Davis Farr, LLP. TRPA staff is to be commended as a result of a clean audit with 
no recommendations or considerations from the auditors.  
 
Ms. Aldean said the Legal Committee recommended approval of item number six. 
 
Mr. Beyer read consent calendar item number 7 Ordinance title into the record. 
 
Public Comments & Questions 
 
None 
 
Mr. Sevison moved approval of the consent calendar excluding item number four. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Public Comments & Questions for Consent Calendar Item Number 4 
 
Ms. Beryl, TRPA said TRPA was awarded safety and analysis funds in the amount of $225,000 
from the State of California to conduct analysis and develop a Lake Tahoe Region Safety Plan. 
Staff is working with the Nevada Department of Transportation to conduct the analysis for the 
entire region. The analysis will look at data gaps that is a nationwide issue that Tahoe also 
experiences. For example, active transportation crashes go unreported in the statewide data 
base. That updated analysis will be used to identify primary safety hot spots and recommend 
designs to improve the specific problems at those locations. In addition, this plan will que up 
projects for local jurisdictions to be able to access highway safety improvement program 
funding. It is an interim step to help local partners access construction funds to improve 
roadways. 
 
Mr. Carlson asked if the information that the Tahoe Transportation District provided in 
relationship to all of the automobile and traffic activity around the Lake feed into the data base 
staff will be using to develop this plan. 
 



GOVERNING BOARD 
December 14, 2016 
 

3 

 

Ms. Beryl, TRPA said yes, there will be a connection when they review what areas will be high 
use in terms of vehicles and active transportation. 
 
Mr. Carlson asked if then that information will be translated into accidents and then generate 
safety uses. 
 
Ms. Beryl, TRPA said it is a component but they will also look at areas of high crashes. 
 
Mr. Carlson asked if there is information on how many vehicles travel around the Lake. 
 
Steve Teshara, Chair, Tahoe Transportation District said it is 24 million persons in ten million cars 
annually. This information is data from cell phones for targeted months of peak seasons. It is an 
80 percent confidence rate in the number. He feels that the safety aspect of the transportation 
network is important and commended Agency staff for securing this grant. 
 
Mr. Sass asked staff to discuss the delta between the high summer and winter vehicle travel.   
 
Morgan Beryl, TRPA said there is a higher visitation use in the Summer and a lot of the transit 
service is geared towards the winter activities. 
 
Ms. Matijevich commended staff for taking a proactive initiative for this need.  
 
Board Comments & Commissions 
 
Ms. Aldean moved approval of consent calendar item number 4 . 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

VII.  ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
 

A. Resolution in Memory of Carol Yeates   
 

Mr. Beyer read the resolution into the record.   
 

Public Comments & Questions 
 

None 
 
Mr. Shute made a motion to approve the resolution. 
 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
B. Election of Governing Board Chair and Vice Chair Effective January 1, 2017 

 
Ms. Aldean nominated Mr. Lawrence for the Chair position. 



GOVERNING BOARD 
December 14, 2016 
 

4 

 

 
Mr. Lawrence accepted the nomination. 
 
Public Comments & Questions 
 
None 
 
Mr. Sevison made a motion to approve the nomination of Mr. Lawrence.  
 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Ms. Aldean nominated Mr. Yeates for the position of Vice Chair.  
 
Mr. Yeates accepted the nomination.  
 
Public Comments & Questions 
 
None 
 
Mr. Sevison made a motion to approve the nomination for Vice Chair. 
 
Motion carried unanimously.  
 
Ms. Marchetta thanked Mr. Beyer for his two successful years as Board Chair.  
 

VIII.  PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 

       A.  Proposed Amendments to Update Chapter 10, TRPA Regional Plan Maps, of the TRPA Code of  
               Ordinances to integrate Geographic Information System (GIS) Mapping and Corresponding  
  Technical Correction Updates to Chapters 11, 12, 14, 30, 60, 61, 62, 66, 67, 68, and 90 of the  
  TRPA Code of Ordinances  
                

Mr. Hester said TRPA staff have all been trained in continuous improvement and one of those 
projects was to review the GIS mapping. 

 
               TRPA team member Ms. Cannon provided an overview of the proposed amendments. 
  
  These proposed amendments are to integrate current GIS technologies instead of using 

outdated paper and Mylar mapping techniques. Amendments were added to distinguish 
between processes for updating data versus making discretionary changes to official regulatory 
boundaries. Lastly, the amendments will add more rigorous applicant initiated process for 
changing TRPA region boundaries. 

  
  There are no presentation and analysis option with that kind of mapping. Digital data allows for 

secure storage, multiple backups, and analysis. Data will be able to be shared through the online 



GOVERNING BOARD 
December 14, 2016 
 

5 

 

portal or interactive mapping tools. The updating process is quicker, more accurate, and 
streamlined.  

  
  The official GIS mapping is defined as mapping that is produced and maintained by TRPA that 

outlines boundaries for regulations. These updates would go through a plan amendment 
process which would require discretionary review by the Advisory Planning Commission, the 
Regional Plan Implementation Committee, and the Governing Board.  This would include town 
centers, hydrological related areas, and scenic units. The “other” types of GIS mapping would 
require updating on a regular basis using best available information and science. The last 
proposed amendments are to add rigorous applicant initiated process for amending TRPA region 
boundary. It would require a plan amendment review and approval by a certified by an Engineer 
or Surveyor. Boundary amendments would go before the Advisory Planning Commission, the 
Regional Plan Implementation Committee, and the Governing Board. The Initial Environmental 
Checklist found no significant effects. 

  
  The Advisory Planning Commission unanimously recommended for approval on November 8, 

2016 and the Regional Plan Implementation Committee unanimously recommended for 
approval on November 16, 2016. It was suggested that there are sufficient disclaimers that this 
is not survey level information but more of a planning tool for mapping. The environmental 
review showed that there were no significant effects.  

 
  Presentation can be viewed at: 
               http://www.trpa.org/wp‐content/uploads/Agenda‐Item‐No‐VIII.‐A‐GIS‐Mapping.pdf           
 
              Board Comments & Questions 
                

Ms. Faustinos asked how this GIS mapping will be funded. GIS is expensive and the most 
challenging part will be the ongoing maintenance of the data and the sharing protocols. There 
needs to be mechanisms in place to identify how the information will be shared.  

 
Mr. Hester said the Code of Ordinances states that it must be done on paper and Mylar, which is 
what staff is trying to change.  

 
Ms. Cannon said for the past decade staff has been digitizing the data on the Mylar maps and  
have data sharing agreements with other agencies.  

 
              Public Comments & Questions 
                
              None     
 
              Ms. Aldean made a motion to approve the required findings, including a finding of no significant  

effect, for adoption of the amendments to update Chapters 10, 11, 12, 14, 30, 60, 61, 62, 66, 67, 
68, and 90 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances as provided in Attachments C and D hereto.  
 



GOVERNING BOARD 
December 14, 2016 
 

6 

 

Motion carried unanimously. 

 the amendments to 
Ms. Aldean made a motion to adopt Ordinance 2016‐_, amending Ordinance 87‐9, as previously 
amended, to amend Chapters 10, 11, 12, 14, 30, 60, 61, 62, 66, 67, 68, and 90 of the TRPA Code 
of Ordinances to integrate Geographic Information System mapping as provided in Attachment 
D hereto. 

 
            Motion carried unanimously. 
 

         B.   Issuance of 2015 Threshold Evaluation Report  
 
Ms. Marchetta said the 2015 Threshold Evaluation Report is a status report that summarizes  
the most up to date information on the status and trend of the adopted threshold standards. It  
provides information on which of the environmental areas are making progress or which are still  
in need of attention. This is the second Threshold Evaluation Report to be scientifically peer  
reviewed. This is not a decision document it does not take any action, it doesn’t change the  
standards, Regional Plan, or Code of Ordinances. The vast majority of the feedback on this  
report suggested future actions. Mr. Segan will address those smaller portions of the feedback  
that was received that go to the technical content of the report, a point by point response will  
not be done for all the comments received. Comments from the scientific peer reviewers  
have been responded to and where possible were incorporated into the report. Comments  
received from the Friends of the West Shore, Sierra Club, and the League to Save Lake Tahoe will  
be responded to in today’s presentation as they relate to the technical merits of the report. 
 
TRPA team member Mr. Segan provided an overview of the Threshold Evaluation Report. 
The report will be used to assess status and trend for the 178 Threshold Standards. It will be  
used for a reference point for the Governing Board when considering future decisions. It does  
not adopt new policies or a decision document. The findings of the report were generally in  
alignment with the findings of the 2011 Threshold Evaluation Report. There was incremental  
progress in a number of categories. The report also identified areas that need continued work  
such as water quality, scenic and soils. Trend summary was also generally in alignment with the  
2011 report. Improving trends outnumbered declining trends by ten to one; the goal in  
environmental management is no change.  
 
Conservation Science Partners led the review with the assistance of 15 scientists. The message  
was that there were greater deficiencies in the threshold standards than in the monitoring and  
evaluation programs; the issue was with the standards being evaluated and not how they were  
evaluated. Their recommendation was that it would be easier to adopt the monitoring and  
evaluation program once the content of the standards was revisited. The comments from the  
peer review in 2011 were similar. Based on those comments the Advisory Planning Commission  
and Governing Board directed staff to work on five year initiatives including the review of the  
threshold standards.  
 



GOVERNING BOARD 
December 14, 2016 
 

7 

 

Modifications were made from comments received after the draft report was released in 
September. Changes were made to clarify some technical errors; a section was revised for 
airport monitoring to clarify the actual monitoring being done and recommendations that now 
accompany a better description of that monitoring program. The Environmental Protection 
Agency review of the stream environment zone recommendations highlighted a couple of 
omissions that were made to those recommendations for additional clarification of the SEZ 
standard. All of the changes are included in the errata document listing where the changes were 
made can be found on the TRPA website. Appendix L has details for the threshold standard 
status and Appendix M has additional detail about the 178 standards in the 2015 report.      
 
Staff received extensive feedback from the Friends of the West Shore and Tahoe Area Sierra 
Club, and the League to Save Lake Tahoe. There were three general categories; comments on 
the methodology of the report, feedback on additional analyses, and feedback on action. Some 
of the comments and feedback language used questioned the underlying scientific methodology 
of the report. One of the comments was that a lot of science had emerged since 1982 and also 
referenced the number of standards for which no status determination could be reached. It 
highlighted concerns that maybe the best science was not applied in this report. The report used 
the best available science and is cited in the report. Any reference to a notion that there is 
science that was available that was not used is either misleading and or incorrect. A comment 
referred to the number of non‐status determinations; it stated that two thirds of these were in 
the water quality chapter. This is the general number that was in all of the reports. The way that 
the standards are structured and the conservative approach to assessing attainment in those 
standards. Despite the fact that recent science was presented as part of this report that 
suggested that loads in tributaries are roughly down 50 percent depending on the pollutant of 
concern. These have been assessed as no status determination as the most conservative 
approach. There is no defined end point in the standard itself. There were a number of 
comments and suggestions related to how the vehicle miles travel standard should be modified 
or how it should be used in decision making. A comment made was the vehicle miles traveled 
were not estimates of vehicle miles traveled but were traffic counts. This is a fundamental 
misunderstanding of the vehicle miles traveled modeled used in the report. TRPA uses the Trans 
Traffic Model which is the state of the art traffic model that models vehicle activity and traffic 
within the basin. It does use traffic counts as a calibration tool to ground the assumptions but 
also uses other data including information from the vehicle traffic survey. 
 
Based on the feedback on the additional analyses received was that there could be a couple of 
high level categories that can be added. There is trend analyses that we should be looking at 
trend over a longer time or shorter period or forecasting trends going forward. We should be 
looking at more drivers of change and effectiveness analysis. A lot of the comments echoed the 
sentiment expressed in the conclusions and recommendations chapter of the report which 
identified the need to focus more on effectiveness and what actions are working and not 
working. There was also suggestions that more fine scale analysis should be done. Moving 
beyond what the actual content of the individual standards are and applying those standards at 
a finer scale level. One of the reasons that is not on the report today is because that is not the 



GOVERNING BOARD 
December 14, 2016 
 

8 

 

content of the current standards. The report is focused on evaluating status and trend for each 
of these individual standards.  
 
Additional climate change analysis highlighted both in the Executive Summary and the 
conclusions and recommendations is a clear area of need going forward. This is being built into 
the ongoing work plan in a number of areas in the Basin. The Shoreline Initiative, the Forest 
Health Initiative is also actively considering what a drier future may mean for the basin. The 
report includes analysis in a number of different areas and there is also target analysis going on 
to support each of the individual initiatives and ongoing workplan. The Regional Transportation 
Plan and traffic program is already considering more ways to track vehicle activity that uses the 
signals that vehicles are sending out to identify were traffic is in the Basin. All of these analyses 
are designed and prioritized to support decisions that are being made. 
 
Some of the other feedback was the Agency should focus on implementation and shouldn’t 
delay actions until the Threshold Update Initiative is complete. There is no suggestion in the 
Threshold Evaluation Report that actions should be delayed until the initiative is complete. The 
actions being engaged in have already been prioritized based on a lot of the information that is 
in this report. It is about continuing to prioritize and implement.  
 
These last two peer reviewed Threshold Evaluation Reports have set in motion a foundation for 
the Threshold Update Initiative. TRPA is working with the Tahoe Science Advisory Council on the 
first steps of this initiative which will form the foundation of this initiative. A revision of the 
Threshold Assessment will be brought to the Governing Board in the first quarter of 2017.  
 
Presentation material can be viewed at: 
http://www.trpa.org/wp‐content/uploads/Agenda‐Item‐No.‐VIII.B‐Threshold‐Evaluation‐
Report.pdf 
 
Board Comments & Questions 
 
Mr. Yeates said the Science Advisory Council is a group to help address this issue. As a decision 
maker, he is concerned that what we do is benefiting the Lake. Some of these indicators may 
have made sense in the past but feels that some need to be updated. Climate change, changes 
the baseline for the Lake itself seasonally and there are difficult issues to address when coming 
up with land use strategies and water quality strategies. He is also concerned about the impacts 
of traffic coming into and going out of the Basin and how they are going to expedite providing a 
better transit system, bike trails, and other opportunities that encourage people to get out of 
their cars. Vehicle miles traveled may be a metric, but maybe it can be improved. The Tahoe 
Metropolitan Planning Organization and our part of the California shore is going to try and 
influence the larger Metropolitan Transportation Commission in the Bay Area and the 
Sacramento Area Council of Governments to work together to encourage visitors to get out of 
their cars and use Tahoe’s transit systems.   
 



GOVERNING BOARD 
December 14, 2016 
 

9 

 

Ms. Aldean suggested looking at the metric systems used for other areas such as the Great Lakes 
and the Everglades.   
 
Mr. Segan said he has information on the metrics produced by some of these other 
organizations. He spoke with the individual from the Everglades and she identified 11 ecosystem 
level indicators of health that they use to communicate; they started with 58. Staff plans to 
continue to engage with them and other agencies as well.   
 
Mr. Lawrence agreed that Tahoe is out in the forefront regarding thresholds and standards, but 
the work is complex. He feels we need to move forward with this and we can’t wait until the 
thresholds are evaluated. Now it is time to determine how to move forward with putting 
together policies, programs, and ordinances regarding transportation and tie it back to 
standards and indicators. Vehicle miles traveled has been around a long time, but is not 
convinced that it is the metric that should be used for everything. He would like to see more 
information on what vehicle miles traveled scientifically tells them and how it relates to specific 
standards and indicators.  
 
Mr. Shute said reducing the dependence on the automobile is one of the Compact mandates, so 
there needs to be traffic metric that is understandable. He agreed they cannot wait and 
encouraged discussions to start formulating ideas for defining a traffic management standard.   
 
Mr. Sass said the Tahoe Transportation District Board is escalating this with the TTD Manager to 
come up with a solution for transportation within the Basin. The early consensus is that there 
needs to be funding for free transportation which may require a user fee to enter the Basin. He 
would like to see the TRPA Governing Board work closely with the Tahoe Transportation District 
to find a solution.  
 
Mr. Haven said staff will continue to work closely with Tahoe Transportation District Board to 
bring some solutions forward.  
 
Ms. Marchetta said the Governing Board has a number of entry points into that conversation, 
the first will be the Regional Transportation Plan. It is important to understand what vehicle 
miles traveled is, what is the model that estimates the VMT, what are the inputs into that 
model, and how it is used. There is a lot of confusion about what the technical model is, what is 
it in, and how it gets used. That discussion will be done with the Board in connection with the 
Regional Transportation Plan. It raises a significant and sensitive policy issue on how to fund 
transportation in the future. That will be a longer‐term policy conversation that may be moved 
to the Threshold Update Initiative.  
 
Mr. Sass said the eventual policy change will be required in the California and Nevada 
Legislature. He suggested that there may be members of this Board that could assist in laying 
the groundwork.   
 



GOVERNING BOARD 
December 14, 2016 
 

10 

 

Mr. Beyer said there was nine ballot measures throughout California in November; five of the 
nine passed. It was about the context of having multi‐mobile transportation needs and 
infrastructure improvements in those areas. It is not only a funding strategy, it is an economic 
and sustainability strategy in those different communities. At some point in time, the 
boundaries between the State of Nevada and California have to be put aside in terms of how 
they look at the regional interest of moving people around the Lake in an efficient manner with 
alternatives to visitors traveling by car. We need to determine what are the right Thresholds to 
monitor and which ones can we work on to reach attainment or improve the attainment level. 

 
Public Comments & Questions 
 
Bob Larsen, Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board and Advisory Planning Commission 
Vice Chair said the APC voted unanimously to recommend that the Governing Board issue the 
final report.  
 
Jennifer Quashnick, Friends of the West Shore said there were improvements relative to 
previous Threshold reports. There were items they could support and some bigger picture 
concerns and items that they would like to see considered in the Threshold update. There are 
references that this is just a status report, this is Threshold report but also a way to look at how 
the Regional Plan policies are effecting Threshold attainment. This report will become the 
baseline information; if there are items in the report that need to be pointed out or 
recommended, now is the time to do it. The thresholds are the backbone of this Agency and 
they encouraged the Board to help prioritize the resources within the staff and the community 
to help put some effort into this.   
 
Laurel Ames, Tahoe Area Sierra Club said there are issues arising particularly in transportation. 
The CTRPA 1976 Transportation Plan recommended funding and 40 years later we are still 
discussing funding for transportation (transit) issues. This document opens that question. All the 
projects that have been coming through recently have highlighted that problem. The League to 
Save Lake Tahoe is implementing a project to focus on funding.  
 
Jesse Patterson, League to Save Lake Tahoe echoed many of the comments made today. The 
Thresholds and indicators are complex and a lot of work. Several have low confidence in the 
status trend. The League is looking at the trends and asking what the status report is saying, 
how confident are they in it, and what is coming “down the pipe” as decision makers. The 
League is in support of the Threshold Update Initiative. We do not know exactly what is going on 
with vehicle miles traveled and how long do we want to wait? The League suggested a no net 
vehicle miles traveled policy. As they move through the Threshold Update Initiative, possibly 
there can be an interim policy that helps set the best standard for what we want to see from the 
projects and how it will affect the vehicle miles traveled. They also want to see the vehicle miles 
traveled topic prioritized to the top of the lists.  
 
Board Comments & Questions 
 



GOVERNING BOARD 
December 14, 2016 
 

11 

 

  Ms. Aldean made a motion to adopt the findings included in Attachment A hereto, for the  
  issuance of the 2015 Threshold Evaluation Report. 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

 Ms. Aldean made a motion to adopt Resolution 2016‐_, Attachment B hereto, issuing the  
  Final 2015 Threshold Evaluation Report. 

 
Motion carried unanimously. 
 

IX.  REPORTS  
   

A. Executive Director Status Report           
 

Ms. Marchetta said Congress passed the Lake Tahoe Restoration Act (LTRA) which was part of  
what was renamed the Water Infrastructure Improvements for the Nation (WIIN Act) or the  
Water Resources Development Act (WRDA). Earlier, the LTRA passed within the WIIN Act by  
partisan vote of the House, and there was enough support in the Senate to pass the overall Bill  
and ready for the President’s signature. She thanked Senator Heller, Senator Reid, Senator  
Feinstein, Senator Boxer and Congressman Amodei, Congressman McClintock, Congressman  
Garamendi and their staff who did all the heavy lifting during this process. She also thanked Lake  
Tahoe Partnership and TRPA’s External Affairs Chief, Julie Regan who came together and aligned  
around advocacy strategy.  
 
Ms. Regan said they have been working on this for eight years. A working group of the Lake  
Tahoe Partnership; Steve Teshara, Darcy Collins, Andrew Strain, and herself worked with the  
larger partnership and all of the agencies executives and partners. The Forest Management  
category was the biggest of the $150 million. Within that $150 million authorization category,  
there is $50 million dollars authorized for local water infrastructure for firefighting capacity.  
Within the water quality category, watersheds and stormwater there is $113 million which  
would cover infrastructure investment to watershed restoration. The Aquatic Invasive Species  
category has an authorization at $45 million. Program performance and accountability is a new  
category for the Bill that continues the theme around items such as Lake Tahoe Info and how  
they can be transparent and accountable on both the policy and funding side. They need to  
ensure that the projects being funded are at the highest priority from an environmental  
perspective. 
 
Board Comments & Questions 

 
Mr. Lawrence asked if the language for the requirements for matching contributions for the two  
states appropriations are still in the Bill.   
 
Ms. Regan said yes, there is a dollar for dollar match.  
 



GOVERNING BOARD 
December 14, 2016 
 

12 

 

Mr. Lawrence said the heavy lifting is not only on the Federal side to get the appropriation, but  
is also in Carson City and Sacramento because they are getting that matching provision. 
 
Ms. Regan said the $415 million dollars does need the match. Looking at existing targets such as  
the $100 million from the State of Nevada and $200 million from the State of California, it leaves  
$115 million to be matched by the local governments and private sector.  
 
Ms. Aldean asked if the money being incorporated into the Bill to facilitate the exchange of  
(undeveloped) lots is to cover the administrative costs.  
 
Ms. Regan said that is correct. The funding that is identified in the Restoration Act is more for  
title work and all the activity that would be associated with that. But maintenance of those  
properties are something that whomever is involved in the transaction would be working out.  
  
Mr. Sevison said the California Tahoe Conservancy works with the Forest Service to  
find best management practices. That has been sorted out and they are hoping that this will be  
the beginning of a system where there will be massive exchanges and the ability for a more  
efficient managing tool.  

 
1) Strategic Initiatives Monthly Status Report    

   
              No further report. 

 
B. General Counsel Status Report      

 
  No report.                                                     
 
X.  GOVERNING BOARD MEMBER REPORTS  

 Ms. Matijevich extended Secretary Cegavske’s Holiday wishes to everyone. She was not able to  
  attend due to the final tasks associated with the election. 
  
              Mr. Lawrence announced that Bradley Crowell is the new Director for the Nevada Department  
  of Conservation and Natural Resources. He is a Carson City native and recently came from  
    Washington DC where he was the Assistant Secretary for the Department of Energy.  
   
XI.  COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 

A. Legal Committee   
 
  None        
 

B. Operations & Governance Committee    
 



GOVERNING BOARD 
December 14, 2016 
 

13 

 

               None     
 

C.   Environmental Improvement Program & Public Outreach Committee 
 
None 

 
    D.   Catastrophic Wildfire Committee                                       
 
    None  
 
    E.    Local Government Committee                                            
            
                             None  
 

F.    Regional Plan Implementation Committee 
      

Mr. Shute said they met this morning and unanimously recommended to the 
Governing Board the adoption of the Placer County Area Plan, which will come to the 
Board in January. 

        
XII.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

Steve Teshara said there is an item in the Compact that has not succeeded; a section of 
Article 9 that addresses transportation funding. Sales tax is one provision that the 
Tahoe Transportation District can pursue. When discussing the transportation funding, 
two things occur to him. One, is the EIP Committee that could be the group that 
interfaces regularly with TTD and others on the transportation front. Second is the   
section of Article 9 that needs to be revisited. Although, he is not advocating for this 
today, an example would be a Basin user fee to generate funding for transit.   

 
XIII.  ADJOURNMENT 

               Chair Mr. Beyer adjourned the meeting at 12:53 p.m.  
 

                                                Respectfully Submitted, 

 
Marja Ambler 

Clerk to the Board 
 

The above meeting was taped in its entirety. Anyone wishing to listen to the tapes of the above 
mentioned meeting may call for an appointment at (775) 588‐4547. In addition, written documents 

submitted at the meeting are available for review 
 





 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 

Date:    January 18, 2017 

To:    TRPA Governing Board 

From:    TRPA Staff 

Subject:    Fiscal Year 2016/17, December Financial Statements 

 
Requested Action: Governing Board Acceptance of the December Financial Statements for Fiscal 
Year 2016/17. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends Governing Board acceptance of the December 
financial statements for Fiscal Year 2016/17 as presented. 
 
Required Motion: In order to accept the Financial Statements, the Governing Board must make 
the following motion: 
 

1) A motion to accept the December 2016/17 Financial Statements 
 
In order for the motions to pass, an affirmative vote of any eight Board members is required. 
 
Summary:   
 
There are no major financial issues at this time.  TRPA is now six months into the fiscal year.  
General Fund contributions from California and Nevada have been received.  Net Assets are in 
excellent shape, but will decline over the balance of the fiscal year as we spend against those 
revenues. Expenditures are slowly ramping up, normal as many contract costs lag during the 
year.   
 
Discussion:   
 
Revenue:  California and Nevada have both funded their contributions to the General Fund.    
Planning fees are running 3% behind last year‐to‐date.  Total planning fees are at 52% of the 
budgeted year’s total.  AIS fees are strong YTD, although the program operations are at a 
minimal level now as the boating season has ended.  Grants are somewhat behind, which is 
normal.  Most Grants bill quarterly in arrears, so we will not see that revenue until next month. 
 
Expenses:  Year to date (YTD) expenses are running below the budget at 39%, largely due to 
lagging contract costs. Staff compensation is at 42% of budget, lagging slightly.  Based on the 
timing of pay periods this should be at 46%.  Annual performance incentive payments are part of 
this budget but will not be made until July.  Contract expenses are only 37%, not proportionate 

1



CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1 

to the year at this point.  Most contract payments lag and occur one to three months after the 
relevant period of performance.  Financing costs are on plan at 33%, with an interest only 
payment in the fall and interest plus principle due in June. 
 
The following table shows YTD Revenues and Expenses.   
 

 

 
   

Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Fiscal YTD December 2016 ($K)

General Funds Gen Fund Planning Other Total

State Revenue 5,677 0 5,677

Applicants 670 583 1,254

Other (19) 510 491

Total Revenue 5,658 670 1,093 7,421

Staff 1,519 474 42 2,036

Contracts 422 103 263 788

Financing (0) 289 289

Other 355 1 79 435

Total Expenditures 2,296 578 673 3,548

General Funds Balance 3,361 92 420 3,873

Grants AIS TMPO Other Total

Grants 4 775 386 1,165

Fees 384 0 384

Other 750 0 0 750

Total Revenue 1,139 775 386 2,299

Staff 121 226 72 419

Contracts 344 130 290 764

Other 37 176 30 243

Total Expenditures 503 532 392 1,426

Special Funds Balance 636 243 (6) 873

2



CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 1 

Net Assets:  Assets declined by $0.5M this month.  This is entirely due to expenditures, as we are 
drawing down on funds received earlier. 
 

 
 
When reading the detailed reports attached, be aware that fund balances are reversed, a 
negative means revenues exceed expenses and a positive number would appear when expenses 
exceed revenue. This reflects the formatting in our accounting system. 
 
If you have any questions, please contact Chris Keillor at (775) 589‐5222 or ckeillor@trpa.org. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Attachment I  December Financial Statements  

Tahoe Regional Plannning Agency

Balance Sheet, 12/31/2016

Gen Fund Grants Agency Grand Total

Asset

Cash & Invest 10,656,239 3,111,752 13,412,123 27,180,114

Benefits 6,803 6,803

Current Assets 38,418 38,418

LT Assets 9,751,746 9,751,746

Asset Total 20,467,647 3,535,139 13,412,123 37,414,909

Liabilities

A/P 0

Benefits 538,953 538,953

Deferred Rev 386,984 1,842,657 2,229,640

Deposits 130,074 10,190 140,264

LT Debt 11,655,000 11,655,000

Mitigation 8,926,191 8,926,191

Securities 4,452,286 4,452,286

Liabilities Total 12,711,010 1,852,847 13,378,477 27,942,334

Fund Balances 7,756,637 1,682,292 33,646 9,472,575

3



TRPA Financials
Fiscal YTD December 2016 ($K)

General Funds

General Funds

GF Planning Shrzone Reimb. Settl. Bldg Total

Page #

Revenue

State Revenue 5,677 5,677

Grants

Fees For Service 0 670 (5) 543 46 1,254

Local Revenue

Other Revenue (20) (2) 0 (22)

Rent Revenue 512 512

    Total Revenues 5,658 670 (7) 543 46 512 7,421

Budget 5,827 1,284 240 150 995 8,496

Expenses

Compensation 1,519 474 42 0 2,036

Contracts 422 103 182 36 45 788

Other 225 1 17 56 299

Rent 347 6 353

Financing (0) 289 289

A&O/Transfers (217) (217)

    Total Expenses 2,296 578 64 183 36 391 3,548

Budget  5,911 1,088 129 240 71 1,057 8,496

% of Ann Budg 39% 53% 50% 76% 50% 37% 42%

Net Fund Balance 3,361 92 (71) 360 10 121 3,873

Budgeted Net (84) 196 (129) 79 (63)

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 14

mambler
Typewritten Text
8      11      11     12      12    13



TRPA Financials
Fiscal YTD December 2016 ($K)

Special Funds (Grants)

Special Funds

EIP BMP AIS TMPO Total

Page #

Revenue

State Revenue 750 750

Grants 291 96 4 775 1,165

Fees For Service 384 384

Other Revenue

Rent Revenue

    Total Revenues 291 96 1,139 775 2,299

Budget 640         294         1,994      1,425   4,353

Expenses

Compensation 2 70 121 226 419

Contracts 290 344 130 764

Other 7 3 25 4 39

Rent

Financing 11 11

A&O/Transfers 1 19 1 172 193

    Total Expenses 301 91 503 532 1,426

Budget 640 294 1,994 1,425 4,353

% of Ann Budg 47% 31% 25% 37% 1

Net Fund Balance (10) 5 636 243 873

Budgeted Net -          -          -          -        -          

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 15

mambler
Typewritten Text
  14     14      16   19



Tahoe Regional Plannning Agency
Balance Sheet, 12/31/2016

Gen Fund Grants Agency Grand Total

Asset

Cash & Invest 10,656,239 3,111,752 13,412,123 27,180,114

Benefits 6,803 6,803

Current Assets 38,418 38,418

LT Assets 9,751,746 9,751,746

Asset Total 20,467,647 3,535,139 13,412,123 37,414,909

Liabilities

A/P 0

Benefits 538,953 538,953

Deferred Rev 386,984 1,842,657 2,229,640

Deposits 130,074 10,190 140,264

LT Debt 11,655,000 11,655,000

Mitigation 8,926,191 8,926,191

Securities 4,452,286 4,452,286

Liabilities Total 12,711,010 1,852,847 13,378,477 27,942,334

Fund Balances 7,756,637 1,682,292 33,646 9,472,575

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 16



TRPA Fee Report
$ - Fiscal YTD for July - Dec 2015 v. July - Dec. 2016

Type Prior FY Curr FY Inc(Dec) % Change

RESIDENTIAL 112,775 111,394 (1,381) -1%

ADMIN FEES 66,190 53,413 (12,777) -19%

COST RECOVERY 81,961 52,277 (29,685) -36%

ENFORCEMENT 30,228 44,027 13,799 46%

SHOREZONE 40,257 29,357 (10,900) -27%

PUBLIC/RECREATION 40,985 27,887 (13,099) -32%

GENERAL 48,192 26,704 (21,488) -45%

GRADING 18,060 23,600 5,540 31%

TREE REMOVAL 22,472 20,193 (2,279) -10%

SECURITIES 16,927 18,003 1,076 6%

DEV RIGHTS 4,240 16,736 12,496 295%

MONITORING 6,816 15,329 8,512 125%

COMMERCIAL 11,645 13,098 1,453 12%

IPES 13,509 8,171 (5,338) -40%

SUBDIV 4,144 6,132 1,988 48%

LLADJ_ROW 7,284 4,900 (2,384) -33%

QUALIFED EXEMPT 3,944 3,128 (816) -21%

HISTORIC 7,631 2,661 (4,970) -65%

PRE-APP 1,696 1,272 (424) -25%

TEMP USE 2,035 1,245 (790) -39%

UNDERGROUND TANKS 912 1,216 304 33%

LMTD_INCENT 267 267

SIGNS 738 246 (492) -67%

ALLOCATION 2,320 100 (2,220) -96%

CEP 2,500 (2,500)

SCENIC 400 (400)

STD 400 (400)

ENVIRONMENT 192 (192)

641,231 622,100 (19,131) -3%

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 17



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Fiscal YTD December, 2016

Ann Budget YTD Remaining Spent

General Fund

GF Revenue

Revenue

Fees for Service 0 482 482 0%

Other Revenue 0 31,349 31,349 0%

Local Revenue 150,000 0 150,000 0%

Revenue Total 5,827,187 6,396,320 569,133 110%

GF Revenue Total 5,827,187 6,396,320 569,133 110%

Gov Board

Expenses

Contracts 4,036 500 3,536 12%

Rent 3,226 2,362 864 73%

Other 15,308 3,985 11,323 26%

Expenses Total 22,570 6,847 15,723 30%

Gov Board Total 22,570 6,847 15,723 30%

Executive

Expenses

Compensation 521,512 240,491 281,021 46%

Contracts 126 0 126 0%

Other 5,129 5,140 11 100%

Expenses Total 526,767 245,631 281,136 47%

Executive Total 526,767 245,631 281,136 47%

Legal

Expenses

Compensation 220,969 94,191 126,778 43%

Contracts 144,833 24,826 120,007 17%

Other 10,801 2,536 8,265 23%

Expenses Total 376,603 121,553 255,050 32%

Legal Total 376,603 121,553 255,050 32%

TMPO

Expenses

Compensation 11,780 3,371 8,409 29%

Contracts 33,243 3,592 29,651 11%

Rent 0 150 150 0%

Other 30,000 15,457 14,543 52%

Expenses Total 75,023 22,270 52,753 30%

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 18



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Fiscal YTD December, 2016

Ann Budget YTD Remaining Spent

TMPO Total 75,023 22,270 52,753 30%

Communications

Expenses

Contracts 378 3,000 2,622 794%

Other 42,479 16,352 26,127 38%

Expenses Total 233,722 101,893 131,829 44%

Communications Total 233,722 101,893 131,829 44%

General Services

Expenses

Compensation 72,941 34,137 38,804 47%

Contracts 937 0 937 0%

Rent 688,980 344,490 344,490 50%

Other 125,875 63,695 62,180 51%

Expenses Total 888,733 442,322 446,411 50%

General Services Total 888,733 442,322 446,411 50%

IT

Expenses

Contracts 150,000 78,228 71,772 52%

Other 219,226 90,334 128,892 41%

Expenses Total 369,226 168,561 200,665 46%

IT Total 369,226 168,561 200,665 46%

Finance

Expenses

Compensation 332,211 162,739 169,472 49%

Contracts 130,190 31,744 98,446 24%

Financing 474 78 552 -16%

Other 449 1,243 794 277%

Expenses Total 463,324 195,648 267,676 42%

Finance Total 463,324 195,648 267,676 42%

HR

Expenses

Compensation 331,240 117,432 213,808 35%

Contracts 86,225 12,200 74,025 14%

Other 31,774 14,891 16,883 47%

Expenses Total 449,239 144,523 304,716 32%

HR Total 449,239 144,523 304,716 32%

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 19



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Fiscal YTD December, 2016

Ann Budget YTD Remaining Spent

Other

Revenue

Other Revenue 0 1,429 1,429 0%

Revenue Total 0 1,429 1,429 0%

Expenses

Compensation 133,130 0 133,130 0%

A&O/Transfers 600,791 217,151 383,640 36%

Expenses Total 467,661 217,151 250,510 46%

Other Total 467,661 218,580 249,081 47%

RP Impl.

Revenue

Other Revenue 0 10,000 10,000 0%

Revenue Total 0 10,000 10,000 0%

Expenses

Compensation 394,558 193,647 200,911 49%

Contracts 426,000 131,622 294,378 31%

Rent 0 408 408 0%

Other 968 3,004 2,036 310%

Expenses Total 821,526 328,681 492,845 40%

RP Impl. Total 821,526 318,681 502,845 39%

Sustainable Communities

Expenses

Compensation 48,248 13,488 34,760 28%

Other 689 0 689 0%

Expenses Total 48,937 13,488 35,449 28%

Sustainable Communities Total 48,937 13,488 35,449 28%

Env. Improv.

Expenses

Compensation 487,346 207,744 279,602 43%

Contracts 10,000 0 10,000 0%

Other 2,424 540 1,884 22%

Expenses Total 499,770 208,283 291,487 42%

Env. Improv. Total 499,770 208,283 291,487 42%

Research & Analysis

Expenses

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 110



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Fiscal YTD December, 2016

Ann Budget YTD Remaining Spent

Compensation 907,486 369,715 537,771 41%

Contracts 652,798 136,142 516,657 21%

Rent 649 0 649 0%

Other 42,584 7,865 34,719 18%

Expenses Total 1,603,517 513,722 1,089,795 32%

Research & Analysis Total 1,603,517 513,722 1,089,795 32%

General Fund Total 84,109 4,111,479 4,195,588 -4888%

Planning

Planning

Revenue

Fees for Service 1,283,987 670,393 613,594 52%

Revenue Total 1,283,987 670,393 613,594 52%

Expenses

Compensation 784,187 362,651 421,536 46%

Contracts 52,600 103,225 50,625 196%

Rent 811 0 811 0%

Other 8,185 1,243 6,942 15%

Expenses Total 845,783 467,119 378,664 55%

Planning Total 438,204 203,274 234,930 46%

Code Enforcement

Expenses

Compensation 241,158 111,311 129,847 46%

Other 725 0 725 0%

Expenses Total 241,883 111,311 130,572 46%

Code Enforcement Total 241,883 111,311 130,572 46%

Planning Total 196,321 91,963 104,358 47%

Shorezone

Enforcement

Expenses

Compensation 63,126 41,594 21,532 66%

Contracts 5,000 0 5,000 0%

Rent 16,600 6,000 10,600 36%

Other 43,904 16,619 27,285 38%

Expenses Total 128,630 64,213 64,417 50%

Enforcement Total 128,630 64,213 64,417 50%

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 111



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Fiscal YTD December, 2016

Ann Budget YTD Remaining Spent

Implementation

Expenses

Compensation 0 238 238 0%

Expenses Total 0 238 238 0%

Implementation Total 0 238 238 0%

Other

Revenue

Other Revenue 0 1,813 1,813 0%

Revenue Total 0 1,813 1,813 0%

Other Total 0 1,813 1,813 0%

Monitoring

Revenue

Fees for Service 0 5,000 5,000 0%

Revenue Total 0 5,000 5,000 0%

Monitoring Total 0 5,000 5,000 0%

Shorezone Total 128,630 71,263 57,367 55%

Reimburseables

Legal

Expenses

Compensation 0 429 429 0%

Expenses Total 0 429 429 0%

Legal Total 0 429 429 0%

Planning

Revenue

Fees for Service 240,000 542,620 302,620 226%

Revenue Total 240,000 542,620 302,620 226%

Expenses

Contracts 240,000 182,497 57,503 76%

Expenses Total 240,000 182,497 57,503 76%

Planning Total 0 360,123 360,123 0%

Reimburseables Total 0 359,694 359,694 0%

Settlements

Settlements

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 112



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Fiscal YTD December, 2016

Ann Budget YTD Remaining Spent

Revenue

Fees for Service 150,000 45,506 104,494 30%

Revenue Total 150,000 45,506 104,494 30%

Expenses

Contracts 66,000 35,578 30,422 54%

Other 5,000 0 5,000 0%

Expenses Total 71,000 35,578 35,422 50%

Settlements Total 79,000 9,927 69,073 13%

Settlements Total 79,000 9,927 69,073 13%

Building

Building

Revenue

Rent Revenue 990,238 511,016 479,222 52%

Revenue Total 990,238 511,016 479,222 52%

Expenses

Contracts 6,943 44,958 38,015 648%

Financing 911,366 289,333 622,033 32%

Other 59,917 33,490 26,427 56%

Expenses Total 978,226 367,781 610,445 38%

Building Total 12,012 143,234 131,222 1192%

CAM

Revenue

Rent Revenue 4,618 889 3,729 19%

Revenue Total 4,618 889 3,729 19%

Expenses

Other 79,212 22,733 56,479 29%

Expenses Total 79,212 22,733 56,479 29%

CAM Total 74,594 21,844 52,750 29%

Revenue

Revenue

Other Revenue 0 32 32 0%

Revenue Total 0 32 32 0%

Revenue Total 0 32 32 0%

Building Total 62,582 121,423 184,005 -194%

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 113



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Fiscal YTD December, 2016

Ann Budget YTD Remaining Spent

BMP

319 (CA)

Revenue

Grants 128,056 48,648 79,408 38%

Revenue Total 128,056 48,648 79,408 38%

Expenses

Compensation 105,759 38,012 67,747 36%

Other 10,000 1,311 8,689 13%

A&O/Transfers 12,297 4,420 7,877 36%

Expenses Total 128,056 43,743 84,313 34%

319 (CA) Total 0 4,904 4,904 0%

319 (NV)

Revenue

Grants 166,147 46,999 119,148 28%

Revenue Total 166,147 46,999 119,148 28%

Expenses

Compensation 110,011 31,741 78,270 29%

Other 6,630 1,191 5,439 18%

A&O/Transfers 49,506 14,283 35,223 29%

Expenses Total 166,147 47,216 118,931 28%

319 (NV) Total 0 217 217 0%

NDSL LTLP BMP Map Viewer

Expenses

Compensation 0 54 54 0%

A&O/Transfers 0 35 35 0%

Expenses Total 0 90 90 0%

NDSL LTLP BMP Map Viewer Total 0 90 90 0%

BMP Total 0 4,598 4,598 0%

EIP

TIIMS SNPLMA R9 & 10

Revenue

Grants 163,077 1,516 161,561 1%

Revenue Total 163,077 1,516 161,561 1%

Expenses

Compensation 36,503 236 36,267 1%

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 114



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Fiscal YTD December, 2016

Ann Budget YTD Remaining Spent

Contracts 19,374 44,753 25,379 231%

Other 83,315 0 83,315 0%

A&O/Transfers 23,884 180 23,704 1%

Expenses Total 163,076 45,168 117,908 28%

TIIMS SNPLMA R9 & 10 Total 1 43,653 43,654 -4365250%

CEC TahoeTruckee PEV Readiness

Revenue

Grants 93,610 72,801 20,809 78%

Revenue Total 93,610 72,801 20,809 78%

Expenses

Compensation 2,181 1,431 750 66%

Contracts 90,000 34,935 55,065 39%

A&O/Transfers 1,428 936 492 66%

Expenses Total 93,609 37,302 56,307 40%

CEC TahoeTruckee PEV Readiness Total 1 35,499 35,498 3549884%

Cal Fire Education

Revenue

Grants 66,020 76,035 10,015 115%

Revenue Total 66,020 76,035 10,015 115%

Expenses

Compensation 3,770 124 3,646 3%

Contracts 30,000 11,972 18,028 40%

Other 32,250 7,418 24,832 23%

A&O/Transfers 0 0 0 0%

Expenses Total 66,020 19,514 46,506 30%

Cal Fire Education Total 0 56,520 56,520 0%

CalFire Def. Space

Revenue

Grants 130,332 9,694 120,638 7%

Revenue Total 130,332 9,694 120,638 7%

Expenses

Contracts 130,332 32,815 97,517 25%

Expenses Total 130,332 32,815 97,517 25%

CalFire Def. Space Total 0 23,121 23,121 0%

Lahontan Nearshore/LTIMP

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 115



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Fiscal YTD December, 2016

Ann Budget YTD Remaining Spent

Revenue

Grants 187,181 41,005 146,176 22%

Revenue Total 187,181 41,005 146,176 22%

Expenses

Compensation 5,999 267 5,732 4%

Contracts 176,783 69,491 107,292 39%

A&O/Transfers 4,401 204 4,197 5%

Expenses Total 187,183 69,963 117,220 37%

Lahontan Nearshore/LTIMP Total 2 28,957 28,955 1447874%

Cal State Lands - Buoy Count

Revenue

Grants 0 81,050 81,050 0%

Revenue Total 0 81,050 81,050 0%

Expenses

Contracts 0 72,521 72,521 0%

Expenses Total 0 72,521 72,521 0%

Cal State Lands - Buoy Count Total 0 8,529 8,529 0%

Shoreline

Revenue

Grants 0 8,476 8,476 0%

Revenue Total 0 8,476 8,476 0%

Expenses

Contracts 0 23,573 23,573 0%

Expenses Total 0 23,573 23,573 0%

Shoreline Total 0 15,096 15,096 0%

EIP Total 0 10,279 10,279 0%

AIS

USFWS ANS AIS Mgmt Plan

Revenue

Grants 48,895 0 48,895 0%

Revenue Total 48,895 0 48,895 0%

Expenses

Compensation 2,142 0 2,142 0%

Contracts 45,119 0 45,119 0%

A&O/Transfers 1,634 0 1,634 0%

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 116



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Fiscal YTD December, 2016

Ann Budget YTD Remaining Spent

Expenses Total 48,895 1 48,894 0%

USFWS ANS AIS Mgmt Plan Total 0 1 1 0%

SNPLMA Rnd 12 Final

Revenue

Grants 432,276 717 431,559 0%

Revenue Total 432,276 717 431,559 0%

Expenses

Compensation 2,142 730 1,412 34%

Contracts 508,000 750 507,250 0%

A&O/Transfers 1,634 557 1,077 34%

Expenses Total 511,776 2,037 509,739 0%

SNPLMA Rnd 12 Final Total 79,500 1,320 78,180 2%

Boat Insp

Revenue

Grants 97,513 0 97,513 0%

Revenue Total 97,513 0 97,513 0%

Expenses

Compensation 8,400 4,836 3,564 58%

Contracts 89,114 33,757 55,358 38%

Other 0 25,475 25,475 0%

A&O/Transfers 0 0 0 0%

Expenses Total 97,514 13,117 84,397 13%

Boat Insp Total 1 13,117 13,116 1311690%

CA AIS Funding

Revenue

State Revenue 375,000 0 375,000 0%

Revenue Total 375,000 0 375,000 0%

Expenses

Compensation 0 378 378 0%

Contracts 375,000 232,639 142,361 62%

A&O/Transfers 0 0 0 0%

Expenses Total 375,000 233,017 141,983 62%

CA AIS Funding Total 0 233,017 233,017 0%

NV AIS Funding

Revenue

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 117



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Fiscal YTD December, 2016

Ann Budget YTD Remaining Spent

State Revenue 375,000 0 375,000 0%

Revenue Total 375,000 0 375,000 0%

Expenses

Compensation 236,384 115,312 121,072 49%

Contracts 86,000 15,401 70,599 18%

Other 52,617 36,778 15,839 70%

A&O/Transfers 0 0 0 0%

Expenses Total 375,001 167,491 207,510 45%

NV AIS Funding Total 1 167,491 167,490 16749146%

Inspection Fees

Revenue

Fees for Service 450,000 384,299 65,701 85%

Revenue Total 450,000 384,299 65,701 85%

Expenses

Compensation 0 9 9 0%

Contracts 139,000 61,635 77,365 44%

Financing 11,000 11,365 365 103%

Other 220,500 9,353 211,147 4%

A&O/Transfers 0 0 0 0%

Expenses Total 370,500 82,361 288,139 22%

Inspection Fees Total 79,500 301,938 222,438 380%

AIS

Revenue

Fees for Service 0 0 0 0%

Revenue Total 0 0 0 0%

AIS Total 0 0 0 0%

NDSL Finance Plan

Revenue

Grants 215,000 0 215,000 0%

Revenue Total 215,000 0 215,000 0%

Expenses

Compensation 2,142 0 2,142 0%

Contracts 212,856 0 212,856 0%

Expenses Total 214,998 0 214,998 0%

NDSL Finance Plan Total 2 0 2 0%

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 118



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Fiscal YTD December, 2016

Ann Budget YTD Remaining Spent

DBW WIS Tracking

Revenue

Grants 0 3,589 3,589 0%

Revenue Total 0 3,589 3,589 0%

Expenses

Other 0 4,584 4,584 0%

Expenses Total 0 4,584 4,584 0%

DBW WIS Tracking Total 0 995 995 0%

AIS Total 0 114,002 114,002 0%

Transportation

Transportation

Revenue

Grants 1,425,001 772,374 652,627 54%

Revenue Total 1,425,001 772,374 652,627 54%

Expenses

Compensation 626,838 225,622 401,216 36%

Contracts 335,494 129,925 205,569 39%

Other 0 4,061 4,061 0%

A&O/Transfers 462,669 172,127 290,542 37%

Expenses Total 1,425,001 531,735 893,266 37%

Transportation Total 0 240,639 240,639 0%

CA 5303

Revenue

Grants 0 2,245 2,245 0%

Revenue Total 0 2,245 2,245 0%

CA 5303 Total 0 2,245 2,245 0%

Transportation Total 0 242,884 242,884 0%

 0 14,208,864 14,208,864 0%

(blank) 0 0%

Other

Env. Newsletter

Revenue

Other Revenue 0 1,779 1,779 0%

Revenue Total 0 1,779 1,779 0%

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 119



Tahoe Regional Planning Agency

Fiscal YTD December, 2016

Ann Budget YTD Remaining Spent

Expenses

Other 0 30,406 30,406 0%

Expenses Total 0 30,406 30,406 0%

Env. Newsletter Total 0 28,627 28,627 0%

Other Total 0 28,627 28,627 0%

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 120



 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 & 3 

 

MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:    January 18, 2017 

To:    TRPA Governing Board 

From:    TRPA Staff 

Subject:  Resolutions to enter into a contract with California Department of Forestry and Fire (CAL 

FIRE) for two State Responsibility Area (SRA) grants: Lake Tahoe Pre‐Attack Planning Project 

and the Lake Tahoe Fire Prevention and Native Plants Outreach Project 

 
Requested Action: For the Governing Board to adopt two resolutions to enter a contract with the California 
Department of Forestry and Fire (CAL FIRE) for two State Responsibility Area (SRA) grants. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Governing Board adopt the resolutions (Attachments A 
and B). 

 
Governing Board Required Motions:  To adopt the proposed resolutions (Attachments A and B) the board 
must make the following motion:  
 

I.  A motion to adopt the proposed resolutions (Attachments A and B) to enter a contract 
with CAL FIRE for two SRA fire prevention grants. 

 
For the motion to pass, an affirmative vote of any 8 members of the Governing Board is required. 
 
Project Description/Background: TRPA has been an active member of the Tahoe Fire and Fuels Team (TFFT) 
since its inception in 2008. During that time, much work has been accomplished and a multi‐agency 
partnership has been solidified. In 2014, CAL FIRE introduced the SRA Fire Prevention Grant Fund. TRPA, 
working with other TFFT agencies, recently applied for two SRA grants, one for the Lake Tahoe Pre‐Attack 
Planning Project, and one for the Lake Tahoe Fire Prevention and Native Plants Outreach Project. The Lake 
Tahoe Pre‐Attack Planning Project will create briefing packets for first responders with information about 
previous fuels treatments, critical infrastructure, evacuation routes, and tree mortality for improved 
wildfire response and safety. The Lake Tahoe Fire Prevention and Native Plants Outreach Project will 
develop and distribute a guide to local native shrubs and ground covers that focuses on plant flammability 
and fire ecology to help property owners in the Tahoe Basin create defensible space and fire‐adapted 
communities. 

 
Both proposals were awarded funding by CAL FIRE and TRPA and is now finalizing the grant award and 
contract process to move forward with the two projects with TFFT partners. 
 
Environmental Review: None necessary. 
 

21



CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 & 3 
 

Regional Plan Compliance: The proposed action complies with all requirements of the TRPA Goals and 
Policies, Plan Area Statements, and Code of Ordinances, including all required findings in Chapter 6 of the 
TRPA Code of Ordinances. 
 

Contact Information: If you have any questions, please contact Tom Lotshaw at (775) 589‐5278 or 
tlotshaw@trpa.org.  

 
Attachments: 

A. Resolution  
B. Resolution  

 

22



    CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 & 3 

 

Attachment A 

Resolution authorizing a grant agreement with the California Department of Forestry and Fire (CAL FIRE) 
for the Lake Tahoe Pre‐Attack Planning Project  

 

23



 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 & 3 

TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                         
RESOLUTION 2017 –__ 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND 
FIRE FOR THE LAKE TAHOE PRE‐ATTACK PLANNING PROJECT  

 

WHEREAS, wildfire poses a serious public safety and environmental risk in the Lake Tahoe Region; 
and 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Forestry and Fire has awarded $11,200 in grant funding for 
the Tahoe Regional Planning agency and other members of the Tahoe Fire and Fuels Team; and 

WHEREAS, this grant funding will be used by February 1, 2019, for the Lake Tahoe Pre‐Attack 
Planning Project to improve pre‐attack planning and create responders’ briefing packets with 
information about previous fuels treatments, critical infrastructure, evacuation routes, and tree 
mortality for the State Responsibility Area in the Lake Tahoe Basin and Alpine Meadows, an area 
containing more than 27,000 habitable structures; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board has made reducing wildfire risk a top priority and has a standing 
Catastrophic Wildfire Committee; and 

WHEREAS, the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency values its partnerships and collaboration with fire 
agencies in the Lake Tahoe Basin; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board hereby authorizes the Executive 
Director of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency to sign and execute grant agreement 5GS16134 
with California Department of Forestry and Fire for the Lake Tahoe Pre‐Attack Planning Project on 
behalf of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency. 

PASSED and ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency this 25th day 
of January, 2017, by the following vote: 

Ayes: 
Nays: 
Abstain: 
Absent:  

 
                   

                __________________________ 

                James Lawrence, Chair                                                             
                Tahoe Regional Planning Agency  
                Governing Board 

 

 

 

24



    CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 & 3 

Attachment B 

Resolution authorizing a grant agreement with the California Department of Forestry and Fire (CAL FIRE) 
for the Lake Tahoe Fire Prevention and Native Plants Outreach Project 

 

25



 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 2 & 3 
 

TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY                                                                                         
RESOLUTION 2017 –__ 

 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A GRANT AGREEMENT WITH THE CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FORESTRY AND 
FIRE FOR THE LAKE TAHOE FIRE PREVENTION AND NATIVE PLANTS OUTREACH PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, wildfire poses a serious public safety and environmental risk in the Lake Tahoe Region; 
and 

WHEREAS, the California Department of Forestry and Fire has awarded $15,680 in grant funding for 
the Tahoe Regional Planning agency and other members of the Tahoe Fire and Fuels Team; and 

WHEREAS, this grant funding will be used by December 31, 2018, to develop and distribute a guide 
to local native shrubs and ground covers focused on plant flammability, fire ecology, and creating 
defensible space and fire‐adapted communities; and 

WHEREAS, the Governing Board has made reducing wildfire risk a top priority and has a standing 
Catastrophic Wildfire Committee; and 

WHEREAS, the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency values its partnerships and collaboration with fire 
agencies in the Lake Tahoe Basin; 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board hereby authorizes the Executive 
Director of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency to sign and execute grant agreement 5GS16133 
with California Department of Forestry and Fire on behalf of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 
for the Lake Tahoe Fire Prevention and Native Plants Outreach Project. 

PASSED and ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency this 25th day 
of January, 2017, by the following vote: 

Ayes: 
Nays: 
Abstain: 
Absent:  

 
                   

                __________________________ 

                James Lawrence, Chair                                                             
                Tahoe Regional Planning Agency  
                Governing Board 

26



 

CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 4 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:    January 18, 2017 

To:    TRPA Governing Board 

From:    TRPA Staff 

Subject:              Resolution approving Quagga/Zebra Mussel Infestation Prevention Grant Program         
Application and Funding Agreement in the amount of $131,138 

 

 
Requested Action: Adoption of the attached Resolution (Attachment A) authorizing the Executive Director 
to enter into a funding agreement with the California Parks and Recreation, Division of Boating and 
Waterways under their Quagga/Zebra Mussel Infestation Prevention Grant Program. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Governing Board adopt the proposed Resolution 
(Attachment A). 

 
Required Motion: In order to adopt the proposed Resolution (Attachment A) the Board must make the 
following motion:  
 

I.  A motion to adopt the proposed Resolution (Attachment A). 
 
In order for the motion to pass, an affirmative vote of any 8 members of the Board is required. 
 
Project Description/Background: The Quagga/Zebra Mussel Infestation Prevention Grant Program was 
initiated by the State of California to provide funding for such prevention programs operating within the 
state of California. These funds are made available through additional California boat registration fees 
collected by the Department of Motor Vehicles in the form of a grant administered by the California 
Division of Boating and Waterways (DBW). TRPA received funds through this program in 2015 to help fund 
operations of the boat inspection station located at Alpine Meadows Ski Resort, as well as in 2016 to 
enhance boat inspection data collection and to assist in developing a shared inspection station with the 
Town of Truckee. TRPA has applied and received conditional approval of funds, for another round of 
applications for this grant. DBW requires the attached resolution be passed and adopted by the receiving 
entity’s governing body. 
 
The current proposal is to fund equipment upgrades to facilitate additional process improvements and 
enhanced customer service at the launch facilities and inspection stations. The award will fund the 
purchase of a new decontamination maintenance trailer to provide for more efficient refilling and disposing 
of water in support of the inspection stations. The increased water capacity of the new trailer will also 
provide air quality and greenhouse gas reduction benefits due to a drastic reduction in vehicle trips 
necessary to dump and fill water. The award will also fund the purchase of a portable office building for the 
Meyers Inspection Station (similar to what was awarded for the Truckee station previously), a new pump 
for the decontamination unit at the Alpine Inspection Station, and equipment upgrades for old, out‐of‐date 

27



CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 4 

 
 

equipment and parts. These purchases will help to improve customer service, safety, and effectiveness of 
the Program.  
 
The remaining funding will be used to support and enhance tasks from previous grant agreements, as well 
as the purchase and installation of artificial substrate monitoring equipment. TRPA has requested $75,000 
to fund the remaining cost of the decontamination unit for the Truckee/Tahoe Inspection Station which was 
not fully funded in the previous DBW grant round. Funding has also been requested to purchase additional 
mobile devices to enhance data collection efforts with the mobile application that was developed by the 
State of Colorado’s AIS program. This application is designed to allow programs throughout the west to 
share inspection information and reduce risk to waterbodies by informing western AIS programs when 
boats leave quagga infested waterbodies. This will allow the Tahoe program to also have more reliable 
information collected at the ramps, and move away from using paper forms at the inspection stations. 
Initial funding for this effort was secured through a grant agreement in a previous round of the same DBW 
funding. Funding for the purchase and installation of artificial substrate monitoring equipment will allow for 
enhanced monitoring at high risk locations in Lake Tahoe to provide for improved confirmation that there 
have been no new introductions.  
 
TRPA has requested $131,138 to implement these process improvements, with a project budget of 
approximately $143,052 that includes “in‐kind” staff costs for grant reporting and administration as well as 
“cash” costs for the portion of the equipment upgrades and decontamination maintenance trailer which 
support the Spooner Inspection Station in Nevada. This portion of the costs cannot be funded through the 
agreement with DBW due to the station being located outside of California. Therefore, 25% of the costs for 
those upgrades (1 of 4 stations) will be covered by TRPA.   
 
Environmental Review: None necessary. 
 
Regional Plan Compliance: The proposed action complies with all requirements of the TRPA Goals and 
Policies, Plan Area Statements, and Code of Ordinances, including all required findings in Chapter 6 of the 
TRPA Code of Ordinances. 
 

Contact Information: If you have any questions, please contact Dennis Zabaglo at (775) 589‐5255 or 
dzabaglo@trpa.org.  

 
Attachment: 

A. Resolution 

 
 

   

28



Attachment A 

Quagga/Zebra Mussel Infestation Prevention Fee Grant Program Application and Funding Agreement 

Resolution  

 

29 CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 4

mambler
Typewritten Text

mambler
Typewritten Text



CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 4 

 
 

TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY  
RESOLUTION 2017 – __ 

 
 

WHEREAS, prior to the State of California Parks and Recreation, Division of Boating and Waterways 

approving Applications and executing Funding Agreements, the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency Governing 

Board is required to pass a resolution, authorizing a designated representative(s) to execute said 

Applications, Funding Agreements, amendments, and certifications, designating a representative to 

approve claims for reimbursement, designating a representative to sign the Funding Requests and Project 

Status, designating a representative to sign Project Completion Certifications, and designating a 

representative to sign the Contractor’s Release Form; and 

WHEREAS, the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency has the authority to construct, operate, and maintain the 

Lake Tahoe Watercraft Inspection Program; and make an application to the State of California, Department 

of Parks and Recreation, Division of Boating and Waterways for a grant in the amount of $131,138 under 

the Harbors and Watercraft Revolving Fund for the Quagga and Zebra Mussel Infestation Prevention Grant 

Program; and 

WHEREAS, the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency desires to enhance, modify, or rebuild the Lake Tahoe 

Watercraft Inspection Program to implement a plan for the prevention of an infestation of the quagga and 

zebra mussel; and 

WHEREAS, the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency submitted an application in support of the Lake Tahoe 

Watercraft Inspection Program with a project budget totaling $143,052; and 

WHEREAS, the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency is subject to all of the terms and provisions of the Quagga 

and Zebra Mussel Infestation Prevention Grant program; and  

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Executive Director of said Tahoe Regional Planning Agency is 

hereby authorized and directed to cause the necessary data to be prepared and application to be signed 

and filed with the State of California, Department of Parks and Recreation, Division of Boating and 

Waterways; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized to sign the State of California 

Parks and Recreation, Division of Boating and Waterways, Harbors and Watercraft Revolving Fund Program 

Funding Agreements and any amendments thereto; and 

   

30



CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 4 

 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized to approve Claims for 

Reimbursement under the State of California Parks and Recreation, Division of Boating and Waterways, 

Harbors and Watercraft Revolving Fund program; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized to execute the Budgets and 

Expenditure Summaries for the State of California Parks and Recreation, Division of Boating and 

Waterways, Harbors and Watercraft Revolving Fund program; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized to sign the Contractor’s Release 

Form for the State of California Parks and Recreation, Division of Boating and Waterways, Harbors and 

Watercraft Revolving Fund project; and  

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Executive Director is hereby authorized to certify that the projects are 

complete and ready for final inspection. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE GOVERNING BOARD OF THE TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY AT ITS 

REGULAR MEETING HELD ON THE 25th of JANUARY 2017 BY THE FOLLOWING VOTE:  

Ayes:  
Nays:  
Abstain:  
Absent:            
 

_________________________ 
            James Lawrence, Chair 
                   Tahoe Regional Planning Agency                                                                
                                                                 Governing Board  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

31



32



  ATTACHMENT A 
     

MK/  CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 5 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
 
Date:    January 18, 2017 

To:    TRPA Governing Board 

From:    TRPA Staff 

Subject:  Appoint the Executive Director, or designee, as agent of TRPA, to enter into Agreement 
#00503S, funded by the State of California, Department of Transportation 

 

 
Requested Action: Governing Board to appoint authorization to the executive director, or designee to 
execute all funding documents including, but not limited to applications, agreements, payment requests 
and so on in respect to all master agreements, program supplemental agreements, fund exchange 
agreements, fund transfer agreements and any amendments pertaining to Agreement #00503S, funded 
by the State of California, Department of Transportation. 
 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends the Governing Board adopt the attached resolution 
(Attachment A) granting approval to Joanne S. Marchetta, as Executive Director, or her written 
designee, authorization to conduct all negotiations, execute and submit all documents including, but not 
limited to applications, agreements, payment requests and so on in respect to all master agreements, 
program supplemental agreements, fund exchange agreements, fund transfer agreements and any 
amendments pertaining to agreement #00503S, funded by the State of California, Department of 
Transportation, in the amount of $225,000 to the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency through the Systemic 
Safety Analysis Report Program (SSARP) to support the Lake Tahoe Region Safety Action Plan. 
 
Required Motion: In order to adopt the proposed resolution, the Board must make the following 
motion, based on this staff summary and the evidence in the record:  
 

1. A motion to approve the proposed resolution (Attachment A).  
 
In order for the motion to pass, an affirmative vote of any eight Board members is required.  
 
Contact Information: If you have any questions, please contact Chris Keillor at (775) 589‐5222 or  
ckeillor@trpa.org. 
 
Attachment: 

A. Resolution  
 

 
 
 
 
 

33



  CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 5 

Attachment A 
 

Resolution to appoint the Executive Director, or designee, as agent of TRPA, to enter into Agreement 
#00503S, funded by the State of California, Department of Transportation 

 

34



 CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 5 

TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY 
TRPA RESOLUTION NO. 2017 ‐__ 

 
A RESOLUTION TO APPOINT THE EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, OR DESIGNEE, AS AGENT OF TRPA, TO ENTER  
INTO AGREEMENT #00503S, FUNDED BY THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION 

 
 

WHEREAS, The Tahoe Regional Planning Agency is eligible to receive Federal and/or State funding for 
transportation, environmental improvement and other projects through certain State and Federal 
Agencies; and 
 
WHEREAS, Master Agreements, Program Supplemental Agreements, Fund Exchange Agreements and/or 
Fund Transfer Agreements need to be executed with State and/or Federal Departments before such 
funds can be claimed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency Governing Board wishes to delegate authorization to 
execute these agreements and amendments there to the Executive Director, or Designee; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Governing Board of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 
authorizes the Executive Director, Joanne S. Marchetta, or designee appointed in writing, to execute all 
said funding agreements pertaining to Agreement #00503S, funded by the State of California, 
Department of Transportation. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency at its regular 
meeting held on January 25, 2017, by the following vote: 
 
Ayes: 
Nays: 
Abstain: 
Absent: 
 
  ___________________________ 
  Jim Lawrence, Chair 
  Tahoe Regional Planning Agency  
                                                                                       Governing Board 

35



36



CONSENT CALENDAR ITEM NO. 6 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
Date:     January 18, 2017                                                                                                                                      

To:      TRPA Governing Board   

From:      TRPA Staff  

Subject:   APC Membership Appointment     

 
 
Requested Action: Governing Board reappointment for Advisory Planning Commission Tahoe Transportation 
District representative, Steve Teshara for the term of February 1, 2017 through January 31, 2019.    
 
Staff Recommendation: Staff recommends that the Governing Board approve the proposed APC appointment. 
 
Required Motion: In order to approve the proposed APC appointment, the Board must make the following 
motion: 

1) A motion to approve the proposed appointment. In order for the motion to pass, an affirmative 
vote of any eight Board members is required. 

 
Background: The Tahoe Regional Planning Agency Compact provides for a two‐year term for lay member 
appointments to the Advisory Planning Commission, which term may be renewed.   
 
Contact Information: If you have any questions, please contact Joanne Marchetta, Executive Director, at (775) 
589‐5226, jmarchetta@trpa.org 

37



38



  

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date: January 18, 2017 

To: TRPA Governing Board 

From:  TRPA Staff 

Subject: Certification of Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan and Tahoe City  
                             Lodge Final Environmental Impact Statement and Adoption of the Placer County 

Tahoe Basin Area Plan 
 

Requested Action:  The Governing Board is asked to review the materials provided within this 
staff summary to ensure that the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan is in conformance with 
the Regional Plan and Chapter 13: Area Plans of the TRPA Code of Ordinances. Members of the 
Governing Board are also requested to adopt the proposed Area Plan. 
 
1. Certify the proposed Final Environmental Impact Statement (Final EIS): To certify the Final 

Environmental Impact Statement (Final EIS) for the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan and 
Tahoe City Lodge project, the Governing Board must make the following motion: 

  
I. A motion to certify the technical adequacy of the Placer County Tahoe Basin 

Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Project Final Environmental Impact Statement 
(State Clearinghouse No. 2014072039), and modified in the errata thereto, as 
provided in Attachment D. 

 
2.    Adopt the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan (Alternative 1 as modified in the Final 

EIR/EIS): To adopt the Area Plan as contained within Attachment A, the Governing Board 
must make the following two motions: 

 
I. A motion to make the findings required by Compact Articles IV and VII and Code 

of Ordinances Chapter 3, 4 and 13 for the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan 
for adoption of the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan, as provided in 
Attachment E thereto.  
 

II. A motion to adopt Ordinance 2017-__, amending Ordinance 87-9, as previously 
amended, to amend TRPA’s Regional Plan to incorporate the Placer County 
Tahoe Basin Area Plan, as provided in Attachment F thereto. 

 
In order for the motions to pass, an affirmative vote of at least four Governing Board members 
with votes from each state is required. 
 
Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the Governing Board make the motions above, 
to certify the Final EIS and adopt the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan, based on this staff 
summary and the evidence in the record. 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
39



   

Advisory Planning Commission Action:  On December 7, 2016, the Advisory Planning 
Commission (APC) held a public hearing to consider a recommendation on certification of the 
Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Final Environmental Impact 
Statement and a recommendation on approval of the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan. APC 
unanimously recommended certification of the Final EIS and adoption of the Area Plan. 
 
Regional Plan Implementation Committee: On December 14, 2016, the Regional Plan 
Implementation Committee (RPIC) held a public hearing to consider a recommendation on 
certification of the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Final 
Environmental Impact Statement and a recommendation on approval of the Placer County 
Tahoe Basin Area Plan. RPIC unanimously recommended certification of the Final EIS and 
adoption of the Area Plan. 
 
Project Description 
 
Tahoe Basin Area Plan 
The Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan (Area Plan) is a County-initiated update of its land use 
regulations in the Tahoe Basin portion of Placer County. Placer County and the Tahoe Regional 
Planning Agency (TRPA) are jointly proposing to adopt the Area Plan, which implements and 
achieves the environmental improvement and redevelopment goals of the Regional Plan and 
the TRPA/Tahoe Metropolitan Planning Organization (TMPO) Regional Transportation 
Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy (RTP/SCS) as updated and adopted in 2012. The Area 
Plan would also satisfy California’s comprehensive long-term general plan requirements, and 
would serve as the General Plan for the Tahoe Basin portion of Placer County. Adoption of the 
Area Plan would supersede the following general plans, community plans, Plan Area Statements, 
and related planning documents adopted to implement the 1987 Regional Plan, and relevant 
sections of the Placer County Zoning Ordinance: 

• Tahoe City Community Plan 
• Carnelian Bay Community Plan 
• Tahoe Vista Community Plan 
• Kings Beach Community Plan  
• Kings Beach Industrial Community Plan  
• California North Stateline Community Plan 
• 51 PASs adopted for Placer County 
• Placer County Standards & Guidelines for Signage, Parking and Design  
• West Shore General Plan 
• Tahoe City Area General Plan 
• North Tahoe Area General Plan 
• Placer County Zoning Ordinance, Sections 17.02.050(D) and 17.56.202, and Appendices 

B, C, D, and F 
 

The proposed Area Plan largely carries forward the details of these existing documents into a 
single, consolidated Area Plan. Proposed changes to earlier plans included in the Area Plan 
implement the environmental, redevelopment, and transportation policies of the 2012 Regional 
Plan and are primarily focused within the TRPA-designated Town Centers of Kings Beach and 
Tahoe City. The Area Plan includes redevelopment incentives and new development and design 
standards for mixed-use areas to promote the redevelopment of existing Town Centers and 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
40



   

improve aesthetic conditions, restore environmentally sensitive land, enhance recreation 
opportunities, and improve multi-modal transportation options. 
 
The Area Plan’s substantive changes related to zoning and development standards are largely 
focused within the mixed-use areas of the Town Centers. There are changes within mixed-use 
areas outside of the Town Centers as well. Zoning and development standards for lands 
designated as residential, tourist, recreation, conservation, wilderness, and backcountry are 
unchanged, except for the following map and land use changes: 
 

Tahoe City Town Center Boundary: The Area Plan would modify the Tahoe City Town 
Center boundary to remove 7.2 acres of property surrounding the Fairway Community 
Center and Placer County Tahoe City Wetlands Basin, and add 4.2 acres surrounding the 
Tahoe City Golf Course clubhouse. These changes would result in the modification of the 
Regional Plan land use designations and zoning within the Tahoe City Town Center to 
change the land use designation of land added to the Town Center from Residential to 
Mixed-Use, and to change the land use designation of land being removed from the Town 
Center from Mixed-Use to Recreation, and to change the lands within the remainder portion 
of the Tahoe City Golf Course from Residential to Recreation. 
 
Kings Beach Town Center Land Use Classification Cleanup Revision: The Area Plan proposes 
a land use classification change that is a cleanup revision from the Regional Plan. This 
change includes three parcels totaling approximately one acre that would be changed from 
Residential to Mixed-Use. In addition, the Kings Beach Town Center boundary map was 
corrected to maintain consistency with mapped parcel boundaries that were recently 
refined based on survey data and recorded documents. 
 
Zoning Districts: Town Center zoning districts include several mixed-use sub-districts and 
areas zoned for Residential and Recreational uses. Allowable uses correspond to use 
definitions outlined in the TRPA Code of Ordinances. Allowable use changes outside of Town 
Centers are limited to the inclusion of residential uses in mixed-use districts and village 
centers. 
 
Recreation and Conservation Lands: The Area Plan would amend the zoning designations to 
include approximately 200 acres of land acquired for environmental or recreational 
purposes in Conservation or Recreation. 
 
Core and Transition Areas: Within Town Centers the Area Plan establishes zoning overlay 
districts for Core Areas, where the full range of Regional Plan development incentives would 
apply, and Transition Areas where transitional (more restrictive) building heights and 
sidewalk or multi-use trail connections would be required. 
 
Special Planning Areas: The Area Plan designates six Special Planning Areas (SPAs) where 
projects must meet additional environmental standards to make use of Town Center 
redevelopment incentives. The SPAs include: Tahoe City Western Entry SPA, Tahoe City Golf 
Course SPA, Tahoe City River District SPA, Truckee River Corridor SPA, Kings Beach Entry 
SPA, and California-North Stateline SPA. The SPAs include provisions for more detailed 
future planning, or where additional environmental performance standards apply. 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
41



   

TRPA Regional Plan Implementation 
The Area Plan proposes to carry forward the following TRPA Regional Plan implementation 
measures related to Area Plans: 
  

Maximum Building Height and Density: The Area Plan largely carries forward the TRPA 
Regional Plan allowances for height and density, including up to 56 feet and four stories 
within Town Centers, as well as density allowances for 40 units per acre for tourist uses and 
25 units per acre for residential uses. However, height allowances are reduced for the 
periphery of Town Centers, called Transition Areas. For areas outside of Town Centers, the 
Area Plan carries forward height and density allowances in TRPA Code Chapter 37. 
 
Maximum Transferred Coverage: Consistent with the Regional Plan allowances within Town 
Centers, project sites that are greater than 300 feet from Lake Tahoe or on the mountain 
side of State Route (SR) 89 or SR 28 could receive transferred coverage to a maximum of 70 
percent coverage on high capability lands. Project sites within 300 feet of Lake Tahoe and on 
the lake side of SR 28 could receive transferred coverage to a maximum of 50 percent 
coverage on high capability lands. 
 
Mixed-Use Development and Land Use Changes: Consistent with the Regional Plan Land 
Use Map, the Area Plan would allow housing within existing commercial districts, near 
employment and multi-modal transportation facilities. Mixed-use development would be 
allowed in Town Centers and in the mixed-use and commercial areas of Carnelian Bay, 
Tahoe Vista, Lake Forest Glen, Dollar Hill, Sunnyside, Homewood, and Tahoma. 
 
Building and Site Design Standards: The Area Plan would consolidate and update existing 
land development standards within the Tahoe Basin, including: 

• Adding site design and building form standards to create visual interest and 
pedestrian-friendly activity with some mixed-use areas by including maximum 
building setbacks, limiting blank walls, requiring minimum amounts of windows on 
building frontage, and requiring minimum amounts of building articulation. 

• Adding requirements for improvements to the street frontage between the building 
and public roads and sidewalks, addressing street trees, connections between 
buildings and sidewalks or backs, and pedestrian lighting. 

• Enhancing lighting standards to prevent light pollution and trespass, and promote 
dark skies. 

 
Area Plan Programs and Substitute Standards 
The Area Plan includes programs and substitute standards that would modify portions of the 
TRPA Code within the Area Plan limits. Substitute standards include the following: 

 
Limited Conversion of Commercial Floor Area (CFA) to Tourist Accommodation Units 
(TAUs): The Area Plan would establish a pilot program for the limited conversion of CFA to 
TAUs for existing development (held by property owners) and for the CFA supply held by 
Placer County. Limitations on the program include: 

• The conversion ratio shall be 450 square feet of CFA equals one TAU 
• Converted units may only be used in Placer County Town Centers 
• Sites must have best management practice (BMP) certificates 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
42



   

• Sites must have sidewalk access 
• Sites must be within a quarter mile of a transit stop or mixed-use district 
• No more than 200 additional TAUs may be established in Placer County through the 

pilot program and other programs combined 
• The program would be periodically monitored for efficacy, possible extension, and 

consideration for program adjustments 
 
Non-Contiguous Project Areas: The Area Plan would allow projects within Town Centers to 
use a non-contiguous project area with TRPA approval. To use a non-contiguous project 
area, all project components must be located on already developed mixed-use lands within 
a Town Center. 
 
Revised Level of Service (LOS) Standard: The Area Plan proposes to modify the current LOS 
standards such that LOS F is acceptable during peak periods in the intersections and 
roadway segments within Town Center boundaries. 
 
Revised Parking Regulations: The Area Plan modifies parking standards to reduce the 
minimum number of parking spaces that must be provided by some development projects, 
promote shared parking and public transit, and to consider the future development of 
parking assessment districts and/or in-lieu payment programs. 
 
Implementation of the Tahoe Area Regional Transit (TART) Systems Plan: The Area Plan 
proposes to implement the April 2016 Placer County TART Systems Plan by funding public 
transit to make it a viable transportation alternative, implement transit improvements, 
implement developer funding mechanisms, and link increased transit services with increases 
in transit demand. 
 
Secondary Residential Units: The Area Plan would expand upon TRPA Code to allow 
secondary residential units on residential parcels less than one acre in size. To qualify for the 
program properties must be deed restricted for affordability. Units will also be deed 
restricted for use; the units may not be used as tourist units, vacation rentals, or converted 
to TAUs. 
 
View Corridors: The Area Plan would add view corridor standards that require four-story 
buildings in Town Centers on the lakeside of SR 89 and SR 28 to maintain 35 percent of the 
site as open view corridors, or increase existing view corridors by 10 percent. 
 
Ridgeline Protections: In accordance with TRPA regulation, the Area Plan would require that 
all new buildings with three or more stories meet TRPA findings for additional height. This 
provision would prevent buildings from projecting above the forest canopy for ridgelines 
and would protect viewsheds. 

 
Opportunity Sites 
 
The proposed Area Plan contemplates one near-term redevelopment project, the Tahoe City 
Lodge, and one environmental redevelopment design concept, the Kings Beach Center, both 
identified as initial opportunities to incentivize and facilitate redevelopment in these Kings 
Beach and Tahoe City Town Centers.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
43



   

 
Kings Beach Center: The Kings Beach Center is a conceptual mixed-use redevelopment 
design on parcels owned by Placer County.  
 
Tahoe City Lodge: The Tahoe City Lodge is a stand-alone project application proposed by a 
private developer, Kila Tahoe LLC, and is being processed by Placer County and TRPA. The 
Tahoe City Lodge project redevelops the existing commercial complex into a 118-unit lodge 
and redevelops and relocates the existing Tahoe City Golf Course clubhouse. Of the 
proposed 118 units, 78 one and two bedroom suites will operate as a “condo hotel”. These 
units will be sold to private individuals. The remaining 40 units would be retained by the 
lodge. In addition to tourist units, the lodge includes a ground floor restaurant and lobby 
area, and a rooftop terrace with a swimming pool and bar. The project component on the 
Tahoe City Golf Course include golf course enhancements, the relocation and expansion of 
the existing clubhouse, shared-use parking, and stream environment zone (SEZ restoration). 
The Tahoe City Lodge project has been analyzed at the project-level in the same EIR/EIS 
prepared for the Area Plan.  
 

• Site Description:  The Tahoe City Lodge project area is inclusive of the existing 
commercial complex located at 255 and 265 North Lake Boulevard and a portion of 
the Tahoe City Golf Course, in Placer County, California. The total project area is 3.9 
acres, inclusive of two easements. The project area includes Placer County APNs 
094-070-001 and -002, 094-540-03, and 094-020-006. Placer County APNs 094-070-
001 and -002 are owned by Kila Tahoe, LLC and comprise the site formerly known as 
the “Henrickson Property.” The project site also includes two existing easements on 
adjacent properties, one from the Tahoe City Golf Course and one from the parcel 
to the west of the project site, known as the Bechdoldt easement. The project area 
is occupied by three buildings that make-up the existing two-story commercial 
center on the Kila Tahoe property.  
 

• Relationship to the proposed Area Plan:  The proposed Lodge project will be 
presented for approval in coordination with the Area Plan adoption as the proposed 
project relies on the policies and land use changes contemplated by the Area Plan. 
The project site is located within what will be a mixed-use town center pending Area 
Plan adoption. The lodge relies on the implementation of the mixed-use sub-
districts and town center redevelopment policies set forth in the TRPA Regional Plan 
and implemented with the Area Plan. Without the Area Plan, the Tahoe City Lodge 
would require amendments to the Regional Plan and Code of Ordinances, as well as 
several planning documents associated with the 1987 Regional Plan. 
 

• Threshold Improvement Projects:  The proposed project includes BMPs for the 
Tahoe City Lodge, drainage and water quality improvements, reduction in land 
coverage on APNs 094-070-001 and 094-070-002 relative to existing conditions, 
maintenance and expansion of the Tahoe City Sidewalk Beautification Project, and 
1.7 acres of SEZ restoration on the Tahoe City Golf Course. 
 

• Regional Plan Compliance and Conformity:  Based on the Final EIS analysis, the 
proposed project is in compliance with the proposed Area Plan and conforms to the 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
44



   

Regional Plan, including the Goals and Policies and Code of Ordinances (as 
amended).  

 
Final EIS Compliance with TRPA Compact Article VII, Chapter 3 of the Code of Ordinances, and 
Article 6 of the Rules of Procedure 
 
The Final EIS was prepared for the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan (program-level) and the 
Tahoe City Lodge project (project-level) pursuant to Article VII (d) Environmental Impact 
Statements of the TRPA Bi-State Compact. A Notice of Preparation (NOP) (State Clearinghouse 
No. 2014072039) for an EIR/EIS was issued by Placer County and TRPA on June 3, 2015 for a 60-
day public comment period that ended on August 3, 2015. The NOP was sent to the California 
and Nevada State Clearinghouses, federal, state, and local agencies, and members of the public. 
Five public scoping meetings were held to provide agencies and the public with the opportunity 
to learn more about the Area Plan and to provide input as to the issues that would be addresses 
in the EIR/EIS. The scoping meetings were held as follows: 

• June 10, 2015: TRPA APC, Stateline, Nevada; 
• June 16, 2015: Placer County-hosted meeting, Kings Beach, California; 
• June 16, 2015: Placer County-hosted meeting, Tahoe City, California; 
• June 24, 2016: TRPA Regional Plan Implementation Committee, Stateline, Nevada; 
• June 24, 2016: TRPA Governing Board, Stateline, Nevada; 

 
At each of these meetings, Placer County, TRPA staff, and consultants made presentations to 
describe the proposed Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge project, and to discuss key 
environmental issues identified. After the close of the NOP and June 2015 Draft Area Plan 60-
day public comment period, TRPA and Placer County staff, and the EIR/EIS consultants (Ascent 
Environmental) prepared an NOP scoping summary report and formulated alternatives to be 
analyzed in the EIR/EIS. Following September 2015 input from the TRPA Regional Plan 
Implementation Committee (RPIC) on the EIR/EIS alternatives, preparation of the Draft EIR/EIS 
and refinements to the draft Area Plan began. 
 
Accordingly, on June 15, 2016, the County and TRPA jointly released the Draft EIR/EIS and 
revised Public Review Draft Area Plan for a 60-day public review period. The public review 
comment period closed on August 15, 2016. The Draft EIR/EIS was submitted to the California 
State Clearinghouse; distributed to public agencies, interested parties, and organizations; and 
was made available for public review at the Kings Beach, Tahoe City, and Truckee Libraries, and 
at the Placer County Community Development Resource Agencies in both Tahoe City and 
Auburn, and at the TRPA offices in Stateline, Nevada. The Draft EIR/EIS was also available on 
both the TRPA and Placer County websites. During the public review comment period the 
following public meetings were conducted to receive public input on the Draft EIR/EIS and Draft 
Area Plan: 

• July 13, 2016: TRPA Advisory Planning Commission 
• July 27. 2016: TRPA Regional Plan Implementation Committee 
• July 27, 2016: TRPA Governing Board 
• July 28, 2016: Placer County Planning Commission 
• August 11, 2016: Placer County North Tahoe Regional Advisory Council 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
45



   

The County and TRPA received 111 comment letters during the 60-day public review period. 
While most of the comments received were related to the Draft EIR/EIS, many comments 
received were related to the Area Plan documents. In response to stakeholder input and 
comments received on the Area Plan documents, TRPA has coordinated with Placer County and 
consultants to revise the Area Plan where necessary. Discussion of Area Plan revisions are 
described in the Area Plan Revisions section below. 
 
TRPA and Placer County released the updated Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan (PCTBAP) 
and Final EIR/EIS on November 4, 2016 for the PCTBAP and Tahoe City Lodge project pursuant to 
Article VII of the Tahoe Regional Planning Compact, Chapter 3 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances, 
and the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA). The Final EIR/EIS responds to all written 
and oral comments received during the public comment period for the Draft EIR/EIS. The Draft 
EIR/EIS and the Final EIR/EIS together constitute the Final EIR/EIS for the Area Plan and the 
Tahoe City Lodge project. The Placer County Board of Supervisors is responsible under CEOA for 
certifying the Final EIR and the TRPA Governing Board Is responsible under Article 7 of the TRPA 
Compact for certifying the Final EIS. Adoption of the necessary findings includes a Statement of 
Overriding Consideration and the Mitigation Monitoring Reporting Program. The Final EIR/EIS is 
provided within Attachment B of this Staff Summary.  
 
Regional Plan Conformance Review:  The Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan has been 
prepared by Placer County pursuant to Chapter 13 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances, which 
allows local governments to adopt conforming Area Plans that contain policies and development 
ordinances that are consistent with and further the goals and policies of the TRPA Regional Plan.  
Chapter 13 includes a conformity review process that: 
 

• Allows local governments to adopt an Area Plan that supersedes TRPA plans and 
ordinances if the plan is found to be in conformance with the Regional Plan; 

• Defines required content in an Area Plan that includes but is not limited to applicable 
policies, maps, ordinances and development and design standards; and 

• Defines which development activities will not have a substantial effect on the natural 
resources in the Region and allows TRPA to transfer limited development permitting 
authority to local governments. 

 
To ensure conformance with the Regional Plan and Chapter 13, Placer County and TRPA have 
prepared an Area Plan Finding of Conformance Checklist for the Area Plan.  The Area Plan 
Finding of Conformance Checklist is provided as Attachment G. 
 
Memorandum of Understanding 
Chapter 13 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances requires a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) 
be prepared within six months of the Governing Board’s finding of conformity of the Area Plan 
(Code section 13.7.5). The MOU shall clearly specify the extent to which the activities within the 
Area Plan are delegated or exempt from TRPA review and approval, and describe all procedures 
and responsibilities to ensure effective implementation of the Area Plan. Preparation of the 
MOU will begin upon adoption of the Area Plan, and TRPA staff will coordinate with County staff 
to ensure the Code section 13.7.5 requirements with regard to timing of development of an 
MOU are met. 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
46



   

Technical Code Amendments 
As has been completed for previously adopted Area Plans, technical amendments to the Code of 
Ordinances Chapters 34, 36, and 38 are under development. The purpose of the Code 
amendments is to make the Code of Ordinances consistent with the adoption of the Area Plan 
regarding substitute signage, design, and parking standards that will be superseded by the Area 
Plan. RPIC considered these amendments on December 14, 2016 and unanimously 
recommended approval to Governing Board. The amendments will be considered by APC in 
February 2017, and if APC recommends approval, will be advanced to Governing Board 
thereafter. 
 
Findings:  TRPA Code Chapter 3, 4, and 13 required findings have been prepared for the Area 
Plan and are included in Attachment E. 
 
Threshold Indicators and Compliance Measures Tables:  The Threshold Indicators and 
Compliance Measures Tables have been prepared to demonstrate compliance with the required 
Threshold-Related Findings in Section 4.4 of the TRPA Code to demonstrate that the Placer 
County Tahoe Basin Area Plan will not negatively impact a TRPA adopted threshold indicator or 
compliance measure.  The Threshold Indicators and Compliance Measures Tables are provided 
as Attachment C. 

Development of Alternatives and Environmental Analysis  

Consistent with TRPA Compact Article 7, the EIS document considered a range of alternatives. The 
range of alternatives was evaluated for their ability to achieve or partially achieve the fundamental 
Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge project objectives. The Draft EIS analyzed four project alternatives, 
including a no project alternative. In determining what alternatives should be considered for the 
Draft EIR/EIS, the objectives of the project, the project’s significant effects, unique project 
considerations, and the feasibility of proposed alternatives were all considered.  

The proposed Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge project impacts were evaluated as Alternative 1 of 
the Final EIS. As discussed below, one or more of the alternatives would result in significant and 
unavoidable impacts related to transportation and circulation, air quality, greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions and climate change, and noise. However, the action alternatives, including Alternative 1: 
Proposed Area Plan/Proposed Lodge, are environmentally superior to Alternative 4: No Project. The 
potential environmental effects or benefits that would result from implementation of Alternatives 1, 
2, and 3 are roughly equivalent 
 
Alternatives:  The Final EIR/EIS evaluated four project alternatives: 
 Alternative 1: Proposed Area Plan/Proposed Lodge 

Alternative 2: Area Plan with no Substitute Standards/Reduced Scale Lodge 
Alternative 3: Reduced Intensity Area Plan/Reduced Height Lodge 
Alternative 4: No Project/No Project 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
47



   

Additional detail about the development of the range of alternatives and the impacts disclosed 
within the draft EIS can be found within the staff summaries for the September 2015 Regional 
Plan Implementation Committee packet, and the July 2016 Governing Board Packet1. 
 
Significant Environmental Effects:  The Draft EIR/EIS identified significant or potentially 
significant effects of one or more of the four alternatives evaluated with respect to cultural and 
historic resources; scenic resources; transportation and circulation; air quality; greenhouse gas 
emissions and climate change; noise; geology, soils, land capability, and coverage; hydrology 
and water quality; and hazards, hazardous materials, and risk of upset. Environmental impact 
conclusions indicate that Area Plan Alternatives 1, 2, and 3 would have roughly equal 
environmental effects, and each would provide more environmental benefit than Alternative 4 
(no project).  

Significant and Unavoidable Adverse Impacts:  Most adverse effects could be mitigated to less-
than-significant levels. However, even with the application of feasible mitigation measures, 
implementation of one or more of the alternatives would result in significant and unavoidable 
impacts related to transportation and circulation, air quality, greenhouse gas emissions and 
climate change, and noise. These impacts are summarized below. 
 
Transportation and Circulation: Roadway and intersection traffic congestion would increase for 
all alternatives on State Route (SR) 28 in Tahoe City east of the Wye and at the SR 28/Grove 
Street intersection. Although all alternatives would create a significant and unavoidable impact, 
the projected increase in vehicle congestion would be less for Alternatives 1, 2, and 3 than it 
would be for Alternative 4 (no project) because of increased mobility options, such as increased 
public transit services, provided with the action alternatives.  

 
Air Quality: All alternatives (including Alternative 4) would result in significant and unavoidable 
impacts related to air quality, GHG, and traffic. Construction resulting from any alternative 
would result in short-term ROG, NOX, PM10 and PM2.5 emissions that cannot be fully mitigated 
and would have a significant and unavoidable impact. This is consistent with the air quality 
analysis included in the Regional Plan Update (RPU) EIS. All long-term or other air quality 
impacts would be less-than-significant or would be mitigated to a less-than-significant level.  

 
Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change: GHG emissions resulting from construction 
activities could be substantial over the build-out period of the Area Plan and Regional Plan. The 
construction related GHG emissions would be greater than the potential reduction in GHG 
emissions created by the redevelopment land use patterns prescribed by the four alternatives, 
and would result in a significant impact that cannot be sufficiently mitigated. This finding is 
consistent with the RPU EIS analysis for GHGs.  
 
Noise: Lodge Alternative 4 (no project) would result in an increase in traffic noise levels along 
affected highway transportation corridors. Lodge Alternative 4 would also expose the outdoor 
activity areas of noise-sensitive land uses to traffic noise levels that exceed applicable Placer 
County standards. Because mitigation cannot be required of a no-action alternative, this impact 

                                                 
1 http://www.trpa.org/governing-board-documents-september-23-2015/ and http://www.trpa.org/governing-board-
documents-july-27-2016/  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
48

http://www.trpa.org/governing-board-documents-september-23-2015/
http://www.trpa.org/governing-board-documents-july-27-2016/
http://www.trpa.org/governing-board-documents-july-27-2016/


   

would be significant and unavoidable for the purposes of TRPA and CEQA environmental review 
at the project level for Alternative 4. 
 
Response to Comments on the Draft EIS:  Modifications to the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area 
Plan and the Tahoe City Lodge project were made in response to comments and as a result of 
ongoing planning refinements since publication of the Draft EIR/EIS. Revisions to the Draft 
EIR/EIS text were also made in response to comments, or to amplify, clarify, or make minor 
modifications or corrections to information in the Draft EIR/EIS. The revisions made to the 
PCTBAP, TCL project and EIR/EIS did not constitute “significant new information” requiring 
recirculation. The modifications to the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan, Tahoe City Lodge 
Project, and the EIR/EIS are described in Chapter 2 of the Final EIR/EIS. Substantive 
modifications to the Area Plan, and revisions or additions to Mitigation Measures required by 
the EIR/EIS are summarized below. 
 
Revisions to the Area Plan:  In addition to clarifying edits and minor corrections, key revisions to the 
draft Area Plan include the following: 

• Added language regarding the prioritization of SEZ restoration projects; 
• A new policy related to the Public Trust (Policy R-P-11); 
• A new policy to support protection of Tahoe yellow cress (Policy VEG-P-4); 
• A new policy related to eradication of non-native terrestrial plants (Policy VEG-P-5); 
• A new policy related to adaptive traffic management for highways (Policy T-P-10); 
• A new policy requiring development projects to submit a transportation demand 

management plan (Policy T-P-12); 
• A new policy related to parking management strategies (Policy T-P-18); 
• A modification to Policy T-P-34 related to pedestrian and bicycle safety;  
• A new policy related to parking and transit wayfinding signage (Policy T-P-37);  
• A new policy related to future modifications to the county’s Trip Reduction Ordinance 

(Policy T-P-11); 
• A new policy requiring that all new development projects within the Plan area prepare and 

implement an Emergency Preparedness and Evacuation Plan (EPEP) (Policy N-H-P-6);  
• A new policy that incorporates the Placer Operational Area East Side Emergency Evacuation 

Plan (Policy N-H-P-7); 
• Modified language and exhibits regarding the “missing link” of the lakeside trail in Tahoe 

City to clarify that there are multiple possible alignments, and that the Area Plan does not 
identify or approve a preferred alignment; 

• Removed several allowed uses and clarified the applicability of Conditional Use Permits and 
Minor Use Permits in specific zoning districts; 

• Modified the CFA to TAU conversion program to reduce the maximum number of TAUs that 
could be created under the program from 400 to 200; and 

• Revised the secondary residential unit program to require that secondary residential units 
on parcels less than an acre be deed-restricted as affordable or moderate income units, and 
revised the location standards to allow approximately ten additional parcels to qualify for 
the program. 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
49



   

Revisions to the Final EIR/EIS: In addition to textual edits to clarify, amplify, or make minor 
modifications to information in the Draft EIR/EIS, mitigation measures were modified or added to 
the Final EIR/EIS in response to comments: 
Scenic Resources 

• Mitigation Measure 9-1: Limit visible mass near Lake Tahoe within non-contiguous project 
areas. This measure was revised to also specify that all non-contiguous project areas must 
comply with setback standards. 

Transportation and Circulation 
• Mitigation Measure 10-1a: Construct pedestrian crossing improvements at the Grove 

Street/SR 28 intersection. This measure was revised to specify that the crossing must be 
constructed within three years of adoption of the Area Plan. 

• Mitigation Measure 10-1b: Establish a County Service Area Zone of Benefit to fund 
expansion of transit capacity. This measure was expanded to require that the Zone of 
Benefit provide sufficient funding to expand transit capacity by at least 16 vehicle-hours per 
day during both the peak summer and winter seasons. The text of the measure was also 
revised to provide additional detail on how the Zone of Benefit would function. 

• Mitigation Measure 10-1d: Expand requirements for transportation demand management 
plans. This new mitigation measure requires that future development proposals that would 
employ more than 20 employees or include tourist or recreational uses must prepare 
Transportation Demand Management Plans. 

• Mitigation Measure 10-1e: Prepare and implement a comprehensive wayfinding program 
for parking and multi-modal transportation. This new mitigation measure requires the 
preparation of a comprehensive parking and multi-modal transportation wayfinding within 
one year of Area Plan adoption. 

• Mitigation Measure 10-1f: Long-term monitoring and adaptive management of mobility 
strategies. This new mitigation measure requires that TRPA and Pacer County periodically 
assess the long-term effectiveness of mobility strategies within the Area Plan using 
monitoring data that is collected by partner agencies. 

• Mitigation Measure 10-1g: Four-year review of vehicle trips and mobility strategies. This 
new mitigation measure requires a review of actual vehicle trips concurrent with the four-
year recertification of the Area Plan. If actual vehicle trips exceed the traffic volumes 
projected in the EIR/EIS, Placer County and TRPA shall revise Area Plan mobility strategies 
and develop financing mechanisms to implement the new or revised strategies. 

• Mitigation Measure 10-1h: Implement TRPA’s Congestion Management Process. This new 
mitigation measure requires that TRPA and Placer County prioritize additional mobility 
strategies consistent with TRPA’s Congestion Management Process, which will be 
implemented in 2017. 

Air Quality 
• Mitigation Measure 11-5: Reduce short-term construction-generated TAC emissions. This 

mitigation measure was revised to clarify the emission standards that must be met by future 
construction projects in the Plan area. 

Greenhouse Gas Emissions 
• Mitigation Measure 12-1: Implement all feasible energy, water, transportation, and 

vegetation measures recommended by PCAPCD. This mitigation measure was revised to 
clarify that projects may pay fees into ARB carbon offset programs when the offsets are 
sufficient to mitigate emissions during the full operational life of the project. 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
50



   

Noise 
• Mitigation Measure 13-5a: Implement measures to ensure compliance of rooftop terrace 

activities with Placer County Noise Ordinance standards at the Tahoe Marina Lakefront 
Property. This new mitigation measure requires that the Tahoe City Lodge project include 
specific design features to ensure that rooftop activities do not exceed noise standards at 
the nearby Tahoe Marina Lakefront property. 

• Mitigation Measure 13-5b: Implement measures to ensure compliance by outdoor events at 
the golf course clubhouse with exceedance of Placer County Noise Ordinance standards at 
nearby residential land uses. This mitigation measure was revised to clarify the noise 
standards that must be maintained. 

 
Summary/Conclusion: 
The County and TRPA have spent the last several years coordinating on the preparation of the 
Area Plan to ensure that it conforms to the TRPA Regional Plan, focuses on achieving 
environmental threshold gain and appropriately addresses stakeholder concerns, particularly 
those concerns related to reducing VMT within the Plan area. The proposed Area Plan contains 
policies that concentrate development and enhance mobility within the Kings Beach and Tahoe 
City Town Centers ensure transit is a viable alternative to automobile travel, and encourage 
environmentally beneficial redevelopment and restoration of sensitive land. Placer County and 
TRPA are jointly proposing to adopt the Area Plan, which implements and achieves the 
environmental improvement, redevelopment, and transportation goals of the TRPA Regional 
Plan and the TRPA/TMPO Regional Transportation Plan/Sustainable Communities Strategy 
(RTP/SCS). Based on the discussion in this staff summary and the analysis within the Area Plan 
and Tahoe City Lodge Final EIR/EIS, the Area Plan conforms to the TRPA Regional Plan and 
provides the regulatory framework to achieve environmental threshold gain and foster 
sustainability within the North Lake Tahoe community over the next 20 years. 
 
Contact Information: If you have any questions or wish to submit comments regarding this agenda 
item, please contact: 
 
Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan:  

Lucia Maloney, Senior Planner: lmaloney@trpa.org, (775) 589-5324 
 

Tahoe City Lodge project:  
Tiffany Good, Senior Planner: tgood@trpa.org, (775) 589-5283 

 
Attachments: 
 
A. Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan  
B. Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement (Final EIR/EIS) 
C. Threshold Indicators and Compliance Measures Tables  
D. Findings for Certification of the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan/Tahoe City Lodge 

Environmental Impact Statement 
E. Required Findings for Adoption of the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan 
F. Ordinance 2017-__  
G. Area Plan Finding of Conformance Checklist 
H.  Tahoe Basin Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Project EIR/EIS (SCH NO. 2014072039) 

Errata 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
51

mailto:lmaloney@trpa.org
mailto:tgood@trpa.org


   

I. Tahoe Basin Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Project EIR/EIS (SCH NO. 2014072039) 
Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program Errata 

J. Tahoe Basin Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Project EIR/EIS (SCH NO. 2014072039) 
Errata (December 6, 2016) 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
52



  

Attachments A, B, and C 
 
Attachments A, B, & C are available on the websites below: 
 

A. Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan (see: “Tahoe Basin Area Plan (Final Draft)”):  
https://www.placer.ca.gov/departments/communitydevelopment/envcoordsvcs/eir
/tahoebasinap  

B. Final Environmental Impact Report/Environmental Impact Statement (Final EIR/EIS) 
https://www.placer.ca.gov/departments/communitydevelopment/envcoordsvcs/eir
/tahoebasinap  

C. Threshold Indicators and Compliance Measures Tables  
http://www.trpa.org/governing-board-documents-january-25-2017/  

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
53

https://www.placer.ca.gov/departments/communitydevelopment/envcoordsvcs/eir/tahoebasinap
https://www.placer.ca.gov/departments/communitydevelopment/envcoordsvcs/eir/tahoebasinap
https://www.placer.ca.gov/departments/communitydevelopment/envcoordsvcs/eir/tahoebasinap
https://www.placer.ca.gov/departments/communitydevelopment/envcoordsvcs/eir/tahoebasinap
http://www.trpa.org/governing-board-documents-january-25-2017/


  

Attachment D 
Findings for Certification of the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan/Tahoe City Lodge  

Environmental Impact Statement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
54



   

Findings for Certification of the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan/Tahoe City Lodge  
Environmental Impact Statement 

 
Pursuant to TRPA Rules of Procedure, certification of the Final Environmental Impact Statement 
(Final EIS) is defined as a finding that the Final EIS is in compliance, procedurally and 
substantially, with Article VII of the Compact, Chapter 3 of the Code, and Article 6 of the Rules of 
Procedure. The following findings, when made affirmatively, certify that the PCTBAP/TCL Final 
EIS is in compliance with the applicable criteria. 
 
1. Code Section 3.7.1 (see also TRPA Compact VII (a) (1, 3, 4, and 5), and TRPA Compact 

VII (b)) Preparation of EIS: 
 
 When preparing an EIS, TRPA shall: 
 
1. Finding:  Utilize a systematic interdisciplinary approach which will insure the  

integrated use of the natural and social sciences and the environmental 
design arts in planning and decision making which may have an impact 
on man’s environment. 

 
Rationale: The Final EIS utilizes a systematic interdisciplinary approach which 

insures the integrated use of the natural and social sciences and the 
environmental design arts in planning and in decision making which may 
have an impact on man’s environment.  
 
(See Draft EIS Chapter 1 Introduction; Chapter 2 Executive Summary; 
Chapter 3 Description of Proposed Project and Alternatives; and 
Chapter 19 Cumulative Impacts). 

 
2. Finding:  Study, develop and describe appropriate alternatives to recommended  

courses of action for any project which involves unresolved conflicts 
concerning alternative uses of available resources. 

 
 Rationale: The Final EIS developed and analyzed a range of policy and project  

alternatives which are described in Chapter 3 Description of Proposed 
Project and Alternatives, of the EIS.  Pursuant to TRPA requirements for 
the consideration of alternatives, the Draft EIS evaluates the potential 
impacts of four different alternatives, which provide a range of policies, 
approaches, and Lodge project alternatives to accelerate the attainment 
and maintenance of threshold standards.  The Draft Area Plan was 
reflected in the Draft EIS as “Alternative 1 Proposed Area Plan/Proposed 
Lodge.”  

 
3. Finding:  Consult with and obtain the comments of any federal, state or local  

agency which has jurisdiction by law or special expertise with respect to 
any environmental impact involved. Copies of such states and the 
comments and views of the appropriate federal, state and local 
agencies which are authorized to develop and enforce environmental 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
55



   

standards shall be made available to the public and shall accompany the 
project through the review processes.  

  
 Rationale: The EIS consultant, TRPA staff and Placer County staff consulted with 

and obtained comments from representative federal, state and local 
agencies which have jurisdiction by law or special expertise with respect 
to any environmental impact involved with the Area Plan and Tahoe City 
Lodge’s location and sphere of influence.  The Draft EIS was circulated 
through the California State Clearinghouse of the Governor’s Office of 
Planning and Research and the Nevada State Clearinghouse. In addition, 
TRPA staff and Placer County staff met with numerous relevant state, 
federal and local agencies to provide information on the alternatives, 
answer questions, and solicit written comments. Copies of written 
comments on the environmental analysis obtained from the various 
federal, state and local agencies which are authorized to enforce 
environmental standards have been made available to the public and 
were reviewed at the various stages of the environmental review and 
have been incorporated into the Final EIS. 
 
(See Final EIS Chapter 3, Comments and Responses.) 

 
4. Finding:  Consult the public during the environmental impact statement process  

and solicit views during a public comment period of not less than 60 
days. 

 
Rationale: TRPA and Placer County used several methods to solicit input on the 

Draft EIR/EIS. A Notice of Preparation addressing the Area Plan only was 
initially issued on July 16, 2014, while the Area Plan was still under 
development.  In response to public and stakeholder input, the lead 
agencies revised and reissued the NOP on June 3, 2015, when the Draft 
Area Plan was ready for concurrent release.  The revised NOP addressed 
changes to the Area Plan made in response to stakeholder input and the 
newly added project level environmental review of the Tahoe City Lodge 
project.  The NOP was circulated for 61 days, though August 3, 2015.  
Five public scoping meetings were held during this NOP scoping period 
to provide public agencies and the public with the opportunity to learn 
about the Area Plan and the Tahoe City Lodge project and to provide 
input on the issues that should be included in the EIR/EIS.  Placer County 
also conducted two public workshops during the NOP period for the 
same purpose. 

 
   The Draft EIR/EIS was released on June 15, 2016 for public review and  

comment for a 60-day period (ending August 15, 2016).  The Draft 
EIR/EIS was submitted to both the California and Nevada State 
Clearinghouses; the Draft EIR/EIS and/or a Notice of Availability was 
distributed directly to public agencies (including potential responsible 
and trustee agencies), interested parties, and organizations; and the 
Draft EIR/EIS was made available for review during normal business 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
56



   

hours at various public locations. The Draft EIR/EIS was made available 
on both Placer County’s and TRPA’s website.  TRPA consulted the public 
with five public hearings that were held during this time. 
 
(See Final EIS, Section 1.2 – Introduction; Chapter 2 – Corrections and 
Revisions to Draft EIR/EIS; and Chapter 3 – Comments and Responses.) 

 
5. Finding:  Make available to States, counties, municipalities, institutions, and  

individuals, advice and information useful in restoring, maintaining and 
enhancing the quality of the region’s environment. 

 
 Rationale: The final EIS makes available to states, counties, municipalities,  

institutions and individuals, advice and information useful in restoring, 
maintaining and enhancing the quality of the Region’s environment.  
Table 2-1 of Chapter 2 of the Draft EIR/EIS summarizes the potential 
environmental impacts that would result from implementation of 
Alternatives 1-4 of the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan (PCTBAP) 
and the Tahoe City Lodge project. Chapters 5-19 of the Draft EIR/EIS 
describe in detail for each of 14 technical topics the environmental 
impacts that would result from implementation of Alternatives 1-4 for 
the PCTBAP and the Tahoe City Lodge project.  These sections each 
contain information relevant to that topic on the regulatory 
background, affected environment, environmental consequences and 
feasible mitigation measures that could reduce potentially significant 
impacts.  
 
(See also Draft EIR/EIS, Executive Summary, Table 2-1, Summary of 
Resource Topics/Impacts and Mitigation Measures, at pgs. 2-5 to 2-102, 
and Chapter 19, Cumulative Impacts). 

 
(2) Code Section 3.7.2 (see also TRPA Compact VII (a) (2)) 
 
Contents of EIS: An EIS shall include, at a minimum, the following: 
 
1. Finding:  Description of project: 
 
 Rationale: The Final EIS includes a description of the Project. 
 
   (See Draft EIS Chapter 3, Description of Proposed Project and  

Alternatives; FEIS Chapter 2, Corrections and Revisions to the Draft 
EIR/EIS) 

 
2. Finding:  The significant environmental impacts of the proposed project. 
 
 Rationale: The Final EIS includes the identified significant environmental impacts of  

the proposed PCTBAP and Tahoe City Lodge project.  The Draft EIS 
identified a number of significant and potentially significant 
environmental effects (or impacts) that each Area Plan and Tahoe City 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
57



   

Lodge alternative would cause or contribute to. These significant effects 
can generally be avoided or substantially lessened through the adoption 
of feasible mitigation measures. 

 
(See Draft EIS Chapter 2 Executive Summary, Table 2-1 – Summary of 
Resource Topics/Impacts and Mitigation Measures and Chapter 19 
Cumulative Impacts) 

 
3. Finding: Any significant adverse environmental effects which cannot be 

mitigated should the project be implemented. 
 
 Rationale: Most adverse effects could be mitigated to less-than-significant levels. 

However, even with the application of feasible mitigation measures, 
implementation of one or more of the alternatives would result in 
significant and unavoidable impacts related to transportation and 
circulation, air quality, greenhouse gas emissions and climate change, 
and noise. These impacts are summarized below. 

 
   Transportation and Circulation: Roadway and intersection traffic 

congestion would increase for all alternatives on State Route (SR) 28 in 
Tahoe City east of the Wye and at the SR 28/Grove Street intersection. 
Although all alternatives would create a significant and unavoidable 
impact, the projected increase in vehicle congestion would be less for 
Alternatives 1, 2, and 3 than it would be for Alternative 4 (no project) 
because of increased mobility options, such as increased public transit 
services, provided with the action alternatives.  

 
   Air Quality: All alternatives (including Alternative 4) would result in 

significant and unavoidable impacts related to air quality, GHG, and 
traffic. Construction resulting from any alternative would result in short-
term ROG, NOX, PM10 and PM2.5 emissions that cannot be fully mitigated 
and would have a significant and unavoidable impact. This is consistent 
with the air quality analysis included in the Regional Plan Update (RPU) 
EIS. All long-term or other air quality impacts would be less-than-
significant or would be mitigated to a less-than-significant level.  

 
   Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change: GHG emissions 

resulting from construction activities could be substantial over the 
build-out period of the Area Plan and Regional Plan. The construction 
related GHG emissions would be greater than the potential reduction in 
GHG emissions created by the redevelopment land use patterns 
prescribed by the four alternatives, and would result in a significant 
impact that cannot be sufficiently mitigated. This finding is consistent 
with the RPU EIS analysis for GHGs.  

 
   Noise: Lodge Alternative 4 (no project) would result in an increase in 

traffic noise levels along affected highway transportation corridors. 
Lodge Alternative 4 would also expose the outdoor activity areas of 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
58



   

noise-sensitive land uses to traffic noise levels that exceed applicable 
Placer County standards. Because mitigation cannot be required of a no-
action alternative, this impact would be significant and unavoidable for 
the purposes of TRPA and CEQA environmental review at the project 
level for Alternative 4. 

 
   (See Draft EIS Chapter 2, Executive Summary; Draft EIS Chapter 3, Table 

3-8 Alternatives Comparison; and Final EIS Chapter 2 Corrections and 
Revisions to the Draft EIS) 

 
4. Finding:  Alternatives to the proposed project. 
 
 Rationale: The Final EIS includes an analysis of alternatives to both the PCTBAP and  

the Tahoe City Lodge projects.  See Certification Findings 1(2) above. 
 
(See Draft EIS Chapter 2, Executive Summary; Draft EIS Chapter 3, Table 
3-8 Alternatives Comparison; and Final EIS Chapter 2 Corrections and 
Revisions to the Draft EIS) 

 
5. Finding:  Mitigation measures which must be implemented to assure meeting  

standards of the region. 
 
 Rationale: The Final EIS includes an analysis of mitigation measures that must be  

implemented to assure meeting standards of the region.  All required 
mitigation measures that are specific to the PCTBAP have been 
incorporated into the Final Draft PCTBAP and Final Draft Implementing 
Regulations. All required mitigation measures that are specific to the 
Tahoe City Lodge will be implemented upon acknowledgement of the 
project permit.  In adopting these findings, the Final Draft Area Plan, 
and the Final Draft Implementing Regulations, the Governing Board 
hereby adopts and commits to implement the Mitigation Measures as 
incorporated into the Final Draft Area Plan.  The measure incorporated 
into the Final Draft Area Plan and the Final Draft Implementing 
Regulations represent binding commitments with which TRPA must 
comply.  

 
(See Draft EIS Chapter 2 Executive Summary, Table 2-1 Summary of 
Resource Topics/Impacts and Mitigation Measures; Draft EIS Chapter 19 
Cumulative Impacts; and Final EIS Chapter 4, Table 4-1 Mitigation 
Monitoring and Reporting Program) 

 
6. Finding:  The relationship between local short-term uses of man’s environment  

and the maintenance and enhancement of long-tern productivity. 
 

Rationale: The Final EIS includes an analysis of the relationship between local 
short-term uses of man’s environment and the maintenance and 
enhancement of long-term productivity. 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
59



   

(See Draft EIS, Chapter 20, Section 20.2, Relationship between the 
Short-Term Uses of the Environment and the Maintenance and 
Enhancement of Long-Term Productivity) 

 
7. Finding:  Any significant irreversible and irretrievable commitments of resources  

which would be involved in the proposed project should it be 
implemented. 

 
 Rationale: The Final EIS includes an analysis of any significant irreversible and  

irretrievable commitments of resources which would be involved in 
each of the alternatives should they be implemented. 

 
(See Draft EIS, Chapter 20, Section 20.3, Irreversible and Irretrievable 
Commitments of Resources and Significant Irreversible Environmental 
Changes) 

 
8. Finding:  The growth-inducing impact if the proposed project. 
 
 Rationale: The Final EIS includes an analysis of the growth-inducing impact of the  

alternatives. 
 

(See Draft EIS, Chapter 20, Section 20.1, Growth-Inducing Impacts) 
 
(3) Code Section 3.7.3 (see also TRPA Compact VII(c)) 
 
Inclusion of Other Data and Information 
 
1. Finding:  An environmental impact statement need not repeat in its entirety any  

information or data which is relevant to such a statement and is a 
matter of public record or is generally available to the public, such as 
information contained in an environmental impact report prepared 
pursuant to the California Environmental Quality Act or a federal 
environmental impact statement prepared pursuant to the National 
Environmental Policy Act of 1969.  However, such information or data 
shall be briefly described in the environmental impact statement and its 
relationship to the environmental impact statement shall be indicated. 

 
Rationale: The Final EIS refers to the entirety of information and data which are  

relevant to the preparation of the document and are a matter of public 
record or are generally available to the public. Such information or data 
is briefly described in the EIS and its relationship to the EIS is so 
indicated. 

 
(See EIS and Appendices, including Draft EIS, Chapter 22, References, 
and Final EIS, Chapter 6, References) 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
60



   

(4) Rules of Procedure 6.13 
 
Draft EIS: 
1. Finding:  The draft EIS shall include, at a minimum, the elements listed in  

subsection 3.7.2 of the Code and a list of all federal, state and local 
agencies or other organizations and individuals consulted in preparing 
the draft. 

 
Rationale: The Draft EIS includes the elements listed in subsection 3.7.2 of the 

Code and a list of all federal, state and local agencies or other 
organizations and individuals consulted in preparing the draft. 

 
   (See Section 2 Findings for Subsection 3.7.2 of the Code above regarding  

contents of the EIS, Section 1(3) Finding above regarding federal, state 
and local agencies consulted, and Final EIS, Chapter 1, Section 1.3 List of 
Commenters. Also, Final EIS Chapter 3 Comments and Responses) 

 
2. Finding:  Summary: A draft EIS in excess of 30 pages shall include a summary,  

preferably less than 10 pages in length, which identifies at a minimum: a 
brief project description; each significant adverse effect with a summary 
of proposed mitigation measures or alternatives that would reduce or 
avoid that effect; and areas of controversy known to TRPA. 

 
Rationale: The Draft EIS includes a Summary which includes a brief description of 

the Proposed Project and Alternatives, including each significant 
adverse effect with a summary of proposed mitigation measures or 
alternatives that would reduce or avoid that effect, and areas of 
controversy know to TRPA. 
 
(See Draft EIS, Executive Summary, pgs. 2-2 to 102) 

 
3.           Finding: Comment Period: The draft EIS shall be circulated for public comment 

for a period not less than 60 days. TRPA may not hold a public hearing in 
the draft EIS. 

 
 Rationale: TRPA made the Draft EIS available to public agencies, citizen groups, and  

interested individuals for a 60-day public review period, from June 15, 
2016 through August 15, 2016.  Copies of the Draft EIS were available 
for public review during normal business hours at TRPA, at four libraries 
in Placer County, and at the Placer County Planning Services in both 
Tahoe City, California and Auburn, California.  Copies of the Draft EIS 
were also available for review on TRPA’s and Placer County’s websites.  
In addition, the public was consulted with in a series of five public 
hearings during the public comment period on the Draft EIS. 

 
During the review period, the public was invited to public comment 
hearings held by TRPA APC, RPIC, and Governing Board as well as the 
North Tahoe Regional Advisory Council (NTRAC) and the Placer County 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
61



   

Planning Commission. Five public meetings were held to solicit 
comments on the Draft EIS: (1) TRPA APC Meeting on July 13, 2016; (2) 
TRPA Governing Board Meeting on July 27, 2016; (3) TRPA RPIC Meeting 
on July 27, 2016; (4) Placer County Planning Commission Meeting on 
July 28, 2016; and (5) North Tahoe Regional Advisory Council Meeting 
on August 11, 2016.  The public was asked to provide written or oral 
comments at the meetings or written comments before closure of the 
public review period.  In response to the call for review and comment, 
including 9 from public agencies, 9 from stakeholder organizations 
(including environmental and business organizations), 95 from 
individuals, and 117 comments during public hearings. 

 
(See Final EIS, Chapter 1 Introduction; Final EIS, Chapter 2 Corrections 
and Revisions to the Draft EIS/EIS; and Final EIS, Chapter 3 Comments 
and Responses Section 3.5) 

 
4.  Finding:  Notice of Comment Period: The comment period shall not commence  

before the date of publication of a notice in a newspaper whose 
circulation is general through the region.  The notice shall include a brief 
description of the project or matter under consideration, the date the 
comment period commences the date by which comments must be 
received, and that copies of the draft EIS may be obtained by contacting 
TRPA and are available for public review at TRPA’s offices.  Copies of the 
draft EIS shall be mailed to California and Nevada state clearinghouses 
and appropriate federal agencies, on or before the beginning date of 
the comment period. Notice of the comment period shall be given to 
affected property owners pursuant to Article XII of these Rules. 

 
Rationale: The Draft EIS Notice of Comment Period was properly noticed by Placer 

County and TRPA. All procedures were followed regarding the 
availability of the Draft EIS for the public’s review, and copies of the 
Draft EIS were mailed to California and Nevada State Clearinghouses 
and appropriate federal agencies, on or before the beginning date of 
the comment period.  Copies of the Draft EIS were available for public 
review during normal business hours at TRPA, two libraries in Placer 
County, and at the Placer County Community Development Resource 
Agency offices in Tahoe City and Auburn.  Copies of the Draft EIS were 
also available for review on TRPA’s and Placer County’s websites.  
Notice of the Draft EIR/EIS was also published in the Sierra Sun on June 
17, 2016. Notice of the comment period was given to the public in 
accordance with Article XII of TRPA’s Rules of Procedure; notice to 
affected property owners was not required. 

 
(See June 15, 2016 Notice of Availability)  

 
5.           Finding: Request for Comments: TRPA shall request comments on draft EIS’s 

from any federal, state or local agency which has jurisdiction by law or 
special expertise with respect to any environmental impact involved. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
62



   

Notice of a request for comments shall be given by deposit of the 
request, in the U.S. Mail, first class mail, postage prepaid.  Notice shall 
be given no later than the date the comment period commences. 
Separate notice under this section is not necessary if notice of the draft 
EIS has been given to the agency pursuant to subsection 6.13.3 above. 

  
Rationale: TRPA provided notice of the Draft EIS pursuant to subsection 6.13.3, as  

described in the Section 1(4) Finding above.   
 
   (See Final EIS, Chapter 3, Comments and Responses) 
 
(5) Rules of Procedure 6.14 
 
Final EIS:  
 
1. Finding:  At the conclusion of the comment period, TRPA shall prepare written  

responses to all written comments received during the comment 
period, and may respond to oral or late comments. The response to 
comments may be in the form of a revision to the draft EIS, or may be a 
separate section in the final EIS that shall note revisions to the draft EIS, 
if any.  The final EIS shall include, at a minimum: the draft EIS, or a 
revision; comments received on draft, either verbatim or in summary; 
the response to comments; and a list of persons, organizations and 
agencies commenting in writing on the draft EIS. 

 
The final EIS may incorporate by reference computer data recorded on 
disk, videotape, slides, models and similar items provided summaries of 
such items are included in the final EIS. The final EIS may also include 
oral testimony given at APC or Board hearings. 

 
 Rationale: At the conclusion of the comment period, TRPA prepared written  

responses to all written comments received during the comment 
period, and responded to all oral comments.  The Final EIS includes a 
section (Chapter 2, Corrections and Revisions to the Draft EIR/EIS) that 
notes revisions to the Draft EIS. Additional revisions to the Draft EIS are 
incorporated by reference in Final EIS Chapter 3, Comments and 
Responses where a comment provides information or there is a 
correction that does not contribute substantively to the environmental 
analysis.  The Final EIS includes: 
 
(a)  List of Commenters (Final EIS, Chapter 1, Section 1.3).  This includes 
a list of persons, organizations and agencies commenting in writing or 
through oral testimony on the Draft EIS and responses to these 
comments (Final EIS, Chapter 3 Comments and Responses). 
(b)  Revisions and Corrections to the Draft EIS.  This chapter notes 
revisions to the Draft EIS (Final EIS, Chapter 2 Corrections and Revisions 
to the Draft EIR/EIS. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
63



   

(c)  Public Comments on the Draft EIS. This includes all comments 
received on the Draft EIS, verbatim as to written comments and oral 
testimony (Final EIS, Chapter 3 Comments and Responses).   
 
The Final EIS incorporates by reference computer data recorded on disk, 
videotape, slides, models and similar items and has provided summaries 
of such items in the Final EIS (See Draft EIS, Chapter 22 References and 
Final EIS, Chapter 6 References (on disk)). 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
64



   

Attachment E 
Required Findings for Adoption of the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
65



   

Required Findings for Adoption of the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan 
 
 
Required Findings:        The following Chapters 3, 4, and 13 findings must be made prior to adoption of 

the proposed Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan (PCTBAP or “Area Plan”): 
 
Chapter 3 Findings:       Prior to approving a project for which an EIS was prepared, TRPA shall make 

either of the following findings for each significant adverse effect identified in the 
EIS:  

 1.    Finding: Changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into such project 
avoid or reduce the significant adverse environmental effects to a less than 
significant level; or 
 
Specific considerations, such as economic, social, or technical, make infeasible 
the mitigation measure or project alternatives discussed in the environmental 
impact statement on the project. 
 

   
 Rationale: The Findings provided in Table E-1 summarize the significant environmental 

effects presented in the EIR/EIS, the extent to which any applicable revisions 
would affect the environmental analysis, and a discussion of the rationale 
supporting these findings. Additional rationale supporting these findings is 
included below: 
 
The Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Project EIR/EIS 
analyzed the environmental effects of four alternatives, including the proposed 
project and no project alternative. Separate findings will be made for the Tahoe 
City Lodge project so that the discussion herein is focused on the PCTBAP. Each 
of the Area Plan alternatives represented different approaches to implementing 
the Regional Plan; they differed in the development standards pertaining to 
redevelopment in Town Centers, the second unit residential program, and 
substitute standards, among other features. With consideration of the 
comments received on the Draft EIR/EIS and consultation meetings attended by 
representatives from TRPA and Placer County, environmental organizations, and 
other stakeholders, a series of policies and mitigation measures were added to 
the proposed Area Plan and Final EIR/EIS. These revisions included policies 
and/or mitigation measures related to traffic level of service, the second unit 
program, and emergency access and evacuation. 
 
In considering revisions to the proposed Area Plan (i.e., Final EIR/EIS Alternative 
1), TRPA has been cognizant of its legal obligation under the Compact to avoid or 
reduce the significant adverse environmental effects to a less-than-significant 
level, to the extent feasible. The Governing Board’s discretionary action to 
incorporate these revisions into the Final PCTBAP involve the consideration of 
whether the proposed suggestion relates to an environmental effect discussed in 
the Draft EIR/EIS; if the proposed language represents a clear improvement from 
an environmental standpoint, over the Draft Area Plan; that the 
recommendations are feasible from an economic, technical, and legal 
standpoint; and that the proposed language is consistent with the objectives of 
the Area Plan. Chapter 2 of the Final EIR/EIS describes the changes in the 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
66



   

proposed Area Plan, which was analyzed as Alternative 1 (as modified in the 
Final EIR/EIS).  
 
Some comments on the Draft EIR/EIS proposed new mitigation measures or 
modifications of existing mitigation measures for impacts already found to be 
less than significant. The Final EIR/EIS reflects TRPA’s response to all such 
proposals. The Governing Board hereby adopts the responses set forth in the 
Final EIR/EIS. The Governing Board notes that, because many impacts have 
already been determined to be less than significant, the TRPA need not adopt 
new or additional mitigation measures with respect to such impacts.   
 
Implementation of any of the Area Plan alternatives would occur in conjunction 
with land use development and population growth anticipated during the Plan 
horizon. In response to comments on the Draft EIR/EIS, the Final EIR/EIS included 
additional mitigation measures or refinements to mitigation measures in the 
areas of Transportation and Circulation, Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Air Quality, 
and Scenic Resources. The Final EIR/EIS provided a detailed description of the 
rationale describing why other recommended measures were infeasible. No 
additional feasible mitigation is available.  
 
All of the adverse environmental effects associated with the Final PCTBAP may 
be avoided or reduced to a less-than-significant level with the adoption of the 
mitigation measures set forth in these findings, with the exception of the 
following impacts: Impact 10-1, Roadway LOS; Impact 10-3, Intersection LOS; 
Impact 12-1, Generation of Greenhouse Gas (GHG) Emissions; Cumulative Impact 
10-1, Roadway LOS under 2035 Cumulative Scenarios; and Cumulative Impact 
10-3, Intersection LOS under Future Cumulative Scenarios.   
 
Placer County and TRPA have prepared the PCTBAP to implement the TRPA 
Regional Plan and Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), adopted on December 12, 
2012, and to implement the Placer County General Plan in the Tahoe Basin 
portion of Placer County. A key objective of the Regional Plan is to concentrate 
redevelopment within Town Centers. To achieve this goal, the 2012 Regional 
Plan provides incentives to encourage such redevelopment within Town Centers 
in exchange for providing environmental benefits such as improved stormwater 
controls, public transit facilities, stream environment zone (SEZ) restoration, and 
the like. This approach, to encourage redevelopment while aiming to achieve 
environmental threshold gain, has been termed “environmental 
redevelopment.” Regional Plan incentives include allowing increased density and 
height. The Regional Plan provides that these incentives will be implemented 
through the adoption of Area Plans by local jurisdictions and TRPA. In 
accordance with Regional Plan objectives, the proposed Area Plan emphasizes 
redevelopment within the Kings Beach and Tahoe City Town Centers.  
 
 
Alternatives Considered 
 
The EIR/EIS evaluated four alternatives to present a reasonable range of options.  
The range of alternatives considered in the EIR/EIS complies with Article VII (a) 
(3) of the Tahoe Regional Planning Compact and Section 3.7 of the TRPA Code of 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
67



   

Ordinances. Each alternative is potentially feasible, based on relevant economic, 
environmental, social, technological, and legal factors. The alternatives were 
presented and accepted by the Regional Plan Implementation Committee (RPIC) 
at the RPIC Meeting on September 24, 2015. A reasonable range of alternatives 
that best met the objectives of the PCTBAP, and that offered an environmental 
advantage over the proposed project by avoiding or reducing at least one 
significant impact, were selected.  
 
The proposed PCTBAP is evaluated as Alternative 1 (as modified in the Final 
EIR/EIS). Other alternatives include reasonable variations in features of the Area 
Plan.  
The Alternatives, described in detail below, are: 
• Alternative 1 – Proposed Area Plan  
• Alternative 2 – Area Plan with No Substitute Standards 
• Alternative 3 – Reduced Intensity Area Plan  
• Alternative 4 – No Project  
 
A good faith effort was made to evaluate a range of feasible alternatives in the 
EIR/EIS that are reasonable alternatives to the proposed PCTBAP, even when the 
alternatives might not fully achieve the PCTBAP objectives or might be more 
costly. As a result, the scope of alternatives analyzed in the EIR/EIS is not unduly 
limited or narrow.  
 
The EIR/EIS analyzed Alternatives 1, 2, 3, and 4. The EIR/EIS contains a detailed 
analysis of the impacts of each of these alternatives including detailed responses 
to all public comments on the adequacy or completeness of the environmental 
review. Table 2-1 in the Draft EIR/EIS summarizes the EIR/EIS conclusions 
concerning the impacts of, and mitigation measures applicable to, each 
alternative. Minor changes to Table 2-1 are included in Chapter 2, Corrections 
and Revisions to the Draft EIR/EIS, in the Final EIR/EIS. The EIR/EIS analysis of the 
alternatives is summarized as follows: 
 
Alternative 1 – Proposed Area Plan   
Alternative 1 reflects the county’s proposed Area Plan. The proposed Area Plan 
incorporates substantive standards from the existing Placer County planning 
documents, but proposes targeted changes primarily in the Kings Beach and 
Tahoe City Town Centers. The proposed Area Plan includes measures that would 
allow the county to manage and plan development in accordance with 
requirements of the 2012 Regional Plan. The types of measures include: 
redevelopment incentives for Town Centers; mixed-use development in Town 
Centers and other areas designated for commercial uses; and updated design 
and parking standards. The Area Plan would also result in changes to the TRPA 
Code of Ordinances, and land use and zoning map changes. 
 
The Final Area Plan (Alternative 1 as modified in the Final EIR/EIS) would result in 
six beneficial impacts, 88 less-than-significant impacts, five significant or 
potentially significant impacts that would be reduced to less-than-significant 
levels with mitigation, and five significant and unavoidable impacts. Alternative 1 
would also result in environmental benefits that are not indicated by the impact 
conclusions, such as restoration of SEZ areas, preservation of open space, and 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
68



   

environmental enhancement requirements for development within special 
planning areas. Alternative 1 would also have the most beneficial environmental 
impacts of all the alternatives and would best meet the project objectives of 
implementing the Regional Plan. 
 
The Area Plan will implement the TRPA Lake Tahoe Regional Plan adopted in 
December 2012, for the Placer County portion of the Tahoe Basin, in the 
following ways, including but not limited to: 
• The Area Plan will help to achieve environmental threshold gain, consistent 

with the objectives of the TRPA Lake Tahoe Regional Plan.  
• The Area Plan focuses on improving the environment by reducing regional 

vehicle miles traveled (VMT); increasing mobility; expanding and enhancing 
transit; increasing SEZ restoration; decreasing the pollutant load carried in 
stormwater runoff in Town Centers; increasing public access to Lake Tahoe, 
public lands, and recreation areas; and reversing blight. 

• The Area Plan will create a positive environment for private investment that 
is critical to achieving environmentally beneficial redevelopment in North 
Lake Tahoe while limiting sprawl. 

• The Area Plan will help foster sustainable communities within North Lake 
Tahoe where the citizens can live, work, and play. 

 
Alternative 2 – Area Plan with No Substitute Standards 
Alternative 2 was developed in response to scoping comments concerned with 
the potential environmental effects of the substitute standards included in the 
proposed Area Plan. Rather than creating new development standards, 
Alternative 2 uses existing TRPA standards. This alternative would not include 
any new programs or Code revisions that were not specifically anticipated in the 
Regional Plan and analyzed in the RPU EIS. 
 
Alternative 2 would result in five beneficial impacts, 89 less-than-significant 
impacts, four significant or potentially significant impacts that would be reduced 
to less-than-significant levels with mitigation, and five significant and 
unavoidable impacts. This alternative would result in the same significant and 
unavoidable impacts as Alternative 1 in the areas of Transportation and 
Circulation and Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change. Thus, this 
alternative would not avoid any of the significant and unavoidable impacts of the 
proposed Area Plan (Alternative 1). This alternative contributes incrementally 
less greenhouse gas emissions than for the PCTBAP. 
 
The Area Plan with No Substitute Standards would further most of the Area Plan 
objectives. Alternative 2 differs from the project in that it would not include a 
Tahoe City Town Center boundary change, new special planning areas and 
related environmental enhancement requirements such as additional SEZ 
restoration requirements, allow for conversion of commercial floor area (CFA) to 
Tourist Accommodation Units (TAUs), or development on non-contiguous 
parcels in Town Centers.  
 
This alternative does not reduce the significant and unavoidable impacts of the 
PCTBAP and it would result in fewer beneficial effects. 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
69



   

Alternative 3 – Reduced Intensity Area Plan  
Alternative 3 includes all the elements of Alternative 1, the proposed project, 
but certain aspects have been modified to respond to scoping comments related 
to potential effects on scenic resources, water quality, air quality, and affordable 
housing.  
 
Alternative 3 would result in five beneficial impacts, 89 less-than-significant 
impacts, five significant or potentially significant impacts that would be reduced 
to less-than-significant levels with mitigation, and five significant and 
unavoidable impacts. This alternative would result in the same significant and 
unavoidable impacts as Alternative 1 in the areas of Transportation and 
Circulation and Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change. Thus, this 
alternative would not avoid any of the significant and unavoidable impacts of the 
project, although this alternative would incrementally reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions as compared to the project, and add incrementally more roadway 
congestion between the Tahoe City Wye and Grove Street and at the SR 
28/Grove Street Intersection, than for Alternative 1. 
 
The Reduced Intensity Area Plan Alternative would further most of the Area Plan 
objectives. It would also be feasible to implement. Alternative 3 primarily differs 
from the project in that it would limit coverage to a maximum of 50 percent in 
Town Centers and would reduce maximum heights and number of stories in 
Town Centers relative to Alternative 1 (proposed Area Plan). It would also result 
in significant and unavoidable impacts similar to the PCTBAP.  
 
This alternative does not reduce the significant and unavoidable impacts of the 
PCTBAP and it would result in fewer beneficial effects. 
 
Alternative 4 – No Project  
Alternative 4 is the no project alternative. This alternative would include no Area 
Plan. The existing six community plans, 51 Plan Area Statements (PASs), and 
Placer County zoning regulations would remain unchanged.   
 
Alternative 4 would result in one beneficial impact, 83 less-than-significant 
impacts, and 10 significant and unavoidable impacts. The No Project Alternative 
would have impacts generally similar to the PCTBAP, but without a mechanism 
for mitigation, future environmental conditions without the PCTBAP would be 
worse. This alternative would result in the same significant and unavoidable 
impacts in the areas of Transportation and Circulation and Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions and Climate Change, but would also result in an additional five 
significant and unavoidable impacts, including additional impacts in the areas of 
Transportation and Circulation and Air Quality. Because mitigation cannot be 
required of a no project alternative, these impacts would be significant and 
unavoidable. 
 
This alternative does not reduce the significant and unavoidable impacts of the 
PCTBAP; it would result in five additional significant and unavoidable impacts, 
and would result in fewer beneficial effects. 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
70



   

Chapter 4 Findings:       The following findings must be made prior to adopting the PCTBAP:  
 1.    Finding: The proposed Area Plan is consistent with, and will not adversely affect  

implementation of the Regional Plan, including all applicable Goals and Policies,  
Plan Area Statements and maps, the Code, and other TRPA plans and programs. 

   
 Rationale: Land Use Policy 4.6 of TRPA’s Goals and Policies encourages the development 

of Area Plans that improve upon existing PASs and Community Plans or other 
TRPA regulations to be responsive to the unique needs and opportunities of the 
various communities in the Tahoe Region. The PCTBAP includes all required 
elements identified in Land Use Policies 4.8, 4.9 and 4.10 as demonstrated in 
the Area Plan Finding of Conformance Checklist. 

 
The PCTBAP was prepared in conformance with the substantive and procedural 
requirements of the Regional Plan Goals and Policies, as implemented through 
TRPA Code of Ordinances, Chapter 13: Area Plans. The PCTBAP is consistent 
with and furthers the Goals and Policies of the 2012 Regional Plan and Code, as 
shown in the Area Plan Finding of Conformance Checklist and as demonstrated 
by the EIR/EIS. The PCTBAP contains the required contents of an Area Plan and 
when implemented, it will have a beneficial impact on the Regional Plan’s 
ability to achieve and maintain the thresholds; see Chapter 4 and 13 findings, 
below.  
 

  Pursuant to Code Section 4.4.2, TRPA considers, as background for making the 
Section 4.4.1.A through C findings, the proposed project’s effects on 
compliance measures (those implementation actions necessary to achieve and 
maintain thresholds), supplemental compliance measures (actions TRPA could 
implement if the compliance measures prove inadequate to achieve and 
maintain thresholds), the threshold indicators (adopted measurable physical 
conditions that relate to the status of threshold attainment or maintenance), 
additional factors (indirect measures of threshold status, such as  funding levels 
for Environmental Improvement Program (EIP) projects, and interim and target 
dates for threshold achievement. TRPA identifies and reports on threshold 
compliance measures, indicators, factors and targets in the Threshold 
Evaluation Reports prepared pursuant to TRPA Code of Ordinances, Chapter 16: 
Regional Plan and Environmental Threshold Review.   
 
TRPA relies upon the project’s accompanying environmental documentation, 
staff’s professional analysis, and prior plan-level documentation, including 
findings and environmental review documents to reach the fundamental 
conclusions regarding the project’s consistency with the Regional Plan and 
thresholds. A project that is consistent with all aspects of the Regional Plan and 
that does not adversely affect any threshold is consistent with compliance 
measures, indicators, and targets. To increase its analytical transparency, TRPA 
has prepared worksheets related specifically to the 4.4.2 considerations, which 
set forth the 222 compliance and supplemental compliance measures, the 178 
indicators and additional factors, and interim and final targets. Effects of the 
proposed project (here the PCTBAP) on these items, if any, are identified and to 
the extent possible, described. TRPA cannot identify some target dates, status 
and trends for some threshold indicators because of a lack of available 
information. TRPA may still determine whether the project will affect the 4.4.2 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
71



   

considerations (and ultimately consistency with the Regional Plan and impact 
on thresholds) based on the project’s specific environmental impacts related to 
those threshold indicators.   
 
Based on the PCTBAP EIR/EIS, the 2015 Threshold Evaluation Report, the 2012 
RPU EIS, the 2012 RTP EIR/EIS, the RPU and RTP findings made by TRPA in 
December 2012, Section 4.4.2 staff analysis, and using applicable measurement 
standards consistent with the available information, the PCTBAP will not 
adversely affect applicable compliance and supplemental compliance 
measures, indicators, additional factors, and attainment of targets by the dates 
identified in the 2015 Threshold Evaluation. The PCTBAP incorporates and/or 
implements relevant compliance measures, and with the implementation of the 
measures with respect to development within the PCTBAP, the effects are not 
adverse, and with respect to some measures, are positive. (See PCTBAP 
Threshold Indicators and Compliance Measures Worksheets.) Furthermore, 
TRPA anticipates that implementation of the PCTBAP will accelerate threshold 
gains as demonstrated below.   
 
Because the principal beneficial environmental effects of implementation of the 
PCTBAP depend upon the number, design, and location of redevelopment 
projects, the utilization of transfer provisions and SEZ restoration, and available 
funding for the implementation of identified implementation projects, the 
specific extent and timing or rate of these beneficial effects of the PCTBAP 
cannot be determined at this time. However, pursuant to Code Chapter 13: 
Area Plans, TRPA will monitor all development projects within the Plan area 
through annual compliance reports. These reports will be presented to the 
Governing Board annually for Area Plan review and used every four years to 
consider Area Plan recertification and to assist with the evaluation of the status 
and trends of thresholds. 
 
Code Section 4.4.2.B also requires TRPA to disclose the impact of the proposed 
project on its cumulative accounting of units of use (e.g., residential allocations, 
commercial floor area, and tourist accommodation units). As described in the 
accompanying staff report, the PCTBAP includes a pilot program that would 
allow limited conversions of CFA to TAUs. Conversions would be allowed at a 
rate of 450 square feet (sq. ft.) of CFA to one TAU, with a total maximum of up 
to 200 TAUs. This conversion program is allowed as a substitute standard 
pursuant to Code Section 13.5.2, and it was evaluated in the PCTBAP EIR/EIS, 
which identified no significant environmental impacts that would result from 
implementation of the program. The PCTBAP does not otherwise affect the 
cumulative accounting of units of use as no additional residential, commercial, 
tourist, or recreation allocations are proposed to be allocated as part of this 
Regional Plan amendment. For specific development projects proposed within 
the PCTBAP, accounting for units of use, resource utilization and threshold 
attainment will occur as a part of the project review and approval process.  
 
Similarly, Section 4.4.2.C requires TRPA to confirm whether the proposed 
project is within the remaining capacity for development (e.g., water supply, 
sewage, etc.) identified in the EIS for the Regional Plan and EIR/EIS for the 
Regional Transportation Plan. As documented in the PCTBAP Draft EIR/EIS, 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
72



   

Chapter 16, Public Services and Utilities, the PCTBAP would not result in 
significant impacts related to public service or utility demand and does not 
affect the amount of the remaining capacities available, identified, and 
discussed in the RPU EIS. The PCTBAP does not allocate capacity or authorize 
any development. To the extent the PCTBAP enables the use of redevelopment 
incentives, those incentives are within the scope of the incentives analyzed by 
the PCTBAP EIR/EIS, RPU EIS, and RTP EIR/EIS.  
 
TRPA therefore finds that the PCTBAP is not only consistent with, but will help 
further the implementation of the Regional Plan, including all applicable Goals 
and Policies, PASs and maps, the Code, other TRPA plans and programs, and will 
facilitate environmental threshold attainment and gain.   
 

 2.    Finding: The proposed Area Plan will not cause the environmental threshold carrying 
capacities to be exceeded. 

   
 Rationale: 

 
As demonstrated in the PCTBAP EIR/EIS, no significant environmental effects 
were identified as a result of the proposed PCTBAP that would not occur 
without adoption of the Area Plan. The PCTBAP identified significant and 
unavoidable impacts related to vehicle level of service (LOS) and greenhouse 
gas emissions, however the EIR/EIS did not find any TRPA thresholds that would 
be adversely affected or exceeded. As found above, and described below, the 
proposed Area Plan is consistent with and will help to implement the 2012 
Regional Plan and facilitate environmental threshold attainment and gain.  
 
TRPA staff have reviewed the proposed PCTBAP against the 222 compliance 
measures and supplemental compliance measures, 178 indicators and 
additional factors that measure threshold progress and threshold target, and 
interim attainment dates. This review found that the PCTBAP will not adversely 
affect applicable compliance measures, indicators, additional factors and 
supplemental compliance measures and target dates as identified in the 2015 
Threshold Evaluation Report. Implementation of the PCTBAP will accelerate 
threshold gains as described below. Because the principal beneficial impacts of 
implementation of the PCTBAP depend upon the number, location, and design 
of redevelopment projects, utilization of transfer provisions, and funding for 
identified implementation projects, the specific extent and timing or rate of 
effects of the PCTBAP cannot be determined at this time. However, pursuant to 
Chapter 13: Area Plans, TRPA will monitor all development projects within the 
PCTBAP through annual reports. These reports will then be used to support 
recertification of the Area Plan and to evaluate the status and trend of the 
thresholds every four years. 
 
Because the PCTBAP was evaluated in a joint EIR/ EIS that found that the 
PCTBAP would not cause thresholds to be exceeded, and because the PCTBAP 
includes an ongoing monitoring, evaluation, and recertification provision; TRPA 
finds that the PCTBAP will not cause the environmental threshold carrying 
capacities to be exceeded. 
 

 3.    Finding: Wherever federal, state or local air and water quality standards applicable for 
the Region, the strictest standards shall be attained, maintained, or exceeded 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
73



   

pursuant to Article V (d) of the Tahoe Regional Planning Compact. 
   
 Rationale: Based on the following: (1) PCTBAP EIR/EIS, (2) RPU EIS, (3) RTP EIR/EIS, and (4) 

2015 Threshold Evaluation Report, adopted or issued by the Governing Board, 
no applicable federal, state or local air or water quality standard will be 
exceeded by adoption of the PCTBAP. The proposed Area Plan does not affect 
or change Federal, state or local air or water quality standards applicable for 
the Region. Projects developed under the PCTBAP will be required to meet the 
strictest applicable air or water quality standards and implement water quality 
improvements consistent with TRPA best management practices (BMP) 
requirements, the Lake Tahoe Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL), and the 
county’s Pollutant Load Reduction Plan (PLRP). Federal, state, and local air and 
water quality standards remain applicable for all parcels in the PCTBAP, thus 
ensuring environmental standards will be achieved or maintained pursuant to 
the Tahoe Regional Planning Compact.  
 

 4.   Finding: The Regional Plan and all of its elements, as amended, achieves and maintains 
the thresholds. 

   
 Rationale: I. Introduction 

In 1980, Congress amended the Compact to accelerate the pace of 
environmental progress in the Tahoe Region by tasking TRPA with adopting a 
regional plan and implementing regulations that protect the unique national 
treasure that is Lake Tahoe. First, Article V (b) required that TRPA, in 
collaboration with Tahoe’s other regulatory agencies, adopt “environmental 
threshold carrying capacities” (thresholds or standards) establishing goals for a 
wide array of environmental criteria, including water quality, air quality, and 
wildlife. Second, Article V(c) directed TRPA to adopt a regional plan to “achieve 
and maintain” these thresholds, and to “continuously review and maintain” 
implementation of the plan. 
 
The 1980 Compact instated an era of establishing and enforcing rigorous 
controls on new development. In 1982, TRPA adopted the necessary thresholds 
for the Tahoe Region. These thresholds are a mix of both long- and short-term 
goals for the Tahoe Region. The Region was in attainment of a number of these 
thresholds shortly after the adoption of the Regional Plan and remains in 
attainment today. Other thresholds address more intractable problems; for 
example, TRPA established numeric water quality standards that, even under 
best-case conditions, could not be attained for decades. See, e.g., League to 
Save Lake Tahoe v. Tahoe Reg’l Planning Agency, 739 F. Supp. 2d 1260, 1265 
(E.D. Cal. 2010). 
 
The second phase in this process was establishing a regional plan that, when 
implemented through rules and regulations would ultimately achieve and 
maintain these thresholds over time. In 1987, following years of negotiation 
and litigation, TRPA adopted its Regional Plan. The 1987 plan employed a three-
pronged approach to achieve and maintain the adopted environmental 
standards. First, the plan established a ceiling on development in the Region 
and restricted the placement, timing, and extent of new development. Second, 
the plan sought to prevent new harm to the environment as well as repair the 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
74



   

environmental damage caused by existing development, particularly for 
projects that pre-dated TRPA’s existence. To this end, the plan created 
incentives to redevelop urbanized sites under more protective regulations and 
to transfer development out of sensitive areas that would then be restored.  
 
Third, TRPA adopted a capital investment program that was largely but not 
exclusively publicly funded to achieve and maintain thresholds by improving 
infrastructure and repairing environmental damage. In 1997, TRPA replaced this 
program with its Environmental Improvement Program (EIP). In subsequent 
years, TRPA generated investments of well over $1 billion in public and private 
money to restore ecosystems and improve infrastructure under the EIP. Recent 
litigation confirmed that the Regional Plan as established in 1987 and 
subsequently amended over time will achieve and maintain the adopted 
environmental thresholds. Sierra Club v. Tahoe Reg’l Planning Agency, 916 
F.Supp.2d 1098 (E.D. Cal. 2013) [Homewood litigation]. 
 
Regional Plan Update Process 

Even though implementation of the 1987 Regional Plan would achieve and 
maintain the thresholds, in 2004 TRPA began public outreach and analysis of 
the latest science and monitoring results to identify priority areas in which the 
Regional Plan could be comprehensively strengthened to accelerate the rate of 
threshold attainment. TRPA’s policymakers realized that the challenges facing 
the region differed from those confronting the agency when it adopted its 
original Regional Plan in 1987. Uncontrolled new growth that had been the 
primary threat decades earlier had been brought into check by the strict growth 
limitations in the 1987 Plan. Contemporary problems differed, resulting from 
the continuing deterioration and lack of upgrades to existing legacy 
development. In essence, to make the greatest environmental difference, the 
Tahoe Basin needed to fix what was already in place. In addition, TRPA realized 
some existing land-use controls could be improved to remove barriers to 
redevelopment that would address ongoing environmental degradation caused 
by sub-standard development constructed before TRPA had an adopted 
Regional Plan or even came into existence. Land use regulations and public and 
private investment remain essential to attaining the thresholds for Lake Tahoe.  
Furthermore, TRPA recognized that the social and economic fabric of the Tahoe 
Region could not support the level of environmental investment needed. The 
economic foundation of gaming had fallen away, and the level of 
environmental investment needed could not be supported solely by an enclave 
of second homes for the wealthy. Businesses and the tourism sector were 
faltering. Affordable housing and year-round jobs were scarce. Local schools 
were closing, and unemployment was unusually high. In light of these realities, 
TRPA sponsored an ongoing outreach program to obtain input on how to 
advance TRPA’s environmental goals. Between 2004 and 2010, TRPA conducted 
over 100 public meetings, workshops, and additional outreach. More than 
5,000 people provided input regarding their vision for TRPA’s updated Regional 
Plan. Based on this input, TRPA identified a number of priorities to be 
addressed by the updated Regional Plan, including: 

1. Accelerating water quality restoration and other ecological benefits by 
supporting environmental redevelopment opportunities and EIP 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
75



   

investments. 
2. Changing land-use patterns by focusing development in compact, 

walkable communities with increased alternative transportation 
options. 

3. Transitioning to more permitting by local governments to create one-
stop and one permit for small to medium sized projects, where local 
government wanted to assume these duties.   

On December 12, 2012, TRPA’s nine-year effort culminated with the approval of 
the Regional Plan Update. 
 
Regional Plan Update Amendments 

The Regional Plan Update (RPU) uses multiple strategies targeting 
environmental improvements to accelerate achieving and maintaining 
threshold standards in the Region. First, the RPU maintained both regulatory 
and implementation programs that have proven effective in protecting Lake 
Tahoe’s environment. TRPA’s regional growth control regulatory system, strict 
environmental development standards, and inter-agency partnerships for 
capital investment and implementation (e.g., EIP) remain in place.   
 
Second, the RPU promotes sensitive land restoration, redevelopment, and 
increases the availability of multi-modal transportation facilities. The 
implementation of the RPU facilitates transferring existing development from 
outlying, environmentally-sensitive areas into existing developed community 
centers. The RPU provides incentives so that private capital can be deployed to 
speed this transformation.   
 
Third, the RPU authorizes the Area Plan process, pursuant to Chapter 13: Area 
Plans of the TRPA Code of Ordinances, for local jurisdictions in the Lake Tahoe 
Region in order to address the local issues and opportunities of unique 
communities in the Region, and to eliminate duplicative and unpredictable land 
use regulations that deterred improvement projects. Chapter 13 also allows 
TRPA and local, state, federal, and tribal governments to expand the types of 
projects for which local, state, federal, and tribal governments apply TRPA rules 
to proposed projects within the Tahoe Region. After approval of an Area Plan 
by TRPA, this process allows a single government entity to review, permit, and 
inspect projects in their jurisdiction. All project approvals delegated to other 
government entities may be appealed to the TRPA for final decision. In 
addition, the performance of any government receiving delegated authority will 
be monitored quarterly and audited annually to ensure proper application of 
TRPA rules and regulations. 
 
As noted above, a variety of strategies in the Regional Plan will work together to 
accelerate needed environmental gains in the categories where threshold 
benefits are most needed – water quality, restoration of sensitive lands, scenic 
quality advances in developed roadway units, and efforts to continue 
maintenance and attainment of air quality standards. Area Plans play a key role 
in the Regional Plan’s overall strategy by activating environmental 
redevelopment incentives (e.g., increases in density and height) that also 
provide the receiving capacity for transfers of units from sensitive lands. The 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
76



   

next section of this finding establishes how the PCTBAP fulfills the role 
anticipated by the RPU and the expected threshold gain resulting from its 
implementation. 
 
II. PCTBAP and Threshold Gain  
The PCTBAP accelerates threshold gain, including water quality restoration and 
other ecological benefits, by supporting environmental redevelopment 
opportunities and EIP investments. The PCTBAP retains the Regional Plan 
established growth control system and provides incentives for property owners 
to hasten the transfer of development rights from sensitive lands or from 
outlying areas to the Town Center where redevelopment is better suited and 
will have beneficial or reduced adverse environmental impacts. The PCTBAP will 
help to promote environmental redevelopment within existing developed areas 
by allowing increased density and height within the Tahoe City and Kings Beach 
Town Centers (within the sideboards established under the Regional Plan) to 
serve as an incentive for private investment in redevelopment projects.  
 
Significant threshold gain will result from the application of existing Codes and 
requirements for individual projects, as well as through the application of new 
environmental requirements embedded within the PCTBAP. These 
redevelopment incentives are intended to increase the rate of redevelopment 
and will likewise increase the rate of threshold gain by accelerating the 
application of controls designed to enhance water quality, air quality, soil 
conservation, scenic quality and recreational improvements to projects that 
wouldn’t otherwise be redeveloped absent PCTBAP provisions.  
 
The PCTBAP’s proposed Development and Design Standards represent a 
significant step forward in enhancing the aesthetics of the built environment 
and will result in improvements to the scenic threshold as projects are 
approved and built. The Special Planning Areas designated in the PCTBAP 
include new incentives and requirements for SEZ restoration and mobility 
improvements that will benefit the soil conservation, water quality, air quality, 
and recreation thresholds. Redevelopment of Town Centers is identified in the 
Regional Plan as a high priority, as many of the Region’s environmental 
problems can be traced to existing developments that were constructed 
without recognition of the sensitivity of the Region’s natural resources and 
impacts to Lake Tahoe. To correct this, environmentally beneficial 
redevelopment and rehabilitation of identified urban centers is a priority, and 
the policies, regulations, and implementation projects identified in the PCTBAP, 
along with application of existing county and TRPA codes and regulations 
encourage environmentally beneficial redevelopment and rehabilitation.   
 
As described in more specific detail below, the PCTBAP beneficially affects 
multiple threshold areas.  

A. Water Quality  
 

The PCTBAP benefits water quality thresholds by continuing to require 
installation of on-site BMPs and encouraging the development of area-wide 
BMPs to further BMP compliance, implementing water quality improvement 
projects, requiring additional SEZ restoration in Special Planning Areas, and 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
77



   

facilitating the transfer and permanent retirement of development from 
sensitive lands. Under the PCTBAP, Placer County will also continue to 
implement projects under the county’s PLRP. As provided in Part 2, 
“Conservation Plan,” the PCTBAP includes the following policies to promote 
water quality threshold attainment: 
 
WQ-P-1 Continue to participate in the Lake Tahoe Total Maximum Daily Load 
(TMDL) program, maintain Pollutant Load Reduction Plans (PLRPs), and 
implement the identified pollutant load reduction measures.   
 
WQ-P-2 Continue to participate in the Lake Tahoe Environmental Improvement 
Program (EIP) and coordinate with other agencies to identify and secure 
funding for water quality improvement projects.  
 
WQ-P-3 Continue to prioritize and seek funding assistance for the installation 
and long-term maintenance of Water Quality Best Management Practices 
(BMPs).  
 
WQ-P-4 Reduce pollutant loading to Lake Tahoe by implementing incentives for 
redevelopment within Town Centers and the transfer of development to Town 
Centers in accordance with the Regional Plan.   
 
 
 
WQ-P-5 Pursue Area-Wide water quality treatment districts in coordination 
with involved property owners and in accordance with the Regional Plan and 
TMDL. Within an approved district, water quality facilities may be jointly 
managed in lieu of certain parcel-specific BMP requirements. Priority will be 
given to sites with interested property owners, in high pollution loading 
catchments, on SEZ lands and within Town Centers.  
 
WQ-P-6 Evaluate the feasibility of establishing one or more public stormwater 
districts to construct and maintain water quality improvements.  
 
WQ-P-7 Implement the recommendations outlined in the Pollutant Load 
Reduction Plan (PLRP) to achieve the Lake Tahoe TMDL five-year load reduction 
target for year 2016.  
 
WQ-P-8 Collaborate with the Lahontan Regional Water Quality Control Board to 
update and refine the Pollutant Load Reduction Strategy for load reduction 
targets beyond the year 2016 and update the Pollutant Load Reduction Plan as 
necessary to achieve the Lake Tahoe TMDL load reduction targets. The Placer 
County Tahoe Basin Area Plan hereby incorporates by reference all, monitoring, 
operations and maintenance, and reporting required by the county’s NPDES 
permit, the adopted Pollutant Load Reduction Plan and the Stormwater 
Management Plan, which will also be utilized by TRPA in the 4-year Area Plan 
recertification process pursuant to TRPA Code Sections 13.8.2 and 13.8.5  
 
WQ-P-9 All TRPA policies, ordinances and programs related to Water Quality 
will remain in effect.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
78



   

 
The inclusion of these policies in the PCTBAP, as well as implementation 
strategies, (such as improved street sweeping and the use of specialized road 
abrasives) aimed at protecting water quality would benefit accelerated 
attainment and maintenance of the water quality thresholds. As discussed in 
Chapter 15, Hydrology and Water Quality, of the PCTBAP Draft EIR/EIS, the 
county also analyzed the impacts of concentrating development within the 
Area Plan’s Town Centers on water quality using the Pollutant Load Reduction 
Model (PLRM), which is the model that was used to inform the Lake Tahoe 
TMDL. The modelling found that pollutant loadings to surface waters would be 
reduced overall when compared to baseline conditions. This reduction is due 
primarily to BMP implementation requirements that apply to redevelopment 
projects. Overall, the EIR/EIS found that the water quality impacts of 
concentrating development in Town Centers and removing development from 
outlying areas would be beneficial. (PCTBAP Draft EIR/EIS, Pages 15-28.) 
 
 B. Air Quality   
The Tahoe Basin has made air quality gains. The majority of air quality 
indicators in the Lake Tahoe Basin were at or better than attainment with 
adopted thresholds and standards. In total 15 of 16 indictors were in 
attainment with almost all having improving trends. Two indicators had 
insufficient data to make a determination (2015 Threshold Evaluation Report, 
Chapter 3, Air Quality). Federal and state tailpipe and industrial emission 
standards have likely contributed to this achievement along with local projects 
which delivered walkable, transit-friendly improvements such as the Heavenly 
Gondola (See 2011 Threshold Evaluation Report at pages 3-14, 3-16, and 3-18; 
Yang et al. 2010, Park Avenue/U.S. 50 Redevelopment Phase 1, Case Study, 
available at: http://lafoundation.org/myos/my-uploads/2012/10/31/park-ave-
methodology.pdf). The Regional Plan and Regional Transportation Plan include 
a suite of strategies to help the Region meet air quality threshold standards 
(TRPA Goals and Policies: Air Quality Subelement at pages 2-33 to 2-35; 
Regional Transportation Plan Chapter 3, Sustainable Communities Strategy, 
Chapter 5, Transportation Management Programs, Chapter 6, Funding and 
Implementation Strategy). While there are many programs and policies that 
contribute to air quality threshold attainment, the two primary regional 
strategies are:  

1) Supporting environmental redevelopment. Land Use policies outlined in 
the Regional Plan support clustering population and employment in 
compact Town Centers that are well served by transit, pedestrian, and 
bicycle infrastructure. The Regional Plan achieves this by incentivizing 
redevelopment and transfers of development from outlying and 
sensitive areas into existing Town Center areas. (TRPA Goals and 
Policies: Chapter 2, Land Use.) 
 

2) Creating walkable communities and increased alternative 
transportation options. The Regional Plan and the Regional 
Transportation Plan: Mobility 2035, outlines the policies, programs and 
projects that provide a transportation system that supports this 
compact form of development and that will help to create an 
environment where walking, biking, and transit are convenient modes 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
79

http://lafoundation.org/myos/my-uploads/2012/10/31/park-ave-methodology.pdf
http://lafoundation.org/myos/my-uploads/2012/10/31/park-ave-methodology.pdf


   

of transportation. (Mobility 2035: Funding and Implementation 
Strategy Chapter, page 6-1; Goals and Policies, page 2-1.)    
 

The combination of compact land-uses and convenient, diverse transportation 
options is intended to allow more travel to be conducted on foot, by bike, or by 
transit, resulting in fewer and shorter vehicle trips per person and reducing 
negative impacts to air quality associated with motor vehicle travel. The 
benefits of these two strategies are further articulated in the Sustainable 
Communities Strategy chapter of Mobility 2035 (page 3-1). Additionally, the 
RPU EIS and Regional Transportation Plan EIR/EIS demonstrated that the 
combination of improvements would allow the Region to achieve and maintain 
air quality thresholds, including the vehicle miles traveled (VMT) threshold (see 
Regional Plan Update Draft EIS, Chapter 3.3: Transportation, and Chapter 3.4: 
Air Quality; Regional Transportation Plan Draft EIR/EIS, Chapters 3.3: 
Transportation and Chapter 3.4: Air Quality). 
 
The approved Area Plans will represent an integral component of implementing 
these regional air quality strategies and improvements at a community level 
(TRPA Goals and Policies, Chapter 2: Land Use). Because the land use and 
transportation strategies identified in the PCTBAP lead to implementation of 
the Regional Plan, they directly contribute to achieving and maintaining the Air 
Quality threshold.    
 
The PCTBAP, Part 5: Transportation Plan includes policies and implementation 
measures that will improve the pedestrian and bikeway system, expand transit 
options, connect different travel modes, reduce VMT, improve air quality, and 
ensure the attainment of air quality standards. For example, PCTBAP policy T-P-
1 requires that the county “Encourage use of non-auto modes of transportation 
by incorporating public transit, bicycle, and pedestrian travel amenities in 
transportation projects and other projects that impact or connect to the 
transportation network.” Policies T-P-2 through T-P-37, support attainment of 
the air quality thresholds by addressing the transportation network, parking, 
transit, pedestrian use, and bicycle facilities. 
 
The PCTBAP also encourages a greater mixing of uses, which will result in fewer 
and shorter vehicle trips and associated improvements in air quality and traffic 
as research indicates that mixing of multiple uses can reduce daily vehicle trips 
over 20 percent (Sperry, B. R., Internal Trip Capture for Mixed-Use 
Developments, Texas A&M University, Presentation at 2007 Winter TexITE 
Meeting). The PCTBAP EIR/EIS evaluated the effects of the Area Plan’s land use 
pattern on transportation and circulation and made the following 
determination: “[the PCTBAP] would reduce vehicle miles traveled (VMT) as 
compared with the baseline condition, due to the more compact land use 
pattern and mobility improvements. As a result, the PCTBAP Draft EIR/EIS 
determined that Alternative 1 would have a beneficial impact related to VMT, 
and the alternative would promote continued attainment and maintenance of 
TRPA’s VMT threshold standard.” (PCTBAP Final EIR/EIS, page 3.1-2). 
 
Furthermore, the PCTBAP encourages redevelopment of older buildings with 
newer, more energy efficient buildings that take advantage of new provisions in 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
80



   

the California Green Building Code to improve air quality and ensure the 
attainment of air quality standards. The PCTBAP EIR/EIS evaluated the long-
term emissions from operation of buildings consistent with PCTBAP policies and 
found that it would “result in a substantial net decrease in operational 
emissions of ROG, NOx, and CO…” (PCTBAP Draft EIR/EIS, page 2-25).  
 
As described above, the PCTBAP includes new provisions that will build upon 
existing provisions of the Regional Plan and will support accelerated attainment 
and maintenance of air quality thresholds. 
 
 C. Soil Conservation 
The Soil Conservation environmental thresholds include standards for each 
Land Capability District (LCD) and a standard for SEZs. The LCD standards are all 
in attainment (at or better than target, i.e. Bailey LCD limitations) with the 
exception of LCD 1b, which is considerably worse than target with a trend 
toward moderate improvement, and LCD 2, which is somewhat worse than 
target with little to no change. The SEZ standard, “Preserve and Restore Stream 
Environment Zones” is described as Considerably Worse than Target with a 
trend toward moderate improvement. The threshold for SEZs is as follows:  
Preserve existing naturally functioning SEZ lands in their natural hydrologic 
condition, restore all disturbed SEZ lands in undeveloped, unsubdivided lands, 
and restore 25 percent of the SEZ lands that have been identified as disturbed, 
developed or subdivided, to attain a 5 percent total increase in the area of 
naturally functioning SEZ lands.  
 
The Goals and Policies in the Regional Plan that provide direction for 
attainment of the SEZ Threshold are contained in the SEZ, Soils, and Land Use 
Subelements. (TRPA Goals and Policies: Chapter 4: Conservation at pages 4-14 
to 4-16 and 4-24 to 4-27; TRPA Goals and Policies Chapter 2: Land Use at pages 
2-2 to 2-19.)  The SEZ Subelement currently contains one goal and eight 
associated policies. The goal calls for the long-term preservation, enhancement, 
and restoration of SEZ lands as a means of achieving various environmental 
thresholds. The policy statements direct the restoration, preservation, and 
management of SEZ lands by setting numeric goals for restoration of 
degraded/developed SEZ lands and requiring their protection and management 
for natural functions and values.   
 
The TPRA Code implements this policy and includes regulatory strategies and 
measures to achieve the goals listed in the SEZ Subelement of the Regional 
Plan. The PCTBAP includes all existing TRPA SEZ protections and policies for 
enhancement designed to achieve threshold gain, as well as new provisions to 
help accelerate SEZ restoration. Part 2, Conservation Plan, of the PCTBAP 
includes the following policies regarding SEZs and land coverage: 
 
S-P-1 Pursue coverage removal projects in coordination with the EIP and TMDL 
programs, the California Tahoe Conservancy, and other partner agencies. 
Priority will be given to sites in high pollution loading catchments and SEZ lands.  
 
S-P-2 Accelerate sensitive land coverage removal and mitigation by 
implementing incentives for redevelopment within Town Centers and the 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
81



   

transfer of development from SEZs and other sensitive lands to Town Centers in 
accordance with the Regional Plan.   
 
S-P-3 Pursue Area-Wide land coverage management districts in coordination 
with involved property owners and in accordance with the Regional Plan. 
Within a district, area-wide coverage standards may be substituted for certain 
parcel level standards. Priority will be given to sites with interested property 
owners, in high pollution loading catchments and within Town Centers. 
 
S-P-4 Update parking standards to more efficiently utilize parking lots and 
minimize land coverage.   
 
S-P-5 All TRPA policies, ordinances and programs related to Land Coverage will 
remain in effect. 
In addition to the policies above, Part 8, Implementation Plan of the PCTBAP 
includes specific projects that will reduce land coverage in SEZs. Through 
implementation of these policies and projects, the PCTBAP will move the Soil 
Conservation standards for LCD 1b and 2 lands and the preservation and 
restoration of SEZs closer to attainment.   
 

    D. Scenic Quality 
The Tahoe Basin continues to make gains in scenic quality (2015 Threshold 
Evaluation Report: Chapter 9: Scenic Resources.) All six of the scenic threshold 
categories are overall in attainment, with two categories showing an improving 
trend (2015 Threshold Evaluation Report, page ES-3). As described in the RPU 
EIS (at page 3.9-17), the increasing trend in scenic quality is primarily due to 
redevelopment activities that replace old structures with updated, more 
scenically compatible design and the undergrounding of utilities. Examples of 
documented scenic improvement from redevelopment activities include the 
Heavenly Village/Gondola, the Chateau, and South Lake Tahoe Safeway 
projects.   
 
The following policies have been included in the PCTBAP to ensure 
environmental redevelopment and other activities pursuant to the PCTBAP 
contribute toward attainment of scenic thresholds: 
 
SR-P-1 Continue to participate in the Lake Tahoe Environmental Improvement 
Program (EIP) and coordinate with other agencies to identify and secure 
funding for projects that improve scenic quality. 
 
SR-P-2 Accelerate scenic resource improvement by implementing incentives for 
redevelopment within Town Centers and the transfer of development from 
outlying areas to Town Centers in accordance with the Regional Plan. 
 
SR-P-3 Support undergrounding of overhead utility lines on a project-by-project 
basis, as well as through established Underground Districts. 
 
SR-P-4 Protect and enhance existing scenic views and vistas. 
 
SR-P-5 Implement site and building design standards to protect and enhance 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
82



   

scenic views from Town Centers and nearby areas. 
 
SR-P-6 Manage development located between designated scenic corridors and 
Lake Tahoe to maintain and improve views of Lake Tahoe from the corridors. 
 
SR-P-7 Prioritize scenic improvement efforts at the gateways to Lake Tahoe in 
Tahoe City and Kings Beach. 
 
SR-P-8 All TRPA policies, ordinances and programs related to Scenic Quality will 
remain in effect. 
 
SR-P-9 To ensure viewshed protection and compatibility with adjacent uses, 
new construction of buildings must not project above the forest canopy, 
ridgelines, or otherwise detract from the viewshed. 
 
In addition to the policies noted above, the PCTBAP identifies specific scenic 
quality improvement projects in Part 8: Implementation Plan. It should also be 
noted that while the incentives provided by the PCTBAP will likely result in 
increased rates of redevelopment in Centers and thereby help achieve and 
maintain scenic quality thresholds within the Centers, the transfer incentives of 
the Regional Plan will also beneficially affect scenic quality outside of the 
Centers. As discussed in the RPU DEIS (at page 3.9-22), transfer incentives will 
pull units from outside the urban centers into the urban centers. The removal 
and restoration of sending parcels to a natural condition will improve scenic 
quality of those outlying areas, potentially aiding scenic threshold achievement 
and maintenance. 
 
As described in the PCTBAP Draft EIR/EIS and in the accompanying TRPA 
Conformance Checklist for the PCTBAP, the Area Plan includes detailed design 
standards and guidelines that will enhance the aesthetic character of the built 
environment and contribute to accelerated attainment and maintenance of the 
scenic quality thresholds. For the reasons described above, the Regional Plan as 
amended by the PCTBAP will result in accelerated attainment and maintenance 
of the scenic quality thresholds. 

 
E. Vegetation 

The Regional Plan and partner agencies have successfully protected sensitive 
plant species and kept those thresholds in attainment (2015 Threshold 
Evaluation Report: Chapter 6, Vegetation Preservation). A few uncommon plant 
communities fell short of attainment primarily because of non-native species.  
 
Aquatic invasive species, noxious weeds, and beaver were identified as 
potential threats to the integrity of uncommon plant communities. Progress is 
being made on fuels reduction and forest ecosystem restoration. (2015 
Threshold Evaluation Report: Chapter 6, Vegetation Preservation; 
Environmental Improvement Program Accomplishments 1997-2012 available 
at: http://www.trpa.org/wp-
content/uploads/EIP_1pager_Summit2013_FINAL2.pdf). 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
83

http://www.trpa.org/wp-content/uploads/EIP_1pager_Summit2013_FINAL2.pdf
http://www.trpa.org/wp-content/uploads/EIP_1pager_Summit2013_FINAL2.pdf


   

The PCTBAP maintains Regional Plan programs related to vegetation and adds 
the following policies: 
 
VEG-P-1 Pursue vegetation enhancement projects in coordination with the EIP 
and TMDL programs, the California Tahoe Conservancy, and other partner 
agencies. Priority will be given to disturbed sites with rare or threatened 
vegetation, in high pollution loading catchments, and in SEZs. 
 
VEG-P-2 Support forest enhancement projects being completed by land 
management agencies and fire districts, including selective cutting and 
controlled burning projects that improve forest health and reduce the risk of 
catastrophic wildfire. 
 
VEG-P-3 Accelerate the restoration of native vegetation by implementing 
incentives for redevelopment within Town Centers and the transfer of 
development from SEZs and other sensitive lands to Town Centers in 
accordance with the Regional Plan. 
 
VEG-P-4 Support protection of the Tahoe yellow cress (Rorippa subumbellata) 
species consistent the Tahoe Yellow Cress Conservation Strategy. 
 
VEG-P-5 Coordinate interagency efforts to detect and eradicate non-native 
terrestrial plants. 
 
VEG-P-6 All TRPA policies, ordinances and programs related to Vegetation will 
remain in effect. 
In addition to the policies described above, specific vegetation improvement 
projects are described in Part 8: Implementation Plan. Specific regulations are 
outlined in the Area Plan Implementing Regulations. The PCTBAP EIR/EIS 
determined that no significant impacts to vegetation would occur as a result of 
implementing the PCTBAP (PCTBAP Draft EIR/EIS, Table 2-1). For these reasons, 
the PCTBAP would accelerate the attainment and maintenance of vegetation 
thresholds. 

 
F. Recreation 

Both Recreation Thresholds have been implemented and are in attainment. 
(2015 Threshold Evaluation Report: Chapter 11, Recreation.)  TRPA partners 
have made substantial progress in upgrading recreational facilities through the 
EIP. (2015 Threshold Evaluation Report at pages 11-11 to 11-16.) 
The PCTBAP includes a recreation plan as part 6. This recreation plan 
incorporates Regional Plan policies, describes the inter-agency recreation 
management framework, describes a recreation strategy, and includes existing 
and planned recreation facilities. The PCTBAP, recreation plan includes the 
following policies that support continuous maintenance and improvement of 
the recreation thresholds: 
 
R-P-1 Continue to manage recreation facilities and uses in accordance with the 
Regional Plan. 
 
R-P-2 Continue to enhance recreation facilities through coordinated 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
84



   

interagency planning and funding programs. 
 
R-P-3 Ensure that recreational opportunities are available and accessible to 
visitors of all income levels. 
 
R-P-4 Support the funding, construction, and maintenance of the multi-use bike 
trails identified in the Plan area. 
 
R-P-5 Encourage funding and perform selective snow clearing of trails, 
particularly in high use areas, to enhance the “year-round” economy. 
 
R-P-6 Protect and support existing public beach access as well as secure 
additional public access rights as opportunities arise. 
 
R-P-7 Utilize all appropriate opportunities (land acquisition, obtaining easement 
rights, etc.) to increase opportunities for public access to the shoreline of Lake 
Tahoe. 
 
R-P-8 Coordinate with State Parks and the California Tahoe Conservancy on 
management, operations, and maintenance of beaches within the Plan area. 
 
R-P-9 Enhance winter recreational opportunities and improve access for cross 
country and back country skiers. 
 
R-P-10 Prohibit snowmobile uses in important wildlife habitat, including Page 
Meadows. 
 
R-P-11 Continue to protect and support the Public Trust as it relates to the 
shores of and access to Lake Tahoe, including various undeveloped public right-
of-way/easements for lake access. 
 
The PCTBAP EIR/EIS evaluated the effects of the Area Plan on recreation and 
determined that it would have no significant adverse effects on recreation. The 
EIR/EIS also found that the PCTBAP would have a beneficial effect on public 
access to Lake Tahoe, public lands, and recreation areas. The EIR/EIS found that 
the PCTBAP would result in recreation improvements including “proposed 
hiking trails, bike trails, beach access, improved parking, and alternative 
transportation programs that would improve access for pedestrians, bicyclists, 
transit riders, and drivers” (PCTBAP Draft EIR/EIS, page 2-53). The PCTBAP’s 
access improvements are consistent with recommendations to improve 
attainment and maintenance of the recreation thresholds related to the quality 
of the recreation experience and access to recreational opportunities in the 
2015 Threshold Evaluation (page 11-11). For these reasons, the PCTBAP will 
accelerate attainment and maintenance of recreation thresholds. 

 
G. Fisheries 

TRPA and partner agencies have implemented a robust aquatic invasive species 
control and prevention program; however, aquatic invasive species continue to 
be a major area of concern because of their threat to fisheries and other 
aquatic biota (2015 Threshold Evaluation Report: Chapter 7, Fisheries).   

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
85



   

 
The PCTBAP will not alter the resource management and protection 
regulations, Chapters 60 through 68, or shorezone regulations, Chapters 80 
through 85, of the TRPA Code of Ordinances. Chapter 63: Fish Resources, of the 
Code of Ordinances includes the provisions to ensure the protection of fish 
habitat and provide for the enhancement of degraded habitat. The PCTBAP 
includes the following additional policies related to fisheries and aquatic 
resources:   
 
FI-P-1 Support active management of Aquatic Invasive Species (AIS), including 
implementation of TRPA’s Lake Tahoe AIS Management Plan, to prevent new 
introductions of AIS, limit the spread and control existing AIS populations and 
abate AIS impacts. 
 
FI-P-2 Pursue aquatic resource enhancement projects in coordination with the 
EIP and TMDL programs, the California Tahoe Conservancy, and other partner 
agencies. Priority will be given to AIS management, removal of stream 
diversions and blockages, and projects that also reduce pollutant loading. 
 
FI-P-3 Support efforts to reintroduce Lahontan Cutthroat trout to waterways in 
the Truckee River/Lake Tahoe watershed. 
 
FI-P-4 All TRPA policies, ordinances and programs related to Fish and Aquatic 
Resources will remain in effect. 
Specific fisheries and aquatic resource projects are described in Part 8: 
Implementation Plan of the PCTBAP. The PCTBAP EIR/EIS found that the Area 
Plan would not result in significant adverse effects on fisheries or other 
biological resources (PCTBAP Draft EIR/EIS Chapter 7, Biological Resources). 
 
As described above, the PCTBAP would maintain and supplement Regional Plan 
policies related to fisheries, and would accelerate the attainment and 
maintenance of fisheries thresholds. 
 
 H. Wildlife 
Indicators for special interest wildlife species show stable or improving 
conditions (2015 Threshold Evaluation Report: Chapter 8, Wildlife). TRPA’s 
development regulations have protected riparian wildlife habitats, and partner 
agencies are making progress restoring these valuable habitats (2015 Threshold 
Evaluation Report at pages 8-34 to 8-36). 
 
The PCTBAP will not alter the resource management and protection 
regulations, Chapters 60 through 68, of the TRPA Code of Ordinances. In 
addition, any future projects allowed within the PCTBAP would be subject to 
additional project-level environmental review and permitting. Consistent with 
existing conditions, permit applicants would be required to demonstrate that 
any proposals would occur consistent with TRPA Code provisions related to 
resource management, including specifically the provisions of Chapters 62 and 
63 that address protection of wildlife and fish resources, respectively. In 
addition to existing Regional Plan provisions, the PCTBAP adds the following 
policies related to wildlife: 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
86



   

 
SE-P-1 Pursue wildlife habitat enhancement projects in coordination with the 
EIP program, the California Tahoe Conservancy, and other partner agencies. 
 
SE-P-2 Coordinate with partner agencies to manage bear populations and 
minimize conflicts with people. Programs should emphasize public education 
and expand the use of bear-proof solid waste enclosures. 
 
SE-P-3 All TRPA policies, ordinances and programs related to Wildlife will 
remain in effect. 
 
Specific wildlife habitat enhancement projects are described in Part 8: 
Implementation Plan, of the PCTBAP. Regulations related to wildlife 
conservation are outlined in the Area Plan Implementing Regulations. The 
PCTBAP EIR/EIS evaluated the effects of implementing the Area Plan and 
determined that it would not result in significant adverse effects related to 
biological resources (PCTBAP Draft EIR/EIS Chapter 7, Biological Resources). 
Additionally, the PCTBAP may help to improve the wildlife threshold through 
the expansion of habitat made available through SEZ restoration projects. For 
these reasons, the Regional Plan as amended by the PCTBAP will accelerate 
attainment and maintenance of the wildlife thresholds.  

 
I. Noise 

TRPA has adopted noise standards for the Tahoe Basin. The noise thresholds 
are Community Noise Equivalent Level (CNEL) values for the various land use 
categories and single event (Lmax) standards for specific noise sources. CNEL is 
the metric used by TRPA for determining land use compatibility. The maximum 
CNEL standards for each subdistrict in the PCTBAP are described in the PCTBAP 
Implementing Regulations, Chapter 2, District Standards. No one activity, nor 
combination of activities, is allowed to exceed the applicable CNEL level. CNELs 
are calculated pursuant to Chapter 23 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances. The 
PCTBAP CNEL standards are consistent with the TRPA Noise Threshold 
Standards. Therefore, no impacts to the Noise Threshold are anticipated with 
the adoption of the Area Plan.  
 
To assist in accelerating and attaining noise thresholds, the PCTBAP includes 
the following policies that are in addition to existing Regional Plan policies: 
 
N-P-1 Work with TRPA, Caltrans, Tahoe Area Regional Transit (TART), USFS, 
and other partner agencies to minimize transportation-related noise impacts 
on residential and sensitive uses. Additionally, continue to limit hours for 
construction and demolition work to reduce construction-related noises. 
 
N-P-2 Minimize passenger vehicle travel and roadway noise by implementing 
incentives for redevelopment within Town Centers and the transfer of 
development to Town Centers in accordance with the Regional Plan. 
 
N-P-3 Support the reevaluation of TRPA’s Community Equivalent Noise Level 
(CNEL) standards and evaluation approaches, as called for in the 2011 
Threshold Evaluation Report. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
87



   

 
N-P-4 All TRPA policies, ordinances and programs related to Noise will remain in 
effect. 
 
Noise reduction projects are described in the Part 8 of the Area Plan, the 
Implementation Plan. Implementation of the Area Plan was evaluated in the 
PCTBAP EIR/EIS, which found that the Area Plan would result in no significant 
impacts related to Noise (PCTBAP Draft EIR/EIS Chapter 13, Noise and 
Vibration). For the reasons described above, the Regional Plan as amended by 
the PCTBAP would attain and maintain Noise Thresholds. 
 
III. Conclusion 
Based on the rationale described above, the PCTBAP EIR/EIS, the attached 
PCTBAP conformance checklist, the previously certified RPU EIS and RTP 
EIR/EIS, and the findings made on December 12, 2012 for the RPU; TRPA finds 
the Regional Plan and all of its elements, as amended by the PCTBAP, achieves 
and maintains the thresholds. As described in more detail above, the Regional 
Plan will, over time, achieve and maintain the thresholds. The PCTBAP would 
maintain existing Regional Plan policies and programs and would result in no 
significant impacts to thresholds. The PCTBAP also includes specific policies and 
implementation measures that would accelerate attainment and maintenance 
of thresholds. Thus, the Regional Plan, as amended by the PCTBAP, will 
continue to achieve and maintain the thresholds. 

   
Chapter 13 Findings:      The following findings must be made prior to adopting the PCTBAP:  

  1.  Finding: The proposed Area Plan, including all zoning and development Codes that are a p   
the Area Plan is consistent with and furthers the goals and policies of the 
Regional Plan.  

 
  

Rationale: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Regional Plan Land Use Policy 4.6 encourages the development of area plans 
that supersede existing plan area statements and community plans or other 
TRPA regulations in order to be responsive to the unique needs and 
opportunities of communities. The PCTBAP consists of applicable policies, 
maps, ordinances and related materials that conform to the Regional Plan. 
These policies, maps, and ordinances were developed with the specific intent 
of conforming to the Regional Plan. Development of the PCTBAP included close 
collaboration between Placer County and TRPA staff, members of the public, 
and other stakeholders over approximately five years. The proposed land use 
and zoning maps are consistent with Map 1, Conceptual Regional Land Use 
Map, of the Regional Plan, with modifications as described in the attached 
Area Plan Finding of Conformance Checklist. The PCTBAP modifies provisions 
that previously applied to plan area statements and community plans 
consistent with Code Section 13.5.2. It also proposes substitute development 
and design standards and guidelines. These changes have been evaluated in 
the PCTBAP Final EIR/EIS prepared for the PCTBAP, which found that the 
PCTBAP would result in no significant unmitigable impacts on the environment 
that would not also occur without adoption of the Area Plan (i.e., under the no 
project alternative). The TRPA ordinances that are not amended by the PCTBAP 
will continue to be in effect. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
88



   

The PCTBAP was reviewed for consistency and conformity with the Regional 
Plan, as documented in the attached Area Plan Finding of Conformity Checklist. 
The Area Plan Finding of Conformity Checklist provides additional detail and 
rationale to support the finding of conformity and the General Review 
Standards identified in sub-Section 13.6.5 of the Code, as summarized below: 

A. General Review Standards for all Area Plans 

1. Identify all zoning designations, allowed land uses, and development 
standards throughout the plan area. 

The PCTBAP Implementing Regulations identify zoning designations 
(Section 2.01), allowed land uses (Section 2.02 through 2.08), and 
development standards throughout the entire Plan area (Chapters 2 and 3). 
 

 2.  Be consistent with all applicable Regional Plan Policies, including but not 
limited to the regional growth management system, development 
allocations, and coverage requirements. 

 
The PCTBAP does not propose additional growth, allocations, or coverage 
beyond that anticipated in the Regional Plan. The PCTBAP includes a pilot 
program that would allow limited conversions of CFA to TAUs. Conversions 
would be allowed at a rate of 450 sq. ft. of CFA to one TAU, with a total 
maximum of up to 200 TAUs. This conversion program is allowed as a 
substitute standard pursuant to Code Section 13.5.2, and it was evaluated in 
the PCTBAP EIR/EIS, which identified no significant environmental impacts 
would result from the program. 

 
3.   Demonstrate how the Area Plan is consistent with the Conceptual Regional 

Land Use Map, including any amendments to the Conceptual Regional Land 
Use Map that are proposed to be part of the Area Plan in order to more 
effectively implement the Regional Plan Policies and provide Threshold gain. 

 
The PCTBAP includes proposed amendments to the Regional Land Use Map 
as part of an integrated plan to comply with Regional Plan policies and attain 
and maintain threshold standards. The proposed revisions have been 
analyzed in the EIR/EIS for the PCTBAP and were found to not result in 
significant environmental impacts. The proposed revisions are as follows: 

• Tahoe City Town Center boundary modification: The PCTBAP would 
modify the boundary to remove 7.12 acres of property near the Fairway 
Community Center, and add 4.2 acres surrounding the Tahoe City Golf 
Course clubhouse. This modification reduces, the amount of land in the 
center, reduces the amount of sensitive land in the center, and is 
consistent with Code Section 13.5.3.G; 

• Conservation and Recreation lands: The PCTBAP would revise land use 
designations for approximately 200 acres of publicly-owned lands from 
Residential to Conservation (approximately 138 acres) and Recreation 
(approximately 61 acres); 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
89



   

• Kings Beach land use classification cleanup: The PCTBAP would amend 
land use designations to maintain consistency with recently surveyed 
parcel boundaries. The total area affected would be approximately 1 
acre.  

The proposed PCTBAP land use map is consistent with the TRPA Conceptual   
Regional Land Use Map adopted as part of the 2012 Regional Plan, except as 
described above. 

4.   Recognize and support planned, new, or enhanced Environmental 
Improvement Projects. Area Plans may also recommend enhancements to 
planned, new, or enhanced Environmental Improvement Projects as part of 
an integrated plan to comply with Regional Plan Policies and provide 
Threshold gain. 

 
The PCTBAP recognizes and supports new, planned, and enhanced 
Environmental Improvement Projects in Section 8.2, Planned Environmental 
Improvement Projects. 
   

5.  Promote environmentally beneficial redevelopment and revitalization within 
Centers. 

 
The PCTBAP promotes environmentally beneficial redevelopment of the 
Tahoe City and Kings Beach Town Centers by promoting TRPA incentives for 
the transfer of development, and by providing capacity for redevelopment in  
Centers consistent with TRPA’s coverage, height, and density limits.  

   
6.   Preserve the character of established residential areas outside of Centers, 

while seeking opportunities for environmental improvements within 
residential areas. 

The PCTBAP does not alter zoning of established residential areas. It includes 
upper story setbacks and transitional areas with lower height limits along the 
interface between Town Centers and established residential areas (See 
PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Sections 2.09.A and B). 

7.   Protect and direct development away from Stream Environment Zones and 
other sensitive areas, while seeking opportunities for environmental 
improvements within sensitive areas. Development may be allowed in 
disturbed Stream Environment Zones within Centers only if allowed 
development reduces coverage and enhances natural systems within the 
Stream Environment Zone.  

 
The PCTBAP maintains existing Regional Plan protections for sensitive land 
and implements Regional Plan incentives for transfers of development out of 
sensitive land. The PCTBAP also identifies restoration and projects and other 
implementation strategies in Part 8, Implementation Plan. In addition, the 
PCTBAP includes special planning areas with specific requirements for 
restoring disturbed SEZs within Centers (See PCTBAP Implementing 
Regulations Sections 2.09.B.1, 3, and 5). 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
90



   

8.   Identify facilities and implementation measures to enhance pedestrian, 
bicycling, and transit opportunities along with other opportunities to reduce 
automobile dependency. 

 
The PCTBAP includes identifies new and planned facilities and 
implementation measures to enhance non-automobile transportation in 
Part 5, Transportation Plan.  
 

B.     Utilization of Load Reduction Plans 
  
      1.   TRPA shall utilize the load reduction plans for all registered catchments, or 

TRPA default standards when there are no registered catchments, in the 
conformance review of area plans. 

 
The PCTBAP identifies TMDL implementation strategies and load reduction 
plans in Section 2.2, Water Quality, and in Part 8, Implementation Plan. 

 
 C.      Additional Review Standards for Area Plans with Town Centers or Regional          

   Centers. 

The PCTBAP includes the Kings Beach and Tahoe City Town Centers. The 
PCTBAP includes all additional required review standards for Area Plans with 
Town Centers identified in Section 13.6.5.C of the Code as stated below:  

1. Include building and site design standards that reflect the unique character 
of each area, respond to local design issues, and consider ridgeline and 
viewshed protection.  

As described in the attached Area Plan Finding of Conformity Checklist, the 
PCTBAP includes detailed design standards that reflect the unique 
character of each area, respond to local design considerations, and 
promote ridgeline and viewshed protection. The PCTBAP Implementing 
Regulations include a mix of unique standards that reflect the character of 
individual zoning subdistricts (see Chapter 2), as well as a series of area-
wide standards and guidelines (see Chapter 3).   

 
2.   Promote walking, bicycling, transit use, and shared parking in Town Centers 

and the Regional Center, which at a minimum shall include continuous 
sidewalks or other pedestrian paths and bicycle facilities along both sides of 
all highways within Town Centers and the Regional Center, and to other 
major activity centers.  

 
The PCTBAP includes a comprehensive network of existing and planned 
pedestrian and bicycle facilities that connect properties within Centers 
and to other multi-modal transportation options (See PCTBAP Figures 5-3 
through 5-5). The PCTBAP development standards require that projects 
incorporate planned pedestrian and bicycle facilities with new 
development and substantial alteration of existing properties (see PCTBAP 
Policy T-P-19 and Implementing Regulations Sections 2.04.A.4.a; 
2.04.B.4.a; 2.04.C.4.a; and 2.04.D.4.a). Specific mobility projects are 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
91



   

 

identified in Part 8, Implementation Plan.  
 
3.   Use standards within Town Centers or the Regional Center addressing the 

form of development and requiring that projects promote pedestrian activity 
and transit use.   

Detailed design standards included in the PCTBAP address pedestrian 
activity and transit use in Centers. The standards address building 
articulation, street frontage landscaping, stepped heights, and other 
building form requirements. The exact standards vary by Center. See for 
example, the Greater Tahoe City Mixed Use subdistrict standards in 
Implementing Regulations Section 2.04.A.4. 
 

4.  Ensure adequate capacity for redevelopment and transfers of development 
rights into Town Centers and the Regional Center. 

 
The PCTBAP incudes height, density, and coverage limits up to the 
maximum limits allowed by Chapter 13 of the Code of Ordinances. These 
standards would provide adequate capacity for redevelopment of the 
existing Town Centers and transfers of development from sensitive and/or 
outlying areas. 
 

5.    Identify an integrated community strategy for coverage reduction and 
enhanced stormwater management. 

 
Part 8, Implementation Plan, of the PCTBAP includes specific projects 
necessary to implement an integrated strategy for coverage reduction and 
stormwater management. In addition, the PCTBAP includes special planning 
areas with specific requirements for SEZ restoration and coverage reduction 
(See PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Sections 2.09.B.1, 3, and 5). 

 
6.  Demonstrate that all development activity within Town Centers and the 

Regional Center will provide for or not interfere with Threshold gain, 
including but not limited to measurable improvements in water quality. 

 
The PCTBAP was reviewed in an EIR/EIS, which identified beneficial effects on 
threshold standards including water quality. The EIR/EIS identified no 
impacts that would interfere with attainment of threshold standards. See 
also the Chapter 4 findings included above. 

   

   

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
92



 
 

 

 
TA

BL
E 

E-
1:

 P
LA

CE
R 

CO
U

N
TY

 T
AH

O
E 

BA
SI

N
 A

RE
A 

PL
AN

  
TA

BL
E 

O
F 

SI
GN

IF
IC

AN
T 

IM
PA

CT
S,

 M
IT

IG
AT

IO
N

 M
EA

SU
RE

S,
 A

N
D 

CO
M

PA
CT

 A
N

D 
CO

DE
 FI

N
DI

N
G

S 
 Si

gn
ifi

ca
nt

 A
dv

er
se

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l I
m

pa
ct

 (L
ev

el
 o

f 
Si

gn
ifi

ca
nc

e 
Be

fo
re

 M
iti

ga
tio

n)
 

Ad
op

te
d 

M
iti

ga
tio

n 
M

ea
su

re
(s

) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

Sc
en

ic
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 
 

 
 

Im
pa

ct 
9-1

: E
ffe

cts
 on

 sc
en

ic 
or

 vi
su

al 
qu

ali
ty.

  
(LT

S/
PS

) T
he

 pr
op

os
ed

 Ar
ea

 Pl
an

 w
ou

ld 
inc

lud
e p

oli
cie

s, 
de

ve
lop

me
nt

 st
an

da
rd

s, 
an

d o
th

er
 pr

ov
isio

ns
 th

at 
co

uld
 re

su
lt i

n 
ch

an
ge

s t
o t

he
 lo

ca
tio

n, 
int

en
sit

y, 
an

d f
or

m 
of 

th
e b

uil
t 

en
vir

on
me

nt
 w

ith
in 

th
e P

lan
 ar

ea
. T

he
 pr

ov
isio

ns
 of

 th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
, 

inc
lud

ing
 th

os
e r

ela
ted

 to
 to

wn
 ce

nt
er

 bo
un

da
rie

s, 
bu

ild
ing

 he
igh

t, 
de

ns
ity

 an
d c

ov
er

ag
e, 

se
co

nd
ary

 re
sid

en
tia

l u
nit

s, 
an

d l
im

ite
d 

co
nv

ers
ion

s o
f C

FA
 to

 TA
Us

 w
ou

ld 
no

t h
av

e s
ub

sta
nt

ial
 ef

fec
ts 

on
 

th
e m

as
s a

nd
 lo

ca
tio

n o
f d

ev
elo

pm
en

t a
llo

we
d w

ith
in 

th
e P

lan
 

are
a. 

In 
ad

dit
ion

, a
ny

 pr
oje

ct 
pr

op
os

ed
 un

de
r t

he
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 w

ou
ld 

be
 re

qu
ire

d t
o c

om
ply

 w
ith

 a 
se

rie
s o

f e
xis

tin
g r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
an

d 
pr

op
os

ed
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 st

an
da

rd
s t

ha
t w

ou
ld 

mi
nim

ize
 ad

ve
rse

 ef
fec

ts 
on

 th
e e

xis
tin

g v
isu

al 
ch

ara
cte

r o
r q

ua
lity

 of
 th

e P
lan

 ar
ea

, th
e 

TR
PA

 sc
en

ic 
th

res
ho

ld 
rat

ing
s, 

sce
nic

 vi
sta

s, 
sce

nic
 re

so
ur

ce
s, 

or
 

vie
ws

 of
 La

ke
 Ta

ho
e. 

Ho
we

ve
r, t

he
 pr

ov
isio

n i
n t

he
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 th

at 
wo

uld
 al

low
 no

n-c
on

tig
uo

us
 pr

oje
ct 

are
as

 co
uld

 al
low

, in
 so

me
 

are
as

, a
dd

itio
na

l v
isu

al 
ma

ss 
to

 be
 pl

ac
ed

 be
tw

ee
n m

ajo
r t

rav
el 

ro
ut

es
 an

d L
ak

e T
ah

oe
, w

hic
h c

ou
ld 

blo
ck

 or
 de

gra
de

 vi
ew

s o
f L

ak
e 

Ta
ho

e o
r v

iew
s t

ow
ard

 th
e s

ho
re

 fr
om

 La
ke

 Ta
ho

e. 
Th

er
efo

re
, th

e 
Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 w

ou
ld 

ha
ve

 a 
po

ten
tia

lly
 si

gn
ific

an
t im

pa
ct 

on
 sc

en
ic 

M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 9-
1: 

Lim
it v

isi
ble

 m
as

s n
ea

r L
ak

e T
ah

oe
 w

ith
in 

no
n-

co
nt

igu
ou

s p
ro

jec
t a

re
as

 
Pr

ior
 to

 ap
pr

ov
ing

 a 
pr

oje
ct 

th
at 

wo
uld

 us
e a

 no
n-c

on
tig

uo
us

 pr
oje

ct 
are

a, 
th

e c
ou

nt
y a

nd
 TR

PA
 sh

all
 re

vis
e t

he
 im

ple
me

nt
ing

 or
din

an
ce

 
to

 pr
ev

en
t a

 pr
oje

ct 
fro

m 
inc

re
as

ing
 vi

sib
le 

ma
ss 

be
tw

ee
n S

R 2
8 o

r 
SR

 89
 an

d L
ak

e T
ah

oe
 be

yo
nd

 w
ha

t w
ou

ld 
be

 po
ssi

ble
 w

ith
ou

t t
he

 
us

e o
f a

 no
n-c

on
tig

uo
us

 pr
oje

ct 
are

a. 
Th

e r
ev

isio
n t

o t
he

 
im

ple
me

nt
ing

 or
din

an
ce

 sh
all

 pr
oh

ibi
t a

 pr
oje

ct 
th

at 
us

es
 a 

no
n-

co
nt

igu
ou

s p
ro

jec
t a

rea
 fr

om
 lo

ca
tin

g l
an

d c
ov

er
ag

e o
r d

en
sit

y o
n 

th
e l

ak
e s

ide
 of

 SR
 28

 or
 SR

 89
 th

at 
wo

uld
 ot

he
rw

ise
 be

 al
low

ed
 on

 
th

e m
ou

nt
ain

 sid
e o

f S
R 2

8 o
r S

R 8
9. 

Th
is m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

re 
co

uld
 

be
 im

ple
me

nt
ed

 by
 re

vis
ing

 Se
cti

on
 2.

09
.A.

3 o
f th

e A
rea

 Pl
an

 
im

ple
me

nt
ing

 or
din

an
ce

s t
o i

nc
lud

e a
 ve

rsi
on

 of
 th

e f
oll

ow
ing

 te
xt:

 
Pr

oje
cts

 us
ing

 a 
no

n-c
on

tig
uo

us
 pr

oje
ct 

are
a s

ha
ll n

ot
 in

cre
as

e t
he

 
de

ns
ity

 or
 la

nd
 co

ve
rag

e i
n a

ny
 po

rti
on

s o
f th

e p
ro

jec
t a

rea
 th

at 
are

 
be

tw
ee

n S
R 2

8 o
r S

R 8
9 a

nd
 La

ke
 Ta

ho
e, 

be
yo

nd
 th

e l
im

its
 th

at 
wo

uld
 ap

ply
 to

 th
os

e p
or

tio
ns

 of
 th

e p
ro

jec
t a

re
a w

ith
ou

t t
he

 us
e o

f 
a n

on
-co

nt
igu

ou
s p

ro
jec

t a
rea

. A
ll n

on
-co

nt
igu

ou
s p

ro
jec

t a
rea

s s
ha

ll 
co

mp
ly 

wi
th

 th
e s

etb
ac

ks
 w

ith
in 

to
wn

 ce
nt

ers
.  

 

LT
S   

Fin
din

g: 
 Ch

an
ge

s o
r a

lte
rat

ion
s h

av
e b

ee
n 

re
qu

ire
d i

n o
r in

co
rp

or
ate

d i
nt

o s
uc

h 
pr

oje
ct 

wh
ich

 av
oid

 or
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

sig
nif

ica
nt

 ad
ve

rse
 en

vir
on

me
nt

al 
eff

ec
ts 

to
 

a l
es

s t
ha

n s
ign

ific
an

t le
ve

l. 
 Ra

tio
na

le:
 Th

e p
ro

vis
ion

 in
 th

e A
rea

 Pl
an

 
th

at 
wo

uld
 al

low
 no

n-c
on

tig
uo

us
 pr

oje
ct 

are
as

 co
uld

 al
low

, in
 so

me
 ar

ea
s, 

ad
dit

ion
al 

vis
ua

l m
as

s t
o b

e p
lac

ed
 be

tw
ee

n m
ajo

r 
tra

ve
l ro

ut
es

 an
d L

ak
e T

ah
oe

, w
hic

h c
ou

ld 
blo

ck
 or

 de
gra

de
 vi

ew
s o

f L
ak

e T
ah

oe
 or

 
vie

ws
 to

wa
rd

 th
e s

ho
re 

fro
m 

La
ke

 Ta
ho

e. 
M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

re
 9-

1 w
ill 

re
qu

ire
 th

at 
pr

oje
cts

 us
ing

 a 
no

n-c
on

tig
uo

us
 pr

oje
ct 

are
a n

ot
 in

cre
as

e t
he

 de
ns

ity
 or

 la
nd

 
co

ve
rag

e i
n a

ny
 po

rti
on

s o
f t

he
 pr

oje
ct 

are
a 

th
at 

are
 be

tw
ee

n S
R 2

8 o
r S

R 8
9 a

nd
 La

ke
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
93



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

an
d v

isu
al 

qu
ali

ty.
 Im

ple
me

nt
ati

on
 of

 M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re 

9-1
 

wo
uld

 re
du

ce
 po

ten
tia

lly
 sig

nif
ica

nt
 im

pa
cts

 to
 a 

les
s-t

ha
n-

sig
nif

ica
nt

 le
ve

l b
ec

au
se

 it 
wo

uld
 pr

ev
en

t a
 no

n-c
on

tig
uo

us
 pr

oje
ct 

are
a f

ro
m 

res
ult

ing
 in

 an
 in

cre
as

e i
n v

isu
al 

ma
ss 

th
at 

co
uld

 bl
oc

k o
r 

de
gra

de
 vi

ew
s o

f L
ak

e T
ah

oe
 fr

om
 sc

en
ic 

tra
ve

l ro
ut

es
 or

 vi
ew

s o
f 

th
e s

ho
re

 fr
om

 La
ke

 Ta
ho

e. 
 

 

 
 

Ta
ho

e, 
be

yo
nd

 th
e l

im
its

 th
at 

wo
uld

 ap
ply

 
to

 th
os

e p
or

tio
ns

 of
 th

e p
ro

jec
t a

rea
 

wi
th

ou
t t

he
 us

e o
f a

 no
n-c

on
tig

uo
us

 
pr

oje
ct 

are
a, 

an
d t

o c
om

ply
 w

ith
 th

e 
se

tb
ac

ks
 w

ith
in 

to
wn

 ce
nt

ers
. 

Th
is m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

re
 w

ill 
red

uc
e 

po
ten

tia
l im

pa
cts

 to
 a 

les
s-t

ha
n-s

ign
ific

an
t 

lev
el.

 
 (D

raf
t E

IR/
EIS

, p
p. 

9-1
5 t

o 9
-37

; F
ina

l 
EIR

/E
IS,

 p.
 2-

5, 
se

e a
lso

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 

co
mm

en
t 1

3-7
.) 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
Ci

rc
ul

at
io

n 
 

 
 

 

Im
pa

ct 
10

-1:
 Ro

ad
wa

y l
ev

el 
of

 se
rvi

ce
.  

(S)
 U

nd
er

 th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
, fu

tu
re

 de
ve

lop
me

nt
 an

d r
ed

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
wo

uld
 oc

cu
r in

 th
e P

lan
 ar

ea
 th

at 
wo

uld
 ca

us
e t

he
 le

ve
l o

f s
erv

ice
 

(LO
S) 

on
 SR

 28
 be

tw
ee

n t
he

 Ta
ho

e C
ity

 W
ye

 an
d G

ro
ve

 St
re

et 
to

 
co

nt
inu

e t
o o

pe
rat

e a
t a

n u
na

cc
ep

tab
le 

lev
el.

 Th
is i

mp
ac

t w
ou

ld 
be

 
sig

nif
ica

nt
. Im

ple
me

nt
ati

on
 of

 M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-1a

, 1
0-1

b, 
an

d 1
0-1

c w
ou

ld 
red

uc
e L

OS
 ef

fec
ts 

of 
th

e p
ro

jec
t b

y p
ro

vid
ing

 a 
pe

de
str

ian
 hy

br
id 

be
ac

on
 cr

os
sin

g a
t t

he
 SR

 28
 an

d G
ro

ve
 St

re
et 

int
ers

ec
tio

n, 
wh

ich
 w

ou
ld 

re
du

ce
 th

e i
nfl

ue
nc

e o
f p

ed
es

tri
an

 
cro

ssi
ng

s o
n L

OS
; b

y e
sta

bli
sh

ing
 a 

Co
un

ty 
Se

rvi
ce

 Ar
ea

 Zo
ne

 of
 

Be
ne

fit
 to

 fu
nd

 ex
pa

ns
ion

 of
 tr

an
sit

 ca
pa

cit
y, 

wh
ich

 w
ou

ld 
re

du
ce

 
tra

ffic
 vo

lum
es

; a
nd

 by
 ha

vin
g d

ev
elo

pm
en

t p
ro

jec
ts 

pa
y T

ah
oe

 
are

a t
raf

fic
 m

itig
ati

on
 fe

es
 to

 Pl
ac

er
 Co

un
ty 

to
 fu

nd
 id

en
tifi

ed
 

M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-1a

: C
on

str
uc

t p
ed

es
tri

an
 cr

os
sin

g 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts 
at

 th
e G

ro
ve

 St
re

et
/S

R 2
8 i

nt
er

se
cti

on
 

As
 de

scr
ibe

d a
bo

ve
, p

ed
es

tri
an

 cr
os

sin
gs

, p
art

icu
lar

ly 
ne

ar 
th

e S
R 

28
/G

ro
ve

 St
re

et 
int

ers
ec

tio
n c

on
tri

bu
te 

to
 ve

hic
ula

r c
on

ge
sti

on
 an

d 
th

e e
xis

tin
g u

na
cc

ep
tab

le 
LO

S c
on

dit
ion

s a
t t

he
 SR

 28
/G

ro
ve

 St
re

et 
int

ers
ec

tio
n. 

To
 re

du
ce

 tr
aff

ic 
de

lay
s o

n S
R 2

8 t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e T

ah
oe

 
Cit

y T
ow

n C
en

ter
 du

rin
g p

ea
k s

um
me

r p
eri

od
s, 

Pla
ce

r C
ou

nt
y s

ha
ll 

co
ns

tru
ct 

a p
ed

es
tri

an
 ac

tiv
ate

d h
yb

rid
 be

ac
on

 cr
os

sin
g a

t t
he

 G
ro

ve
 

Str
ee

t a
nd

 SR
 28

 in
ter

se
cti

on
 in

 Ta
ho

e C
ity

 w
ith

in 
th

ree
 ye

ars
 of

 
ad

op
tio

n o
f t

he
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
. T

he
 Ta

ho
e C

ity
 M

ob
ilit

y P
lan

 an
d t

he
 

Pr
op

os
ed

 Ar
ea

 Pl
an

 al
rea

dy
 id

en
tify

 th
is p

ed
es

tri
an

 cr
os

sin
g a

s a
 

ne
ed

ed
 im

pr
ov

em
en

t. A
rti

cle
 15

.28
.01

0 o
f t

he
 Pl

ac
er

 Co
un

ty 
Co

de
 

es
tab

lish
es

 a 
ro

ad
 ne

tw
or

k C
ap

ita
l Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

gra
m.

 Th
e 

SU
    

Fin
din

g: 
 Sp

ec
ific

 co
ns

ide
rat

ion
s, 

su
ch

 as
 

ec
on

om
ic,

 so
cia

l, o
r t

ec
hn

ica
l, m

ak
e 

inf
ea

sib
le 

th
e m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

re
 or

 pr
oje

ct 
alt

er
na

tiv
es

 di
scu

sse
d i

n t
he

 en
vir

on
me

nt
al 

im
pa

ct 
re

po
rt 

(EI
R)

/e
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

 im
pa

ct 
sta

tem
en

t (E
IS)

 on
 th

e p
ro

jec
t. 

 Ra
tio

na
le:

  U
nd

er
 th

e A
rea

 Pl
an

, fu
tu

re 
de

ve
lop

me
nt

 an
d r

ed
ev

elo
pm

en
t w

ou
ld 

oc
cu

r in
 th

e P
lan

 ar
ea

 th
at 

wo
uld

 ca
us

e t
he

 
lev

el 
of 

se
rvi

ce
 (L

OS
) o

n S
R 2

8 b
etw

ee
n t

he
 

Ta
ho

e C
ity

 W
ye

 an
d G

ro
ve

 St
re

et 
to

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
94



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

re
gio

na
l C

ap
ita

l Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
jec

ts.
 W

hil
e M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

res
 

10
-1a

, 1
0-1

b, 
an

d 1
0-1

c w
ou

ld 
re

du
ce

 LO
S d

ete
rio

rat
ion

, th
e 

ro
ad

wa
y L

OS
 af

ter
 im

ple
me

nt
ati

on
 of

 th
e m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

res
 

wo
uld

 re
ma

in 
un

ac
ce

pt
ab

le 
an

d n
o a

dd
itio

na
l m

itig
ati

on
 is 

fea
sib

le.
 In

 re
co

gn
itio

n o
f t

he
 LO

S c
on

dit
ion

s in
 th

e T
ah

oe
 Ci

ty 
To

wn
 Ce

nt
er

, th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
 w

ou
ld 

rev
ise

 th
e L

OS
 st

an
da

rd
s t

o 
all

ow
 LO

S F
 du

rin
g p

ea
k p

eri
od

s in
 to

wn
 ce

nt
ers

 (A
rea

 Pl
an

 Po
lic

y 
T-P

-6)
. T

he
 fu

tu
re

 LO
S c

on
dit

ion
s w

ou
ld 

no
t e

xc
ee

d t
he

 pr
op

os
ed

 
LO

S s
tan

da
rd

 fo
r t

he
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
. H

ow
ev

er,
 be

ca
us

e t
he

 Ar
ea

 Pl
an

 
wo

uld
 re

su
lt i

n L
OS

 th
at 

ex
ce

ed
s e

xis
tin

g T
RP

A s
tan

da
rd

s a
nd

 no
 

ad
dit

ion
al 

mi
tig

ati
on

 is 
fea

sib
le,

 th
is i

mp
ac

t is
 co

ns
ide

re
d 

sig
nif

ica
nt

 an
d u

na
vo

ida
ble

. 
 

pa
ym

en
t o

f tr
aff

ic 
im

pa
ct 

fee
s f

un
ds

 th
e C

ap
ita

l Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

Pr
og

ram
 fo

r a
rea

 ro
ad

wa
y i

mp
ro

ve
me

nts
, s

uc
h a

s t
he

 hy
br

id 
be

ac
on

 
pe

de
str

ian
 cr

os
sin

g. 
Th

e i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 of
 th

e h
yb

rid
 be

ac
on

 
pe

de
str

ian
 cr

os
sin

g w
ou

ld 
co

ns
oli

da
te 

pe
de

str
ian

 cr
os

sin
gs

, w
hic

h 
wo

uld
 re

du
ce

 th
e i

mp
ac

ts 
of 

pe
de

str
ian

 cr
os

sin
gs

 on
 LO

S a
t t

he
 

Gr
ov

e S
tre

et/
SR

 28
 in

ter
se

cti
on

.  
M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

re
 10

-1b
: E

sta
bli

sh
 a 

Co
un

ty 
Se

rvi
ce

 Ar
ea

 Zo
ne

 of
 

Be
ne

fit
 to

 fu
nd

 ex
pa

ns
ion

 of
 tr

an
sit

 ca
pa

cit
y 

Th
e k

ey
 co

ns
tra

int
 to

 ex
pa

nd
ing

 tr
an

sit
 ca

pa
cit

y i
s t

he
 av

ail
ab

ilit
y o

f 
on

go
ing

 tr
an

sit
 op

era
tin

g s
ub

sid
y f

un
din

g, 
as

 di
scu

sse
d i

n t
he

 
rec

en
tly

 co
mp

let
ed

 Sy
ste

m 
Pla

n U
pd

ate
 fo

r t
he

 Ta
ho

e T
ru

ck
ee

 Ar
ea

 
Re

gio
na

l T
ran

sit
 in

 Ea
ste

rn
 Pl

ac
er

 Co
un

ty 
(LS

C, 
20

16
). W

hil
e t

he
 

pr
op

os
ed

 Ar
ea

 Pl
an

 in
clu

de
s P

oli
cy

 T-
P-2

2 (
“S

ec
ur

e a
de

qu
ate

 
fun

din
g f

or
 tr

an
sit

 se
rvi

ce
s s

o t
ha

t t
ran

sit
 is 

a v
iab

le 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n 
alt

er
na

tiv
e”

), t
his

 do
es

 no
t id

en
tify

 a 
sp

ec
ific

 m
ec

ha
nis

m 
to

 as
su

re
 

ex
pa

ns
ion

 of
 tr

an
sit

 se
rvi

ce
s t

o a
dd

res
s in

cre
as

ed
 pe

ak
 de

ma
nd

. T
o 

pr
ov

ide
 an

 on
go

ing
 so

ur
ce

 of
 op

era
tin

g f
un

din
g a

s w
ell

 as
 tr

an
sit

 bu
s 

se
ati

ng
 ca

pa
cit

y, 
Pla

ce
r C

ou
nt

y s
ha

ll e
sta

bli
sh

 on
e o

r m
or

e C
ou

nt
y 

Se
rvi

ce
 Ar

ea
 Zo

ne
s o

f B
en

efi
t e

nc
om

pa
ssi

ng
 th

e d
ev

elo
pa

ble
 

po
rti

on
s o

f t
he

 Pl
an

 ar
ea

. O
ng

oin
g a

nn
ua

l fe
es

 w
ou

ld 
be

 id
en

tifi
ed

 
to

 fu
nd

 ex
pa

ns
ion

 of
 tr

an
sit

 ca
pa

cit
y a

s n
ec

es
sa

ry 
to

 ex
pa

nd
 se

ati
ng

 
ca

pa
cit

y t
o a

cc
om

mo
da

te 
typ

ica
l p

ea
k-p

er
iod

 pa
sse

ng
er

 lo
ad

s 
du

rin
g b

ot
h s

um
me

r a
nd

 w
int

er
 pe

ak
 pe

rio
ds

. A
t a

 m
ini

mu
m,

 th
is 

wo
uld

 co
ns

ist
 of

 fo
ur

 ad
dit

ion
al 

ve
hic

le-
ho

ur
s o

f t
ran

sit
 se

rvi
ce

 pe
r 

da
y t

hr
ou

gh
ou

t t
he

 w
int

er
 se

as
on

 on
 ea

ch
 of

 th
e f

oll
ow

ing
 th

re
e 

ro
ut

es
: N

or
th

 Sh
or

e (
No

rth
 St

ate
lin

e t
o T

ah
oe

 Ci
ty)

, S
R 8

9 (
Ta

ho
e 

Cit
y t

o S
qu

aw
 Va

lle
y),

 an
d S

R 2
67

 (N
or

th
 St

ate
lin

e t
o N

or
th

sta
r),

 as
 

we
ll a

s t
he

 ex
pa

ns
ion

 of
 tr

an
sit

 fle
et 

ne
ce

ssa
ry 

to
 op

era
te 

th
is 

co
nt

inu
e t

o o
pe

rat
e a

t a
n u

na
cc

ep
tab

le 
lev

el.
 Th

e p
ro

jec
t h

as
 in

co
rp

or
ate

d 
M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

res
 10

-1a
, 1

0-1
b, 

10
-1c

, 
10

-1d
, 1

0-1
e, 

10
-1f

. 1
0-1

g, 
an

d 1
0-1

h, 
wh

ich
 w

ill 
les

se
n t

his
 im

pa
ct.

 Sp
ec

ific
all

y, 
th

e p
ro

jec
t s

ha
ll p

ro
vid

e a
 pe

de
str

ian
 

hy
br

id 
be

ac
on

 cr
os

sin
g a

t t
he

 SR
 28

 an
d 

Gr
ov

e S
tre

et 
int

ers
ec

tio
n, 

wh
ich

 w
ou

ld 
re

du
ce

 th
e i

nfl
ue

nc
e o

f p
ed

es
tri

an
 

cro
ssi

ng
s o

n L
OS

; e
sta

bli
sh

 a 
Co

un
ty 

Se
rvi

ce
 

Ar
ea

 Zo
ne

 of
 Be

ne
fit

 to
 fu

nd
 ex

pa
ns

ion
 of

 
tra

ns
it c

ap
ac

ity
, w

hic
h w

ou
ld 

re
du

ce
 tr

aff
ic 

vo
lum

es
; b

y h
av

ing
 de

ve
lop

me
nt

 pr
oje

cts
 

pa
y T

ah
oe

 ar
ea

 tr
aff

ic 
mi

tig
ati

on
 fe

es
 to

 
Pla

ce
r C

ou
nt

y t
o f

un
d i

de
nt

ifie
d r

eg
ion

al 
Ca

pit
al 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
jec

ts;
 ex

pa
nd

 
re

qu
ire

me
nt

s f
or

 tr
an

sp
or

tat
ion

 de
ma

nd
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt
 pl

an
s f

or
 a 

gre
ate

r n
um

be
r o

f 
pr

oje
cts

 th
at 

ge
ne

rat
e e

mp
loy

ee
s; 

es
tab

lish
 

a c
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e w
ay

fin
din

g p
ro

gra
m 

for
 

pa
rki

ng
 an

d m
ult

i-m
od

al 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n; 
co

nd
uc

t lo
ng

-te
rm

 m
on

ito
rin

g a
nd

 ad
ap

tiv
e 

ma
na

ge
me

nt
 an

d m
ob

ilit
y s

tra
teg

ies
; 

pr
ov

ide
 a 

fou
r-y

ea
r r

ev
iew

 of
 ve

hic
le 

tri
ps

 
an

d m
ob

ilit
y s

tra
teg

ies
; a

nd
 im

ple
me

nt
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
95



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

ad
dit

ion
al 

se
rvi

ce
. In

 ad
dit

ion
, o

ng
oin

g a
nn

ua
l fe

es
 w

ou
ld 

be
 

su
ffic

ien
t t

o, 
at 

a m
ini

mu
m,

 pr
ov

ide
 16

 ad
dit

ion
al 

ve
hic

le-
ho

ur
s o

f 
tra

ns
it s

erv
ice

 pe
r d

ay
 th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e s

um
me

r s
ea

so
n, 

as
 w

ell
 as

 th
e 

ex
pa

ns
ion

 of
 tr

an
sit

 fle
et 

ne
ce

ssa
ry 

to
 op

er
ate

 th
is a

dd
itio

na
l 

se
rvi

ce
. T

he
 ad

dit
ion

al 
16

 ve
hic

le-
ho

ur
s o

f t
ran

sit
 se

rvi
ce

 du
rin

g t
he

 
su

mm
er

 se
as

on
 w

ou
ld 

be
 pr

ov
ide

d o
n t

ho
se

 ro
ut

es
 th

at 
ha

ve
 th

e 
hig

he
st 

rid
ers

hip
 le

ve
ls a

nd
 lo

we
st 

LO
S. 

Cu
rre

nt
ly,

 SR
 28

 th
ro

ug
h 

Ta
ho

e C
ity

 ha
s t

he
 hi

gh
es

t r
ide

rsh
ip 

lev
els

 an
d l

ow
es

t L
OS

. H
ow

ev
er

, 
th

e c
ou

nt
y w

ill 
de

ter
mi

ne
 th

e s
pe

cif
ic 

ro
ut

es
 w

he
re

 ad
dit

ion
al 

tra
ns

it s
erv

ice
 w

ill 
be

 pr
ov

ide
d e

ac
h y

ea
r b

as
es

 on
 ob

se
rve

d c
ha

ng
es

 
in 

rid
ers

hip
 an

d L
OS

.  
Th

e n
ew

 Zo
ne

 of
 Be

ne
fit

 un
de

r t
he

 Co
un

ty 
Se

rvi
ce

 Ar
ea

 w
ou

ld 
be

 
es

tab
lish

ed
 th

ro
ug

h a
cti

on
 by

 th
e B

oa
rd

 of
 Su

pe
rvi

so
rs 

to
 fu

nd
 

inc
rea

se
d p

ub
lic

 se
rvi

ce
s w

ith
in 

th
e P

lan
 ar

ea
. T

his
 is 

a v
er

y c
om

mo
n 

me
an

s o
f fu

nd
ing

 th
e c

os
ts 

for
 ex

pa
nd

ed
 pu

bli
c s

erv
ice

s g
en

era
ted

 
by

 de
ve

lop
me

nt
 in

 Ca
lifo

rn
ia,

 th
ou

gh
 Zo

ne
s o

f B
en

efi
t fu

nd
ing

 
tra

ns
it p

ro
gra

ms
 ar

e r
ela

tiv
ely

 un
co

mm
on

. In
 th

is c
as

e, 
th

e s
erv

ice
s 

to
 be

 fu
nd

ed
 w

ou
ld 

be
 ex

pa
nd

ed
 w

int
er 

an
d s

um
me

r T
AR

T t
ran

sit
 

se
rvi

ce
s, 

an
d c

ou
ld 

als
o i

nc
lud

e c
ap

ita
l e

xp
en

se
s (

su
ch

 as
 ad

dit
ion

al 
bu

se
s).

 An
 En

gin
ee

rs 
Re

po
rt 

is r
eq

uir
ed

 un
de

r s
tat

e l
aw

 to
 id

en
tify

 
th

e c
os

ts 
to

 be
 fu

nd
ed

 an
d t

he
 fe

e. 
Lik

e t
raf

fic
 fe

e p
ro

gra
ms

, fe
es

 ar
e 

se
t o

n a
 “d

we
llin

g u
nit

 eq
uiv

ale
nt

” (
DU

E) 
ba

sis
 fo

r v
ari

ou
s la

nd
 us

e 
typ

es
, d

ep
en

din
g o

n t
he

 re
lat

ive
 tr

an
sit

 rid
ers

hip
 ge

ne
rat

ed
 by

 ea
ch

 
typ

e o
f la

nd
 us

e. 
Th

e t
ot

al 
po

ten
tia

l n
um

be
r o

f fu
tu

re 
de

ve
lop

me
nt

 
DU

Es
 in

 th
e P

lan
 ar

ea
 w

ou
ld 

be
 id

en
tifi

ed
. T

he
 an

nu
al 

fee
 fo

r e
ac

h 
DU

E w
ou

ld 
be

 ca
lcu

lat
ed

 by
 di

vid
ing

 th
e a

nn
ua

l c
os

ts 
of 

th
e 

TR
PA

’s C
on

ge
sti

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
ro

ce
ss.

 
Th

e r
oa

dw
ay

 LO
S a

fte
r im

ple
me

nt
ati

on
 of

 
th

e m
itig

ati
on

 m
ea

su
res

 w
ou

ld 
re

ma
in 

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le.

 Th
e G

ov
ern

ing
 Bo

ard
 fin

ds
 

th
at 

leg
al,

 ec
on

om
ic,

 so
cia

l, a
nd

 te
ch

nic
al 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
s m

ak
e f

ur
th

er 
mi

tig
ati

on
 of

 
th

is i
mp

ac
t in

fea
sib

le.
 Th

er
efo

re,
 th

is 
im

pa
ct 

is c
on

sid
er

ed
 sig

nif
ica

nt
 an

d 
un

av
oid

ab
le.

  
 Th

e G
ov

er
nin

g B
oa

rd
 fu

rth
er

 fin
ds

 th
at 

sp
ec

ific
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

s m
ak

e i
nfe

as
ibl

e, 
an

y 
rea

so
na

ble
 al

ter
na

tiv
es

 th
at 

wo
uld

 bo
th

 
me

et 
th

e o
bje

cti
ve

s o
f t

he
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 an

d 
re

du
ce

 th
e s

ign
ific

an
t a

nd
 un

av
oid

ab
le 

im
pa

ct 
on

 th
e L

OS
 on

 SR
 28

 be
tw

ee
n t

he
 

Ta
ho

e C
ity

 W
ye

 an
d G

ro
ve

 St
re

et.
 To

 m
ee

t 
TR

PA
 re

qu
ire

me
nt

s f
or

 th
e c

on
sid

er
ati

on
 of

 
alt

er
na

tiv
es

, th
e D

raf
t E

IR/
EIS

 ev
alu

ate
d t

he
 

po
ten

tia
l im

pa
cts

 of
 fo

ur
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 

alt
er

na
tiv

es
, in

clu
din

g t
he

 no
 pr

oje
ct 

alt
er

na
tiv

e (
Alt

ern
ati

ve
 4)

. N
o f

ea
sib

le 
alt

er
na

tiv
es

, in
 ad

dit
ion

al 
to

 th
os

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 in

 th
e D

raf
t E

IR/
EIS

, h
av

e b
ee

n 
ide

nt
ifie

d t
ha

t w
ou

ld 
att

ain
 th

e o
bje

cti
ve

s 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
96



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

ad
dit

ion
al 

tra
ns

it s
er

vic
e b

y t
he

 to
tal

 DU
Es

. T
he

 fe
e w

ou
ld 

th
en

 be
 

ap
pli

ed
 to

 al
l fu

tu
re

 de
ve

lop
me

nt
 th

at 
inc

re
as

es
 rid

ers
hip

 
(re

sid
en

tia
l, c

om
me

rci
al,

 lo
dg

ing
, e

tc.
). T

he
 fe

e w
ou

ld 
be

 an
 an

nu
al 

on
go

ing
 fe

e t
ha

t is
 co

lle
cte

d a
s p

art
 of

 pr
op

er
ty 

tax
 bi

llin
g. 

As
 fu

nd
s 

are
 re

ce
ive

d, 
th

ey
 w

ou
ld 

be
 ke

pt
 in

 a 
se

pa
rat

e a
cc

ou
nt

, w
hic

h c
an

 
on

ly 
be

 us
ed

 fo
r t

he
 sp

ec
ifie

d p
ur

po
se

s. F
ee

 le
ve

ls w
ou

ld 
be

 in
de

xe
d 

to
 th

e r
eg

ion
al 

rat
e o

f in
fla

tio
n, 

inc
rea

sin
g a

s c
os

ts 
inc

re
as

e a
nd

 
th

es
e f

ee
s w

ou
ld 

be
 co

lle
cte

d i
nd

efi
nit

ely
. 

Th
e a

ctu
al 

am
ou

nt
 of

 fu
nd

ing
 ge

ne
rat

ed
 by

 th
e Z

on
e o

f B
en

efi
t w

ill 
de

pe
nd

 on
 th

e a
ctu

al 
lev

el 
of 

de
ve

lop
me

nt
 th

at 
oc

cu
rs.

 In
itia

lly
, 

wh
en

 lit
tle

 de
ve

lop
me

nt
 an

d l
itt

le 
inc

rea
se

d d
em

an
d f

or
 tr

an
sit

 ha
s 

oc
cu

rre
d, 

fun
ds

 m
ay

 be
 al

low
ed

 to
 ac

cu
mu

lat
e t

o a
 le

ve
l a

t w
hic

h 
th

ey
 ca

n b
e e

ffe
cti

ve
ly 

us
ed

 fo
r t

he
 in

ten
de

d p
ur

po
se

. A
s e

xp
an

sio
n 

of 
ex

ist
ing

 tr
an

sit
 se

rvi
ce

 is 
rel

ati
ve

ly 
sim

ple
 to

 im
ple

me
nt

 in
 

inc
re

me
nts

, th
e e

xp
an

sio
n o

f tr
an

sit
 se

rvi
ce

s f
un

de
d t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e 
Zo

ne
 of

 Be
ne

fit
 ca

n b
e e

xp
ec

ted
. T

he
 ne

w 
Zo

ne
 of

 Be
ne

fit
 un

de
r t

he
 

Co
un

ty 
Se

rvi
ce

 Ar
ea

 w
ou

ld 
be

 es
tab

lish
ed

 th
ro

ug
h a

cti
on

 by
 th

e 
Bo

ard
 of

 Su
pe

rvi
so

rs 
to

 fu
nd

 in
cre

as
ed

 pu
bli

c s
er

vic
es

 w
ith

in 
th

e 
Pla

n a
rea

. T
his

 is 
a v

er
y c

om
mo

n m
ea

ns
 of

 fu
nd

ing
 th

e c
os

ts 
for

 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 pu

bli
c s

erv
ice

s g
en

era
ted

 by
 de

ve
lop

me
nt

 in
 Ca

lifo
rn

ia,
 

th
ou

gh
 Zo

ne
s o

f B
en

efi
t f

un
din

g t
ran

sit
 pr

og
ram

s a
re 

rel
ati

ve
ly 

un
co

mm
on

. In
 th

is c
as

e, 
th

e s
erv

ice
s t

o b
e f

un
de

d w
ou

ld 
be

 
ex

pa
nd

ed
 w

int
er

 an
d s

um
me

r T
AR

T t
ran

sit
 se

rvi
ce

s, 
an

d c
ou

ld 
als

o 
inc

lud
e c

ap
ita

l e
xp

en
se

s (
su

ch
 as

 ad
dit

ion
al 

bu
se

s).
 An

 En
gin

ee
rs 

Re
po

rt 
is r

eq
uir

ed
 un

de
r s

tat
e l

aw
 to

 id
en

tif
y t

he
 co

sts
 to

 be
 fu

nd
ed

 

of 
th

e A
rea

 Pl
an

 an
d r

ed
uc

e t
he

 sig
nif

ica
nt

 
an

d u
na

vo
ida

ble
 im

pa
ct 

on
 ro

ad
wa

y L
OS

. 
Th

e F
ina

l A
rea

 Pl
an

 an
d m

itig
ati

on
 

me
as

ur
es

 in
 th

e F
ina

l E
IR/

EIS
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

ro
ad

wa
y L

OS
 im

pa
ct 

to
 th

e e
xte

nt
 fe

as
ibl

e. 
Th

us
, th

e G
ov

er
nin

g B
oa

rd
 fin

ds
 th

at 
all

 
rea

so
na

ble
 al

ter
na

tiv
es

 w
er

e r
ev

iew
ed

, 
an

aly
ze

d, 
an

d d
isc

us
se

d i
n t

he
 EI

R/
EIS

 
rev

iew
 pr

oc
es

s. 
 (D

raf
t E

IR/
EIS

, p
p. 

10
-16

 to
 10

-32
; F

ina
l 

EIR
/E

IS,
 pp

. 2
-5 

to
 2-

9; 
se

e a
lso

 M
as

ter
 

Re
sp

on
se

 1,
 an

d r
es

po
ns

e t
o c

om
me

nt
 12

-
37

.) 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
97



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

an
d t

he
 fe

e. 
Lik

e t
raf

fic
 fe

e p
ro

gra
ms

, fe
es

 ar
e s

et 
on

 a 
“d

we
llin

g u
nit

 
eq

uiv
ale

nt
” (

DU
E) 

ba
sis

 fo
r v

ari
ou

s la
nd

 us
e t

yp
es

, d
ep

en
din

g o
n t

he
 

rel
ati

ve
 tr

an
sit

 rid
ers

hip
 ge

ne
rat

ed
 by

 ea
ch

 ty
pe

 of
 la

nd
 us

e. 
Th

e 
to

tal
 po

ten
tia

l n
um

be
r o

f fu
tu

re 
de

ve
lop

me
nt

 DU
Es

 in
 th

e P
lan

 ar
ea

 
wo

uld
 be

 id
en

tifi
ed

. T
he

 an
nu

al 
fee

 fo
r e

ac
h D

UE
 w

ou
ld 

be
 

ca
lcu

lat
ed

 by
 di

vid
ing

 th
e a

nn
ua

l c
os

ts 
of 

th
e a

dd
itio

na
l tr

an
sit

 
se

rvi
ce

 by
 th

e t
ot

al 
DU

Es
. T

he
 fe

e w
ou

ld 
th

en
 be

 ap
pli

ed
 to

 al
l fu

tu
re

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt

 th
at 

inc
rea

se
s r

ide
rsh

ip 
(re

sid
en

tia
l, c

om
me

rci
al,

 
lod

gin
g, 

etc
.). 

Th
e f

ee
 w

ou
ld 

be
 an

 an
nu

al 
on

go
ing

 fe
e t

ha
t is

 
co

lle
cte

d a
s p

art
 of

 pr
op

er
ty 

tax
 bi

llin
g. 

As
 fu

nd
s a

re
 re

ce
ive

d, 
th

ey
 

wo
uld

 be
 ke

pt
 in

 a 
se

pa
rat

e a
cc

ou
nt

, w
hic

h c
an

 on
ly 

be
 us

ed
 fo

r t
he

 
sp

ec
ifie

d p
ur

po
se

s. F
ee

 le
ve

ls w
ou

ld 
be

 in
de

xe
d t

o t
he

 re
gio

na
l ra

te 
of 

inf
lat

ion
, in

cre
as

ing
 as

 co
sts

 in
cre

as
e a

nd
 th

es
e f

ee
s w

ou
ld 

be
 

co
lle

cte
d i

nd
efi

nit
ely

. 
Th

e a
ctu

al 
am

ou
nt

 of
 fu

nd
ing

 ge
ne

rat
ed

 by
 th

e Z
on

e o
f B

en
efi

t w
ill 

de
pe

nd
 on

 th
e a

ctu
al 

lev
el 

of 
de

ve
lop

me
nt

 th
at 

oc
cu

rs.
 In

itia
lly

, 
wh

en
 lit

tle
 de

ve
lop

me
nt

 an
d l

itt
le 

inc
rea

se
d d

em
an

d f
or

 tr
an

sit
 ha

s 
oc

cu
rre

d, 
fun

ds
 m

ay
 be

 al
low

ed
 to

 ac
cu

mu
lat

e t
o a

 le
ve

l a
t w

hic
h 

th
ey

 ca
n b

e e
ffe

cti
ve

ly 
us

ed
 fo

r t
he

 in
ten

de
d p

ur
po

se
. A

s e
xp

an
sio

n 
of 

ex
ist

ing
 tr

an
sit

 se
rvi

ce
 is 

rel
ati

ve
ly 

sim
ple

 to
 im

ple
me

nt
 in

 
inc

re
me

nts
, th

e e
xp

an
sio

n o
f tr

an
sit

 se
rvi

ce
s f

un
de

d t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e 

Zo
ne

 of
 Be

ne
fit

 ca
n b

e e
xp

ec
ted

 to
 oc

cu
r r

ela
tiv

ely
 so

on
 an

d l
on

g 
be

for
e b

uil
do

ut
 of

 th
e P

lan
 ar

ea
. A

 go
od

 ex
am

ple
 of

 Zo
ne

s o
f B

en
efi

t 
fun

din
g t

ran
sit

 ex
pa

ns
ion

 ca
n b

e f
ou

nd
 in

 th
e M

art
is V

all
ey

 ar
ea

. A
s 

a r
es

ult
 of

 th
e M

art
is V

all
ey

 Co
mm

un
ity

 Pl
an

 pr
oc

es
s, 

Zo
ne

s o
f 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
98



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

Be
ne

fit
 ha

ve
 be

en
 es

tab
lish

ed
 by

 th
e P

lac
er 

Co
un

ty 
Bo

ard
 of

 
Su

pe
rvi

so
rs 

for
 al

l su
bs

eq
ue

nt
 de

ve
lop

me
nt

s o
ve

r t
he

 pa
st 

ten
 

ye
ars

, ti
ed

 to
 th

e c
os

t o
f e

xp
an

din
g t

ran
sit

 se
rvi

ce
 an

d f
un

din
g a

n 
ad

dit
ion

al 
bu

s p
ur

ch
as

e. 
Th

es
e g

en
era

te 
ap

pr
ox

im
ate

ly 
$4

0 p
er

 DU
E 

pe
r y

ea
r. I

n i
nit

ial
 ye

ars
, fu

nd
s w

ere
 al

low
ed

 to
 ac

cu
mu

lat
e. 

M
or

e 
rec

en
tly

, a
s a

dd
itio

na
l d

ev
elo

pm
en

t h
as

 oc
cu

rre
d, 

an
nu

al 
fun

din
g 

lev
els

 ha
ve

 ris
en

 an
d t

his
 so

ur
ce

 is 
no

w 
an

 im
po

rta
nt

 el
em

en
t o

f t
he

 
rec

en
t e

xp
an

sio
n o

f T
AR

T’s
 26

7 R
ou

te 
to

 ye
ar

-ro
un

d s
erv

ice
.  

M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-1c

: P
ay

me
nt

 of
 tr

aff
ic 

mi
tig

ati
on

 fe
es

 to
 

Pla
ce

r C
ou

nt
y 

Pr
ior

 to
 iss

ua
nc

e o
f a

ny
 Pl

ac
er

 Co
un

ty 
Bu

ild
ing

 Pe
rm

its
, p

ro
jec

ts 
wi

th
in 

th
e A

re
a P

lan
 sh

all
 be

 su
bje

ct 
to

 th
e p

ay
me

nt
 of

 es
tab

lish
ed

 
Pla

ce
r C

ou
nt

y t
raf

fic
 im

pa
ct 

fee
s t

ha
t a

re
 in

 ef
fec

t in
 th

is a
rea

, 
pu

rsu
an

t t
o a

pp
lic

ab
le 

co
un

ty 
Or

din
an

ce
s a

nd
 Re

so
lut

ion
s. 

Tra
ffic

 
mi

tig
ati

on
 fe

es
 sh

all
 be

 re
qu

ire
d a

nd
 sh

all
 be

 pa
id 

to
 th

e P
lac

er
 

Co
un

ty 
De

pa
rtm

en
t o

f P
ub

lic
 W

or
ks

 an
d F

ac
ilit

ies
 su

bje
ct 

to
 th

e 
Co

un
ty 

W
ide

 Tr
aff

ic 
Lim

ita
tio

n Z
on

e: 
Ar

tic
le 

15
.28

.01
0, 

Pla
ce

r 
Co

un
ty 

Co
de

. T
he

 fe
es

 w
ill 

be
 ca

lcu
lat

ed
 us

ing
 th

e i
nfo

rm
ati

on
 

su
pp

lie
d. 

If t
he

 us
e o

r t
he

 sq
ua

re 
foo

tag
e c

ha
ng

es
, th

en
 th

e f
ee

s w
ill 

ch
an

ge
. T

he
 ac

tu
al 

fee
s p

aid
 w

ill 
be

 th
os

e i
n e

ffe
ct 

at 
th

e t
im

e t
he

 
pa

ym
en

t o
cc

ur
s. 

M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-1d

: E
xp

an
d r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
fo

r 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n d
em

an
d m

an
ag

em
en

t p
lan

s 
To

 re
du

ce
 pe

ak
-pe

rio
d v

eh
icl

e t
rip

s a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e L

OS
, fu

tu
re

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt

 pr
oje

ct 
pr

op
os

als
 w

hic
h w

ill 
em

plo
y b

etw
ee

n 2
0 a

nd
 

10
0 e

mp
loy

ee
s a

nd
/o

r in
clu

de
 to

ur
ist

 ac
co

mm
od

ati
on

 or
 

rec
rea

tio
na

l u
se

s w
ill 

be
 re

qu
ire

d t
o s

ub
mi

t t
o P

lac
er

 Co
un

ty 
a 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
99



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

Tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n D

em
an

d M
an

ag
em

en
t P

lan
 (T

DM
) u

po
n 

De
ve

lop
me

nt
 Re

vie
w.

 Th
e c

ur
re

nt
 th

res
ho

ld 
for

 pr
ep

ara
tio

n o
f a

 
TD

M
 or

 Em
plo

ye
e T

ran
sp

or
tat

ion
 Pl

an
 (T

RP
A C

od
e S

ec
tio

n 6
5.5

.2.
B)

 
an

d c
om

pli
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e P
lac

er
 Co

un
ty 

Tri
p R

ed
uc

tio
n O

rd
ina

nc
e 

(Pl
ac

er
 Co

un
ty 

Co
de

 10
.20

) is
 10

0 o
r m

or
e e

mp
loy

ee
s in

 a 
sin

gle
 

loc
ati

on
 w

hic
h a

pp
lie

s t
o a

 ve
ry 

lim
ite

d n
um

be
r o

f s
ite

s in
 th

e P
lan

 
are

a. 
Th

is e
xis

tin
g r

eq
uir

em
en

t a
lso

 do
es

 no
t a

dd
res

s t
rip

s t
ha

t a
re 

ge
ne

rat
ed

 fr
om

 so
ur

ce
s o

th
er 

th
an

 em
plo

ye
e c

om
mu

tes
, a

nd
 in

 th
e 

Pla
n a

rea
, a

 la
rge

 pr
op

or
tio

n o
f p

ea
k p

eri
od

 tr
ips

 ar
e t

he
 re

su
lt o

f 
to

ur
ist

 or
 vi

sit
or

 tr
ips

 ra
th

er
 th

an
 em

plo
ye

e t
rip

s. 
De

ve
lop

me
nt

 of
 th

e e
xp

an
de

d r
eq

uir
em

en
ts 

for
 tr

an
sp

or
tat

ion
 

de
ma

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
lan

s w
ill 

co
ns

ide
r t

rip
 so

ur
ce

s a
nd

 
ch

ara
cte

ris
tic

s in
 th

e P
lan

 ar
ea

 du
rin

g p
ea

k p
eri

od
s. 

Th
is m

itig
ati

on
 

me
as

ur
e w

ill 
ex

pa
nd

 th
e r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 tr
an

sp
or

tat
ion

 de
ma

nd
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt
 pl

an
s w

ith
 cr

ite
ria

 th
at 

wo
uld

 re
qu

ire
 so

me
 em

plo
ye

rs 
wi

th
 fe

we
r t

ha
n 1

00
 em

plo
ye

es
 to

 pr
ep

are
 su

ch
 pl

an
s a

nd
 

im
ple

me
nt

 th
ro

ug
h p

ro
jec

t m
itig

ati
on

 fo
r L

OS
 im

pa
cts

.  
A m

en
u o

f m
ea

su
res

 th
at 

co
uld

 be
 in

clu
de

d i
n t

ran
sp

or
tat

ion
 

de
ma

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
lan

s is
 pr

ov
ide

d i
n T

RP
A C

od
e s

ec
tio

n 6
5.5

.3 
an

d P
lac

er
 Co

un
ty 

Co
de

 10
.20

. T
he

se
 m

ea
su

res
 in

clu
de

 bu
t a

re
 no

t 
lim

ite
d t

o: 


 
pr

efe
re

nt
ial

 ca
rp

oo
l/v

an
po

ol 
pa

rki
ng

; 


 
sh

ut
tle

 bu
s p

ro
gra

m;
 


 

tra
ns

it p
as

s s
ub

sid
ies

; 


 
pa

id 
pa

rki
ng

; a
nd

 


 
dir

ec
t c

on
tri

bu
tio

ns
 to

 tr
an

sit
 se

rvi
ce

. 
M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

re
 10

-1e
: P

re
pa

re
 an

d i
mp

lem
en

t a
 

co
mp

re
he

ns
ive

 w
ay

fin
din

g p
ro

gra
m 

fo
r p

ark
ing

 an
d m

ult
i-m

od
al 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
100



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n 

W
ith

in 
on

e y
ea

r o
f a

do
pt

ion
 of

 th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
, P

lac
er

 Co
un

ty 
wi

ll 
co

or
din

ate
 w

ith
 pa

rtn
er

 ag
en

cie
s a

nd
 or

ga
niz

ati
on

s a
nd

 en
su

re 
th

e 
pr

ep
ara

tio
n o

f a
 co

mp
reh

en
siv

e w
ay

fin
din

g p
ro

gra
m 

for
 pa

rki
ng

 an
d 

mu
lti-

mo
da

l tr
an

sp
or

tat
ion

. T
he

 pr
og

ram
 w

ill 
ide

nt
ify

 sp
ec

ific
 

im
pr

ov
em

en
ts,

 re
sp

on
sib

le 
pa

rti
es

, a
nd

 a 
tim

eli
ne

 fo
r 

im
ple

me
nt

ati
on

. T
he

 pr
og

ram
 w

ill 
be

 co
ns

ist
en

t w
ith

 Ar
ea

 Pl
an

 
Po

lic
y T

-P-
37

, w
hic

h s
tat

es
 “D

ev
elo

p a
 co

or
din

ate
d w

ay
fin

din
g 

sig
na

ge
 pr

og
ram

 to
 en

ha
nc

e a
wa

re
ne

ss 
of 

alt
er

na
tiv

e t
ran

sp
or

tat
ion

 
mo

de
s in

clu
din

g t
ran

sit
 (T

AR
T),

 pe
de

str
ian

 an
d b

icy
cle

 fa
cil

itie
s. T

he
 

wa
yfi

nd
ing

 pr
og

ram
 sh

ou
ld 

als
o i

nc
lud

e p
ark

ing
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
str

ate
gie

s, s
ee

 Po
lic

y T
-P-

18
. W

ay
fin

din
g s

ign
s s

ho
uld

 be
 co

ns
ist

en
t 

wi
th

in 
all

 ar
ea

s o
f t

he
 Pl

an
 to

 pr
ov

ide
 cl

ea
r r

ec
og

nit
ion

 in
 co

ng
es

ted
 

pe
rio

ds
.” 

Th
e p

ro
gra

m 
wo

uld
 en

co
ur

ag
e a

dd
itio

na
l tr

an
sit

, b
icy

cle
, 

an
d p

ed
es

tri
an

 us
e b

y i
nc

re
as

ing
 tr

av
ele

rs’
 aw

are
ne

ss 
of 

th
e l

oc
ati

on
 

an
d a

va
ila

bil
ity

 of
 th

es
e a

lte
rn

ati
ve

 m
od

es
. W

ay
fin

din
g s

ign
ag

e f
or

 
pa

rki
ng

 fa
cil

itie
s w

ou
ld 

be
 in

co
rp

or
ate

d i
nt

o t
he

 pr
og

ram
 an

d b
e 

co
ns

ist
en

t w
ith

in 
all

 ar
ea

s o
f th

e P
lan

 to
 pr

ov
ide

 cl
ea

r r
ec

og
nit

ion
 in

 
co

ng
es

ted
 pe

rio
ds

. 
M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

re
 10

-1f
: L

on
g-t

er
m 

mo
nit

or
ing

 an
d a

da
pt

ive
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt
 of

 m
ob

ilit
y s

tra
te

gie
s 

Ut
iliz

ing
 m

on
ito

rin
g d

ata
 co

nt
inu

ou
sly

 co
lle

cte
d b

y v
ari

ou
s p

art
ne

r 
ag

en
cie

s, 
Pla

ce
r C

ou
nt

y a
nd

 TR
PA

 w
ill 

pe
rio

dic
all

y a
sse

ss 
th

e 
eff

ec
tiv

en
es

s o
f th

e l
on

g-t
er

m 
im

ple
me

nt
ati

on
 of

 m
ob

ilit
y s

tra
teg

ies
 

wi
th

in 
th

e P
lan

 ar
ea

. 
M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

re
 10

-1g
: F

ou
r-y

ea
r r

ev
iew

 of
 ve

hic
le 

tri
ps

 an
d 

mo
bil

ity
 st

ra
te

gie
s 

Co
nc

ur
re

nt
 w

ith
 TR

PA
’s f

ou
r-y

ea
r A

rea
 Pl

an
 re

ce
rti

fic
ati

on
 pr

oc
es

s, 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
101



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

sh
ou

ld 
ac

tu
al 

ve
hic

le 
tri

ps
 su

rp
as

s t
he

 Ar
ea

 Pl
an

 ve
hic

le 
tri

ps
 

pr
oje

cte
d f

or
 tr

av
el 

int
o a

nd
 w

ith
in 

th
e P

lan
 ar

ea
, a

s s
ho

wn
 in

 
Ch

ap
ter

 19
 of

 th
e D

raf
t E

IR/
EIS

 fo
r t

he
 Ta

ho
e B

as
in 

Ar
ea

 Pl
an

, th
e 

Co
un

ty 
an

d T
RP

A s
ha

ll j
oin

tly
 re

vis
e m

ob
ilit

y s
tra

teg
ies

 in
 th

e A
re

a 
Pla

n t
ran

sp
or

tat
ion

 ch
ap

ter
 to

 ad
dr

es
s t

he
 in

cre
as

ed
 ve

hic
le 

tri
ps

. 
Pla

ce
r C

ou
nt

y a
nd

 its
 pa

rtn
ers

 sh
all

 de
ve

lop
 fin

an
cin

g m
ec

ha
nis

ms
 

to
 en

su
re

 im
ple

me
nt

ati
on

 of
 ne

w 
or

 m
od

ifie
d m

ob
ilit

y s
tra

teg
ies

 
wi

th
in 

a f
ea

sib
le 

pe
rio

d o
f ti

me
. P

lac
er

 Co
un

ty 
sh

all
 su

bm
it t

he
 

rev
ise

d A
re

a P
lan

 to
 TR

PA
 fo

r a
pp

ro
va

l.  
M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

re
 10

-1h
: Im

ple
me

nt
 TR

PA
’s 

Co
ng

es
tio

n 
M

an
ag

em
en

t P
ro

ce
ss 

Pla
ce

r C
ou

nt
y a

nd
 TR

PA
 sh

all
 pr

ior
itiz

e a
dd

itio
na

l m
ob

ilit
y s

tra
teg

ies
 

in 
a m

an
ne

r c
on

sis
ten

t w
ith

 TR
PA

’s 
Co

ng
es

tio
n M

an
ag

em
en

t 
Pr

oc
es

s r
eq

uir
ed

 by
 fe

de
ral

 re
gu

lat
ion

 (2
3 C

FR
 45

0.3
20

) fo
r u

rb
an

 
me

tro
po

lita
n p

lan
nin

g o
rga

niz
ati

on
s. T

RP
A’s

 CM
P i

s c
ur

ren
tly

 un
de

r 
de

ve
lop

me
nt

 an
d w

ill 
be

 im
ple

me
nt

ed
 in

 20
17

 in
 co

lla
bo

rat
ion

 w
ith

 
loc

al 
jur

isd
ict

ion
s a

nd
 pu

bli
c t

ran
sit

 pr
ov

ide
rs.

 

Im
pa

ct 
10

-3:
 In

ter
se

cti
on

 le
ve

l o
f s

er
vic

e. 
 

 (S
) U

nd
er 

th
e A

re
a P

lan
, fu

tu
re

 de
ve

lop
me

nt
 an

d r
ed

ev
elo

pm
en

t 
wo

uld
 oc

cu
r in

 th
e P

lan
 ar

ea
 th

at 
wo

uld
 af

fec
t t

he
 LO

S o
f 

int
ers

ec
tio

n o
pe

rat
ion

s. 
All

 st
ud

y i
nt

ers
ec

tio
ns

 w
ou

ld 
op

era
te 

at 
an

 
ac

ce
pt

ab
le 

LO
S u

nd
er

 bu
ild

-o
ut

 co
nd

itio
ns

, w
ith

 th
e e

xc
ep

tio
n o

f 
th

e S
R 2

8/
Gr

ov
e S

tre
et 

int
ers

ec
tio

n. 
Im

ple
me

nt
ati

on
 of

 th
e A

rea
 

Pla
n w

ou
ld 

res
ult

 in
 in

cre
as

ed
 ve

hic
ula

r d
ela

ys
 at

 th
is i

nt
ers

ec
tio

n, 
th

ere
by

 ex
ac

er
ba

tin
g t

he
 ex

ist
ing

 LO
S F

 co
nd

itio
n a

nd
 cr

ea
tin

g a
 

sig
nif

ica
nt

 im
pa

ct.
 Im

ple
me

nt
ati

on
 of

 M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
res

 10
-3a

, 
10

-3b
 w

ou
ld 

les
se

n t
he

 ef
fec

t o
n i

nt
ers

ec
tio

n L
OS

 by
 pr

ov
idi

ng
 a 

M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-3a

: C
on

str
uc

t a
nd

 m
ain

tai
n a

 pe
de

str
ian

 
ac

tiv
ate

d h
yb

rid
 be

ac
on

 cr
os

sin
g a

t t
he

 G
ro

ve
 St

re
et

/S
R 2

8 
int

er
se

cti
on

 pu
rsu

an
t t

o M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-1a

, c
re

ate
 a 

tra
ns

it 
se

rvi
ce

 ex
pa

ns
ion

 fu
nd

ing
 so

ur
ce

 pu
rsu

an
t t

o M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 
10

-1b
, a

nd
 re

qu
ire

 pa
ym

en
t o

f t
ra

ffi
c m

itig
ati

on
 fe

es
 to

 Pl
ac

er
 

Co
un

ty 
pu

rsu
an

t t
o M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

re
 10

-1c
, e

xp
an

d t
he

 
re

qu
ire

me
nt

s f
or

 tr
an

sp
or

tat
ion

 de
ma

nd
 m

an
ag

em
en

t p
lan

s 
pu

rsu
an

t t
o M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

re
 10

-1d
, p

re
pa

re
 an

d i
mp

lem
en

t a
 

co
mp

re
he

ns
ive

 w
ay

fin
din

g p
ro

gra
m 

fo
r p

ark
ing

 an
d m

ult
i-m

od
al 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n p

ur
su

an
t t

o M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-1e

, im
ple

me
nt

 
lon

g-t
er

m 
mo

nit
or

ing
 an

d a
da

pt
ive

 m
an

ag
em

en
t o

f m
ob

ilit
y 

SU
  

      
 

Fin
din

g: 
 Sp

ec
ific

 co
ns

ide
rat

ion
s, 

su
ch

 as
 

ec
on

om
ic,

 so
cia

l, o
r t

ec
hn

ica
l, m

ak
e 

inf
ea

sib
le 

th
e m

itig
ati

o n
 m

ea
su

re
 or

 pr
oje

ct 
alt

er
na

tiv
es

 di
scu

sse
d i

n t
he

 en
vir

on
me

nt
al 

im
pa

ct 
sta

tem
en

t o
n t

he
 pr

oje
ct.

 
 Ra

tio
na

le:
  U

nd
er

 th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
, fu

tu
re 

de
ve

lop
me

nt
 an

d r
ed

ev
elo

pm
en

t w
ou

ld 
oc

cu
r in

 th
e P

lan
 ar

ea
 th

at 
wo

uld
 af

fec
t t

he
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
102



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

pe
de

str
ian

 hy
br

id 
be

ac
on

 cr
os

sin
g a

t t
he

 SR
 28

 an
d G

ro
ve

 St
re

et 
int

ers
ec

tio
n, 

wi
th

 th
e a

pp
ro

va
l o

f C
alt

ran
s f

or
 w

or
k p

ro
po

se
d 

wi
th

in 
th

e S
tat

e h
igh

wa
y, 

wh
ich

 w
ou

ld 
red

uc
e t

he
 in

flu
en

ce
 of

 
pe

de
str

ian
 cr

os
sin

gs
 on

 LO
S; 

by
 es

tab
lish

ing
 a 

Co
un

ty 
Se

rvi
ce

 Ar
ea

 
Zo

ne
 of

 Be
ne

fit
 to

 fu
nd

 ex
pa

ns
ion

 of
 tr

an
sit

 se
rvi

ce
, w

hic
h w

ou
ld 

re
du

ce
 tr

aff
ic 

vo
lum

es
; a

nd
 by

 ha
vin

g d
ev

elo
pm

en
t p

ro
jec

ts 
pa

y 
Ta

ho
e a

re
a t

raf
fic

 m
itig

ati
on

 fe
es

 to
 Pl

ac
er

 Co
un

ty 
to

 fu
nd

 
ide

nt
ifie

d r
eg

ion
al 

Ca
pit

al 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

jec
ts.

 W
hil

e M
itig

ati
on

 
M

ea
su

res
 10

-3a
 an

d 1
0-3

b w
ou

ld 
les

se
n t

he
 ef

fec
t o

n i
nt

ers
ec

tio
n 

op
era

tio
ns

, im
ple

me
nt

ati
on

 of
 th

e p
ro

jec
t w

ou
ld 

sti
ll r

es
ult

 in
 

inc
rea

se
d v

eh
icu

lar
 de

lay
s a

t t
he

 G
ro

ve
 St

ree
t/S

R 2
8 i

nt
ers

ec
tio

n 
an

d n
o a

dd
itio

na
l m

itig
ati

on
 is 

fea
sib

le.
 In

 re
co

gn
itio

n o
f t

he
 LO

S 
co

nd
itio

ns
 in

 th
e T

ah
oe

 Ci
ty 

To
wn

 Ce
nt

er
, th

e A
rea

 Pl
an

 w
ou

ld 
rev

ise
 th

e L
OS

 st
an

da
rd

s t
o a

llo
w 

LO
S F

 du
rin

g p
ea

k p
eri

od
s in

 
to

wn
 ce

nt
ers

 (A
rea

 Pl
an

 Po
lic

y T
-P-

6),
 an

d t
he

 fu
tu

re 
LO

S 
co

nd
itio

ns
 w

ou
ld 

no
t e

xc
ee

d t
he

 pr
op

os
ed

 LO
S s

tan
da

rd
. 

Ho
we

ve
r, b

ec
au

se
 th

e p
ro

jec
t w

ou
ld 

res
ult

 in
 LO

S t
ha

t e
xc

ee
ds

 
ex

ist
ing

 st
an

da
rd

s a
nd

 no
 ad

dit
ion

al 
mi

tig
ati

on
 is 

fea
sib

le,
 th

is 
im

pa
ct 

is c
on

sid
er

ed
 si

gn
ific

an
t a

nd
 un

av
oid

ab
le.

 
 

str
ate

gie
s p

ur
su

an
t t

o M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-1f

, im
ple

me
nt

 a 
fo

ur
-ye

ar
 re

vie
w 

of
 ve

hic
le 

tri
ps

 an
d m

ob
ilit

y s
tra

te
gie

s p
ur

su
an

t 
to

 M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-1g

, a
nd

 im
ple

me
nt

 TR
PA

’s 
Co

ng
es

tio
n 

M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ro
ce

ss 
pu

rsu
an

t t
o M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

re
 10

-1h
.  

Th
is i

mp
ac

t w
ou

ld 
be

 m
ini

mi
ze

d t
hr

ou
gh

 th
e i

mp
lem

en
tat

ion
 of

 
M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

res
 10

-1a
, 1

0-1
b, 

an
d 1

0-1
c, 

10
-1d

, 1
0-1

e, 
10

-1f
, 

10
-1g

, a
nd

 10
-1h

 de
scr

ibe
d u

nd
er

 Im
pa

ct 
10

-1,
 ab

ov
e. 

Th
es

e s
am

e 
mi

tig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

res
 w

ou
ld 

be
 re

qu
ire

d t
o a

dd
res

s t
his

 im
pa

ct.
  

M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-3b

: O
bt

ain
 a 

Ca
ltr

an
s E

nc
ro

ac
hm

en
t P

er
mi

t 
fo

r W
or

k w
ith

in 
th

e S
tat

e H
igh

wa
y 

Pr
ior

 to
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
lan

 ap
pr

ov
al,

 th
e a

pp
lic

an
t fo

r a
ny

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt

 pr
oje

ct 
pr

op
os

ing
 w

or
k w

ith
in 

th
e S

tat
e H

igh
wa

y r
igh

t-
of-

wa
y s

ha
ll o

bt
ain

 an
 En

cro
ac

hm
en

t P
er

mi
t fr

om
 Ca

ltr
an

s. 
A c

op
y 

of 
sa

id 
Pe

rm
it s

ha
ll b

e p
ro

vid
ed

 to
 th

e P
lac

er
 Co

un
ty 

En
gin

ee
rin

g 
an

d S
ur

ve
yin

g D
ivi

sio
n p

rio
r t

o t
he

 ap
pr

ov
al 

of 
th

e I
mp

ro
ve

me
nt

 
Pla

ns
. R

igh
t-o

f-w
ay

 de
dic

ati
on

 to
 th

e S
tat

e, 
as

 re
qu

ire
d, 

sh
all

 be
 

pr
ov

ide
d t

o a
cc

om
mo

da
te 

th
e e

xis
tin

g a
nd

 fu
tu

re 
hig

hw
ay

 
im

pr
ov

em
en

ts.
  

Ca
ltr

an
s w

ill 
no

t is
su

e a
n E

nc
ro

ac
hm

en
t P

er
mi

t f
or

 w
or

k w
ith

in 
th

eir
 

rig
ht

-of
-w

ay
 fo

r im
pr

ov
em

en
ts 

(ot
he

r t
ha

n s
ign

als
, ro

ad
 w

ide
nin

g, 
str

ipi
ng

 an
d s

ign
ing

) w
ith

ou
t fi

rst
 en

ter
ing

 in
to

 a 
La

nd
sca

pe
 

M
ain

ten
an

ce
 Ag

ree
me

nt
 w

ith
 th

e c
ou

nt
y. 

Th
is a

gre
em

en
t a

llo
ws

 fo
r 

pr
iva

te 
ins

tal
lat

ion
 an

d m
ain

ten
an

ce
 of

 co
nc

ret
e c

ur
b/

gu
tte

rs,
 

sid
ew

alk
s, 

tra
ils,

 la
nd

sca
pin

g a
nd

 irr
iga

tio
n w

ith
in 

Ca
ltr

an
s’ 

rig
ht

-of
-

wa
y. 

A s
im

ila
r a

gre
em

en
t b

etw
ee

n t
he

 co
un

ty 
an

d t
he

 ap
pli

ca
nt

 is 
re

qu
ire

d p
rio

r t
o t

he
 co

un
ty 

en
ter

ing
 in

to
 th

e a
gre

em
en

t w
ith

 
Ca

ltr
an

s. 
If a

pp
lic

ab
le,

 bo
th

 of
 th

es
e m

ain
ten

an
ce

 ag
re

em
en

ts 
sh

all
 

LO
S o

f in
ter

se
cti

on
 op

er
ati

on
s. 

All
 st

ud
y 

int
ers

ec
tio

ns
 w

ou
ld 

op
er

ate
 at

 an
 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le 
LO

S u
nd

er
 bu

ild
-o

ut
 co

nd
itio

ns
, 

wi
th

 th
e e

xc
ep

tio
n o

f t
he

 SR
 28

/G
ro

ve
 

Str
ee

t in
ter

se
cti

on
. Im

ple
me

nt
ati

on
 of

 th
e 

Ar
ea

 Pl
an

 w
ou

ld 
res

ult
 in

 in
cre

as
ed

 
ve

hic
ula

r d
ela

ys
 at

 th
is i

nt
ers

ec
tio

n, 
th

ere
by

 ex
ac

er
ba

tin
g t

he
 ex

ist
ing

 LO
S F

 
co

nd
itio

n. 
Th

e p
ro

jec
t h

as
 in

co
rp

or
ate

d 
M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

res
 10

-3a
 an

d 1
0-3

b, 
wh

ich
 w

ill 
les

se
n t

he
 im

pa
ct.

 Sp
ec

ific
all

y, 
th

e p
ro

jec
t w

ill 
pr

ov
ide

 a 
pe

de
str

ian
 hy

br
id 

be
ac

on
 cr

os
sin

g a
t t

he
 SR

 28
 an

d G
ro

ve
 

Str
ee

t in
ter

se
cti

on
, w

hic
h w

ou
ld 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
inf

lue
nc

e o
f p

ed
es

tri
an

 cr
os

sin
gs

 on
 LO

S; 
es

tab
lish

 a 
Co

un
ty 

Se
rvi

ce
 Ar

ea
 Zo

ne
 of

 
Be

ne
fit

 to
 fu

nd
 ex

pa
ns

ion
 of

 tr
an

sit
 

ca
pa

cit
y, 

wh
ich

 w
ou

ld 
re

du
ce

 tr
aff

ic 
vo

lum
es

 th
ro

ug
h r

eg
ion

al 
Ca

pit
al 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t p

ro
jec

ts 
fun

de
d b

y p
ay

me
nt

 
of 

Ta
ho

e a
rea

 tr
aff

ic 
mi

tig
ati

on
 fe

es
 to

 
Pla

ce
r C

ou
nt

y; 
ex

pa
nd

 re
qu

ire
me

nt
s f

or
 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n d

em
an

d m
an

ag
em

en
t p

lan
s 

for
 a 

gre
ate

r n
um

be
r o

f p
ro

jec
ts 

th
at 

ge
ne

rat
e e

mp
loy

ee
s; 

es
tab

lish
 a 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
103



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

be
 ex

ec
ut

ed
 pr

ior
 to

 ap
pr

ov
al 

of 
th

e I
mp

ro
ve

me
nt

 Pl
an

s. 
co

mp
re

he
ns

ive
 w

ay
fin

din
g p

ro
gra

m 
for

 
pa

rki
ng

 an
d m

ult
i-m

od
al 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n; 

co
nd

uc
t lo

ng
- te

rm
 m

on
ito

rin
g a

nd
 ad

ap
tiv

e 
ma

na
ge

me
nt

 an
d m

ob
ilit

y s
tra

teg
ies

; 
pr

ov
ide

 a 
fou

r-y
ea

r r
ev

iew
 of

 ve
hic

le 
tri

ps
 

an
d m

ob
ilit

y s
tra

teg
ies

; a
nd

 im
ple

me
nt

 
TR

PA
’s C

on
ge

sti
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ro
ce

ss.
 

Th
e i

nt
ers

ec
tio

n L
OS

 af
ter

 im
ple

me
nt

ati
on

 
of 

th
e m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

res
 w

ou
ld 

re
ma

in 
un

ac
ce

pt
ab

le.
 Th

e G
ov

ern
ing

 Bo
ard

 fin
ds

 
th

at 
leg

al,
 ec

on
om

ic,
 so

cia
l, a

nd
 te

ch
nic

al 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

s m
ak

e f
ur

th
er 

mi
tig

ati
on

 of
 

th
is i

mp
ac

t in
fea

sib
le.

 Th
er

efo
re,

 th
is 

im
pa

ct 
is c

on
sid

er
ed

 sig
nif

ica
nt

 an
d 

un
av

oid
ab

le.
 

 Th
e G

ov
er

nin
g B

oa
rd

 fu
rth

er
 fin

ds
 th

at 
sp

ec
ific

 co
ns

ide
rat

ion
s m

ak
e i

nfe
as

ibl
e, 

an
y 

rea
so

na
ble

 al
ter

na
tiv

es
 th

at 
wo

uld
 bo

th
 

me
et 

th
e o

bje
cti

ve
s o

f t
he

 Ar
ea

 Pl
an

 an
d 

re
du

ce
 th

e s
ign

ific
an

t a
nd

 un
av

oid
ab

le 
im

pa
ct 

on
 th

e S
R 2

8/
Gr

ov
e S

tre
et 

int
ers

ec
tio

n L
OS

. T
o m

ee
t T

RP
A 

re
qu

ire
me

nt
s f

or
 th

e c
on

sid
er

ati
on

 of
 

alt
er

na
tiv

es
, th

e D
raf

t E
IR/

EIS
 ev

alu
ate

d t
he

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
104



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

po
ten

tia
l im

pa
cts

 of
 fo

ur
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 

alt
er

na
tiv

es
, in

clu
din

g t
he

 no
 pr

oje
ct 

alt
er

na
tiv

e (
Alt

ern
ati

ve
 4)

. N
o f

ea
sib

le 
alt

er
na

tiv
es

, in
 ad

dit
ion

al 
to

 th
os

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 in

 th
e D

raf
t E

IR/
EIS

, h
av

e b
ee

n 
ide

nt
ifie

d t
ha

t w
ou

ld 
att

ain
 th

e o
bje

cti
ve

s 
of 

th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
 an

d r
ed

uc
e t

he
 sig

nif
ica

nt
 

an
d u

na
vo

ida
ble

 im
pa

ct 
on

 in
ter

se
cti

on
 

LO
S. 

Th
e F

ina
l A

re
a P

lan
 an

d m
itig

ati
on

 
me

as
ur

es
 in

 th
e F

ina
l E

IR/
EIS

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
int

ers
ec

tio
n L

OS
 im

pa
ct 

to
 th

e e
xte

nt
 

fea
sib

le.
 Th

us
, th

e G
ov

er
nin

g B
oa

rd
 fin

ds
 

th
at 

all
 re

as
on

ab
le 

alt
er

na
tiv

es
 w

er
e 

rev
iew

ed
, a

na
lyz

ed
, a

nd
 di

scu
sse

d i
n t

he
 

EIR
/E

IS 
re

vie
w 

pr
oc

es
s. 

 (D
raf

t E
IR/

EIS
, p

p. 
10

-35
 to

 10
-38

; F
ina

l 
EIR

/E
IS,

 pp
. 2

-8 
to

 2-
9; 

se
e a

lso
 M

as
ter

 
Re

sp
on

se
 1.

) 
Im

pa
ct 

10
-5:

 Tr
an

sit
 se

rvi
ce

 an
d o

pe
ra

tio
ns

.  
(PS

) T
he

 Ar
ea

 Pl
an

 is 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o r

es
ult

 in
 in

cre
as

ed
 tr

an
sit

 
rid

ers
hip

 du
rin

g t
he

 pe
ak

-ho
ur

 pe
rio

d. 
As

 so
me

 TA
RT

 tr
an

sit
 ru

ns
 

be
tw

ee
n S

qu
aw

 Va
lle

y –
 Ta

ho
e C

ity
, T

ah
oe

 Ci
ty 

– N
or

th
 St

ate
lin

e 
an

d N
or

th
sta

r –
 N

or
th

 St
ate

lin
e i

n w
int

er 
cu

rre
nt

ly 
ex

ce
ed

 th
e 

se
ati

ng
 ca

pa
cit

y, 
th

is i
nc

rea
se

 in
 tr

an
sit

 rid
ers

hip
 w

ou
ld 

res
ult

 in
 a 

po
ten

tia
lly

 sig
nif

ica
nt

 im
pa

ct 
for

 th
e p

ro
jec

t. I
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 of
 

M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-5:

 Cr
ea

te
 a 

tra
ns

it s
er

vic
e e

xp
an

sio
n 

fu
nd

ing
 so

ur
ce

 pu
rsu

an
t t

o M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-1b

 
Th

is i
mp

ac
t w

ou
ld 

be
 m

ini
mi

ze
d t

hr
ou

gh
 th

e i
mp

lem
en

tat
ion

 of
 

M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-1b

 de
scr

ibe
d u

nd
er

 Im
pa

ct 
10

-1,
 ab

ov
e. 

Th
is 

sa
me

 m
itig

ati
on

 m
ea

su
re

 w
ou

ld 
be

 re
qu

ire
d t

o a
dd

res
s t

his
 im

pa
ct.

 

LT
S  

Fin
din

g: 
 Ch

an
ge

s o
r a

lte
rat

ion
s h

av
e b

ee
n 

re
qu

ire
d i

n o
r in

co
rp

or
ate

d i
nt

o s
uc

h 
pr

oje
ct 

wh
ich

 av
oid

 or
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

sig
nif

ica
nt

 ad
ve

rse
 en

vir
on

me
nt

al 
eff

ec
ts 

to
 

a l
es

s t
ha

n s
ign

ific
an

t le
ve

l.  
 Ra

tio
na

le:
 Th

e A
re

a P
lan

 is 
ex

pe
cte

d t
o 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
105



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-5 

wo
uld

 es
tab

lish
 a 

fun
din

g m
ec

ha
nis

m 
th

at 
wo

uld
 fa

cil
ita

te 
inc

re
as

ed
 tr

an
sit

 se
rvi

ce
 du

rin
g p

ea
k p

eri
od

s. 
Th

is i
nc

rea
se

d t
ran

sit
 se

rvi
ce

 w
ou

ld 
ac

co
mm

od
ate

 ty
pic

al 
pe

ak
-

pe
rio

d t
ran

sit
 lo

ad
s t

ha
t w

ou
ld 

oc
cu

r w
ith

 th
e A

re
a P

lan
, w

hic
h 

wo
uld

 re
du

ce
 th

e i
mp

ac
t t

o a
 le

ss-
th

an
-si

gn
ific

an
t le

ve
l. 

 

res
ult

 in
 in

cre
as

ed
 tr

an
sit

 rid
ers

hip
 du

rin
g 

th
e p

ea
k-h

ou
r p

eri
od

. A
s s

om
e T

AR
T t

ran
sit

 
ru

ns
 be

tw
ee

n S
qu

aw
 Va

lle
y –

 Ta
ho

e C
ity

, 
Ta

ho
e C

ity
 – 

No
rth

 St
ate

lin
e a

nd
 N

or
th

sta
r 

– N
or

th
 St

ate
lin

e i
n w

int
er

 cu
rre

nt
ly 

ex
ce

ed
 

th
e s

ea
tin

g c
ap

ac
ity

, th
is i

nc
rea

se
 in

 tr
an

sit
 

rid
ers

hip
 w

ou
ld 

res
ult

 in
 a 

po
ten

tia
lly

 
sig

nif
ica

nt
 im

pa
ct 

for
 th

e A
rea

 Pl
an

. 
M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

re
 10

-5 
wi

ll r
eq

uir
e t

ha
t 

Co
un

ty 
Se

rvi
ce

 Ar
ea

 Zo
ne

 of
 Be

ne
fit

 be
 

es
tab

lish
ed

 to
 fu

nd
 ex

pa
ns

ion
 of

 tr
an

sit
 

ca
pa

cit
y t

o m
ee

t t
his

 un
me

t d
em

an
d. 

Th
is 

mi
tig

ati
on

 m
ea

su
re

 w
ill 

red
uc

e p
ot

en
tia

l 
im

pa
cts

 to
 a 

les
s-t

ha
n-s

ign
ific

an
t le

ve
l. 

 (D
raf

t E
IR/

EIS
, p

p. 
10

-41
 to

 10
-45

.) 

Ai
r Q

ua
lit

y 
 

 
 

Im
pa

ct 
11

-2:
 Sh

or
t-t

er
m 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
 em

iss
ion

s o
f R

OG
, N

O X
, 

PM
10

, a
nd

 PM
2.5

.  
(S)

 Im
ple

me
nt

ati
on

 of
 th

e p
ro

po
se

d A
rea

 Pl
an

 an
d s

ub
se

qu
en

t 
pr

oje
cts

 w
ou

ld 
inv

olv
e c

on
str

uc
tio

n t
ha

t w
ou

ld 
res

ult
 in

 th
e 

tem
po

rar
y g

en
er

ati
on

 of
 RO

G,
 N

O X
, P

M
10

 an
d P

M
2.5

 em
iss

ion
s f

ro
m 

sit
e p

re
pa

rat
ion

 (e
.g.

, e
xc

av
ati

on
, g

rad
ing

, a
nd

 cl
ea

rin
g);

 di
es

el-
po

we
re

d o
ff-

ro
ad

 eq
uip

me
nt

, tr
uc

ks
 ha

uli
ng

 m
ate

ria
ls t

o a
nd

 fr
om

 
th

e s
ite

, w
or

ke
r c

om
mu

te 
ex

ha
us

t e
mi

ssi
on

s, 
th

e a
pp

lic
ati

on
 of

 

M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 11
-2a

: R
ed

uc
e s

ho
rt-

ter
m 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
-

ge
ne

ra
te

d e
mi

ssi
on

s o
f R

OG
, N

O X
, a

nd
 PM

10
 

Pr
op

on
en

ts 
of 

ind
ivi

du
al 

lan
d u

se
 de

ve
lop

me
nt

 pr
oje

cts
 in

 th
e P

lan
 

are
a s

ub
jec

t t
o T

RP
A a

nd
/o

r C
EQ

A e
nv

iro
nm

en
tal

 re
vie

w 
sh

all
 be

 
re

qu
ire

d t
o d

em
on

str
ate

 th
at 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
-re

lat
ed

 em
iss

ion
s o

f 
RO

G,
 N

O X
, a

nd
 PM

10
 fo

r e
ac

h p
ro

jec
t w

ou
ld 

be
 le

ss 
th

an
 PC

AP
CD

’s 
sig

nif
ica

nc
e s

tan
da

rd
s o

f 8
2 l

b/
da

y. 
Ev

er
y p

ro
jec

t a
pp

lic
an

t s
ha

ll 
re

qu
ire

 its
 pr

im
e c

on
str

uc
tio

n c
on

tra
cto

r t
o i

mp
lem

en
t t

he
 fo

llo
wi

ng
 

LT
S  

Fin
din

g: 
 Ch

an
ge

s o
r a

lte
rat

ion
s h

av
e b

ee
n 

re
qu

ire
d i

n o
r in

co
rp

or
ate

d i
nt

o s
uc

h 
pr

oje
ct 

wh
ich

 av
oid

 or
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

sig
nif

ica
nt

 ad
ve

rse
 en

vir
on

me
nt

al 
eff

ec
ts 

to
 

a l
es

s t
ha

n s
ign

ific
an

t le
ve

l. 
 Ra

tio
na

le:
 Em

iss
ion

s a
sso

cia
ted

 w
ith

 th
e 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
 of

 fu
tu

re
 in

div
idu

al 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
106

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

arc
hit

ec
tu

ral
 co

ati
ng

s, 
an

d p
av

ing
. T

he
 an

tic
ipa

ted
 sh

or
t-t

er
m 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
 em

iss
ion

s o
f in

div
idu

al 
de

ve
lop

me
nt

 pr
oje

cts
 un

de
r 

th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
 is 

no
t a

nt
ici

pa
ted

 to
 re

su
lt i

n m
or

e s
ev

er
e i

mp
ac

ts 
th

an
 th

os
e i

de
nt

ifie
d i

n t
he

 RP
U 

EIS
. E

mi
ssi

on
s a

sso
cia

ted
 w

ith
 th

e 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

 em
iss

ion
s o

f fu
tu

re
 in

div
idu

al 
de

ve
lop

me
nt

 pr
oje

cts
 

wo
uld

 ha
ve

 th
e p

ot
en

tia
l to

 ex
ce

ed
 PC

AP
CD

-re
co

mm
en

de
d 

sig
nif

ica
nc

e c
rit

er
ia,

 th
er

eb
y p

ot
en

tia
lly

 vi
ola

tin
g o

r c
on

tri
bu

tin
g 

su
bs

tan
tia

lly
 to

 th
e n

on
att

ain
me

nt
 st

atu
s o

f th
e L

TA
B w

ith
 re

sp
ec

t 
to

 th
e C

AA
QS

 fo
r o

zo
ne

 an
d P

M
10

. T
hu

s, 
th

e s
ho

rt-
ter

m 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

 em
iss

ion
s in

 th
e r

eg
ion

 w
ou

ld 
be

 a 
sig

nif
ica

nt
 im

pa
ct.

  
Lik

e o
th

er
 in

div
idu

al 
pr

oje
cts

, c
on

str
uc

tio
n a

cti
vit

y a
sso

cia
ted

 th
e 

Lo
dg

e w
ou

ld 
res

ult
 in

 th
e t

em
po

rar
y g

en
era

tio
n o

f R
OG

, N
O X

, P
M

10
 

an
d P

M
2.5

 em
iss

ion
s. 

Co
ns

tru
cti

on
 ac

tiv
ity

 w
ou

ld 
ge

ne
rat

e 
em

iss
ion

s o
f R

OG
 th

at 
ex

ce
ed

 th
e P

CA
PC

D-
rec

om
me

nd
ed

 
sig

nif
ica

nc
e c

rit
er

ion
 of

 82
 lb

/d
ay

, th
ere

by
 po

ten
tia

lly
 vi

ola
tin

g o
r 

co
nt

rib
ut

ing
 su

bs
tan

tia
lly

 to
 th

e n
on

att
ain

me
nt

 st
atu

s o
f t

he
 LT

AB
 

wi
th

 re
sp

ec
t t

o t
he

 CA
AQ

S f
or

 oz
on

e. 
Th

us
, th

e s
ho

rt-
ter

m 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

 em
iss

ion
s o

f R
OG

 w
ou

ld 
be

 si
gn

ific
an

t a
t t

he
 pr

oje
ct 

lev
el 

for
 th

e L
od

ge
.  

me
as

ur
es

: 


 
Su

bm
it 

to
 PC

AP
CD

 a 
co

mp
re

he
ns

ive
 in

ve
nt

or
y (

e.g
., 

ma
ke

, m
od

el,
 ye

ar
, e

mi
ssi

on
 ra

tin
g) 

of
 al

l th
e h

ea
vy

-
du

ty 
of

f-r
oa

d e
qu

ipm
en

t (
50

 ho
rse

po
we

r o
f g

re
at

er
) 

th
at

 w
ou

ld 
be

 us
ed

 fo
r 4

0 o
r m

or
e h

ou
rs,

 in
 ag

gr
eg

at
e, 

du
rin

g a
 co

ns
tru

cti
on

 se
as

on
. If

 an
y n

ew
 eq

uip
m

en
t is

 
ad

de
d a

fte
r s

ub
mi

ssi
on

 of
 th

e i
nv

en
to

ry,
 th

e p
rim

e 
co

nt
ra

cto
r s

ha
ll c

on
ta

ct 
PC

AP
CD

 be
fo

re
 th

e n
ew

 
eq

uip
m

en
t is

 us
ed

. A
t le

as
t t

hr
ee

 bu
sin

es
s d

ay
s b

ef
or

e 
th

e u
se

 of
 su

bje
ct 

he
av

y-d
ut

y o
ff-

ro
ad

 eq
uip

me
nt

, t
he

 
pr

oje
ct 

re
pr

es
en

ta
tiv

e s
ha

ll p
ro

vid
e P

CA
PC

D 
wi

th
 th

e 
an

tic
ipa

te
d c

on
str

uc
tio

n t
im

eli
ne

 in
clu

din
g s

ta
rt 

da
te

, 
na

m
e, 

an
d p

ho
ne

 nu
mb

er
 of

 th
e p

ro
pe

rty
 ow

ne
r, 

pr
oje

ct 
ma

na
ge

r, 
an

d o
ns

ite
 fo

re
ma

n; 
 


 

Be
fo

re
 ap

pr
ov

al 
of

 G
ra

din
g o

r Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

lan
s, 

wh
ich

ev
er

 oc
cu

rs 
fir

st,
 th

e p
rim

e c
on

tra
cto

r s
ha

ll s
ub

mi
t 

fo
r P

CA
PC

D 
ap

pr
ov

al,
 a 

wr
itt

en
 ca

lcu
lat

ion
 

de
mo

ns
tra

tin
g t

ha
t t

he
 he

av
y-d

ut
y (

> 5
0 h

or
se

po
we

r) 
of

f-r
oa

d v
eh

icl
es

 to
 be

 us
ed

 in
 th

e c
on

str
uc

tio
n p

ro
jec

t, 
inc

lud
ing

 ow
ne

d, 
lea

se
d, 

an
d s

ub
co

nt
rac

to
r v

eh
icl

es
, 

wi
ll a

ch
iev

e a
 pr

oje
ct 

wi
de

 fle
et

-av
er

ag
e 2

0 p
er

ce
nt

 
re

du
cti

on
 in

 N
O X

 em
iss

ion
s a

s c
om

pa
re

d t
o A

RB
 

sta
te

wi
de

 fle
et

 av
er

ag
e e

mi
ssi

on
s. 

Ac
ce

pt
ab

le 
op

tio
ns

 
fo

r r
ed

uc
ing

 em
iss

ion
s m

ay
 in

clu
de

 us
e o

f la
te

-m
od

el 
en

gin
es

, lo
w-

em
iss

ion
 di

es
el 

pr
od

uc
ts,

 al
te

rn
ati

ve
 fu

els
, 

de
ve

lop
me

nt
 pr

oje
cts

 w
ou

ld 
ha

ve
 th

e 
po

ten
tia

l to
 ex

ce
ed

 PC
AP

CD
-re

co
mm

en
de

d 
sig

nif
ica

nc
e c

rit
er

ia,
 th

er
eb

y p
ot

en
tia

lly
 

vio
lat

ing
 or

 co
nt

rib
ut

ing
 su

bs
tan

tia
lly

 to
 th

e 
no

na
tta

inm
en

t s
tat

us
 of

 th
e L

TA
B w

ith
 

res
pe

ct 
to

 th
e C

AA
QS

 fo
r o

zo
ne

 an
d P

M
10

. 
M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

res
 11

-2a
 w

ou
ld 

re
qu

ire
 

th
at 

me
as

ur
es

 be
 in

co
rp

or
ate

d i
nt

o 
pr

oje
cts

 to
 re

du
ce

 sh
or

t-t
erm

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
-

ge
ne

rat
ed

 em
iss

ion
s o

f R
OG

, N
Ox

, a
nd

 
PM

10
 to

 le
ve

ls b
elo

w 
PC

AP
CD

’s s
ign

ific
an

ce
 

sta
nd

ard
s. 

Th
is m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

re 
wi

ll 
re

du
ce

 po
ten

tia
l im

pa
cts

 to
 a 

les
s-t

ha
n-

sig
nif

ica
nt

 le
ve

l. 
 (D

raf
t E

IR/
EIS

, p
p. 

11
-17

 to
 11

-23
.). 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
107



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

en
gin

e r
et

ro
fit

 te
ch

no
log

y, 
aft

er
-tr

ea
tm

en
t p

ro
du

cts
, 

an
d/

or
 ot

he
r o

pt
ion

s a
s t

he
y b

ec
om

e a
va

ila
ble

. T
he

 
ca

lcu
lat

ion
 sh

all
 be

 pr
ov

ide
d u

sin
g P

CA
PC

D'
s 

Co
ns

tru
cti

on
 M

itig
ati

on
 Ca

lcu
lat

or
;  


 

Us
e e

xis
tin

g p
ow

er
 so

ur
ce

s (
e.g

., p
ow

er
 po

les
) o

r c
lea

n 
fu

el 
(e

.g.
, g

as
oli

ne
, b

iod
ies

el,
 na

tu
ra

l g
as

) g
en

er
at

or
s 

du
rin

g c
on

str
uc

tio
n r

at
he

r t
ha

n t
em

po
ra

ry
 di

es
el 

po
we

r g
en

er
at

or
s t

o t
he

 ex
te

nt
 fe

as
ibl

e; 
 


 

Du
rin

g c
on

str
uc

tio
n, 

mi
nim

ize
 id

lin
g t

im
e t

o a
 

ma
xim

um
 of

 5 
mi

nu
te

s f
or

 al
l d

ies
el-

po
we

re
d 

eq
uip

m
en

t; 
an

d/
or

  


 
Po

st 
sig

ns
 in

 th
e d

es
ign

at
ed

 qu
eu

ing
 ar

ea
s o

f t
he

 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

 si
te

 to
 re

mi
nd

 of
f-r

oa
d e

qu
ipm

en
t 

op
er

at
or

s t
ha

t id
lin

g i
s l

im
ite

d t
o a

 m
ax

im
um

 of
 5 

mi
nu

te
s. 

Ev
er

y p
ro

jec
t a

pp
lic

an
t s

ha
ll r

eq
uir

e a
dd

itio
na

l m
ea

su
res

, a
s 

ne
ce

ssa
ry,

 to
 en

su
re

 th
at 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
-re

lat
ed

 em
iss

ion
s w

ou
ld 

no
t 

ex
ce

ed
 PC

AP
CD

’s s
ign

ific
an

ce
 st

an
da

rd
s f

or
 of

 RO
G,

 N
O X

, a
nd

 PM
10

 
of 

82
 lb

/d
ay

. T
he

se
 ad

dit
ion

al 
me

as
ur

es
 m

ay
 in

clu
de

, b
ut

 ar
e n

ot
 

lim
ite

d t
o, 

th
e f

oll
ow

ing
: 


 

Us
e o

f T
ier

 3 
or

 be
tte

r e
ng

ine
s f

or
 co

ns
tru

cti
on

 
eq

uip
m

en
t, 

 


 
Us

e o
f n

o-
 or

 lo
w-

so
lid

s c
on

te
nt

 (i.
e.,

 no
- o

r l
ow

-V
OC

) 
ar

ch
ite

ctu
ra

l c
oa

tin
gs

 th
at

 m
ee

t o
r e

xc
ee

d t
he

 V
OC

-
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts 
of

 PC
AP

CD
 Ru

le 
21

8. 
Im

ple
m

en
ta

tio
n o

f 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
108



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

th
is 

me
as

ur
e w

ou
ld 

re
du

ce
 RO

G 
em

iss
ion

s f
ro

m
 

ar
ch

ite
ctu

ra
l c

oa
tin

g b
y 9

0 p
er

ce
nt

, a
nd

/o
r 


 

Pa
rti

cip
ate

 in
 PC

AP
CD

's 
of

fsi
te

 m
itig

ati
on

 pr
og

ra
m,

 th
e 

La
nd

 U
se

 Ai
r Q

ua
lity

 M
itig

ati
on

 Fu
nd

, b
y p

ay
ing

 th
e 

eq
uiv

ale
nt

 am
ou

nt
 of

 fe
es

 fo
r t

he
 pr

oje
ct'

s c
on

tri
bu

tio
n 

of
 RO

G 
or

 N
O X

 th
at 

ex
ce

ed
s t

he
 82

 lb
/d

ay
 si

gn
ific

an
ce

 
cri

te
ria

, o
r t

he
 eq

uiv
ale

nt
 as

 ap
pr

ov
ed

 by
 PC

AP
CD

. T
he

 
ap

pli
ca

ble
 fe

e r
ate

s o
f t

he
 pr

og
ra

m 
ch

an
ge

 ov
er

 tim
e. 

Th
e a

ctu
al 

am
ou

nt
 to

 be
 pa

id 
sh

all
 be

 de
te

rm
ine

d, 
an

d 
sa

tis
fie

d p
er

 cu
rre

nt
 gu

ide
lin

es
, a

t t
he

 tim
e o

f a
pp

ro
va

l 
of

 th
e G

ra
din

g o
r I

mp
ro

ve
me

nt
 Pl

an
s. 

 

Im
pa

ct 
11

-5:
 Ex

po
su

re
 of

 se
ns

itiv
e r

ec
ep

to
rs 

to
 to

xic
 ai

r 
co

nt
am

ina
nt

 em
iss

ion
s. 

 
(S)

 Co
ns

ist
en

t w
ith

 th
e R

eg
ion

al 
Pla

n, 
th

e p
ro

po
se

d A
re

a P
lan

 
wo

uld
 no

t s
ite

 se
ns

itiv
e r

ec
ep

to
rs 

ne
ar 

an
y m

ajo
r r

oa
dw

ay
s o

r 
sta

tio
na

ry 
so

ur
ce

s o
f t

ox
ic 

are
 co

nt
am

ina
nt

s (
TA

Cs
), n

or
 w

ou
ld 

th
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 pr
oje

ct 
res

ult
 in

 th
e s

itin
g o

f n
ew

 st
ati

on
ary

 so
ur

ce
s o

f 
TA

Cs
. H

ow
ev

er,
 im

ple
me

nt
ati

on
 of

 pr
oje

cts
 un

de
r t

he
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 

co
uld

 po
ten

tia
lly

 re
su

lt i
n e

xp
os

ur
e o

f s
en

sit
ive

 re
ce

pt
or

s t
o 

su
bs

tan
tia

l T
AC

 co
nc

en
tra

tio
ns

 du
rin

g c
on

str
uc

tio
n. 

Th
is w

ou
ld 

be
 

sig
nif

ica
nt

 im
pa

ct 
at 

th
e p

ro
gra

m-
lev

el.
 

 

M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 11
-5:

 Re
du

ce
 sh

or
t-t

er
m 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
-

ge
ne

ra
te

d T
AC

 em
iss

ion
s  

TR
PA

 sh
all

 re
qu

ire
 pr

op
on

en
ts 

of 
ev

ery
 in

div
idu

al 
lan

d u
se

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt

 pr
oje

ct 
pr

op
os

ed
 in

 th
e P

lan
 ar

ea
 to

 de
mo

ns
tra

te 
th

at 
its

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
 ac

tiv
itie

s w
ou

ld 
fol

low
 PC

AP
CD

’s r
ec

om
me

nd
ed

 
BM

Ps
 an

d t
o e

ns
ur

e t
ha

t c
on

str
uc

tio
n-g

en
era

ted
 TA

C e
mi

ssi
on

s 
wo

uld
 no

t e
xp

os
e n

ea
rb

y s
en

sit
ive

 re
ce

pt
or

s t
o T

AC
 em

iss
ion

s t
ha

t 
wo

uld
 ex

ce
ed

 10
 in

 1 
mi

llio
n f

or
 th

e c
arc

ino
ge

nic
 ris

k (
i.e

., t
he

 ris
k o

f 
co

nt
rac

tin
g c

an
ce

r) 
or

 a 
no

n-c
arc

ino
ge

nic
 Ha

za
rd

 In
de

x o
f 1

 fo
r t

he
 

ma
xim

all
y e

xp
os

ed
 in

div
idu

al)
. E

ve
ry 

pr
oje

ct 
ap

pli
ca

nt
 sh

all
 re

qu
ire

 
its

 pr
im

e c
on

str
uc

tio
n c

on
tra

cto
r t

o i
mp

lem
en

t t
he

 fo
llo

wi
ng

 
me

as
ur

es
 pr

ior
 to

 pr
oje

ct 
ap

pr
ov

al:
 


 

W
or

k w
ith

 PC
AP

CD
 st

aff
 to

 de
te

rm
ine

 if 
pr

oje
ct 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
 w

ou
ld 

re
su

lt i
n r

ele
as

e o
f d

ies
el 

em
iss

ion
s 

LT
S  

Fin
din

g: 
Ch

an
ge

s o
r a

lte
rat

ion
s h

av
e b

ee
n 

re
qu

ire
d i

n o
r in

co
rp

or
ate

d i
nt

o s
uc

h 
pr

oje
ct 

wh
ich

 av
oid

 or
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

sig
nif

ica
nt

 ad
ve

rse
 en

vir
on

me
nt

al 
eff

ec
ts 

to
 

a l
es

s t
ha

n s
ign

ific
an

t le
ve

l 
 Ra

tio
na

le:
 Im

ple
me

nt
ati

on
 of

 pr
oje

cts
 

un
de

r t
he

 Ar
ea

 Pl
an

 co
uld

 po
ten

tia
lly

 re
su

lt 
in 

ex
po

su
re

 of
 se

ns
itiv

e r
ec

ep
to

rs 
to

 
su

bs
tan

tia
l T

AC
 co

nc
en

tra
tio

ns
 du

rin
g 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
. M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

re 
11

-5 
wi

ll 
re

qu
ire

 pr
op

on
en

ts 
of 

ind
ivi

du
al 

de
ve

lop
me

nt
 pr

oje
cts

 to
 de

mo
ns

tra
te 

th
at 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
 ac

tiv
itie

s w
ou

ld 
fol

low
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
109



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

in 
ar

ea
s w

ith
 po

te
nt

ial
 fo

r h
um

an
 ex

po
su

re
, e

ve
n i

f 
ov

er
all

 em
iss

ion
s w

ou
ld 

be
 lo

w.
 Fa

cto
rs 

co
ns

ide
re

d b
y 

PC
AP

CD
 w

he
n d

et
er

mi
nin

g s
ign

ific
an

ce
 of

 a 
pr

oje
ct 

inc
lud

e t
he

 ex
pe

cte
d e

mi
ssi

on
s f

ro
m 

die
se

l e
qu

ipm
en

t 
inc

lud
ing

 op
er

ati
on

 tim
e, 

loc
ati

on
 of

 th
e p

ro
jec

t, a
nd

 
dis

tan
ce

 to
 se

ns
itiv

e r
ec

ep
to

rs.
 (P

CA
PC

D 
20

12
:2-

6).
 


 

Us
e P

CA
PC

D'
s g

uid
an

ce
 to

 de
te

rm
ine

 w
he

th
er

 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

 of
 an

 in
div

idu
al 

pr
oje

ct 
wo

uld
 re

qu
ire

 
de

ta
ile

d e
va

lua
tio

n w
ith

 a 
he

alt
h r

isk
 as

se
ssm

en
t 

(H
RA

) (
PC

AP
CD

 20
12

: A
pp

en
dix

 E)
. If

 an
 H

RA
 is

 
re

qu
ire

d, 
mo

de
l e

mi
ssi

on
s, 

de
te

rm
ine

 ex
po

su
re

s, 
an

d 
ca

lcu
lat

e r
isk

 as
so

cia
te

d w
ith

 he
alt

h i
mp

ac
ts,

 pe
r 

PC
AP

CD
 gu

ida
nc

e. 
Co

or
din

at
e w

ith
 PC

AP
CD

 to
 

de
te

rm
ine

 th
e s

ign
ific

an
ce

 of
 th

e e
sti

ma
te

d h
ea

lth
 

ris
ks

. 

PC
AP

CD
’s 

rec
om

me
nd

ed
 BM

PS
 an

d t
o 

en
su

re
 co

ns
tru

cti
on

-re
lat

ed
 TA

C e
mi

ssi
on

s 
wo

uld
 no

t e
xp

os
e n

ea
rb

y s
en

sit
ive

 
rec

ep
to

rs 
to

 TA
C e

mi
ssi

on
s t

ha
t w

ou
ld 

ca
us

e a
n u

na
cc

ep
tab

le 
he

alt
h r

isk
. T

his
 

mi
tig

ati
on

 m
ea

su
re

 w
ill 

red
uc

e p
ot

en
tia

l 
im

pa
ct 

to
 a 

les
s-t

ha
n-s

ign
ific

an
t le

ve
l.  

 (D
raf

t E
IR/

EIS
, p

p. 
11

-35
 to

 11
-39

.)  

Gr
ee

nh
ou

se
 G

as
 E

m
iss

io
ns

 a
nd

 C
lim

at
e 

Ch
an

ge
 

 
 

 

Im
pa

ct 
12

-1:
 Ge

ne
rat

ion
 of

 GH
G e

mi
ssi

on
s.  

(PS
) Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f th

e A
rea

 Pl
an

 w
ou

ld 
res

ult
 in

 a 
mo

de
st 

lev
el 

of 
po

pu
lat

ion
 gr

ow
th 

fro
m 

ex
ist

ing
 co

nd
itio

ns
 in

 20
15

, a
nd

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt/

red
ev

elo
pm

en
t w

ou
ld 

res
ult

 in
 co

ns
tru

cti
on

- a
nd

 
op

era
tio

n-r
ela

ted
 GH

G e
mi

ssi
on

s. C
on

str
uc

tio
n-r

ela
ted

 em
iss

ion
s 

wo
uld

 pr
im

ari
ly 

be
 as

so
cia

ted
 w

ith
 he

av
y-d

uty
 co

ns
tru

cti
on

 
eq

uip
me

nt 
an

d t
ru

ck
 an

d v
eh

icle
 ex

ha
us

t a
sso

cia
ted

 w
ith

 pr
oje

ct 
de

ve
lop

me
nt.

 Lo
ng

-te
rm

 op
era

tio
na

l so
ur

ce
s o

f G
HG

 em
iss

ion
s 

ass
oc

iat
ed

 w
ith

 th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
 w

ou
ld 

inc
lud

e a
rea

 so
ur

ce
s (

e.g
., 

M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 12
-1:

 Im
ple

me
nt

 al
l fe

as
ibl

e e
ne

rgy
, w

ate
r, 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n, 

an
d v

eg
et

ati
on

 m
ea

su
re

s r
ec

om
me

nd
ed

 by
 

PC
AP

CD
 

Re
qu

ire
, a

s f
ea

sib
le,

 ne
w 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
 to

 im
ple

me
nt

 en
er

gy
, w

ate
r, 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n, 

an
d v

eg
eta

tio
n m

ea
su

res
 re

co
mm

en
de

d b
y P

CA
PC

D 
av

ail
ab

le 
in 

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

F-1
 of

 th
e D

ist
ric

t’s
 CE

QA
 Ha

nd
bo

ok
. T

his
 

wo
uld

 ap
ply

 to
 ne

w 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

 oc
cu

rri
ng

 un
de

r t
he

 Ar
ea

 Pl
an

. 
Als

o, 
ini

tia
te 

a f
un

din
g p

ro
gra

m 
to

 ap
ply

 th
es

e m
ea

su
res

 to
 ex

ist
ing

 
fac

ilit
ies

 w
ith

in 
th

e P
lan

 ar
ea

, a
s f

ea
sib

le 
(PC

AP
CD

 20
12

). 

SU
   

Fin
din

g: 
Sp

ec
ific

 co
ns

ide
rat

ion
s, 

su
ch

 as
 

ec
on

om
ic,

 so
cia

l, o
r t

ec
hn

ica
l, m

ak
e 

inf
ea

sib
le 

th
e m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

re
 or

 pr
oje

ct 
alt

er
na

tiv
es

 di
scu

sse
d i

n t
he

 en
vir

on
me

nt
al 

im
pa

ct 
sta

tem
en

t o
n t

he
 pr

oje
ct.

 
 Ra

tio
na

le:
 Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f th

e A
rea

 Pl
an

 
wo

uld
 re

su
lt i

n a
 m

od
es

t le
ve

l o
f p

op
ula

tio
n 

gro
wt

h f
ro

m 
ex

ist
ing

 co
nd

itio
ns

 in
 20

15
, a

nd
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
110

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

lan
ds

ca
pin

g e
qu

ipm
en

t, s
no

w 
rem

ov
al 

eq
uip

me
nt,

 w
oo

d-b
ur

nin
g 

ap
pli

an
ce

s),
 m

ob
ile

 so
ur

ce
s (

e.g
., v

eh
icle

 ex
ha

us
t), 

en
erg

y 
co

ns
um

pti
on

 (e
.g.

, e
lec

tri
cit

y a
nd

 na
tur

al 
ga

s),
 so

lid
 w

as
te 

(e.
g.,

 
em

iss
ion

s t
ha

t w
ou

ld 
oc

cu
r a

t a
 la

nd
fill

 as
so

cia
ted

 w
ith

 so
lid

 w
as

te 
de

co
mp

os
itio

n),
 an

d w
ate

r c
on

su
mp

tio
n (

e.g
., e

lec
tri

cit
y u

se
d t

o 
de

liv
er 

an
d t

rea
t w

ate
r t

o s
erv

e t
he

 re
gio

n).
  

Bu
ild

ou
t o

f t
he

 Ar
ea

 Pl
an

 w
ou

ld 
res

ult
 in

 sli
gh

tly
 m

or
e b

uil
din

g 
sq

ua
re

 fo
ot

ag
e t

ha
n c

on
sid

er
ed

 in
 th

e R
PU

 EI
S (

as
 sh

ow
n i

n T
ab

le 
12

-5)
. C

on
ve

rse
ly 

(as
 ex

pla
ine

d i
n S

ec
tio

n 1
2.4

.1)
, v

eh
icl

e a
cti

vit
y i

n 
th

e P
lan

 ar
ea

 w
ou

ld 
be

 lo
we

r, w
he

n c
om

pa
re

d t
o t

ha
t e

va
lua

ted
 in

 
th

e R
PU

 EI
S. 

By
 20

35
, th

e c
om

bin
ati

on
 of

 in
cre

as
ed

 bu
ild

ing
 ar

ea
 

an
d d

ec
rea

se
d v

eh
icl

e a
cti

vit
y u

nd
er

 th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
 w

ou
ld 

res
ult

 in
 

a n
et 

de
cre

as
e i

n l
on

g-t
erm

 op
era

tio
na

l G
HG

 em
iss

ion
s f

ro
m 

ex
ist

ing
 20

15
 co

nd
itio

ns
 an

d l
ow

er
 em

iss
ion

s t
ha

n w
ou

ld 
ha

ve
 

oc
cu

rre
d u

nd
er

 th
e R

PU
 EI

S a
na

lys
es

 un
de

r t
he

 pr
oje

ct.
 G

en
era

lly
, 

be
ca

us
e a

 su
bs

tan
tia

l p
or

tio
n o

f “
ne

w”
 de

ve
lop

me
nt

 w
ou

ld 
ac

tu
all

y b
e r

ed
ev

elo
pm

en
t, t

ha
t is

, n
ew

, m
or

e e
ne

rgy
-ef

fic
ien

t 
bu

ild
ing

s w
ou

ld 
rep

lac
e o

lde
r, l

es
s e

ffic
ien

t o
ne

s, 
GH

G 
em

iss
ion

s 
pe

r u
nit

 of
 de

ve
lop

me
nt

 w
ou

ld 
be

 re
du

ce
d. 

Th
e l

ev
el 

of 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

-ge
ne

rat
ed

 G
HG

 em
iss

ion
s f

ro
m 

all
 ne

w 
de

ve
lop

me
nt

 
an

d r
ed

ev
elo

pm
en

t in
 ac

co
rd

an
ce

 w
ith

 th
e A

re
a P

lan
 ca

nn
ot

 be
 

kn
ow

n a
t t

he
 tim

e o
f w

rit
ing

 th
is E

IR/
EIS

. A
lth

ou
gh

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
 

ac
tiv

itie
s in

 th
e P

lan
 ar

ea
 w

ou
ld 

be
 su

bje
ct 

to
 TR

PA
’s B

es
t 

Co
ns

tru
cti

on
 Pr

ac
tic

es
 Po

lic
y t

ha
t w

er
e c

om
pil

ed
 pu

rsu
an

t t
o R

PU
 

EIS
 m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

res
, e

mi
ssi

on
s f

ro
m 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
 ac

tiv
itie

s 
ov

er
 th

e b
uil

do
ut

 pe
rio

d o
f th

e A
rea

 Pl
an

 co
uld

 st
ill 

be
 su

bs
tan

tia
l. 

W
hil

e a
n o

ve
ral

l re
du

cti
on

 in
 G

HG
 em

iss
ion

s f
ro

m 
ex

ist
ing

 
co

nd
itio

ns
 is 

an
tic

ipa
ted

, it
 w

ou
ld 

no
t, h

ow
ev

er,
 be

 su
ffic

ien
t t

o 

Th
es

e r
ec

om
me

nd
ed

 m
ea

su
res

 in
clu

de
, b

ut
 ar

e n
ot

 lim
ite

d t
o: 


 

Ins
ta

llin
g T

an
k-l

es
s o

r E
ne

rg
y E

ffi
cie

nc
y w

at
er

 he
at

er
s 

(E5
) 


 

Ins
ta

llin
g s

ola
r w

at
er

 he
at

er
s (

E3
) 


 

Ins
ta

llin
g e

ne
rg

y e
ffi

cie
nt

 ro
of

ing
 (E

4)
 


 

Re
qu

ire
 En

er
gy

 St
ar

-ra
te

d a
pp

lia
nc

es
 in

 ne
w 

co
ns

tru
cti

on
 (E

9)
 


 

Pr
e-P

lum
b n

ew
 co

ns
tru

cti
on

 fo
r S

ola
r E

ne
rg

y a
nd

 
de

sig
n f

or
 lo

ad
 (E

12
) 


 

Ins
ta

ll l
ow

-fl
ow

 w
at

er
 fix

tu
re

s (
W

1)
 


 

Us
e r

ec
lai

me
d w

at
er

 fo
r i

rri
ga

tio
n (

W
3)

 


 
Pr

ov
ide

 bu
s s

he
lte

rs 
an

d l
an

es
 an

d p
ro

vid
e b

ike
 pa

rki
ng

 
(T1

, T
2, 

an
d T

3) 


 
Pla

nt
 dr

ou
gh

t t
ole

ra
nt

 pl
an

ts 
(V

2)
 


 

Pr
oh

ibi
t g

as
-p

ow
er

ed
 la

nd
sc

ap
ing

 eq
uip

me
nt

 (V
3)

 
 In 

ad
dit

ion
, g

ro
un

d s
ou

rce
 he

at 
pu

mp
s w

ou
ld 

re
du

ce
 th

e n
ee

d f
or

 
na

tu
ral

 ga
s in

 th
e w

int
er

. F
ee

s m
ay

 al
so

 be
 pa

id 
int

o c
arb

on
 of

fse
t 

pr
og

ram
s t

ha
t a

re
 ad

op
ted

 by
 AR

B. 
Of

fse
ts 

pu
rch

as
ed

 to
 m

itig
ate

 
op

era
tio

na
l e

mi
ssi

on
s s

ha
ll b

e s
uff

ici
en

t t
o o

ffs
et 

em
iss

ion
s d

ur
ing

 
th

e f
ull

 op
era

tio
na

l li
fe 

of 
th

e n
ew

 co
ns

tru
cti

on
 pr

oje
ct.

 

de
ve

lop
me

nt/
red

ev
elo

pm
en

t w
ou

ld 
res

ult
 

in 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

- a
nd

 op
era

tio
n-r

ela
ted

 GH
G 

em
iss

ion
s. C

on
str

uc
tio

n-r
ela

ted
 em

iss
ion

s 
wo

uld
 pr

im
ari

ly 
be

 as
so

cia
ted

 w
ith

 he
av

y-
du

ty 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

 eq
uip

me
nt 

an
d t

ru
ck

 an
d 

ve
hic

le 
ex

ha
us

t a
sso

cia
ted

 w
ith

 pr
oje

ct 
de

ve
lop

me
nt.

 Lo
ng

-te
rm

 op
era

tio
na

l 
so

ur
ce

s o
f G

HG
 em

iss
ion

s a
sso

cia
ted

 w
ith

 
the

 Ar
ea

 Pl
an

 w
ou

ld 
inc

lud
e a

rea
 so

ur
ce

s, 
mo

bil
e s

ou
rce

s, e
ne

rgy
 co

ns
um

pti
on

, so
lid

 
wa

ste
, a

nd
 w

ate
r c

on
su

mp
tio

n. 
 

 Bu
ild

ou
t o

f th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
 w

ou
ld 

res
ult

 in
 

slig
htl

y m
or

e b
uil

din
g s

qu
are

 fo
ota

ge
 th

an
 

co
ns

ide
red

 in
 th

e R
PU

 EI
S. 

Co
nv

ers
ely

, 
ve

hic
le 

ac
tiv

ity
 in

 th
e P

lan
 ar

ea
 w

ou
ld 

be
 

low
er.

 By
 20

35
, th

e c
om

bin
ati

on
 of

 
inc

rea
se

d b
uil

din
g a

rea
 an

d d
ec

rea
se

d 
ve

hic
le 

ac
tiv

ity
 un

de
r t

he
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 w

ou
ld 

res
ult

 in
 a 

ne
t d

ec
rea

se
 in

 lo
ng

-te
rm

 
op

era
tio

na
l G

HG
 em

iss
ion

s f
ro

m 
ex

ist
ing

 
20

15
 co

nd
itio

ns
 an

d l
ow

er 
em

iss
ion

s t
ha

n 
wo

uld
 ha

ve
 oc

cu
rre

d u
nd

er 
the

 RP
U 

EIS
 

an
aly

se
s u

nd
er 

the
 pr

oje
ct.

 Ge
ne

ral
ly,

 
be

ca
us

e a
 su

bs
tan

tia
l p

or
tio

n o
f “

ne
w”

 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

wo
uld

 ac
tua

lly
 be

 
red

ev
elo

pm
en

t, t
ha

t is
, n

ew
, m

or
e e

ne
rgy

-

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
111



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

me
et 

Ca
lifo

rn
ia’

s G
HG

 re
du

cti
on

 go
als

. T
hu

s, 
an

tic
ipa

ted
 fu

tu
re

 
GH

G 
em

iss
ion

s in
 th

e P
lan

 ar
ea

 w
ou

ld 
no

t r
es

ult
 in

 m
or

e s
ev

er
e 

im
pa

cts
 th

an
 al

rea
dy

 an
aly

ze
d i

n t
he

 RP
U 

bu
t t

he
 G

HG
 im

pa
ct 

in 
th

e r
eg

ion
 an

d w
ou

ld 
re

ma
in 

sig
nif

ica
nt

 an
d u

na
vo

ida
ble

. 
Im

ple
me

nt
ati

on
 of

 M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re 

12
-1 

wo
uld

 re
du

ce
 G

HG
 

em
iss

ion
s f

ur
th

er,
 bu

t t
he

 ex
ten

t o
f t

his
 ad

dit
ion

al 
re

du
cti

on
 

de
pe

nd
s o

n m
ark

et 
co

nd
itio

ns
, a

va
ila

ble
 te

ch
no

log
y, 

an
d g

en
era

l 
pa

rti
cip

ati
on

 ra
tes

, a
nd

 do
es

 no
t g

ua
ran

tee
 th

at 
Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 

em
iss

ion
s w

ou
ld 

me
et 

Ca
lifo

rn
ia 

GH
G 

re
du

cti
on

 go
als

. 
 

eff
icie

nt 
bu

ild
ing

s w
ou

ld 
rep

lac
e o

lde
r, l

es
s 

eff
icie

nt 
on

es
, G

HG
 em

iss
ion

s p
er 

un
it o

f 
de

ve
lop

me
nt 

wo
uld

 be
 re

du
ce

d. 
Em

iss
ion

s 
fro

m 
co

ns
tru

cti
on

 ac
tiv

itie
s o

ve
r t

he
 bu

ild
ou

t 
pe

rio
d o

f th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
 co

uld
 st

ill b
e 

su
bs

tan
tia

l. W
hil

e a
n o

ve
ral

l re
du

cti
on

 in
 

GH
G e

mi
ssi

on
s f

ro
m 

ex
ist

ing
 co

nd
itio

ns
 is 

an
tic

ipa
ted

, it
 w

ou
ld 

no
t, h

ow
ev

er,
 be

 
su

ffic
ien

t to
 m

ee
t C

ali
for

nia
’s G

HG
 re

du
cti

on
 

go
als

. T
hu

s, a
nti

cip
ate

d f
utu

re 
GH

G 
em

iss
ion

s in
 th

e P
lan

 ar
ea

 w
ou

ld 
no

t r
es

ult
 in

 
mo

re 
se

ve
re 

im
pa

cts
 th

an
 al

rea
dy

 an
aly

ze
d 

in 
the

 RP
U 

bu
t th

e G
HG

 im
pa

ct 
in 

the
 re

gio
n 

an
d w

ou
ld 

rem
ain

 sig
nif

ica
nt.

 
Im

ple
me

nta
tio

n o
f M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

re 
12

-1 
wo

uld
 re

du
ce

 GH
G e

mi
ssi

on
s f

ur
the

r, b
ut 

the
 ex

ten
t o

f th
is a

dd
itio

na
l re

du
cti

on
 

de
pe

nd
s o

n m
ark

et 
co

nd
itio

ns
, a

va
ila

ble
 

tec
hn

olo
gy

, a
nd

 ge
ne

ral
 pa

rti
cip

ati
on

 ra
tes

, 
an

d d
oe

s n
ot 

gu
ara

nte
e t

ha
t A

rea
 Pl

an
 

em
iss

ion
s w

ou
ld 

me
et 

Ca
lifo

rni
a G

HG
 

red
uc

tio
n g

oa
ls. 

Th
e G

ov
ern

ing
 Bo

ard
 fin

ds
 

tha
t le

ga
l, e

co
no

mi
c, 

so
cia

l, a
nd

 te
ch

nic
al 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
s m

ak
e f

ur
th

er 
mi

tig
ati

on
 of

 
th

is i
mp

ac
t in

fea
sib

le.
 Th

er
efo

re,
 th

is 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
112



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

im
pa

ct 
is c

on
sid

er
ed

 sig
nif

ica
nt

 an
d 

un
av

oid
ab

le.
 

 To
 m

ee
t T

RP
A r

eq
uir

em
en

ts 
for

 th
e 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
 of

 al
ter

na
tiv

es
, th

e D
raf

t 
EIR

/E
IS 

ev
alu

ate
d t

he
 po

ten
tia

l im
pa

cts
 of

 
fou

r A
rea

 Pl
an

 al
ter

na
tiv

es
, in

clu
din

g t
he

 no
 

pr
oje

ct 
alt

ern
ati

ve
 (A

lte
rn

ati
ve

 1)
. N

o 
fea

sib
le 

alt
er

na
tiv

es
, in

 ad
dit

ion
al 

to
 th

os
e 

pr
op

os
ed

 in
 th

e D
raf

t E
IR/

EIS
, h

av
e b

ee
n 

ide
nt

ifie
d t

ha
t w

ou
ld 

att
ain

 th
e o

bje
cti

ve
s 

of 
th

e A
rea

 Pl
an

 an
d r

ed
uc

e t
he

 sig
nif

ica
nt

 
an

d u
na

vo
ida

ble
 im

pa
ct 

of 
inc

rea
se

d 
ov

er
all

 G
HG

 em
iss

ion
s. T

he
 Fi

na
l A

rea
 Pl

an
 

an
d m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

res
 in

 th
e F

ina
l E

IR/
EIS

 
re

du
ce

 th
e r

ate
 of

 G
HG

 em
iss

ion
s p

er
 

ca
pit

a t
o t

he
 ex

ten
t f

ea
sib

le.
 Th

us
, th

e 
Go

ve
rn

ing
 Bo

ard
 fin

ds
 th

at 
all

 re
as

on
ab

le 
alt

er
na

tiv
es

 w
er

e r
ev

iew
ed

, a
na

lyz
ed

, a
nd

 
dis

cu
sse

d i
n t

he
 EI

R/
EIS

 re
vie

w 
pr

oc
es

s. 
 (D

raf
t E

IR/
EIS

, p
p. 

12
-15

 to
 12

-28
; F

ina
l 

EIR
/E

IS,
 p.

 2-
34

; s
ee

 al
so

 re
sp

on
se

 to
 

co
mm

en
t 1

0-6
.) 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
113



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

Cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

Im
pa

ct
s 

 
 

 
 

Cu
m

ul
at

iv
e 

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
Ci

rc
ul

at
io

n 
 

 
 

 

Cu
mu

lat
ive

 Im
pa

ct 
10

-1:
 Ro

ad
wa

y L
OS

 un
de

r 2
03

5 c
um

ula
tiv

e 
sce

na
rio

s. 
 

(S)
 Ta

ble
 19

-3 
sh

ow
s e

xis
tin

g r
oa

dw
ay

 di
rec

tio
na

l v
olu

me
 an

d L
OS

 
an

d t
he

 cu
mu

lat
ive

 pe
ak

-ho
ur

 di
rec

tio
na

l ro
ad

wa
y t

raf
fic

 vo
lum

es
 

an
d L

OS
 fo

r t
he

 pr
oje

ct,
 w

hic
h i

nc
lud

es
 bu

ild
ou

t o
f th

e A
re

a P
lan

. 
In 

fut
ur

e c
um

ula
tiv

e c
on

dit
ion

s f
or

 th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
, L

OS
 on

 th
e 

se
gm

en
t o

f S
R 2

8 e
as

t o
f t

he
 SR

 89
 be

tw
ee

n t
he

 W
ye

 in
ter

se
cti

on
 

an
d G

ro
ve

 St
re

et 
in 

Ta
ho

e C
ity

 w
ou

ld 
wo

rse
n f

ro
m 

LO
S E

 (fo
r f

ou
r 

ho
ur

s p
er

 da
y o

r le
ss)

 in
 th

e w
es

tb
ou

nd
 di

rec
tio

n t
o L

OS
 F.

 Th
e 

ea
stb

ou
nd

 di
rec

tio
n, 

wh
ich

 is 
cu

rre
nt

ly 
at 

LO
S F

, w
ou

ld 
wo

rse
n. 

Be
ca

us
e t

his
 ro

ad
wa

y s
eg

me
nt

 w
ou

ld 
op

er
ate

 at
 an

 un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le 

lev
el,

 th
is w

ou
ld 

be
 a 

sig
nif

ica
nt

 cu
mu

lat
ive

 im
pa

ct.
 As

 de
scr

ibe
d 

in 
Im

pa
ct 

10
-1,

 th
e p

ro
po

se
d A

rea
 Pl

an
 w

ou
ld 

ha
ve

 a 
sig

nif
ica

nt
 

im
pa

ct 
rel

ate
d t

o L
OS

 in
 th

is r
oa

dw
ay

 se
gm

en
t, t

hu
s t

he
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 

wo
uld

 m
ak

e a
 co

ns
ide

rab
le 

co
nt

rib
ut

ion
 to

 a 
cu

mu
lat

ive
ly 

sig
nif

ica
nt

 im
pa

ct.
 As

 de
scr

ibe
d u

nd
er

 Im
pa

ct 
10

-1,
 af

ter
 

im
ple

me
nt

ati
on

 of
 al

l fe
as

ibl
e m

itig
ati

on
, th

is i
mp

ac
t w

ou
ld 

re
ma

in 
sig

nif
ica

nt
 an

d u
na

vo
ida

ble
. A

s t
his

 is 
a r

ec
og

niz
ed

 pr
ob

lem
, th

e 
Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 pr

op
os

es
 to

 ad
op

t a
 su

bs
tit

ut
e s

tan
da

rd
 as

 al
low

ed
 by

 
th

e R
eg

ion
al 

Pla
n, 

to
 m

od
ify

 th
e c

ur
re

nt
 LO

S s
tan

da
rd

s a
s 

de
scr

ibe
d i

n A
rea

 Po
lic

y T
-P-

6. 
If t

his
 po

lic
y i

s a
do

pt
ed

, th
e L

OS
 

im
pa

ct 
at 

SR
 28

 in
 Ta

ho
e C

ity
 w

ou
ld 

be
 co

ns
ist

en
t w

ith
 th

e 
ad

op
ted

 LO
S s

tan
da

rd
.  

As
 de

scr
ibe

d i
n I

mp
ac

t 1
0-1

, n
o a

dd
itio

na
l m

itig
ati

on
 is 

fea
sib

le.
 

SU
  

Fin
din

g: 
 Sp

ec
ific

 co
ns

ide
rat

ion
s, 

su
ch

 as
 

ec
on

om
ic,

 so
cia

l, o
r t

ec
hn

ica
l, m

ak
e 

inf
ea

sib
le 

th
e m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

re
 or

 pr
oje

ct 
alt

er
na

tiv
es

 di
scu

sse
d i

n t
he

 en
vir

on
me

nt
al 

im
pa

ct 
sta

tem
en

t o
n t

he
 pr

oje
ct.

 
 Ra

tio
na

le:
 In

 fu
tu

re 
cu

mu
lat

ive
 co

nd
itio

ns
 

for
 th

e p
ro

jec
t, L

OS
 on

 th
e s

eg
me

nt
 of

 SR
 

28
 ea

st 
of 

th
e S

R 8
9 b

etw
ee

n t
he

 W
ye

 
int

ers
ec

tio
n a

nd
 G

ro
ve

 St
ree

t in
 Ta

ho
e C

ity
 

wo
uld

 w
or

se
n f

ro
m 

LO
S E

 (fo
r f

ou
r h

ou
rs 

pe
r d

ay
 or

 le
ss)

 in
 th

e w
es

tb
ou

nd
 di

rec
tio

n 
to

 LO
S F

. T
he

 ea
stb

ou
nd

 di
rec

tio
n, 

wh
ich

 is 
cu

rre
nt

ly 
at 

LO
S F

, w
ou

ld 
wo

rse
n. 

 To
 le

sse
n 

th
es

e i
mp

ac
ts,

 th
e p

ro
jec

t is
 re

qu
ire

d t
o 

im
ple

me
nt

 M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
res

 10
-1a

, 1
0-

1b
, 1

0-1
c, 

10
-1d

, 1
0-1

e, 
10

-1f
. 1

0-1
g, 

an
d 

10
-1h

. S
pe

cif
ica

lly
, th

e p
ro

jec
t s

ha
ll p

ro
vid

e 
a p

ed
es

tri
an

 hy
br

id 
be

ac
on

 cr
os

sin
g a

t t
he

 
SR

 28
 an

d G
ro

ve
 St

re
et 

int
ers

ec
tio

n, 
wh

ich
 

wo
uld

 re
du

ce
 th

e i
nfl

ue
nc

e o
f p

ed
es

tri
an

 
cro

ssi
ng

s o
n L

OS
; e

sta
bli

sh
 a 

Co
un

ty 
Se

rvi
ce

 
Ar

ea
 Zo

ne
 of

 Be
ne

fit
 to

 fu
nd

 ex
pa

ns
ion

 of
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
114

khern
Line



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

tra
ns

it c
ap

ac
ity

, w
hic

h w
ou

ld 
re

du
ce

 tr
aff

ic 
vo

lum
es

; re
qu

ire
 pa

ym
en

t o
f T

ah
oe

 ar
ea

 
tra

ffic
 m

itig
ati

on
 fe

es
 to

 Pl
ac

er
 Co

un
ty 

to
 

fun
d i

de
nt

ifie
d r

eg
ion

al 
Ca

pit
al 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t P

ro
jec

ts;
 ex

pa
nd

 
re

qu
ire

me
nt

s f
or

 tr
an

sp
or

tat
ion

 de
ma

nd
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt
 pl

an
s f

or
 a 

gre
ate

r n
um

be
r o

f 
pr

oje
cts

 th
at 

ge
ne

rat
e e

mp
loy

ee
s; 

es
tab

lish
 

a c
om

pr
eh

en
siv

e w
ay

fin
din

g p
ro

gra
m 

for
 

pa
rki

ng
 an

d m
ult

i-m
od

al 
tra

ns
po

rta
tio

n; 
co

nd
uc

t lo
ng

- te
rm

 m
on

ito
rin

g a
nd

 ad
ap

tiv
e 

ma
na

ge
me

nt
 an

d m
ob

ilit
y s

tra
teg

ies
; 

pr
ov

ide
 a 

fou
r-y

ea
r r

ev
iew

 of
 ve

hic
le 

tri
ps

 
an

d m
ob

ilit
y s

tra
teg

ies
; a

nd
 im

ple
me

nt
 

TR
PA

’s C
on

ge
sti

on
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
ro

ce
ss.

 
Th

e r
oa

dw
ay

 LO
S a

fte
r im

ple
me

nt
ati

on
 of

 
th

es
e m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

res
 w

ou
ld 

re
ma

in 
un

ac
ce

pt
ab

le.
 Th

e G
ov

ern
ing

 Bo
ard

 fin
ds

 
th

at 
leg

al,
 ec

on
om

ic,
 so

cia
l, a

nd
 te

ch
nic

al 
co

ns
ide

rat
ion

s m
ak

e f
ur

th
er 

mi
tig

ati
on

 of
 

th
is i

mp
ac

t in
fea

sib
le.

 Th
er

efo
re,

 th
is 

im
pa

ct 
is c

on
sid

er
ed

 sig
nif

ica
nt

 an
d 

un
av

oid
ab

le.
  

 Th
e G

ov
er

nin
g B

oa
rd

 fu
rth

er
 fin

ds
 th

at 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
115



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

sp
ec

ific
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

s m
ak

e i
nfe

as
ibl

e, 
an

y 
rea

so
na

ble
 al

ter
na

tiv
es

 th
at 

wo
uld

 bo
th

 
me

et 
th

e o
bje

cti
ve

s o
f t

he
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 an

d  
re

du
ce

 th
e s

ign
ific

an
t a

nd
 un

av
oid

ab
le 

im
pa

ct 
on

 th
e L

OS
 on

 SR
 28

 be
tw

ee
n t

he
 

Ta
ho

e C
ity

 W
ye

 an
d G

ro
ve

 St
re

et.
 To

 m
ee

t 
TR

PA
 re

qu
ire

me
nt

s f
or

 th
e c

on
sid

er
ati

on
 of

 
alt

er
na

tiv
es

, th
e D

raf
t E

IR/
EIS

 ev
alu

ate
d t

he
 

po
ten

tia
l im

pa
cts

 of
 fo

ur
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 

alt
er

na
tiv

es
, in

clu
din

g t
he

 no
 pr

oje
ct 

alt
er

na
tiv

e (
Alt

ern
ati

ve
 4)

. N
o f

ea
sib

le 
alt

er
na

tiv
es

, in
 ad

dit
ion

al 
to

 th
os

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 in

 th
e D

raf
t E

IR/
EIS

, h
av

e b
ee

n 
ide

nt
ifie

d t
ha

t w
ou

ld 
att

ain
 th

e o
bje

cti
ve

s 
of 

th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
 an

d r
ed

uc
e t

he
 sig

nif
ica

nt
 

an
d u

na
vo

ida
ble

 im
pa

ct 
on

 ro
ad

wa
y L

OS
. 

Th
e F

ina
l A

rea
 Pl

an
 an

d m
itig

ati
on

 
me

as
ur

es
 in

 th
e F

ina
l E

IR/
EIS

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
ro

ad
wa

y L
OS

 im
pa

ct 
to

 th
e e

xte
nt

 fe
as

ibl
e. 

Th
us

, th
e G

ov
er

nin
g B

oa
rd

 fin
ds

 th
at 

all
 

rea
so

na
ble

 al
ter

na
tiv

es
 w

er
e r

ev
iew

ed
, 

an
aly

ze
d, 

an
d d

isc
us

se
d i

n t
he

 EI
R/

EIS
 

rev
iew

 pr
oc

es
s. 

 (D
raf

t E
IR/

EIS
, p

p. 
19

-15
 to

 19
-16

.) 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
116



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

Cu
mu

lat
ive

 Im
pa

ct 
10

-2:
 Im

pa
ct 

on
 lo

ca
l re

sid
en

tia
l s

tre
et

s u
nd

er
 

20
35

 cu
mu

lat
ive

 sc
en

ar
ios

.  
(S)

 In
 fu

tu
re 

cu
mu

lat
ive

 pe
ak

 su
mm

er
 tr

aff
ic 

pe
rio

ds
, th

e c
ap

ac
ity

 
of 

SR
 28

 in
 th

e T
ah

oe
 Ci

ty 
To

wn
 Ce

nt
er 

wi
ll c

on
tin

ue
 to

 be
 

ex
ce

ed
ed

, re
su

ltin
g i

n l
on

g t
raf

fic
 qu

eu
es

, p
art

icu
lar

ly 
in 

th
e 

we
stb

ou
nd

 di
re

cti
on

. L
on

g t
raf

fic
 qu

eu
es

 ca
n r

es
ult

 in
 th

e 
div

ers
ion

 of
 so

me
 tr

aff
ic 

on
to

 lo
ca

l re
sid

en
tia

l st
ree

ts.
 In

 th
is c

as
e, 

Fa
irw

ay
 Dr

ive
 co

uld
 be

 af
fec

ted
 by

 di
ve

rte
d t

raf
fic

. G
ive

n t
he

 
Pla

ce
r C

ou
nt

y g
uid

eli
ne

 re
ga

rd
ing

 tr
aff

ic 
vo

lum
es

 on
 re

sid
en

tia
l 

str
ee

ts 
(2,

50
0 v

eh
icl

es
 pe

r d
ay

) a
nd

 th
e e

xis
tin

g t
raf

fic
 vo

lum
e (

60
0 

ve
hic

les
 pe

r d
ay

), d
ail

y t
raf

fic
 vo

lum
e o

n F
air

wa
y D

riv
e w

ou
ld 

ha
ve

 
to

 in
cre

as
e b

y 1
,90

0 v
eh

icl
es

 pe
r d

ay
 to

 ex
ce

ed
 ca

pa
cit

y. 
Ta

ble
 19

-
4 s

ho
ws

 th
e a

ve
rag

e d
ail

y t
rip

s (
AD

T) 
lik

ely
 to

 oc
cu

r o
n s

tu
dy

 
ro

ad
wa

y s
eg

me
nt

s u
nd

er
 fu

tu
re 

cu
mu

lat
ive

 co
nd

itio
ns

 th
e p

ro
jec

t. 
Un

de
r c

um
ula

tiv
e c

on
dit

ion
s, 

AD
T o

n S
R 2

8 i
n T

ah
oe

 Ci
ty 

be
tw

ee
n 

Gr
ov

e S
tre

et 
an

d J
ac

kp
ine

 St
re

et 
is e

xp
ec

ted
 to

 in
cre

as
e b

y a
 to

tal
 

of 
2,3

00
 ve

hic
les

 pe
r d

ay
 un

de
r t

he
 pr

op
os

ed
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
. W

hil
e 

th
ere

 ar
e f

ac
to

rs 
th

at 
ind

ica
te 

ac
tu

al 
div

ers
ion

 vo
lum

es
 w

ill 
be

 
su

bs
tan

tia
lly

 be
low

 th
e A

DT
 fig

ur
es

 di
scu

sse
d a

bo
ve

, su
ch

 as
 th

e 
pr

op
or

tio
n o

f tr
aff

ic 
th

at 
is b

ou
nd

 to
 Ta

ho
e C

ity
 or

 to
 SR

 89
 so

ut
h 

an
d t

he
 pr

op
or

tio
n o

f d
ail

y t
raf

fic
 in

cre
as

e t
ha

t w
ill 

oc
cu

r d
ur

ing
 

pe
rio

ds
 of

 tr
aff

ic 
co

ng
es

tio
n, 

th
is i

mp
ac

t is
 st

ill 
co

ns
ide

re
d t

o b
e a

 
po

ten
tia

lly
 sig

nif
ica

nt
 cu

mu
lat

ive
 im

pa
ct.

 As
 di

scu
sse

d i
n I

mp
ac

t 
10

-2 
in 

Ch
ap

ter
 10

, th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
 w

ou
ld 

co
nt

rib
ut

e t
o t

he
 in

cre
as

e 
in 

AD
T o

n t
his

 ro
ad

wa
y s

eg
me

nt
. W

hil
e t

he
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 by

 its
elf

 
wo

uld
 no

t r
es

ult
 in

 sig
nif

ica
nt

 im
pa

cts
, it

 w
ou

ld 
ma

ke
 a 

co
ns

ide
ra

ble
 co

nt
rib

ut
ion

 to
 a 

po
te

nt
ial

 cu
mu

lat
ive

ly 
sig

nif
ica

nt
 

im
pa

ct 
rel

ate
d t

o t
raf

fic
 di

ve
rsi

on
 on

to
 lo

ca
l st

re
ets

.  

Cu
mu

lat
ive

 M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re

 10
-2:

 Fa
irw

ay
 D

riv
e m

on
ito

rin
g 

an
d t

ra
ffi

c m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ro
gra

m 
At

 le
as

t e
ve

ry 
5 y

ea
rs,

 Pl
ac

er
 Co

un
ty 

wo
uld

 co
nd

uc
t t

raf
fic

 co
un

ts 
on

 
Fa

irw
ay

 Dr
ive

 be
tw

ee
n B

un
ke

r D
riv

e a
nd

 G
ro

ve
 St

re
et 

for
 a 

tw
o-

we
ek

 pe
rio

d i
n e

arl
y A

ug
us

t (p
ea

k s
um

me
r t

raf
fic

 se
as

on
). T

he
se

 
co

un
ts 

wi
ll b

e s
um

ma
riz

ed
 by

 da
y a

nd
 by

 di
rec

tio
n. 

If o
n a

ny
 on

e d
ay

 
th

e d
ail

y t
wo

-w
ay

 to
tal

 tr
aff

ic 
vo

lum
e e

xc
ee

ds
 1,

70
0 v

eh
icl

es
, th

e 
Co

un
ty 

wi
ll i

mp
lem

en
t t

raf
fic

 m
an

ag
em

en
t m

ea
su

res
 to

 re
du

ce
 

div
ers

ion
 tr

aff
ic 

on
 Fa

irw
ay

 Dr
ive

 an
d c

on
ne

cti
ng

 lo
ca

l re
sid

en
tia

l 
str

ee
ts 

to
 m

ain
tai

n d
ail

y t
wo

-w
ay

 to
tal

 tr
aff

ic 
vo

lum
es

 be
low

 2,
50

0 
ve

hic
les

. T
raf

fic
 m

an
ag

em
en

t m
ea

su
res

 co
uld

 in
clu

de
, b

ut
 ar

e n
ot

 
lim

ite
d t

o: 
ad

dit
ion

al 
sig

na
ge

, in
cre

as
ed

 tr
aff

ic 
sp

ee
d e

nfo
rce

me
nt

, 
sp

ee
d c

us
hio

ns
, a

nd
 tu

rn
 pr

oh
ibi

tio
ns

. 

LT
S  

 

Fin
din

g: 
Ch

an
ge

s o
r a

lte
rat

ion
s h

av
e b

ee
n 

re
qu

ire
d i

n o
r in

co
rp

or
ate

d i
nt

o s
uc

h 
pr

oje
ct 

wh
ich

 av
oid

 or
 re

du
ce

 th
e 

sig
nif

ica
nt

 ad
ve

rse
 en

vir
on

me
nt

al  
eff

ec
ts 

to
 

a l
es

s t
ha

n s
ign

ific
an

t le
ve

l. 
 Ra

tio
na

le:
 U

nd
er

 cu
mu

lat
ive

 co
nd

itio
ns

, 
AD

T o
n S

R 2
8 i

n T
ah

oe
 Ci

ty 
be

tw
ee

n G
ro

ve
 

Str
ee

t a
nd

 Ja
ck

pin
e S

tre
et 

is e
xp

ec
ted

 to
 

inc
rea

se
 by

 a 
to

tal
 of

 2,
30

0 v
eh

icl
es

 pe
r d

ay
 

un
de

r t
he

 pr
op

os
ed

 Ar
ea

 Pl
an

. W
hil

e t
he

re
 

are
 fa

cto
rs 

th
at 

ind
ica

te 
ac

tu
al 

div
er

sio
n 

vo
lum

es
 w

ill 
be

 su
bs

tan
tia

lly
 be

low
 th

e A
DT

 
fig

ur
es

 di
scu

sse
d a

bo
ve

, s
uc

h a
s t

he
 

pr
op

or
tio

n o
f tr

aff
ic 

th
at 

is b
ou

nd
 to

 Ta
ho

e 
Cit

y o
r t

o S
R 8

9 s
ou

th
 an

d t
he

 pr
op

or
tio

n o
f 

da
ily

 tr
aff

ic 
inc

rea
se

 th
at 

wi
ll o

cc
ur

 du
rin

g 
pe

rio
ds

 of
 tr

aff
ic 

co
ng

es
tio

n, 
th

e A
rea

 Pl
an

 
wo

uld
 co

nt
rib

ut
e t

o t
he

 in
cre

as
e i

n A
DT

 on
 

Fa
irw

ay
 Dr

ive
. W

hil
e t

he
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 by

 its
elf

 
wo

uld
 no

t r
es

ult
 in

 sig
nif

ica
nt

 im
pa

cts
, it

 
wo

uld
 m

ak
e a

 co
ns

ide
rab

le 
co

nt
rib

ut
ion

 to
 

a p
ot

en
tia

l c
um

ula
tiv

ely
 sig

nif
ica

nt
 im

pa
ct 

rel
ate

d t
o t

raf
fic

 di
ve

rsi
on

 on
to

 lo
ca

l 
str

ee
ts.

 Cu
mu

lat
ive

 M
itig

ati
on

 M
ea

su
re 

10
-

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
117



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

2 w
ill 

re
qu

ire
 m

on
ito

rin
g o

n F
air

wa
y D

riv
e 

an
d i

mp
lem

en
tat

ion
 of

 a 
tra

ffic
 

ma
na

ge
me

nt
 pl

an
. T

his
 m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

re
 

pla
n w

ill 
re

du
ce

 po
ten

tia
l im

pa
cts

 to
 a 

les
s-

th
an

-si
gn

ific
an

t le
ve

l.  
 (D

raf
t E

IR/
EIS

, p
p. 

19
-16

 to
 19

-17
.)  

Cu
mu

lat
ive

 Im
pa

ct 
10

-3:
 In

te
rse

cti
on

 LO
S u

nd
er

 fu
tu

re
 

cu
mu

lat
ive

 sc
en

ar
ios

.  
(S)

 Ta
ble

 19
-4 

sh
ow

s e
xis

tin
g L

OS
 at

 st
ud

y i
nt

ers
ec

tio
ns

 w
ith

in 
th

e 
Pla

n a
rea

 an
d s

um
ma

riz
es

 th
e i

nt
ers

ec
tio

n L
OS

 co
nd

itio
ns

 un
de

r 
fut

ur
e c

um
ula

tiv
e c

on
dit

ion
s, 

inc
lud

ing
 bo

th
 th

e A
rea

 Pl
an

 an
d 

Lo
dg

e. 
Un

de
r e

xis
tin

g c
on

dit
ion

s a
ll s

tu
dy

 in
ter

se
cti

on
s o

pe
rat

e a
t 

ac
ce

pt
ab

le 
lev

els
 ex

ce
pt

 fo
r t

he
 SR

 28
/G

ro
ve

 St
re

et 
int

ers
ec

tio
n, 

wh
ich

 op
er

ate
d a

t a
n u

na
cc

ep
tab

le 
LO

S F
 un

de
r s

um
me

r p
ea

k P
M

 
co

nd
itio

ns
. A

s s
ho

wn
 in

 Ta
ble

 19
-4,

 un
de

r f
ut

ur
e c

um
ula

tiv
e 

co
nd

itio
ns

, e
xis

tin
g u

na
cc

ep
tab

le 
LO

S F
 co

nd
itio

ns
 at

 th
e S

R 2
8 a

nd
 

Gr
ov

e S
tre

et 
int

ers
ec

tio
n i

n T
ah

oe
 Ci

ty 
wo

uld
 be

 ex
ac

er
ba

ted
. 

Be
ca

us
e a

lre
ad

y u
na

cc
ep

tab
le 

int
er

se
cti

on
 LO

S w
ou

ld 
be

 
de

gra
de

d, 
th

is w
ou

ld 
be

 a 
sig

nif
ica

nt
 cu

mu
lat

ive
 im

pa
ct.

 As
 

de
scr

ibe
d i

n I
mp

ac
t 1

0-3
 in

 Ch
ap

ter
 10

, th
e p

ro
po

se
d A

rea
 Pl

an
 

wo
uld

 ha
ve

 a 
sig

nif
ica

nt
 im

pa
ct 

rel
ate

d t
o L

OS
 at

 th
is i

nt
ers

ec
tio

n, 
th

is w
ou

ld 
ma

ke
 a 

co
ns

ide
ra

ble
 co

nt
rib

ut
ion

 to
 a 

cu
mu

lat
ive

ly 
sig

nif
ica

nt
 im

pa
ct.

 As
 de

scr
ibe

d u
nd

er
 Im

pa
ct 

10
-3,

 af
ter

 
im

ple
me

nt
ati

on
 of

 al
l fe

as
ibl

e m
itig

ati
on

, th
is i

mp
ac

t w
ou

ld 
re

ma
in 

sig
nif

ica
nt

 an
d u

na
vo

ida
ble

. A
s t

his
 is 

a r
ec

og
niz

ed
 pr

ob
lem

, th
e 

Ar
ea

 Pl
an

 pr
op

os
es

 to
 in

clu
de

 a 
su

bs
tit

ut
e s

tan
da

rd
 th

at 
wo

uld
 

As
 de

scr
ibe

d i
n C

um
ula

tiv
e I

mp
ac

t 1
0-3

, n
o a

dd
itio

na
l m

itig
ati

on
 is 

fea
sib

le.
 

SU
  

Fin
din

g: 
Sp

ec
ific

 co
ns

ide
rat

ion
s, 

su
ch

 as
 

ec
on

om
ic,

 so
cia

l, o
r t

ec
hn

ica
l, m

ak
e 

inf
ea

sib
le 

th
e m

itig
ati

on
 m

ea
su

re
 or

 pr
oje

ct 
alt

er
na

tiv
es

 di
scu

sse
d i

n t
he

 en
vir

on
me

nt
al 

im
pa

ct 
sta

tem
en

t o
n t

he
 pr

oje
ct.

 
 Ra

tio
na

le:
 U

nd
er

 fu
tu

re
 cu

mu
lat

ive
 

co
nd

itio
ns

, e
xis

tin
g u

na
cc

ep
tab

le 
LO

S F
 

co
nd

itio
ns

 at
 th

e S
R 2

8 a
nd

 G
ro

ve
 St

ree
t 

int
ers

ec
tio

n i
n T

ah
oe

 Ci
ty 

wo
uld

 be
 

ex
ac

er
ba

ted
. T

he
 pr

oje
ct 

ha
s in

co
rp

or
ate

d 
M

itig
ati

on
 M

ea
su

res
 10

-3a
 an

d 1
03

-b,
 

wh
ich

 w
ill 

les
s t

his
 im

pa
ct.

 Sp
ec

ific
all

y, 
th

e 
pr

oje
ct 

sh
all

 pr
ov

ide
 a 

pe
de

str
ian

 hy
br

id 
be

ac
on

 cr
os

sin
g a

t t
he

 SR
 28

 an
d G

ro
ve

 
Str

ee
t in

ter
se

cti
on

, w
hic

h w
ou

ld 
re

du
ce

 th
e 

inf
lue

nc
e o

f p
ed

es
tri

an
 cr

os
sin

gs
 on

 LO
S; 

es
tab

lish
 a 

Co
un

ty 
Se

rvi
ce

 Ar
ea

 Zo
ne

 of
 

Be
ne

fit
 to

 fu
nd

 ex
pa

ns
ion

 of
 tr

an
sit

 
ca

pa
cit

y, 
wh

ich
 w

ou
ld 

re
du

ce
 tr

aff
ic 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
118



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

mo
dif

y t
he

 cu
rre

nt
 LO

S s
tan

da
rd

s a
s d

es
cri

be
d i

n A
rea

 Po
lic

y T
-P-

6. 
If t

his
 po

lic
y i

s a
do

pt
ed

, th
e L

OS
 im

pa
ct 

at 
SR

 28
 an

d G
ro

ve
 St

ree
t 

int
ers

ec
tio

n i
n T

ah
oe

 Ci
ty 

wo
uld

 be
 co

ns
ist

en
t w

ith
 th

e a
do

pt
ed

 
LO

S s
tan

da
rd

. 

vo
lum

es
; re

qu
ire

 pa
ym

en
t o

f T
ah

oe
 ar

ea
 

tra
ffic

 m
itig

ati
on

 fe
es

 to
 Pl

ac
er

 Co
un

ty 
to

 
fun

d i
de

nt
ifie

d r
eg

ion
al 

Ca
pit

al 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
ro

jec
ts;

 ex
pa

nd
 

re
qu

ire
me

nt
s f

or
 tr

an
sp

or
tat

ion
 de

ma
nd

 
ma

na
ge

me
nt

 pl
an

s f
or

 a 
gre

ate
r n

um
be

r o
f 

pr
oje

cts
 th

at 
ge

ne
rat

e e
mp

loy
ee

s; 
es

tab
lish

 
a c

om
pr

eh
en

siv
e w

ay
fin

din
g p

ro
gra

m 
for

 
pa

rki
ng

 an
d m

ult
i-m

od
al 

tra
ns

po
rta

tio
n; 

co
nd

uc
t lo

ng
-te

rm
 m

on
ito

rin
g a

nd
 ad

ap
tiv

e 
ma

na
ge

me
nt

 an
d m

ob
ilit

y s
tra

teg
ies

; 
pr

ov
ide

 a 
fou

r-y
ea

r r
ev

iew
 of

 ve
hic

le 
tri

ps
 

an
d m

ob
ilit

y s
tra

teg
ies

; a
nd

 im
ple

me
nt

 
TR

PA
’s C

on
ge

sti
on

 M
an

ag
em

en
t P

ro
ce

ss.
 

Th
e i

nt
ers

ec
tio

n L
OS

 af
ter

 im
ple

me
nt

ati
on

 
of 

th
es

e m
itig

ati
on

 m
ea

su
res

 w
ou

ld 
rem

ain
 

un
ac

ce
pt

ab
le.

 Th
e G

ov
ern

ing
 Bo

ard
 fin

ds
 

th
at 

leg
al,

 ec
on

om
ic,

 so
cia

l, a
nd

 te
ch

nic
al 

co
ns

ide
rat

ion
s m

ak
e f

ur
th

er 
mi

tig
ati

on
 of

 
th

is i
mp

ac
t in

fea
sib

le.
 Th

er
efo

re,
 th

is 
im

pa
ct 

is c
on

sid
er

ed
 sig

nif
ica

nt
 an

d 
un

av
oid

ab
le.

 
 Th

e G
ov

er
nin

g B
oa

rd
 fu

rth
er

 fin
ds

 th
at 

sp
ec

ific
 co

ns
ide

rat
ion

s m
ak

e i
nfe

as
ibl

e, 
an

y 
rea

so
na

ble
 al

ter
na

tiv
es

 th
at 

wo
uld

 bo
th

 
me

et 
th

e o
bje

cti
ve

s o
f t

he
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 an

d 
re

du
ce

 th
e s

ign
ific

an
t a

nd
 un

av
oid

ab
le 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
119



 
 

 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 A

dv
er

se
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

ta
l I

m
pa

ct
 (L

ev
el

 o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

Be
fo

re
 M

iti
ga

tio
n)

 
Ad

op
te

d 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

M
ea

su
re

(s
) 

Le
ve

l o
f 

Si
gn

ifi
ca

nc
e 

af
te

r 
M

iti
ga

tio
n 

 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 

im
pa

ct 
on

 th
e S

R 2
8/

Gr
ov

e S
tre

et 
int

ers
ec

tio
n L

OS
. T

o m
ee

t T
RP

A 
re

qu
ire

me
nt

s f
or

 th
e c

on
sid

er
ati

on
 of

 
alt

er
na

tiv
es

, th
e D

raf
t E

IR/
EIS

 ev
alu

ate
d t

he
 

po
ten

tia
l im

pa
cts

 of
 fo

ur
 Ar

ea
 Pl

an
 

alt
er

na
tiv

es
, in

clu
din

g t
he

 no
 pr

oje
ct 

alt
er

na
tiv

e (
Alt

ern
ati

ve
 4)

. N
o f

ea
sib

le 
alt

er
na

tiv
es

, in
 ad

dit
ion

al 
to

 th
os

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 in

 th
e D

raf
t E

IR/
EIS

, h
av

e b
ee

n 
ide

nt
ifie

d t
ha

t w
ou

ld 
att

ain
 th

e o
bje

cti
ve

s 
of 

th
e A

rea
 Pl

an
 an

d r
ed

uc
e t

he
 sig

nif
ica

nt
 

an
d u

na
vo

ida
ble

 im
pa

ct 
on

 in
ter

se
cti

on
 

LO
S. 

Th
e F

ina
l A

re
a P

lan
 an

d m
itig

ati
on

 
me

as
ur

es
 in

 th
e F

ina
l E

IR/
EIS

 re
du

ce
 th

e 
int

ers
ec

tio
n L

OS
 im

pa
ct 

to
 th

e e
xte

nt
 

fea
sib

le.
 Th

us
, th

e G
ov

er
nin

g B
oa

rd
 fin

ds
 

th
at 

all
 re

as
on

ab
le 

alt
er

na
tiv

es
 w

er
e 

rev
iew

ed
, a

na
lyz

ed
, a

nd
 di

scu
sse

d i
n t

he
 

EIR
/E

IS 
re

vie
w 

pr
oc

es
s. 

 
(D

raf
t E

IR/
EIS

, p
. 1

9-1
7) 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
120



  

  
Attachment F 

Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 
Ordinance 2017- 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & BAGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
121



TAHOE REGIONAL PLANNING AGENCY 
ORDINANCE 2017- 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING ORDINANCE 87-9, AS AMENDED, TO ADOPT THE PLACER COUNTY TAHOE 

BASIN AREA PLAN 
 

 
The Governing Board of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency does ordain as follows: 
 
Section  Findings 

  1.00   
 
1.05 The Tahoe Regional Planning Compact (P. L. 96-551, 94 Stat. 3233, 1980) created the 

Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA) and empowered it to set forth 
environmental threshold carrying capacities (“threshold standards”) for the Tahoe 
Region. 

 
1.10 The Compact directs TRPA to adopt and enforce a Regional Plan that, as 

implemented through agency ordinances, rules and regulations, will achieve and 
maintain such threshold standards while providing opportunities for orderly growth 
and development consistent with such thresholds. 

 
1.15 The Compact further requires that the Regional Plan attain and maintain federal, state, 

or local air and water quality standards, whichever are strictest, in the respective 
portions of the region for which the standards are applicable. 

 
1.20 Compact Art. V(c) states that the TRPA Governing Board and Advisory Planning 

Commission shall continuously review and maintain the Regional Plan. 
 
1.25 In June 1987, the TRPA Governing Board adopted Ordinance 87-9, which established 

the Regional Plan and included, amongst other things, the Goals & Policies and the 
Code of Ordinances (“Code”). 

 
1.30 It is necessary and desirable to amend TRPA Ordinance 87-9, as previously amended, 

as it relates to the Regional Plan of the TRPA by amending the Regional Plan pursuant 
to Article VI (a) and other applicable provisions of the Tahoe Regional Planning 
Compact in order to accelerate attainment and ensure maintenance of the threshold 
standards. 

 
1.35 TRPA has made the necessary findings required by Article V of the Compact, Chapter 

4 of the Code, and all other applicable rules and regulations, and incorporates these 
findings fully herein. 

 
1.45 The Advisory Planning Commission (APC) and Regional Plan Implementation 

Committee (RPIC) conducted public hearings on the amendments and recommended 
adoption of these amendments. The Governing Board has also conducted a noticed 
public hearing on the amendments. At these hearings, oral testimony and 
documentary evidence were received and considered. 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
122



1.50 The Governing Board finds that the amendments adopted here will continue to 
implement the Regional Plan, as amended, in a manner that achieves and maintains 
the adopted environmental threshold carrying capacities as required by Article V(c) 
of the Compact. 

 
1.55 Each of the foregoing findings is supported by substantial evidence in the record. 
 
Section Amendment of TRPA Regional Plan 
2.00  
 
2.10 Ordinance 87-9 is hereby amended to include the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area 

Plan, as set forth in Attachment A and fully incorporated herein. 
 
 
Section Interpretation and Severability 
3.00 
 
3.10 The provisions of this ordinance adopted hereby shall be liberally construed to affect 

their purpose. If any section, clause, provision or portion thereof is declared 
unconstitutional or invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of this 
ordinance shall not be affected thereby. For this purpose, the provisions of this 
ordinance are hereby declared respectively severable 

 
Section Effective Date 
5.00 
 
5.10 The provisions of this ordinance shall be effective immediately upon adoption. 

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency at a 
regular meeting held January 25, 2017 by the following vote: 
 
Ayes:  

Nays:  

Abstain: 

Absent:                   
 ____________________________  

                James Lawrence, Chair 
      Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 
      Governing Board 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
123

mambler
Typewritten Text



Attachment G 
Area Plan Finding of Conformance Checklist 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
124



Area Plan Finding of Conformance Checklist 
 
Area Plan Name: Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan 
Lead Agency: Placer County 
Submitted to TRPA: June 3, 2015 
TRPA File No:  
Lead Agency Area Plan Approval Date: December 6, 2016 (anticipated) 
APC Hearing Date: December 7, 2016 
Governing Board Hearing Date: January 25, 2017 
Appeal Deadline: March 27, 2017 
MOU Approval Deadline: July 26, 2017 
Geographic Area and Description: The Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan addresses that portion of 
Placer County that is also within the jurisdiction of TRPA, encompassing an area of 46,162 acres (72.1 
square miles) that includes the communities of Kings Beach/Stateline, Tahoe City, Carnelian Bay, Dollar 
Point, Sunnyside, Homewood, Tahoe Vista, and Tahoma. 
Land Use Classifications Included in Area Plan: Residential, Recreation, Mixed-Use, Tourist, Backcountry, 
Conservation, Town Center. 
Alternative Development Specific Standards: The alternative, or substitute standards described below 
are included in the PCTBAP. In addition, the PCTBAP Implementing Regulations include development 
and design standards that would supersede Chapter 36, Design Standards of the Code of Ordinances 
within mixed use subdistricts. The PCTBAP Implementing Regulations would also supersede Chapter 34, 
Driveway and Parking Standards, and Chapter 38, Signs, for the entire Plan area. 
 
 Limited Conversion of CFA to TAUs. The Area Plan would establish a pilot program for the limited 

conversion of commercial floor area (CFA) to tourist accommodation units (TAUs) for existing 
development (held by property owners) and for the CFA supply held by Placer County. The program 
builds upon the conversion standards currently being developed for the TRPA bonus pool of CFA and 
TAUs. Limitations include:  

(1) The conversion ratio shall be 450 square feet of CFA = 1 TAU; 
(2) no more than 200 additional TAUs may be established in Placer County through this pilot 

program and other actions combined; 
(3) converted units may only be used in Placer County Town Centers; 
(4) sites must have best management practices (BMP) certificates; 
(5) sites must have sidewalk access; 
(6) sites must be within 0.25 mile of a transit stop; and 
(7) the program will be periodically monitored for efficacy and future consideration of program 

adjustments. 
(See Implementing Regulations Section 3.13.B) 

 Allow a Project Area to Include Non-Contiguous Parcels. This program would allow a project site to 
include non-contiguous parcels within Town Centers. To utilize this program, all project components 
must be located on developed land in a mixed-use zoning district within a Town Center, and all 
applicable development standards would still apply. Projects proposing this option would require 
TRPA approval (see Implementing Regulations Section 2.09.A.3). 

 Secondary Residences. This program would expand upon Section 21.3.2 of the TRPA Code to allow 
secondary residential units on certain residential parcels less than 1 acre in size, subject to BMP 
certification, deed restriction for affordability, TRPA Code requirements (including allocations), and 
supplemental design standards. To qualify for the program, either the primary or secondary residence 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
125



must be occupied at least 10 months per year. Secondary units may not be used as tourist units or 
converted to TAUs. (See Implementing Regulations Section 3.01.A & B). 

 
Contents of Area Plans Code  Conformance 

General  
An Area Plan shall consist of applicable policies, maps, 
ordinances, and any other related materials identified by the 
lead agency, sufficient to demonstrate that these measures, 
together with TRPA ordinances that remain in effect, are 
consistent with and conform to TRPA’s Goals and Policies and 
all other elements of the Regional Plan. In addition to this 
Section 13.5, additional specific requirements for the content of 
Area Plans are in subsection 13.6.5.A. The Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) that is associated with an approved Area 
Plan is a separate, but related, approval and is not part of the 
Area Plan. 

13.5.1 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan (PCTBAP) consists of applicable policies, maps, 
ordinances and related materials that conform to the Regional Plan. These policies, maps, and 
ordinances were developed with the specific intent of conforming with the Regional Plan. Development 
of the PCTBAP included close collaboration between Placer County and TRPA staff, members of the 
public, and other stakeholders over approximately five years. The proposed land use and zoning maps 
are consistent with Map 1, Conceptual Regional Land Use Map, of the Regional Plan, with modifications, 
as follows: 

• Tahoe City Town Center boundary modification: The PCTBAP would modify the boundary to 
remove 7.12 acres of property near the Fairway Community Center, and add 4.2 acres 
surrounding the Tahoe City Golf Course clubhouse. This modification reduces, the amount of 
land in the center, reduces the amount of sensitive land in the center, and is consistent with 
Code Section 13.5.3.G; 

• Conservation and Recreation lands: The PCTBAP would revise land use designations for 
approximately 200 acres of publicly-owned lands from Residential to Conservation (approx. 138 
acres) and Recreation (approx. 61 acres); 

• Kings Beach land use classification cleanup: The PCTBAP would amend land use designations to 
maintain consistency with recently surveyed parcel boundaries. The total area affected would 
be approximately 1 acre. 

The FEIR/FEIS prepared for the PCTBAP found no significant unmitigable impacts on the environment 
that would not also occur without adoption of the Area Plan (i.e., under the no project alternative). The 
TRPA ordinances that are not amended by the PCTBAP will continue to be in effect. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
126



Relationship to Other Sections of the Code 

This section is intended to authorize development 
and design standards in Area Plans that are 
different than otherwise required under this Code.  
In the event of a conflict between the requirements 
in this section and requirements in other parts of 
the Code, the requirements in this section shall 
apply for the purposes of developing Area Plans. 
Except as otherwise specified, Code provisions that 
apply to Plan Area Statements (Chapter 11), 
Community Plans (Chapter 12), and Specific and 
Master Plans (Chapter 14) may also be utilized in a 
Conforming Area Plan. If an Area Plan proposes to 
modify any provision that previously applied to Plan 
Area Statements, Community Plans, or Specific and 
Master Plans, the proposed revision shall be 
analyzed in accordance with Code Chapters 3 and 4. 

13.5.2 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP modifies provisions that previously applied to Plan Area Statements and 
Community Plans consistent with Code Section 13.5.2. It also proposes substitute development and 
design standards and guidelines. These changes have been evaluated in an Environmental Impact 
Statement consistent with the Tahoe Regional Planning Compact, Chapter 3 of the Code of Ordinances, 
and the rules of procedure.  Chapter 3, 4 and 13 findings have been prepared for the PCTBAP and are 
included in the Governing Board packet. 
 

Development and Community Design Standards for Area Plans 
Area Plans shall have development standards that are consistent with those in Table 13.5.3-1. 

Maximum Building Height Code Conformance 
Area Plans shall have development standards that are consistent with those in Table 13.5.3-1. 

Outside of Centers building height standards consistent with 
Code Section 37.4 

13.5.3 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP does not propose any changes to existing height ordinances outside of the Town 
Center. Existing TRPA height standards in Chapter 37 of the TRPA Code will remain in effect outside of 
Town Centers (see PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 3.10). 
Within Town Centers up to 4 stories (56 ft.) maximum 13.5.3 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 
Notes:  The PCTBAP proposes more restrictive height standards within Town Centers than allowed for in 
Table 13.5.3-1. Within portions of Town Centers designated as core areas, building height is restricted 
to 56 ft. and four stories. Within portions of Town Centers designated as transition areas, building 
height is limited to 46 ft. and three stories. (see PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 2.09.A & B). 
Within the Regional Center up to 6 stories (95 ft.) maximum 13.5.3 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP does not include the Regional Center. 
Within the High-Density Tourist District up to 197 feet 
maximum 

13.5.3 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP does not include the High-Density Tourist District.  
Density Code Conformance 

Single Family Dwelling consistent with Code Section 31.3 13.5.3 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
127



Notes:  The PCTBAP proposed density standards for single-family dwellings is consistent with Section 
31.3 (see PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 3.04). 
Multiple-Family Dwelling outside of Centers consistent with 
Code Section 31.3 

13.5.3 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP proposed density standards for multiple-family swellings outside of Town Centers is 
consistent with Section 31.3 (see PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 3.04).  
Within Centers Multi-Family Dwelling  
Residential 25 units/acre maximum   
Tourist (other than bed & breakfast) 40 units/acre maximum    

13.5.3 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP proposed density standards for multiple-family dwellings outside of Town Centers 
is consistent with Section 31.3 (see PCTBAP Implementing Regulation Section 3.04). 

Land Coverage Code  Conformance 
Land coverage consistent with Section 30.4 of the TRPA Code  13.5.3 

 
☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP proposed land coverage standards are consistent with Section 30.4. The PCTBAP 
would not change coverage standards outside of Town Centers. Maximum transferred coverage limits 
within Town Centers are consistent with Code section 30.4.2.B (see PCTBAP Implementing Regulations 
Section 3.03). 
Alternative Comprehensive Coverage Management System 
(see below) 

13.5.3.B.1 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP does not propose an alternative comprehensive coverage management system. 
Future development of an alternative development comprehensive coverage management system 
would require an amendment to the PCTBAP and approval by TRPA.  

Complete Streets Code  Conformance 
Area Plan conforms to Section 36.5 of the Code of 
Ordinances. 

13.5.3 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP conforms with the complete streets provisions of Section 36.5, and provides 
additional requirements to implement complete street concepts. The PCTBAP includes streetscape 
design standards (See PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 3.06), development standards that 
require complete street improvements with new development and substantial alteration of existing 
properties (see PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Sections 2.04.A.4.a; 2.04.B.4.a; 2.04.C.4.a; and 
2.04.D.4.a), as well as design guidelines that promote street frontage designs that are compatible with 
complete streets concepts (see PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 2.04.A.5.a and 2.04.B.5.a). 
The exact requirements vary by zoning subdistrict. Within some mixed-use areas, the development 
standards modify existing setback standards and require pedestrian improvements between the 
building frontage and the sidewalk. The development standards also require the incorporation of 
planned bicycle and pedestrian trails and improvements, and in some areas they specify minimum 
sidewalk widths. Additional requirements apply to properties in mixed use areas fronting SR 28 and 89, 
including requirements for street trees and pedestrian lights.  
Within Centers plan for sidewalks, trails, and other pedestrian 
amenities providing safe and convenient non-motorized 
circulation within Centers, as applicable, and incorporation the 
Regional Active Transportation Plan 

13.5.3 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP has incorporated the Regional Active Transportation Plan and appropriately plans 
for bicycle and pedestrian amenities within Centers as well as throughout the Plan area. In addition to 
the planned improvements and requirements for implementation of complete streets (described 
above), the PCTBAP includes numerous policies that support safe and convenient non-motorized 
circulation. These policies include policy T-P-1, which states “Encourage the use of non-auto modes of 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
128



transportation by incorporating public transit, bicycle, and pedestrian travel amenities in transportation 
projects and other projects that impact or connect to the transportation network.” In addition, the 
PCTBAP includes 19 separate policies that provide direction on specific approaches to improve the 
safety, convenience, and function of non-motorized circulation within centers and throughout the Plan 
area (See PCTBAP Policies T-P-19 through T-P-37). 

Alternative Development Standards and Guidelines Authorized in Area Plans 
Comprehensive Coverage Management Systems Code Conformance 

An Area Plan may propose a comprehensive coverage 
management system as an alternative to the parcel-level 
coverage requirements outlined in Sections 30.4.1 and 30.4.2, 
provided that the alternative system shall: 1) reduce the total 
coverage and not increase the cumulative base allowable 
coverage in the area covered by the comprehensive coverage 
management system; 2) reduce the total amount of coverage 
and not increase the cumulative base allowable coverage in 
Land Capability Districts 1 and 2; and 3) not increase the 
amount of coverage otherwise allowed within 300 feet of high 
water of Lake Tahoe (excluding those areas landward of 
Highways 28 and 89 in Kings Beach and Tahoe City Town 
Centers within that zone). For purposes of this provision, “total” 
coverage is the greater of existing or allowed coverage. 

13.5.3.B.1 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP does not propose an alternative comprehensive coverage management system. 
Future development of an alternative development comprehensive coverage management system 
would require an amendment to the PCTBAP and approval by TRPA. 

Alternative Parking Strategies Code  Conformance 
Area Plan includes shared or area-wide parking strategies to 
reduce land coverage and make more efficient use of land for 
parking and pedestrian uses.  Shared parking strategies may 
consider and include the following. 

o Reduction or relaxation of minimum parking standards; 
o Creation of maximum parking standards; 
o Shared parking; 
o In-lieu payment to meet parking requirements; 
o On-street parking; 
o Parking along major regional travel routes; 
o Creation of bicycle parking standards; 
o Free or discounted transit; 
o Deeply discounted transit passes for community residents; 

and 
o Paid parking management 

13.5.3.B.2 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes: The PCTBAP includes parking strategies intended to reduce land coverage, make more efficient 
use of land, and encourage non-auto transportation modes (See PCTBAP Policies T-P-13 through T-P-
18).  Specific parking strategies include, but are not limited to, a reduction in minimum parking 
standards for some land uses, establishment of parking maximums, allowing for a 20 percent reduction 
in parking within Centers and for properties within 300 feet of transit, and calling for the development 
of an in-lieu fee program to meet parking requirements (see PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 
3.07A.5). 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
129



Area-wide Water Quality Treatments and Funding 
Mechanisms 

Code  Conformance 

Area Plan includes water quality treatments and funding 
mechanisms in lieu of certain site-specific BMPs, subject to the 
following requirements. 

o Area-wide BMPs shall be shown to achieve equal or greater 
effectiveness and efficiency at achieving water quality 
benefits to certain site-specific BMPs and must infiltrate the 
20-year, one-hour storm; 

o Plans should be developed in coordination with TRPA and 
applicable state agencies, consistent with applicable TMDL 
requirements; 

o Area-wide BMP project areas shall be identified in Area 
Plans and shall address both installation and ongoing 
maintenance; 

o Strong consideration shall be given to areas connected to 
surface waters; 

o Area-wide BMP plans shall consider area-wide and parcel 
level BMP requirements as an integrated system; 

o Consideration shall be given to properties that have already 
installed and maintained parcel-level BMPs, and financing 
components or area-wide BMP plans shall reflect prior BMP 
installation in terms of the charges levied against projects 
that already complied with BMP requirements with systems 
that are in place and operational in accordance with 
applicable BMP standards. 

o Area-wide BMP Plans shall require that BMPs be installed 
concurrent with development activities. Prior to 
construction of area-wide treatment facilities, development 
projects shall either install parcel-level BMPs or construct 
area-wide improvements. 

13.5.3.B.3 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes: The PCTBAP does not propose new area-wide water quality treatment programs in-lieu of site-
specific BMPs. The PCTBAP includes policies WQ-P-5 and WQ-P-6, which call for evaluating the 
feasibility of and pursuing Area-Wide water quality districts and public stormwater districts. However, 
these districts have not been developed and would not be approved as part of the PCTBAP. The future 
establishment of such districts would require a separate evaluation for conformance with the Regional 
Plan. 

Alternative Transfer Ratios for Development Rights Code  Conformance 
Within a Stream Restoration Plan Area as depicted in Map 1 in 
the Regional Plan, an Area Plan may propose to establish 
alternative transfer ratios for development rights based on 
unique conditions in each jurisdiction, as long as the alternative 
transfer ratios are determined to generate equal or greater 
environment gain compared to the TRPA transfer ratios set 
forth in Chapter 51: Transfer of Development. 

13.5.3.B.4 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP does not propose alternative transfer ratios for development rights within a Stream 
Restoration Plan Area. 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
130



 
Development Standards and Guidelines Encouraged in Area 

Plans 
Code  Conformance 

Urban Bear Strategy 

In Area Plans, lead agencies are encouraged to develop and 
enforce urban bear strategies to address the use of bear-
resistant solid waste facilities and related matters. 

13.5.3.C.1 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP includes policy SE-P-2, which states “Coordinate with partner agencies to manage 
bear populations and minimize conflicts with people. Programs should emphasize public education and 
expand the use of bear-proof solid waste enclosures.” 
Urban Forestry 

In Area Plans, lead agencies are encouraged to develop and 
enforce urban forestry strategies that seek to reestablish 
natural forest conditions in a manner that does not increase 
the risk of catastrophic wildfire. 

13.5.3.C.2 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP includes policy VEG-P-2, which states “Support forest enhancement projects being 
completed by land management agencies and fire districts, including selective cutting and controlled 
burning projects that improve forest health and reduce the risk of catastrophic wildfire.” In addition, 
the PCTBAP includes requirements for the planting of street trees along SR 89 and SR 28 within mixed-
use areas (see PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 2.04.A.4.a.ii(1)). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
131



Development on Resort Recreation Parcels Code  Conformance 
In addition to recreation uses, an Area Plan may allow the 
development and subdivision of tourist, commercial, and 
residential uses on the Resort Recreation District parcels 
depicted on Map 1 of the Regional Plan and subject to the 
following conditions:  

o The parcels must become part of an approved Area 
Plan; 

o Subdivisions shall be limited to “air space 
condominium” divisions with no lot and block 
subdivisions allowed; 

o Development shall be transferred from outside the 
area designated as Resort Recreation; and  

o Transfers shall result in the retirement of existing 
development. 

13.5.3.D 
 

☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes:  There are no Resort Recreation parcels within the PCTBAP. 
Greenhouse Gas Reduction Strategy Code  Conformance 

To be found in conformance with the Regional Plan, Area 
Plans shall include a strategy to reduce emissions of 
Greenhouse Gases from the operation or construction of 
buildings. The strategy shall include elements in addition to 
those included to satisfy other state requirements or 
requirements of this code. Additional elements included in 
the strategy may include but are not limited to the following: 

o A local green building incentive program to reduce 
the energy consumption of new or remodeled 
buildings; 

o A low interest loan or rebate program for alternative 
energy projects or energy efficiency retrofits; 

o Modifications to the applicable building code or 
design standards to reduce energy consumption; or 

o Capital improvements to reduce energy 
consumption or incorporate alternative energy 
production into public facilities. 

13.5.3.E 
 

☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP includes the continued implementation of the mPOWER (money for property 
owner water and energy efficiency retrofitting) program. This program provides residential and non-
residential property owners with financing to retrofit existing buildings with energy efficiency, water 
conservation, and renewable energy systems (See PCTBAP policy AQ-P-6). 
 

Community Design Standards 
To be found in conformance with the Regional Plan, Area Plans shall require that all projects comply 
with the design standards in this subsection. Area Plans may also include additional or substitute 
requirements not listed below that promote threshold attainment. 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
132



Site Design Code  Conformance 
Development in All Areas 

All new development shall consider, at minimum, the 
following site design standards: 

o Existing natural features retained and incorporated into 
the site design; 

o Building placement and design that are compatible with 
adjacent properties and designed in consideration of 
solar exposure, climate, noise, safety, fire protection, 
and privacy; 

o Site planning that includes a drainage, infiltration, and 
grading plan meeting water quality standards, and 

o Access, parking, and circulation that are logical, sage, 
and meet the requirements of the transportation 
element.   

13.5.3.F.1.a 
 

☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP includes detailed design standards and guidelines. These standards address 
retention of natural features; building placement that is compatible with adjacent properties and 
considers sun, climate, noise, safety, and privacy; and site planning that includes a drainage, infiltration, 
and grading plan that meets water quality standards (see PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 
3.09). The PCTBAP also includes detailed parking and access design standards that are logical and 
consistent with the transportation element of the Regional Plan (See PCTBAP Implementing Regulations 
Section 3.07). 
Development in Regional Center or Town Center  

In addition to the standards above, development in Town 
Centers or the Regional Center shall address the following 
design standards: 

o Existing or planned pedestrian and bicycle facilities shall 
connect properties within Centers to transit stops and 
the Regional Bicycle and Pedestrian network. 

o Area Plans shall encourage the protection of views of 
Lake Tahoe. 

o Building height and density should be varied with some 
buildings smaller and less dense than others. 

o Site and building designs within Centers shall promote 
pedestrian activity and provide enhanced design 
features along public roadways.  Enhanced design 
features to be considered include increased setbacks, 
stepped heights, increased building articulation, and/or 
higher quality building materials along public roadways.   

o Area Plans shall include strategies for protecting 
undisturbed sensitive lands and, where feasible, 
establish park or open space corridors connecting 
undisturbed sensitive areas within Centers to 
undisturbed areas outside of Centers. 

13.5.3.F.1.b 
 

☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP includes a comprehensive network of existing and planned pedestrian and bicycle 
facilities that connect properties within Centers to other multi-modal transportation options (See 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
133



PCTBAP Figures 5-3 through 5-5). The PCTBAP development standards require that projects incorporate 
planned pedestrian and bicycle facilities with new development and substantial alteration of existing 
properties (see PCTBAP policy T-P-19 and Implementing Regulations Sections 2.04.A.4.a; 2.04.B.4.a; 
2.04.C.4.a; and 2.04.D.4.a). 
 
The PCTBAP includes a series of policies that call for the protection and enhancement of scenic views, 
including views of Lake Tahoe (See PCTBAP policies SR-P-1 through SR-P-9). In addition, the PCTBAP 
Implementing Regulations includes a new requirement that four-story buildings located in Centers 
between Lake Tahoe and SR 28 or 89 must maintain at least 35 percent of the site as an open view 
corridor or increase existing view corridors by at least 10 percent (see Section 2.09.A.1.a.ii). 
 
Building height (and therefore the density that can be achieved within a project area) are varied within 
Town Centers. The PCTBAP establishes core areas within Centers that allow for greater height, and 
transition areas within Centers where building height is more limited (See PCTBAP Implementing 
Regulations Section 2.09.A.1 and 2). 
 
Detailed design standards are included in the PCTBAP, which address pedestrian activity and enhanced 
design features along public roadways in Centers. The standards address building articulation, street 
frontage landscaping, stepped heights, and other building form requirements. The exact standards vary 
by Center. See for example, the Greater Tahoe City Mixed Use subdistrict standards in Implementing 
Regulations Section 2.04.A.4. 
 
The PCTBAP includes special planning areas with specific requirements for protecting undisturbed open 
space, restoring disturbed SEZs, and creating open space corridors connecting undisturbed sensitive 
areas within Centers to undisturbed areas outside of Centers (See PCTBAP Implementing Regulations 
Sections 2.09.B.1, 3, and 5). 
Building Height 

o Area Plans may allow building heights up to the 
maximum limits in Table 13.5.3-1 of the Code of 
Ordinances 

o Building height limits shall be established to ensure that 
buildings do not project above the forest canopy, ridge 
lines, or otherwise detract from the viewshed. 

o Area Plans that allow buildings over two stories in height 
shall, where feasible, include provisions for transitional 
height limits or other buffer areas adjacent to areas not 
allowing buildings over two stories in height. 

13.5.3.F.2 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes: The PCTBAP allows building heights up to the limits allowed in Table 13.5.3-1 of the Code, and it 
includes transitional height limits and upper story setbacks. Within portions of Town Centers designated 
as core areas, building height is restricted to 56 ft. and four stories. Within portions of Town Centers 
designated as transition areas, building height is limited to 46 ft. and three stories. (see PCTBAP 
Implementing Regulations Section 2.09.A & B). Existing TRPA height standards in Chapter 37 of the TRPA 
Code will remain in effect outside of Town Centers (see PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 
3.10).  
 
Policy SR-P-9 states that “To ensure viewshed protection and compatibility with adjacent uses, new 
construction of buildings must not project above the forest canopy, ridgelines, or otherwise detract 
from the viewshed”. In addition, PCTBAP Implementing Regulations sections 2.09.A.1 and 2, and section 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
134



3.09.A require that any three or four story building in a Town Center must meet the findings listed in 
section 37.7.16 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances, which ensure that buildings do not project above the 
forest canopy, ridge lines, or otherwise detract from the viewshed. 
Building Design 

Standards shall be adopted to ensure attractive and 
compatible development.  The following shall be considered: 

o Buffer requirements should be established for noise, 
snow removal, aesthetic, and environmental purposes. 

o The scale of structures should be compatible with 
existing and planned land uses in the area. 

o Viewsheds should be considered in all new construction.  
Emphasis should be placed on lake views from major 
transportation corridors. 

o Area Plans shall include design standards for building 
design and form.  Within Centers, building design and 
form standards shall promote pedestrian activity.   

13.5.3.F.3 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP includes detailed standards for building design and form that have been developed 
to ensure attractive and compatible development. These standards address compatibility with adjacent 
properties, including scale and design for noise, snow removal, aesthetic, and environmental purposes 
(see PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 3.09). Section 3.09.A.2 requires the consideration of 
viewsheds in the design of buildings, and the PCTBAP  includes a new requirement that four-story 
buildings located in Centers between Lake Tahoe and SR 28 or 89 must maintain at least 35 percent of 
the site as an open view corridor or increase existing view corridors by at least 10 percent (see Section 
2.09.A.1.a.ii). The PCTBAP includes specific building design and form standards for Centers that are 
intended to promote pedestrian activity. The exact standards vary between subdistricts within Centers 
(See PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Sections 2.04.A.4 and 2.04.B.4). 
Landscaping 

The following should be considered with respect to this 
design component of a project: 

o Native vegetation should be utilized whenever possible, 
consistent with Fire Defensible Space Requirements. 

o Vegetation should be used to screen parking, alleviate 
long strips of parking space, and accommodate 
stormwater runoff where feasible. 

o Vegetation should be used to give privacy, reduce glare 
and heat, deflect wind, muffle noise, prevent erosion, 
and soften the line of architecture where feasible.   

13.5.3.F.4 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes: The PCTBAP includes landscaping standards and guidelines that require the use of vegetation on 
the TRPA Recommended Native and Adapted Plant List, except for accent plantings. The standards 
require consistency with defensible space requirements, and encourages the use of vegetation to create 
and separate spaces, give privacy, screen heat and glare, deflect wind, muffle noise, articulate 
circulation, inhibit erosion, purify air, and soften the lines of architecture and paving (See PCTBAP 
Implementing Regulations Section 3.09.C). Additional design standards and guidelines require parking 
lot landscaping to screen parking, break up long strips of parking, and accommodate stormwater (See 
PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 3.07.C). 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
135



Lighting 

Lighting increases the operational efficiency of a site.  In 
determining the lighting for a project, the following should 
be required: 

o Exterior lighting should be minimized to protect dark sky 
views, yet adequate to provide for public safety, and 
should be consistent with the architectural design. 

o Exterior lighting should utilize cutoff shields that extend 
below the lighting element to minimize light pollution 
and stray light. 

o Overall levels should be compatible with the 
neighborhood light level.  Emphasis should be placed on 
a few, well-placed, low-intensity lights. 

o Lights should not blink, flash, or change intensity except 
for temporary public safety signs. 

13.5.3.D.5 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP includes detailed lighting standards that are more stringent than required by TRPA 
Code section 13.5.3.D.5. The PCTBAP lighting standards include general lighting standards, prohibited 
lighting, allowable fixture types (limited to “full-cut-off” luminaries), prohibitions on glare, prohibitions 
on light trespass, and lighting design standards (See PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Section 3.07.D).  
Signing 

Area Plans may include alternative sign standards.  For Area 
Plans to be found in conformance with the Regional Plan, the 
Area Plan shall demonstrate that the sign standards will 
minimize and mitigate significant scenic impacts and move 
toward attainment or achieve the adopted scenic thresholds 
for the Lake Tahoe region. 

13.5.3.F.6 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes: The PCTBAP includes alternative sign standards that would supersede Chapter 38 of the TRPA 
Code of Ordinances (See PCTBAP Implementing Regulations section 3.11). The sign standards are 
generally consistent with the TRPA sign standards with targeted revisions to improve clarity and reflect 
the community character of the Plan area. These sign standards were reviewed in the EIR/EIS prepared 
for the plan, and found to have a less than significant effect on scenic quality. The sign standards 
include a requirement for amortization of non-conforming signs, which will move toward attainment or 
maintenance of scenic threshold standards. 
Signing 

In the absence of a Conforming Area Plan that addresses sign 
standards, the following policies apply, along with 
implementing ordinances: 

o Off-premise signs should generally be prohibited; way-
finding and directional signage may be considered where 
scenic impacts are minimized and mitigated. 

o Signs should be incorporated into building design; 
o When possible, signs should be consolidated into 

clusters to avoid clutter. 
o Signage should be attached to buildings when possible; 

13.5.3.F.6 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
136



and  
o Standards for number, size, height, lighting, square 

footage, and similar characteristics for on-premise signs 
shall be formulated and shall be consistent with the land 
uses permitted in each district. 

Notes: The PCTBAP addresses sign standards. The sign standards in the PCTBAP are consistent with the 
policies outlined in TRPA Code Section 13.5.3.F.6. 
Modification to Centers (Town Center, Regional Center and 
High Density Tourist District Boundary)  

When Area Plans propose modifications to the boundaries of 
a Center, the modification shall comply with the following: 

o Boundaries of Centers shall be drawn to include only 
properties that are developed, unless undeveloped 
parcels proposed for inclusion have either at least three 
sides of their boundary adjacent to developed parcels 
(for four-sided parcels), or 75 percent of their boundary 
adjacent to developed parcels (for non-four-sided 
parcels).  For purposes of this requirement, a parcel shall 
be considered developed if it includes any of the 
following: 30 percent or more of allowed coverage 
already existing on site or an approved but unbuilt 
project that proposes to meet this coverage standard.    

o Properties included in a Center shall be less than ¼ mile 
from existing Commercial and Public Service uses.   

o Properties included in a Center shall encourage and 
facilitate     the use of existing or planned transit stops 
and transit systems.   

13.5.3.G ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes: The PCTBAP would modify the Tahoe City Town Center boundary to remove 7.12 acres of 
property near the Fairway Community Center and add 4.2 acres surrounding the Tahoe City Golf Course 
clubhouse. This modification reduces the amount of land in the Center and reduces the amount of 
sensitive land in the Center. The area to be included in the Center includes portions of the existing 
Tahoe City Golf Course, the golf course clubhouse, parking areas, and related amenities. This area 
meets the definition of a developed area pursuant to TRPA Code Section 13.5.3.G. The area added to 
the Center is adjacent to existing commercial and public service uses and is within ¼ mile from transit 
stops. 
 

Conformity Review Procedures For Area Plans 
Initiation of Area Planning Process by Lead Agency  

The development of an Area Plan shall be initiated by a 
designated lead agency. The lead agency may be TRPA or a 
local, state, federal, or tribal government. There may be only 
one lead agency for each Area Plan. 

13.6.1 
 

☒Yes ☐No
 ☐N/A 

Notes:  Placer County is the lead agency for development of the PCTBAP. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
137



Initial Approval of Area Plan by Lead Agency  

When TRPA is Not the Lead Agency  
If the lead agency is not TRPA, then the Area Plan shall be 
approved by the lead agency prior to TRPA’s review of the Area 
Plan for conformance with the Regional Plan under this section. 
In reviewing and approving an Area Plan, the lead agency shall 
follow its own review procedures for plan amendments. At a 
minimum, Area Plans shall be prepared in coordination with 
local residents, stakeholders, public agencies with jurisdictional 
authority within the proposed Area Plan boundaries, and TRPA 
staff.  
 
When TRPA is the Lead Agency  
If the lead agency is TRPA, the Area Plan shall require 
conformity approval under this section by TRPA only. No 
approval by any other government, such as a local government, 
shall be required. 

13.6.2 
 

☒Yes ☐No
 ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP was prepared in a collaborative fashion led by Placer County over the course of five 
years. Development of the Area Plan included numerous formal and informal public meetings, input 
from citizen “Area Plan Teams”, public agencies, stakeholder groups, and the North Tahoe Regional 
Advisory Council. The PCTBAP was recommended for approval by the Placer County Planning 
Commission on November 17, 2016, and scheduled for action by the Placer County Board of Supervisors 
on December 6, 2016. 
Review by Advisory Planning Commission  
The TRPA Advisory Planning Commission shall review the 
proposed Area Plan and make recommendations to the TRPA 
Governing Board. The commission shall obtain and consider the 
recommendations and comments of the local government(s) 
and other responsible public agencies, as applicable. 
jurisdictional authority within the proposed Area Plan 
boundaries, and TRPA staff.  
 

13.6.3 
 

☒Yes ☐No
 ☐N/A 

Notes: The Advisory Planning Commission (APC) reviewed the draft PCTBAP, and considered input form 
public agencies, staff and the public on July 13, 2016. On December 7, 2016, the APC is scheduled to 
review the PCTBAP and make recommendations to the TRPA Governing Board.  
Approval of Area Plan by TRPA  
For Area Plans initiated and approved by a lead agency other 
than TRPA, the Area Plan shall be submitted to and reviewed by 
the TRPA Governing Board at a public hearing. Public comment 
shall be limited to issues raised by the public before the 
Advisory Planning Commission and issues raised by the 
Governing Board. The TRPA Governing Board shall make a 
finding that the Area Plan, including all zoning and development 
Codes that are part of the Area Plan, is consistent with and 
furthers the goals and policies of the Regional Plan. This finding 
shall be referred to as a finding of conformance and shall be 
subject to the same voting requirements as approval of a 
Regional Plan amendment. 

13.6.4 
 

☒Yes ☐No
 ☐N/A 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
138



Notes: The TRPA Governing Board is scheduled to review the PCTBAP and act regarding a finding of 
conformance on January 25, 2017.  
Findings of Conformance with the Regional Plan  
In making the general finding of conformance, the TRPA Governing Board shall make the general 
findings applicable to all amendments to the Regional Plan and Code set forth in Sections 4.5 and 4.6, 
and also the following specific review standards: 

General Review Standards For All  
Area Plans 

Code  Conformance 

The submitted Area Plan shall: 
Identify zoning designations, allowed land uses and 
development standards throughout the plan area. 

13.6.5.A.1 ☒Yes ☐No
 ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP Implementing Regulations identifies zoning designations (Section 2.01), allowed 
land uses (Section 2.02 through 2.08), and development standards throughout the entire Plan area 
(Chapters 2 and 3). 
Be consistent with all applicable Regional Plan policies, 
including but not limited to the regional growth management 
system, development allocations and coverage requirements. 

13.6.5.A.2 ☒Yes ☐No
 ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP does not propose additional growth, allocations, or coverage beyond that 
anticipated in the Regional Plan.  
Either be consistent with the Regional Land Use Map or 
recommend and adopt amendments to the Regional Land Use 
Map as part of an integrated plan to comply with Regional Plan 
policies and provide threshold gain.  

13.6.5.A.3 ☒Yes ☐No
 ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP includes proposed amendments to the Regional Land Use Map as part of an 
integrated plan to comply with Regional Plan policies and attain and maintain threshold standards. The 
proposed revisions have been analyzed in the EIR/EIS for the PCTBAP and were found to not result in 
significant environmental impacts. The proposed revisions are as follows: 

• Tahoe City Town Center boundary modification: The PCTBAP would modify the boundary to 
remove 7.12 acres of property near the Fairway Community Center, and add 4.2 acres 
surrounding the Tahoe City Golf Course clubhouse. This modification reduces, the amount of 
land in the center, reduces the amount of sensitive land in the center, and is consistent with 
Code Section 13.5.3.G; 

• Conservation and Recreation lands: The PCTBAP would revise land use designations for 
approximately 200 acres of publicly-owned lands from Residential to Conservation (approx. 138 
acres) and Recreation (approx. 61 acres); 

• Kings Beach land use classification cleanup: The PCTBAP would amend land use designations to 
maintain consistency with recently surveyed parcel boundaries. The total area affected would 
be approximately 1 acre. 

Recognize and support planned, new, or enhanced 
Environmental Improvement Projects. Area Plans may also 
recommend enhancements to planned, new, or enhanced 
Environmental Improvement Projects as part of an integrated 
plan to comply with Regional Plan Policies and provide 
threshold gain.  

13.6.5.A.4 ☒Yes ☐No
 ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP recognizes and supports new, planned, and enhanced Environmental Improvement 
Projects in section 8.2, Planned Environmental Improvement Projects. 
Promote environmentally beneficial redevelopment and 13.6.5.A.5 ☒Yes ☐No

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
139



revitalization within town centers, regional centers and the High 
Density Tourist District. 

 ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP promotes environmentally beneficial redevelopment of the Tahoe City and Kings 
Beach Town Centers by promoting TRPA incentives for the transfer of development, and by providing 
capacity for redevelopment in Centers consistent with TRPA’s coverage, height, and density limits. 
Preserve the character of established residential areas outside 
of town centers, regional centers and the High Density Tourist 
District, while seeking opportunities for environmental 
improvements within residential areas. 

13.6.5.A.6 ☒Yes ☐No
 ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP does not alter zoning of established residential areas. It includes upper story 
setbacks and transitional areas with lower height limits along the interface between Town Centers and 
established residential areas (See PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Sections 2.09.A & B). 
Protect and direct development away from Stream 
Environment Zones and other sensitive areas, while seeking 
opportunities for environmental improvements within sensitive 
areas. Development may be allowed in disturbed Stream 
Environment zones within town centers, regional centers and 
the High Density Tourist District only if allowed development 
reduces coverage and enhances natural systems within the 
Stream Environment Zone.  

13.6.5.A.7 ☒Yes ☐No
 ☐N/A 

 
Include estimated 
acres of coverage/ 

SEZ restoration from 
transfers and EIP 

projects in the table 
below 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
140



 
 

Notes: *Centers include town centers, regional centers, and high density tourist districts (GIS data:  
Special Districts). SEZs include 1b capability areas, other sensitive lands include 1a, 1c, 2, and 3 land 
capability classes, and non-sensitive lands include 4-7 land capability classes pursuant the Sinclair-Bailey 
Land Capability GIS data layer.  
  

 Inside Centers*  Outside Centers* 
 SEZ Other 

sensitive 
lands 

Non-
sensitiv
e lands 

SEZ Other 
sensitive 
lands 

Non-
sensitive 
lands 

A. Max coverage 
changes from 
transfers 

-59.67 
acres 

-4.97 
acres 
 

+21.3 
acres 
 

-21.3 acres -21.3 
acres 

-42.6 
acres 

B. Coverage/distu
rbed SEZ 
restoration in 
EIP projects 

Up to 2 
acres of 
coverage 
removal 
from 1b 
lands and 
SEZ 
restoration 
is planned 
as part of 
the Kings 
Beach 
Watershed 
Improveme
nt Project 
and the 
Griff Creek 
Corridor 
Public 
Access 
Project 

  Up to 6.5 
acres of 
coverage 
removal 
from 1b 
lands and 
SEZ 
restoration 
is planned 
from the 
Burton 
Creek 
Justice 
Relocation 
Project and 
the Pomin 
Park 
Recreation 
Facilities 
Relocation 
Project. 

  

Identify facilities and implementation measures to enhance 
pedestrian, bicycling and transit opportunities along with other 
opportunities to reduce automobile dependency. 

13.6.5.A.8 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP includes identifies new and planned facilities and implementation measures to 
enhance non-automobile transportation in Part 5, Transportation Plan. 
TRPA Utilization of Load Reduction Plans Code  Conformance  
TRPA shall utilize the load reduction plans for all registered 
catchments or TRPA default standards when there are no 
registered catchments, in the conformance review of Area 
Plans. 

13.6.5.B ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP identified TMDL implementation strategies in Section 2.2, Water Quality, and in the 
Implementation Plan in Part 8. 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
141



Additional Review Standards for Town Centers and the 
Regional Center 

Code  Conformance 

Include building and site design standards that reflect the 
unique character of each area, respond to local design issues 
and consider ridgeline and viewshed protection. 

13.6.5.C.1 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  As described above, the PCTBAP includes detailed design standards that reflect the unique 
character of each area, respond to local design considerations, and promote ridgeline and viewshed 
protection. The PCTBAP Implementing Regulations include a mix of unique standards that reflect the 
character of individual zoning subdistricts (see Chapter 2), as well as a series of area-wide standards and 
guidelines (see Chapter 3). 
Promote walking, bicycling, transit use and shared parking in 
town centers and regional centers, which at a minimum shall 
include continuous sidewalks or other pedestrian paths and 
bicycle facilities along both sides of all highways within town 
centers and regional centers, and to other major activity 
centers.  

13.6.5.C.2 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP includes a comprehensive network of existing and planned pedestrian and bicycle 
facilities that connect properties within Centers and to other multi-modal transportation options (See 
PCTBAP Figures 5-3 through 5-5). The PCTBAP development standards require that projects incorporate 
planned pedestrian and bicycle facilities with new development and substantial alteration of existing 
properties (see PCTBAP policy T-P-19 and Implementing Regulations Sections 2.04.A.4.a; 2.04.B.4.a; 
2.04.C.4.a; and 2.04.D.4.a). Specific mobility projects are identified in Part 8, Implementation Plan. 
Use standards within town centers and regional centers 
addressing the form of development and requiring that projects 
promote pedestrian activity and transit use.  

13.6.5.C.3 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  Detailed design standards are included in the PCTBAP, which address pedestrian activity and 
enhanced design features and transit use in Centers. The standards address building articulation, street 
frontage landscaping, stepped heights, and other building form requirements. The exact standards vary 
by Center. See for example, the Greater Tahoe City Mixed Use subdistrict standards in Implementing 
Regulations Section 2.04.A.4. 
Ensure adequate capacity for redevelopment and transfers of 
development rights into town centers and regional centers.  

13.6.5.C.4 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP incudes height, density, and coverage limits up to the maximum limits allowed by 
Chapter 13 of the Code of Ordinances. These standards would provide adequate capacity for 
redevelopment of the existing Town Centers and transfers of development from sensitive and/or 
outlying areas. 
Identify an integrated community strategy for coverage 
reduction and enhanced stormwater management. 

13.6.5.C.5 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  Part 8, Implementation Plan, of the PCTBAP includes specific projects necessary to implement 
an integrated strategy for coverage reduction and stormwater management. In addition, the PCTBAP 
includes special planning areas with specific requirements for SEZ restoration and coverage reduction 
(See PCTBAP Implementing Regulations Sections 2.09.B.1, 3, and 5). 
Demonstrate that all development activity within Town Centers 
and the Regional Center will provide for or not interfere with 
Threshold gain, including but not limited to measurable 
improvements in water quality. 

13.6.5.C.6 ☒Yes ☐No ☐N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP was reviewed in an EIR/EIS, which identified beneficial effects on threshold 
AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B

142



standards including water quality. The EIR/EIS identified no impacts that would interfere with 
attainment of threshold standards. See also the Chapter 4 findings included in the Governing Board 
Packet. 

Additional Review Standards for the High Density Tourist 
District 

Code  Conformance 

Include building and site design standards that substantially 
enhance the appearance of existing buildings in the High 
Density Tourist District. 

13.6.5.D.1 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes:  The PCTBAP does not include the High Density Tourist District. 
Provide pedestrian, bicycle and transit facilities connecting the 
High Density Tourist District with other regional attractions. 

13.6.5.D.2 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes:   
Demonstrate that all development activity within the High-
Density Tourist District will provide or not interfere with 
Threshold gain, including but not limited to measurable 
improvements in water quality. If necessary to achieve 
Threshold gain, off-site improvements may be additionally 
required. 

13.6.5.D.3 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes:   
Conformity Review for Amendments to Area Plans Code  Conformance 

Following approval of an Area Plan, any subsequent 
amendment to a plan or ordinance contained within the 
approved Area Plan shall be reviewed by the Advisory Planning 
Commission and Governing Board for conformity with the 
requirements of the Regional Plan. Public comment before the 
Governing Board shall be limited to consideration of issues 
raised before the Advisory Planning Commission and issues 
raised by the Governing Board. The Governing Board shall make 
the same findings as required for the conformity finding of the 
initial Area Plan, as provided in subsection 13.6.5; however, the 
scope of the APC and Governing Board’s review shall be limited 
to determining the conformity of the specific amendment only. 
If the Governing Board finds that the amendment to the Area 
Plan does not conform to the Regional Plan, including after any 
changes made in response to TRPA comments, the amendment 
shall not become part of the approved Area Plan. 

13.6.6 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes:  No amendments to the PCTBAP are proposed at this time 

 
Conformity Review for Amendments Made by TRPA to the 

Regional Plan that Affect an Area Plan 

 
Code  

 
Conformance 

TRPA shall provide lead agencies with reasonable notice of 
pending amendments that may affect Area Plans. TRPA also 
shall provide lead agencies with notice of Area Plan topics that 
may require amendment following adopted Regional Plan 
amendments pursuant to this section. 

13.6.7.A ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes: No amendments to the Regional Plan are proposed at this time 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
143



If TRPA approves an amendment to the Regional Plan that 
would also require amendment of an Area Plan to maintain 
conformity, the lead agency shall be given one year to amend 
the Area Plan to demonstrate conformity with the TRPA 
amendment. The Governing Board shall make the same findings 
as required for the conformity finding of the initial Area Plan, as 
provided in subsection 13.6.5; however, the scope of the 
Governing Board’s review shall be limited to determining the 
conformity of only those amendments made by the lead agency 
to conform to the TRPA amendment. If the Governing Board 
finds that the other government fails to demonstrate 
conformity with the TRPA amendment following the one-year 
deadline, then the Board shall identify the policies and/or 
zoning provisions in the Area Plan that are inconsistent and 
assume lead agency authority to amend those policies and 
provisions. 

13.6.7.B ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes:  

Effect of Finding of Conformance of Area Plan Code  Conformance 
By finding that an Area Plan conforms with the Regional Plan 
pursuant to the requirements of this chapter and upon 
adoption of an MOU pursuant to Section 13.7, the Area Plan 
shall serve as the standards and procedures for implementation 
of the Regional Plan. The standards and procedures within each 
Area Plan shall be considered and approved individually and 
shall not set precedent for other Area Plans. 

13.6.8 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes: An MOU for the PCTBAP has not been prepared at this time. An MOU is expected to be prepared 
within six months of a finding of conformance for the PCTBAP, consistent with Code section 13.7.5. 
 

Procedures for Adoption of Memorandum of Understanding Code  Conformance  
Area Plan is consistent with Procedures for Adoption of 
Memorandum of Understanding 

13.7 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes:  An MOU for the PCTBAP has not been prepared at this time. An MOU is expected to be 
prepared within six months of a finding of conformance for the PCTBAP, consistent with Code section 
13.7.5. 
 
 

Monitoring, Certification, and Enforcement of Area Plan Code  Conformance  
Area Plan includes Notification, Monitoring, Annual Review, 
and Recertification procedures consistent Code Section 13.8 

13.8 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

Notes:  Notification, monitoring, annual review, and recertification procedures would be specified in 
the MOU, which is expected to be submitted within six months of a finding of conformance for the 
PCTBAP. 
 

Appeals Code  Conformance  
Area Plan Appeal Procedure is consistent with Code Section 
13.9 

13.9 ☐Yes ☐No ☒N/A 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
144



Notes:  Appeal procedures would be specified in the MOU, which is expected to be submitted within six 
months of a finding of conformance for the PCTBAP. 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
145



   

Attachment H 
Tahoe Basin Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Project EIR/EIS (SCH NO. 2014072039) Errata 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
146



 

 

TAHOE BASIN AREA PLAN AND  
TAHOE CITY LODGE PROJECT EIR/EIS  

(SCH NO. 2014072039) 
Errata  

 

The following changes revise Mitigation Measure 10-1c contained in the Tahoe Basin 
Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Project Final EIR/EIS, Page 10-31: 

 
  

Mitigation Measure 10-1c: Payment of traffic mitigation fees to Placer County 
Prior to issuance of any Placer County Building Permits, projects with the Area plan shall 
be subject required to the payment of established pay established Placer County traffic 
impact fees, subject to the Countywide Traffic Limitation Zone: Article 15.28.010, Placer 
County Code, to the Department of Public Works and Facilities that are in effect in this 
area, pursuant to applicable County Ordinances and Resolutions. in the Tahoe Region 
benefit district at the time of payment.  The County will hold traffic impact fees in an 
interest-bearing trust fund, maintained exclusively for each district, and shall be identified 
by the name of that district. These district trust funds and interest earned by each of these 
district trust funds shall be used solely for improvements included in the Placer County 
capital improvement program for each respective district. Upon receipt by Placer County, 
fees collected shall be segregated and deposited in the several district trust funds by the 
Department of Public Works and Facilities until use of the fees, consistent with County 
Code 15.28.030.D, is initiated.  Traffic mitigation fees shall be required and shall be paid 
to the Placer County Department of Public Works and Facilities subject to the Countywide 
Traffic Limitation Zone: Article 15.28.010, Placer County Code. The fees will be calculated 
using the information supplied.  If the use or the square footage changes, then the fees 
will change.  The actual fees paid will be those in effect at the time the payment occurs. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
147



   

Attachment I 
Tahoe Basin Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Project EIR/EIS (SCH NO. 2014072039) Mitigation 

Monitoring and Reporting Program Errata 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
148



 

 

 

TAHOE BASIN AREA PLAN AND TAHOE CITY LODGE 
PROJECT EIR/EIS  

Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program 
(SCH NO. 2014072039) 

Errata  
 

 

The attached changes revise Mitigation Measure 10-1C contained within the Tahoe 
Basin Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Project Final EIR/EIS Mitigation Monitoring 
and Reporting Program.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
149



AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
150

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line



AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
151

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line

khern
Line



   

Attachment J 
Tahoe Basin Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Project EIR/EIS (SCH NO. 2014072039) Errata 

(December 6, 2016) 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
152



 

 

TAHOE BASIN AREA PLAN AND  
TAHOE CITY LODGE PROJECT EIR/EIS  

(SCH NO. 2014072039) 
Errata (December 6, 2016) 

 

The following revisions to Mitigation Measure 12-1 reflect an expansion and clarification of the 
requirements of the mitigation measure. These changes do not alter the analysis, conclusions, or 
findings of the environmental analysis presented in the EIR/EIS. The revised text would replace 
the text of Mitigation Measure 12-1 in the following locations in the Draft and Final EIR/EIS: 

 
 Chapter 2, Executive Summary (Draft EIR/EIS page 2-28) 
 Chapter 12, Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change (Draft EIR/EIS page 12-27) 
 Chapter 4, Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program (Final EIR/EIS page 4-12) 

The revisions to Mitigation Measure 12-1 are included in strikethrough and underline format, as 
follows: 

Mitigation Measure 12-1: Implement all feasible energy, water, transportation, and vegetation 
measures to achieve known and yet unknown GHG emission targets recommended by 
PCAPCD 
 
The following mitigation measure is required for Area Plan Alternatives 1, 2, and 3. 

Require, as feasible, new construction to implement feasible energy, water, transportation, and 
vegetation measures to achieve goals promulgated by the California Air Resources Board (ARB) 
to reduce GHG emissions to 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030, and other, as-yet unknown 
future regulations. Such measures may include those recommended by PCAPCD available in 
Appendix F-1 of the District’s CEQA Handbook, and other feasible measures consistent with 
ARB’s 2030 Target Scoping Plan Discussion Draft, released December 2, 2016. This would apply 
to new construction occurring under the Area Plan, including the proposed lodge project. Also, 
initiate a funding program to apply these measures to existing facilities within the Plan area, as 
feasible (PCAPCD 2012). 

These recommended measures include, but are not limited to: 

 Installing Tank-less or Energy Efficiency water heaters (E5) 
 Installing solar water heaters (E3) 
 Installing energy efficient roofing (E4) 
 Require Energy Star-rated appliances in new construction (E9) 
 Pre-Plumb new construction for Solar Energy and design for load (E12) 
 Install low-flow water fixtures (W1) 
 Use reclaimed water for irrigation (W3) 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
153



 
 
 Provide bus shelters and lanes and provide bike parking (T1, T2, and T3) 
 Plant drought tolerant plants (V2) 
 Prohibit gas-powered landscaping equipment (V3) 
 
Additional measures that may be implemented to demonstrate compliance with applicable GHG 
emission targets include, but are not limited to: 
 
 Achieve Zero Net Energy (ZNE) or equivalent level of energy efficiency, renewable energy 

generation, or greenhouse gas emission savings 
 Require new developments to demonstrate that each new residence be equipped with a 

minimum of one single-port electric vehicle charging station that achieves similar or better 
functionality as a Level 2 charging station (referring to the voltage that the electric vehicle 
charger uses) 

 Require residential projects to contribute to a fund to subsidize purchase of zero emission 
vehicles 

 Require applicants for commercial projects to demonstrate that parking areas will be equipped 
with electric vehicle charging stations for an appropriate percentage of parking spaces 

 Adopt a program of parking fees to generate funding for sustainable transportation modes 
 Install ground source heat pumps (GSHPs) to reduce the need for natural gas in winter 
 Require payment of fees into carbon offset programs adopted by ARB at a level sufficient to 

offset emissions over the operational life of the project 
 
In addition, ground source heat pumps would reduce the need for natural gas in the winter. 
Fees may also be paid into carbon offset programs that are adopted by ARB. Offsets purchased 
to mitigate operational emissions shall be sufficient to offset emissions during the full 
operational life of the new construction project. 

Significance after Mitigation (applies to Area Plan impacts only) 
Among the Area Plan alternatives, Alternative 2 provides the greatest GHG reductions, as 
compared to existing conditions, followed closely by the No Project alternative. However, under 
all alternatives, the Area Plan may not reduce overall regional emissions to less-than-significant 
levels. Implementation of Mitigation Measure 12-1 would reduce some of the anticipated future 
GHG emissions at buildout. Some of these measures would also be consistent with those 
identified in the Tahoe SAP. However, the exact effectiveness of these measures would depend 
on participation rates, available funding, and available technology at the time of installation. 
Given the uncertain effect of these mitigation measures, the Area Plan would have a 
considerable contribution to the cumulative impact of greenhouse gas emissions and climate 
change significant and unavoidable for all alternatives. 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.A & B
154



   

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:    January 18, 2017 

To:        TRPA Governing Board 
 
From:                 TRPA Staff 
 
Subject:             Tahoe City Lodge and Tahoe City Golf Course Improvement Project, 255 and 265 
                            North Lake Boulevard, Tahoe City, Placer County, California, Assessor’s Parcel 
                            Numbers (APNs) 094-070-001 and 094-070-002, TRPA File Number ERSP2015-0857  

 
Requested Action:  Staff requests that the Governing Board hold a public hearing and act on the 
following matters: 
 
1. Approval of the proposed Tahoe City Lodge Project: To approve the proposed project, the 

Board must make the following motions. (Approval requires 5 California and 9 total 
affirmative votes):  

 
I. A motion to make the required Chapter 3, 4, 21, 30, 37, and 61 findings, 

including a Finding of No Significant Effect, for all potential impacts, (See 
Attachment B).   
 

II. A motion based on this staff summary and the complete administrative record 
to approve the project, subject to the conditions of the attached Draft Permit 
(Attachment A).  
 

III. A motion based on this staff summary to approve the Subdivision of Existing 
Structures, subject to the conditions of the attached Draft Permit (Attachment 
D).   
 

Staff Recommendation:  Staff recommends that the Governing Board make the required findings 
and approve the proposed Tahoe City Lodge Project.  The Governing Board already certified the 
Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan (TBAP) and Tahoe City Lodge Project Environmental Impact 
Statement (EIS) under Agenda Item VII.A. & B. 
 
Site Description:  The Tahoe City Lodge project area comprises approximately 3 acres of land in 
the Tahoe City and includes property owned by Kila Tahoe LLC and a portion of the Tahoe City 
Golf Course.  Project proponent Kila Tahoe LLC owns the 1.4 acre site of the former Henrikson 
Property, a commercial development located on the north side of North Lake Boulevard (State 
Route 28), approximately 200 yards northeast of the Wye and in the western portion of the 
commercial area of Tahoe City (255 and 265 North Lake Boulevard in Tahoe City). The project 
area also includes two existing easements on adjacent properties, one from the Tahoe City Golf 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
155



   

   
 

Course and one from the parcel to the west of the project site, known as the Bechdoldt 
easement. The project area is occupied by three buildings that make-up the existing two-story 
commercial center on the Kila Tahoe property. In addition to the lodge itself, the project utilizes 
approximately 1.7 acres of land within the Tahoe City Golf Course Special Planning Area (SPA) 
for density purposes.     
 
Land uses surrounding the project area include a variety of high density community uses 
including employee housing, tourist accommodation, commercial, public service, recreation and 
resource management.  These uses are consistent with the designation of Tahoe City as the 
main retail/tourist core of the town along SR 28. In order for the Governing Board to consider 
the Lodge project, it will first need to approve the TBAP, which amends the applicable zoning to 
be compatible with the proposed Tahoe City Lodge project area density and building height and 
includes tourist accommodation as a permissible use.  The project site is located within what will 
be a mixed-use town center pending Area Plan adoption.  The lodge relies on the 
implementation of the mixed-use sub-districts and town center redevelopment policies set forth 
in the Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA) Regional Plan and implemented with the TBAP.  
Without the TBAP, the Tahoe City Lodge would require amendments to the Regional Plan and 
Code of Ordinances, as well as several planning documents associated with the 1987 Regional 
Plan. 
 
Project Description:  The proposed project (EIS Alternative 1) redevelops the existing 
commercial complex into a 118-unit lodge and modifies and relocates the existing Tahoe City 
Golf Course clubhouse.  The following components are proposed as part of the project: 
 
•     Threshold Improvement Projects, including BMPs for the Tahoe City Lodge, on-site drainage 

and water quality improvements, reduction in land coverage on APNs 094-070-001 and 094-
070-002 relative to existing conditions, maintenance and expansion of the Tahoe City 
Sidewalk Beautification Project, and 1.7 acres of SEZ restoration on the Tahoe City Golf 
Course.  

• Two to four story condo hotel and lodge with a total of 118 units. Seventy-eight one and 
two bedroom suites will operate as “condo hotel” units and will be sold to private 
individuals. The remaining 40 units will be retained by the Tahoe City Lodge as traditional 
tourist accommodation units.  

• Additional lodge amenities include 3,981 square feet of ground floor restaurant and kitchen, 
a 1,163 square foot food and beverage deck, a 6,587 square foot roof-top terrace, 
swimming pool and bar, 636 square feet of lobby area, and administrative areas. 

• A deed restriction for the 78 condo-hotel units, restricting the owner use of these units to a 
maximum of 90 (ninety) days within a calendar year with a maximum stay of 30 (thirty) days 
within a single quarter.   

    
The Tahoe City Golf Course component of the project includes the following: 
 
•     Demolition, relocation, and expansion of the golf course clubhouse to include an additional 

3,858 square feet of floor area and a new conference facility and meeting space.  
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
156



   

   
 

• Relocation of the golf course putting green 
 
•     Improved entryway and signage for the golf course 
 
•    1.7 acres of Stream Environment Zone restoration 
 
Tahoe City Lodge Project Subdivision of Existing Structures  In accordance with the Vesting 
Tentative Map approved by the Placer County Board of Supervisors on December 6, 2016, the 
applicant proposes to create a one-lot subdivision to allow for a condominium plan with air 
space condominiums for the 78 one- and two-bedroom condo-hotel units within the Tahoe City 
Lodge. TRPA does not allow for the subdivision of land, with the exception of the subdivision of 
existing structures consistent with Code Section 39.1.3.G. A structure must be considered built 
before a subdivision can take place. As such Phase Two of the attached permit must be 
acknowledged prior to acknowledgement of the subdivision permit (TRPA File# SUBD2016-
1150).  The Vesting Tentative Map and the proposed subdivision of existing structures solely 
provides for the ability of individual ownership of the condo hotel units.  To ensure these units 
are operated as Tourist Accommodation Units, a deed restriction will be recorded limiting any 
owner to 90 days of use in any calendar year, with a limit of no more than 30 days of use in any 
calendar quarter.   
 
TBAP Substitute Standards Description The proposed Tahoe City Lodge project will be the first 
project to be reviewed under the policies and standards of the TBAP.  The proposed Tahoe City 
Lodge is located within the Greater Tahoe City Mixed-Use Town Center with a portion of the 
Lodge project within the boundary of the Tahoe City Golf Course Special Planning Area (TCGC-
SPA) overlay.  Therefore, the following TBAP substitute standards apply to the redevelopment of 
the existing Henrikson property into the proposed Tahoe City Lodge:   
 

• Within the Tahoe City Mixed Use Town Center overlay, tourist unit density is allowed at 
40 units per acre  

• 56 feet maximum building height (3-4 stories)  
• Conversion of the on-site commercial floor area (CFA) to tourist accommodation units 

(TAU) and  
• SEZ restoration in exchange for disturbance in sensitive lands at a 1 to 1 ratio. 

   
The Tahoe City Lodge project includes portions of the Tahoe City Golf Course property.  The 
Tahoe City Lodge proposes to bring in 1.7 acres of the Tahoe City Golf Course into the project 
area and will therefore be required to restore 1.7 acres of Stream Environment Zone.  With this 
density transfer, the project area will be approximately 3 acres and will achieve the proposed 
density in the Mixed Use Town Center designation.  
 
The Permittee will utilize the Section 3.13.B of the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan 
Implementing Regulations Commodity Conversions which allows property owners to convert 
verified on-site Commercial Floor Area (CFA) to on-site Tourist Accommodation Units (TAUs). 
The ratio for the conversion is 450 square feet of CFA equals 1 TAU.  A total of 26,322 square 
feet of CFA was verified by TRPA per TRPA File#VBOU2013-1010.  Of the verified CFA, 7,320 
square feet are located in Land Capability District 1b and the remaining 19,002 square feet of 
verified CFA is located in Land Capability District 5. The Permittee will be converting the existing 
19,002 square feet of Class 5 CFA into 42 TAUs (19,002 square feet divided by 450 square feet) 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
157



   

   
 

to be located within Class 5 area, which will be deemed complete upon acknowledgement of 
Phase One of the Draft Permit.  The Permittee will be converting the existing, verified 7,320 
square feet of CFA that sits within Class 1b into 16 TAUs (7,320 square feet divided by 450 
square feet), which will be deemed complete upon acknowledgement of Phase One of the Draft 
Permit.  The Permittee must complete a transfer of the remaining balance of 60 TAUs prior to 
the acknowledgement of Phase One of the Draft Permit. The transfer details for the balance of 
the TAUs will be done in accordance with Section 51.5 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances and is 
detailed in the Draft Permit (Attachment A).  
  
 
Background: The developers of the Tahoe City Lodge (Kila Tahoe) began dialogue with Placer 
County and TRPA pertaining to the proposed project and the relation to the development of the 
Tahoe Basin Area Plan in the fall of 2013. Initially, it was conceived that the Tahoe City Lodge 
project would complete environmental review following adoption of the Area Plan, however 
due to delays in the development of the Area Plan the Placer County Board of Supervisors 
ultimately decided that the Tahoe City Lodge would be evaluated within the joint environmental 
document (EIR/EIS) at the project level.   In April of 2015, Kila Tahoe submitted an initial 
application to TRPA for the Tahoe City Lodge project.  Given the relationship of the Tahoe City 
Lodge to the TBAP, TRPA staff has aligned review of the proposed lodge project with that of the 
TBAP.  By combining both the Area Plan and the Tahoe City Lodge into the same environmental 
review, we can see what kinds of projects may be implemented under the Area Plan.   
 
The Tahoe City Lodge project includes portions of the Tahoe City Golf Course property. The 
Tahoe City Golf Course is owned and operated by the Tahoe City Public Utility District. The 
Tahoe City Golf Course property was purchased in 2012 as part of a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) with the TCPUD, Placer County, the Tahoe Truckee Airport District, and 
the North Lake Tahoe Resort Association. The MOU characterizes each of the aforementioned 
party’s expectations for the property with particular emphasis on providing public benefit. 
   
This EIS has been prepared for both the Tahoe City Lodge project and the Placer County Tahoe 
Basin Area Plan (TBAP). The Final EIR/EIS analyzed the Tahoe City Lodge as a near-term 
redevelopment project because it was identified as opportunity to incentivize and facilitate 
redevelopment in this area. The Tahoe City Lodge (TCL) project exemplifies what can be 
achieved through implementation of an adopted Area Plan.  The EIS has been prepared with an 
analysis of four separate project level alternatives, one of which is a no-project alternative.  The 
consulting firm, Ascent Environmental, acted as the lead contractor for the environmental 
document, although subcontractors assisted in its preparation.  The Draft EIS was issued in June 
2016 for a 60-day circulation and public comment period.  During the comment period, public 
hearings on the draft document were held before the TRPA APC and Governing Board. The 
Tahoe City Lodge as proposed and analyzed for purposes of this staff summary cannot move 
forward without the substitute standards in the TBAP. 
 
Issues/Concerns:  The scoping process and public review period for the Draft EIS identified a 
number of environmental issues that needed to be addressed in the Final EIS (see list of issues 
based on scoping comments in Section 2.1 in the DEIS).  In response to the call for review and 
comment, comments were received specific to the lodge. Among the comments raised during 
the DEIS circulation period were concerns related to noise generated from the rooftop bar and 
the clubhouse activities, scenic impacts, density, emergency access and evacuation, and parking 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
158



   

   
 

impacts. These issues, along with the comments, are fully addressed in the FEIS response to 
comments (see Sections 2 and 3 of the FEIS for details). A brief summary of the responses to the 
identified issues and concerns is summarized below. 
 
 In response to the concerns that were raised during the review and comment period, several 
measures were taken.  The project applicant met with neighbors who raised scenic impact and 
noise concerns. Scenic simulations were revised accordingly and a mitigation measure was 
added to address off-site noise concerns. Parking demand for the project area was analyzed in a 
parking study conducted by LSC.  As a result, parking was removed out of the neighboring 
“Bechdoldt” easement and additional parking spaces were added to meet the updated winter 
peak demand assessment. Parking requirements are established and enforced by Placer County, 
however TRPA, in addition to Placer County, will require a parking management plan as a 
condition of approval prior to the acknowledgement of Phase One of the Draft Permit.    

 
Regional Plan Compliance:  Based on the FEIS analysis, the proposed project is in compliance 
with the Regional Plan, Regional Plan Goals and Policies, the TBAP, and the TRPA Code of 
Ordinances (as amended).  The findings the Governing Board must make in order to approve the 
proposed project along with the rationale for making the findings are attached (Attachment B). 
 
The lodge project is an environmentally beneficial redevelopment project located within a Town 
Center and brings with it several examples of the types of benefits experienced when these 
types of projects are implemented.  These benefits are consistent with the Regional Plan, 
Regional Plan Goals and Policies, and the TBAP. Coverage reductions within the project area 
from existing conditions, 1.7 acres of SEZ restoration, scenic improvement of a blighted 
property, and implementation of on-site water quality BMPs are the prime examples of how this 
project implements the Regional Plan.  Additionally, the project includes components that are 
above and beyond TRPA requirements but are exemplary of desirable 
development/redevelopment. These measures include: 
 

• LEED level buildings 
• Green hotel operations 
• Bus passes for employees 
• Biking facilities to encourage biking (i.e. racks, shower/changing facilities) 
• Bike program for guests 

 
Environmental Documentation: The Draft EIR/EIS was released on June 15, 2016 for public 
review and comment for a 60-day period (ending August 15, 2016).  The Draft EIR/EIS was 
submitted to both the California and Nevada State Clearinghouses; the Draft EIR/EIS and/or a 
Notice of Availability was distributed directly to public agencies (including potential responsible 
and trustee agencies), interested parties, and organizations; and the Draft EIR/EIS was made 
available for review during normal business hours at various public locations. The Draft EIR/EIS 
was made available on both Placer County’s and TRPA’s website.  TRPA consulted the public 
with five public hearings that were held during this time. The Draft EIS analyzed four project 
alternatives, including a no project alternative. The proposed project in the EIS is Alternative 1, 
Proposed Tahoe City Lodge Project.  All adverse effects associated with the Lodge could be 
mitigated to less-than-significant levels.     
   

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
159



   

   
 

Contacts:  If you have any questions, please contact Tiffany Good, Senior Planner at 
tgood@trpa.org or 775-589-5283.  
 
Attachments: 

A. Draft Permit   
B. Required Findings/Rationale (Attachment B-1 – Project Findings, Attachment B-

2 – EIS  
Certification Findings) 

C. Exhibits (Conceptual Site Plan, Floor Plans, Elevations) 
D. Subdivision Permit  
E.    Required Findings for Approval of the Subdivision of Existing Structures 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
160

mailto:tgood@trpa.org


 

Attachment A 
DRAFT PERMIT 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
161



DRAFT PERMIT 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: New Tourist Accommodation            APNs 094-070-001, 094-070-002, 094-020-006 
 
PERMITTEE(S):       Kila Tahoe, LLC FILE # ERSP2015-0857 
 
COUNTY/LOCATION: Placer/ 251, 255, and 265 North Lake Boulevard 
 
Having made the findings required by Agency ordinances and rules, the TRPA Governing Board approved 
the project on January 25, 2017 subject to the standard conditions of approval attached hereto 
(Attachment Q), and the special conditions found in this permit.   
 
This permit shall expire on January 25, 2020 without further notice unless the construction has 
commenced prior to this date and diligently pursued thereafter.  Commencement of construction consists 
of pouring concrete for a foundation and does not include grading, installation of utilities or landscaping.  
Diligent pursuit is defined as completion of the project within the approved construction schedule.  The 
expiration date shall not be extended unless the project is determined by TRPA to be the subject of legal 
action which delayed or rendered impossible the diligent pursuit of the permit. 
 
NO DEMOLITION, TREE REMOVAL, CONSTRUCTION OR GRADING SHALL COMMENCE UNTIL: 
(1) TRPA RECEIVES A COPY OF THIS PERMIT UPON WHICH THE PERMITTEE(S) HAS ACKNOWLEDGED 

RECEIPT OF THE PERMIT AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONTENTS OF THE PERMIT; 
(2) ALL PRE-CONSTRUCTION CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL ARE SATISFIED AS EVIDENCED BY TRPA’S 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THIS PERMIT;    
(3) THE PERMITTEE OBTAINS A COUNTY DEMOLITION/BUILDING PERMIT.  TRPA’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

IS NECESSARY TO OBTAIN A COUNTY BUILDING PERMIT.  THE COUNTY PERMIT AND THE TRPA PERMIT 
ARE INDEPENDENT OF EACH OTHER AND MAY HAVE DIFFERENT EXPIRATION DATES AND RULES 
REGARDING EXTENSIONS; AND 

(4) A TRPA PRE-GRADING INSPECTION HAS BEEN CONDUCTED WITH THE PROPERTY OWNER AND/OR THE 
CONTRACTOR. 

 
_______________________________________     _______________________________                                                        
TRPA Executive Director/Designee         Date                                                
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
PERMITTEE’S ACCEPTANCE: I have read the permit and the conditions of approval and understand and 
accept them.  I also understand that I am responsible for compliance with all the conditions of the permit 
and am responsible for my agents’ and employees’ compliance with the permit conditions.  I also 
understand that if the property is sold, I remain liable for the permit conditions until or unless the new 
owner acknowledges the transfer of the permit and notifies TRPA in writing of such acceptance.  I also 
understand that certain mitigation fees associated with this permit are non-refundable once paid to TRPA.  
I understand that it is my sole responsibility to obtain any and all required approvals from any other state, 
local or federal agencies that may have jurisdiction over this project whether or not they are listed in this 
permit. 
 
Signature of Permittee(s)___________________________      Date______________________ 
------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

PERMIT CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
162



APNs 094-070-001, 094-070-002, & 094-020-006 
TRPA FILE #ERSP 2015-0857 

 
PERMIT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
 
PHASE ONE (See Special Conditions 2 and 3) 

FEES 
 

Description Date Amount Receipt No. 
Excess Coverage Mitigation Fee (TBD, see Cond. 3.P)    
 
 

SECURITIES 
Description Type Date Amount  Receipt No.  

Project (TBD per Special Cond. 3.Q)   $  
Admin. Fee (TBD, Attach. “J”)   $  
 
TRPA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  The permittee has complied with all pre-construction conditions of 
approval as of this date: 
______________________________________                _____________________________ 
TRPA Executive Director/Designee                                 Date 
 
 
PHASE TWO (See Special Conditions 4 and 5) 

FEES 
Description Date Amount Receipt No. 

Excess Coverage Mitigation Fee (TBD, see Cond. 5.Q)    

 
SECURITIES 

Description Type Date Amount  Receipt No.  
Project (TBD per Special Cond. 5.M)   $  
Admin. Fee (TBD, Attach. “J”)   $  
 
TRPA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  The permittee has complied with all pre-construction conditions of 
approval as of this date: 
_____________________________________             ________________________________ 
TRPA Executive Director/Designee                                 Date 
  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
163



 

PHASE THREE (See Special Conditions 6 and 7) 

SECURITIES 
Description Type Date Amount  Receipt No.  

Project (TBD per Special Cond. 7.H)   $  
Admin. Fee (TBD, Attach. “J”)   $  
 
TRPA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  The permittee has complied with all pre-construction conditions of 
approval as of this date: 
_____________________________________             ________________________________ 
TRPA Executive Director/Designee                                 Date 
 
 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 
1. This permit authorizes the redevelopment of an existing commercial complex into a 118 unit lodge, 

the relocation and reconstruction of the Tahoe City Golf Course Clubhouse, new on-site shared 
parking, and 1.7 acres of SEZ restoration to occur on the adjacent Tahoe City Golf Course property. 
The lodge is made up of 78 one and two bedroom suites that will operate as a “condo hotel”. These 
units will be sold to private parties.  The remaining 40 units would be retained by the lodge.  In 
addition to tourist units, the lodge includes a ground floor restaurant and lobby area, and a rooftop 
terrace with a swimming pool and bar.  The project component specifically associated with the Tahoe 
City Golf Course includes golf course enhancements, the relocation and expansion of the existing 
clubhouse, shared-use parking, and stream environment zone (SEZ restoration). Additionally, the 
proposed project includes a series of environmental improvements.  The following components are 
proposed as part of the project: 

 
•     Threshold Improvement Projects, including BMPs for the Tahoe City Lodge, drainage and water 

quality improvements, reduction in land coverage on APNs 094-070-001 and 094-070-002 relative to 
existing conditions, maintenance and expansion of the Tahoe City Sidewalk Beautification Project, 
and 1.7 acres of SEZ restoration on the Tahoe City Golf Course.  

• One to four story condo hotel and lodge with a total of 118 units. Seventy-eight one and two 
bedroom suites will operate as “condo hotel” units and will be sold to private parties. The remaining 
40 units will be retained by the Tahoe City Lodge.  

• Additional lodge amenities include 3,981 square feet of ground floor restaurant and kitchen, a 1,163 
square foot food and beverage deck, a 6,587 square foot roof-top terrace, swimming pool and bar, 
636 square feet of lobby area, and administrative areas 

    
The Tahoe City Golf Course component of the project includes the following: 
 
•     Demolition, relocation, and expansion of the golf course clubhouse to include an additional 3,858 

square feet of space and a new conference facility and meeting space.  
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
164



• Relocation of the golf course putting green 
 
•     Improved entryway and signage for the golf course 
 
•    1.7 acres of SEZ restoration 

 

2. The Standard Conditions of Approval in Attachment R shall apply to this permit. 
 

Phase One of the project includes: 
 

• Demolish the existing commercial structures located on the property known as the “Henrikson 
Property” located at 251 and 255 North Lake Boulevard. Construct, grade & pave temporary 
construction access at northern edge of the property. Existing ingress and egress from the 
property to North Lake Boulevard is provided by an existing easement along the adjacent 
property to the west of the project area.  

• Tree Removal for project.  
• Grading, trenching, installation, backfill and revegetation for the undergrounding of existing 

utilities. 
• Grading, trenching, installation, backfill, and revegetation for the addition of new water lines, 

upgraded electrical utilities, and relocated and upgraded sewer lines. 
• Installation of concrete utility vaults. 
• Foundation construction for Buildings 1, 2, and 3 of the Tahoe City Lodge  
• Implement phase-relevant mitigation measures. 
 

3. Prior to acknowledgement of Phase One, the following special conditions of approval must be 
satisfied. 

A. The permittee shall submit a general Construction/Phasing Schedule to TRPA for review and 
approval for the entire project.   

 
B. The permittee shall submit a detailed construction schedule specific to Phase One. This schedule 

shall clearly describe the components of this phase for elements such as, but not limited to: 
construction staging, BMPs, winterization, demolition, grading, foundation work, and paving. All 
required permanent water quality improvements associated with this phase shall be installed 
prior to or upon completion of this phase.  

C. The permittee shall provide a project area site plan for Phase One that clearly identifies all work 
associated with Phase One. Work associated with future Phases will not be included.   

D. The site plans shall be revised to include: 
 

1. Location of all recorded easements on the site inherent to the property or resulting from this 
project.  
 

2. Existing land coverage proposed to be removed. 
 

3. Proposed new land coverage. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
165



4. Location of temporary construction access roads, including proposed grading for the 
construction of the temporary roads. The temporary access road shall follow the alignment 
of the permanent project road where feasible. Final design and location of the temporary 
access is to be reviewed and approved prior to acknowledgement of Phase One. 

5. Proposed construction staging areas. 
 

6. Detailed land coverage calculations broken down by type of development and land capability.  
 

7. A note indicating: "All areas disturbed by construction shall be revegetated in accordance 
with the TRPA Handbook of Best Management Practices and Living with Fire, Lake Tahoe 
Basin, Second Edition."  

8. A note indicating: "All areas disturbed by construction shall be treated with an appropriate 
dust control measure. This treatment shall be continued or maintained from completion of 
the initial grading through completion of the project. Broadcast mulch shall not be permitted 
as a dust control measure within 35 feet of structures.” 
 

9. Delineation of all trees to be saved or removed. 
 

10. Location of all temporary erosion control and vegetation protection structures. 
 

11. During the final site design and before TRPA approval, the site plan shall be refined to reduce 
paved parking areas (such as roads, parking areas, or paved walkways) such that the total 
proposed land coverage within any LCD does not exceed the limits established by TRPA.  This 
would require a net reduction in LCD 3 under Lodge Alternative 1.   
 

E. The permittee shall prepare a Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for Phase One to 
comply with the Construction General NPDES Permit for the Lake Tahoe Basin. The SWPPP shall 
be submitted to TRPA for review, and shall function as the temporary construction BMP plan for 
Phase One. The SWPPP shall include the following: 

 1. Temporary erosion control structures located downslope of the proposed construction 
areas. Please note: Straw bales are not acceptable for temporary erosion control or mulch 
material in the Lake Tahoe Basin. The use of straw has contributed to the spread of 
noxious weeds throughout the basin. The use of alternatives to straw bales, such as pine 
needle bales, filter fabric, coir logs and pine needle or wood mulches for erosion purposes 
is required. 

 2. Sturdy high-visibility protective fencing shall be installed at the limits of construction 
(including all grading, underground utilities, staging, storage, parking, or other 
development activity), and outside of the critical root zone of all trees to be preserved 
that have critical root zones in the limits of construction, and that are 14 inches dbh or 
greater. The critical root zone is defined here as the area within 10 feet of a tree’s drip 
line. This fencing shall be included on all site plans (e.g. Staging, Grading, Drainage and 
Utility plans). 

 3. Temporary slope stabilization on all slopes subject to erosion. 

 4. Loose piles of soil, silt, clay, sand, debris, or other earthen material shall be covered to 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
166



prevent the discharge of these materials. 

F. The permittee shall submit a phase-specific Grading Plan to TRPA for review and approval that 
includes the following: 

1. Details of the proposed utility undergrounding, including vaults details, a construction 
methodology that includes excavation dimensions, how it will be completed, where the 
spoils will be located and when the trench backfill will occur.  

2. Location of all land coverage to be constructed in this phase.  

3. Proposed location and travel path of equipment and vehicle construction access for this 
phase.  

4. Existing and proposed topographic contour lines for this phase, clearly identified, at two 
(2) foot intervals, and all areas of cut and fill for this phase.  

5. Identification of existing and finished grade elevation at each building corner to be 
constructed in this phase, if applicable.  

6. Location of all trees 14-inches diameter or greater, with identification of all such trees to 
be removed as a part of this phase, if applicable.  

7. Location of the proposed construction staging areas for this phase. All staging shall be 
located outside of tree driplines and within areas of existing or approved disturbance.  

8. All temporary BMPs for this phase, consistent with the approved SWPPP. Additional 
temporary BMPs may be field-fit by the TRPA Compliance Inspector during construction if 
they determine the site is not in compliance with the TRPA Code of Ordinances.   

 
G. The permittee shall submit a Restoration and Revegetation Plan for TRPA review and approval to 

delineate the restoration plan for areas where land coverage will be removed and the 
revegetation plan for areas which have been disturbed. 
 

H. The permittee shall submit a report prepared by a certified arborist to preserve all trees 
identified to remain during final design and construction of the project. 

 
I. The permittee shall submit an EIS Mitigation Measure Compliance Plan for TRPA review and 

approval for all mitigation measures identified for the proposed project in the Placer County 
Tahoe Basin Area Plan/Tahoe City Lodge EIS. All mitigation measures identified in the Placer 
County Tahoe Basin Area Plan/Tahoe City Lodge EIS are hereby incorporated by reference as 
conditions of project approval. The EIS Mitigation Measure Compliance Plan shall describe in 
which phase each of these mitigation measures will be addressed in the final plans for the 
project. 
 

J. Prior to the approval of Phase One for this project, a Parking Management Plan addressing both 
winter and summer peak project parking conditions shall be submitted to TRPA for review and 
approval. The Parking Management Plan shall address any parking deficiencies.  This plan will 
ensure that adequate parking and any proposed shuttle services are in place in order to 
accommodate any required off-site peak project parking. Prior to acknowledgement of Phase 
One of this project, an agreement between Placer County, TCPUD, and the applicant to 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
167



implement the Parking Management Plan, along with the detailed plan, shall be signed and 
approved, with a copy provided to the TRPA. 

 
K. Prior to the approval of Phase One for this project, the permittee shall provide to TRPA a 

completed and signed shared-use parking agreement between the Lodge and the TCPUD to be 
entered into by the permittee and the TCPUD consistent with the findings of the Tahoe City 
Lodge EIR/EIS. 

 
L. The permittee shall prepare for TRPA review and approval a final geotechnical engineering report 

for the entire project produced by a Registered Civil Engineer or Geotechnical Engineer, similar to 
that provided to Placer County  (per Conditional Use Permit/Subdivision Map Special Condition 
#11). The report shall address and make final recommendations on the following: 

 
1. Road, pavement and parking area design. 
 
2. Structural foundations, including retaining wall design, if applicable. 
 
3. Grading practices. 
 
4. Erosion/winterization. 
 
5. Special problems or conditions discovered on-site (e.g., groundwater, expansive/unstable 

soils, plan revision Units 31 & 32 excavation depths and project sewer line excavation 
depths in excess of 10 feet bng). 

 
6. Slope stability. 

 
It will be the responsibility of the permittee to obtain third party inspections to certify that the 
earthwork has been performed in conformity with the recommendations contained in the report. 
Recommendations shall be incorporated into the final project design, and may require plan 
revisions to this permit. 

M. The permittee shall submit a snow removal/snow storage plan to TRPA for review and approval 
for the access driveway, construction staging, and construction access), which shall provide year 
round access to emergency vehicles & pedestrians. This snow removal plan shall be applicable for 
all necessary snow removal necessary for all proposed Phase One work. All areas proposed for 
snow storage shall comply with Section 4.2-C of the TRPA BMP Handbook. 

N. The Permittee shall submit a snow removal plan to TRPA for any permanent paved areas that will 
be created as a result of implementing Phase One. 

O. The Permittee will utilize the Section 3.13.B of the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan 
Implementing Regulations Commodity Conversions which allows property owners to convert 
verified Commercial Floor Area (CFA) to Tourist Accommodation Units (TAUs). The ratio for the 
conversion is 450 square feet of CFA equals 1 TAU.  A total of 26,322 square feet of CFA was 
verified by TRPA per TRPA File#VBOU2013-1010.  7,320 square feet of the verified CFA is located 
in Land Capability District 1b and the remaining 19,002 square feet of verified CFA is located in 
Land Capability District 5. The Permittee will be converting the existing 19,002 square feet of 
Class 5 CFA into 42 TAUs (19,002 square feet divided by 450 square feet) to be located within 
Class 5 area, which will be deemed complete upon acknowledgement of Phase Two.  The 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
168



Permittee will be converting the existing, verified 7,320 square feet of CFA that sits within Class 
1b into 16 TAUs (7,320 square feet divided by 450 square feet), which will be deemed complete 
upon acknowledgement of Phase Two.  The Permittee must complete a transfer of the remaining 
balance of60 TAUs prior to the acknowledgement of Phase Two. The transfer details for the 
balance of the TAUs is as follows:   

• According to the proposed plans, 88 TAUs will sit within Land Capability 5 

• According to the proposed plans, 30 TAUs will sit within Land Capability 1b (24 
units are entirely within Land Capability 1b and 6 are at least 50% within Land 
Capability 1b) 

• 16 units will result from the on-site CFA to TAU conversion on the land that sits 
within Land Capability 1b, leaving a balance of 14 TAUs that need to be 
transferred from Land Capability 1b lands concurrent with Phase Two 
acknowledgement. 

• The balance of 46 TAUs needed to complete the 118-unit project shall be 
transferred in accordance with Section 51.5 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances and 
must occur prior to acknowledgement of Phase Two of this permit. Please note 
the all transfers must be in compliance with TRPA Code of Ordinances and the 
TRPA Rules of Procedure, and require separate applications to TRPA .  

P. The affected property has 79,319 SF square feet of excess land coverage.  The permittee shall 
mitigate a portion or all of the excess land coverage on this property by removing coverage 
within Hydrologic Transfer Area 8 – Tahoe City (California) or by submitting an excess coverage 
mitigation fee. The Permittee shall pay an excess coverage mitigation fee based on the amount of 
excess coverage specific to the Phase One construction cost estimate of the load bearing 
elements.    

 
To calculate the amount of excess coverage to be removed, use the following formula: 

 
Estimated project construction cost multiplied by the fee percentage of 0.0375 
(as identified in Table A of Subsection 30.6.1, Chapter 30 of the TRPA Code of 
Ordinances) divided by the mitigation factor of 8.  If you choose this option, 
please revise your final site plans and land coverage calculations to account for 
the permanent coverage removal. 

 
An excess land coverage mitigation fee may be paid in lieu of permanently retiring land 
coverage.  The excess coverage mitigation fee shall be calculated as follows: 

 
Coverage reduction square footage (as determined by formula above) multiplied 
by the coverage mitigation cost fee of $8.50 for projects within Hydrologic 
Transfer Area 8 – Tahoe City (California).  Please provide a construction cost 
estimate by your licensed contractor, architect or engineer.  In no case shall the 
mitigation fee be less than $200.00. 

Q. The permittee shall submit plans, cost estimates and installation schedule for the installation of 
all required water quality improvements (BMPs) for Phase One. The security required under 
Standard Condition A.1 (3) of Attachment Q shall be equal to 110 percent of the estimated BMP 
costs, or $5,000, whichever is more. All required permanent BMPs associated with Phase One 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
169



shall be installed prior to or upon completion of Phase One.  

R. TRPA reserves the right to require restoration and/or re-vegetation of the project site located on 
APNs 094-070-001 and/or 094-070-002 to mitigate any disturbance that has occurred on-site as a 
result of acknowledging Phase One of this permit should this permit expire. 
 

S. Pursuant to TRPA Code of Ordinances 67.3.1, if historical, pre-historical, or paleontological 
materials appearing to be 50 years or older are discovered during grading or construction activity 
and have not been accounted for by TRPA, all activity shall cease and TRPA shall be notified 
immediately. The permittee shall consult with a qualified archaeologist to evaluate and 
determine the potential significance of the resource and potential mitigation measures. The 
permittee shall also provide protection for the discovered resource during this evaluation period.  

T. The permittee shall submit three sets of final construction drawings and site plans for Phase One 
to TRPA. 

 
4. Phase Two of the project includes: 
 

• Build out of the 118 lodge units, inclusive of the 78 condo-hotel units and the 40 hotel units  
• The lodge component also includes the following: 

- 3,981 square foot ground-floor restaurant and kitchen 
- 1,163 square foot food and beverage deck 
- 6,587 square foot roof-top terrace, swimming pool, and bar 
- 636 square foot lobby area 
- office and back of the house uses 

• Grading and construction of 118 parking spaces  
• Submittal of a grading application to TRPA for 1.7 acres of SEZ restoration on the Tahoe City Golf 

Course which shall be approved prior to the security return for Phase Two. 
• Implement phase-relevant mitigation measures. 
 

5. Prior to acknowledgement of Phase Two, the following special conditions of approval must be 
satisfied. 

 
A. The permittee shall update, if necessary, the general Construction/Phasing Schedule for the 

entire project.  

B. The permittee shall submit a detailed construction schedule specific to Phase Two.  

 
C. Phase Two shall be acknowledged concurrently with the associated subdivision permit 

(SUBD2016-1150). 
 

D. The permittee shall submit a grading application for the completion of 1.7 acres of SEZ 
restoration to occur on the Tahoe City Golf Course.  The proposed SEZ restoration shall be 
reviewed and approved by TRPA prior to security return for Phase Two of this permit. 

E. The permittee shall provide a project area site plan for Phase Two that clearly identifies all work 
associated with Phase Two, and includes work completed in previous Phases in a lighter shade. 
Work associated with future Phases will not be included.  The intent is to clearly identify work 
associated with the current Phase in relation to work completed in previous Phases. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
170



F. The permittee shall amend the SWPPP to include the activities in Phase Two. The amended 
SWPPP shall be submitted to TRPA for review, and shall function as the temporary construction 
BMP plan for Phase Two.   

G. The permittee shall prepare and submit an emergency response and evacuation plan for the 
Tahoe City Lodge to TRPA, Placer County, and North Tahoe Fire Protection District for review and 
approval. The plan shall include detailed descriptions of how emergency response and 
evacuation will occur in case of a large earthquake and seiche event.  Emergency response and 
evacuation measures shall identify actions that help avoid, reduce, alleviate and mitigate disaster 
damage and potential loss of life.  

H. The permittee shall submit a snow removal/snow storage plan to TRPA for review and approval 
for the access driveway, construction staging, Lodge parking areas, pedestrian walkways, and 
construction access), which shall provide year round access to emergency vehicles & pedestrians. 
This snow removal plan shall be applicable for all necessary snow removal necessary for all 
proposed Phase Two work. All areas proposed for snow storage shall comply with Section 4.2-C 
of the TRPA BMP Handbook. 

I. The permittee shall submit to TRPA for review and approval permanent BMP plans for the entire 
project that shall be implemented in all site development activities where permanent BMPs are 
installed during each phase, and that shall include: 

 
1. Infiltration galleries and/or detention basins to ensure onsite infiltration of storm  

water runoff.  
 

2. Proposed locations of the required snow storage for the project area.  
 

3. Proposed BMPs for the shared access driveway.  

4. Proposed BMPs for individual driveways and structures. 
 

5. The permittee shall submit calculations demonstrating that the proposed 
infiltration facilities are sized accordingly for the slope and soil type of the 
property and will capture and infiltrate a 20 year/1 hour storm event.  

 
6. A final maintenance plan for the subject property permanent BMPs, applicable 

upon the completion of each Phase. The plan shall include a schedule for routine 
and non-routine maintenance. The plan shall be adhered to for the life of the 
property to ensure that permanent BMPs continue to function properly. This 
plan may be amended from time to time based on practical experience to 
increase or decrease maintenance intervals as appropriate to ensure adequate 
permanent BMP operation. Failed or damaged permanent BMP improvements 
shall be corrected in a timely fashion.  

J. The permittee shall submit a phase-specific Grading Plan to TRPA for review and approval.   

K. The permittee shall submit a grading application for TRPA review and approval of the 1.7 acres of 
SEZ restoration that is to occur on the Tahoe City Golf Course.  The grading permit for the SEZ 
restoration shall be issued by TRPA prior to the acknowledgement of Phase Two of this permit. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
171



L. The permittee shall submit a Landscape Plan specific to Phase Two to TRPA which shall include: 
 

1. A plant list, a planting plan, planting and maintenance techniques, and measures to 
control the introduction or spread of invasive plants. Plant Species on the TRPA 
Recommended Native and Adapted Plant List shall be used for lawns and landscaping per 
Code Section 36.7.1. Plant species not found on the TRPA Recommended Native and 
Adapted Plant List may be used for landscaping as accent plantings per Code Section 
36.7.3. Such plants shall be limited to borders, entryways, flower-beds, and other similar 
locations to provide accents to the overall native or adapted landscape design.  

2. The locations of proposed erosion control facilities as identified in Special Condition 6.E 
of this permit (i.e., snow storage areas, drywells, infiltration facilities, and storm water 
basins). Appropriate landscaping (species and irrigation) shall be proposed in and around 
these areas/facilities.  
 

3. A fertilizer and irrigation management plan in accordance with the standards required in 
Section 60.1.8 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances for TRPA review and approval.  

M. The permittee shall submit the Lodge Elevations to TRPA for review prior to acknowledgement of 
Phase Two.  The Lodge elevations shall  include: 

1. Separate elevations for each proposed structure that include: 

a. Outline of existing and proposed grade for each view aspect. 

b. Finish Floor Elevations (with respect to contour elevations shown on site plan) 

c. Elevation of the lowest point of the foundation wall at existing grade. 

d. Elevation of the highest roof ridge. 

e. Roof pitch of each roof plane. 

f. Allowable and proposed height calculations. 

g. Outline of the proposed excavation depth, to scale in relation to existing 
        grade. 
 

N. The permittee shall submit Lodge floor plans to TRPA for review prior to acknowledgement of 
Phase Two.  The Lodge floor plans shall include: 

a. The locations and type/model of proposed woodstoves, fireplaces, gas heaters, 
etc. 

b. Scaled dimensions 
c. All exterior entrances and exits 
d. Proposed unit configurations 

 
K. Notes indicating conformance to the following design standards for color, roofs, and fences: 

(i) Color: The color of this structure, including any fences on the property, shall be 
compatible with the surroundings. Subdued colors in the earthtone and 
woodtone ranges shall be used for the primary color of the structure. Hues shall 
be within the range of natural colors that blend, rather than contrast, with the 
existing vegetation and earth hues. Earthtone colors are considered to be shades 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
172



of reddish brown, brown, tan, ochre, and umber. 
(ii) Roofs: Roofs shall be composed of non-glare earthtone or woodtone materials 

that minimize reflectivity. 
 
(iii) Fences: Wooden fences shall be used whenever possible. If cyclone fence must 

be used, it shall be coated with brown or black vinyl, including fence poles. 
 

L. The permittee shall submit to TRPA for review and approval an exterior lighting plan consistent 
with TRPA Code Section 36.8 and the Tahoe City Lodge EIR/EIS. 

M. The permittee shall submit plans, cost estimates and installation schedule for the installation of 
all required water quality improvements (BMPs) for Phase Two. The security required under 
Standard Condition A.1 (3) of Attachment R shall be equal to 110 percent of the estimated BMP 
costs, or $5,000, whichever is more. All required permanent BMPs associated with Phase Two 
shall be installed prior to or upon completion of Phase Two. 

N. The project site will have sidewalk access consistent with the Tahoe City Sidewalk Beautification 
Project.   

O. Prior to recordation of the Final Subdivision Map(s), the permittee shall record a deed restriction 
with the Placer County Recorder’s Office, restricting the use of the 78 condo-hotel units. The 
deed restriction shall be provided to TRPA. The remaining 40 (forty) units shall operate as 
standard hotel rooms.  The Deed Restriction shall limit owner occupancy to a maximum of 90 
(ninety) days within a calendar year with a maximum stay of 30 (thirty) days within a single 
quarter. Each condo/hotel unit is foreclosed from use permanently or solely as a residence. This 
restriction shall be included in the CC & R’s for the project. The deed restriction is attached to the 
permit and shall be recorded by the permittee prior to acknowledgement of Phase 2 of this 
permit.  

P. The permittee shall demonstrate that all recording requirements of the associated subdivision 
permit (SUBD2016-1150) have been completed, as evidenced by final return of the security of 
the subdivision permit. 

Q. The affected property originally had 79,319 SF square feet of excess land coverage. As a result of 
acknowledging Phase One of this permit, the permittee mitigated a portion of the excess 
coverage.  The permittee shall mitigate a portion or all of the remaining excess land coverage on 
this property by removing coverage within Hydrologic Transfer Area 8 – Tahoe City (California) or 
by submitting an excess coverage mitigation fee. The Permittee shall pay an excess coverage 
mitigation fee based on the amount of excess coverage specific to the Phase Two construction 
cost estimate of the load bearing elements.   

 
To calculate the amount of excess coverage to be removed, use the following formula: 

 
Estimated project construction cost multiplied by the fee percentage of 0.0375 
(as identified in Table A of Subsection 30.6.1, Chapter 30 of the TRPA Code of 
Ordinances) divided by the mitigation factor of 8.  If you choose this option, 
please revise your final site plans and land coverage calculations to account for 
the permanent coverage removal. 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
173



An excess land coverage mitigation fee may be paid in lieu of permanently retiring land 
coverage.  The excess coverage mitigation fee shall be calculated as follows: 

 
Coverage reduction square footage (as determined by formula above) multiplied 
by the coverage mitigation cost fee of $8.50 for projects within Hydrologic 
Transfer Area 8 – Tahoe City (California).  Please provide a construction cost 
estimate by your licensed contractor, architect or engineer.  In no case shall the 
mitigation fee be less than $200.00. 
 

R. If Phase Two of this permit is not acknowledged prior to the expiration of the permit (either 
January 25, 2020 or a date specified by an updated and approved construction schedule, the 
project site will be required to be brought back to a stabilized and restored condition. TRPA 
reserves the right to determine specific site restoration requirements based upon the level of on-
site disturbance.  

 
S. Pursuant to TRPA Code of Ordinances 67.3.1, if historical, pre-historical, or paleontological 

materials appearing to be 50 years or older are discovered during grading or construction activity 
and have not been accounted for by TRPA, all activity shall cease and TRPA shall be notified 
immediately. The permittee shall consult with a qualified archaeologist to evaluate and 
determine the potential significance of the resource and potential mitigation measures. The 
permittee shall also provide protection for the discovered resource during this evaluation period.  

T. The permittee shall submit three sets of final construction drawings and site plans for Phase Two 
to TRPA.  

 
6. Phase Three of the project includes: 

 
• Grading, trenching and installation of site utilities along project access road, including sewer, 

water, power, gas and telecommunications. Site and utility grading for the foundation and 
utilities associated with the clubhouse construction 

• Relocation and re-construction of the Tahoe City Golf Course Clubhouse, including all walkways 
 

Install project landscaping associated with the Tahoe City Golf Course clubhouse, including 
revegetation and restoration of disturbed areas and relocation of the first green. 

• Construct remaining portions of shared parking and access road to the Tahoe City Golf Course 
Clubhouse (14 shared parking spaces).    

• Install storm drain collection, conveyance and treatment system for the new clubhouse, and tie 
into existing east stormwater treatment system for the Tahoe City Lodge project area. 

• Remove any temporary construction access from and remove/restore temporary construction 
access roads.     

• Implement phase-relevant mitigation measures. 
 

7. Prior to acknowledgement of Phase Three, the following special conditions of approval must be 
satisfied. 
 
A. The permittee shall update, if necessary, the general Construction/Phasing Schedule for the 

entire project.    

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
174



B. The permittee shall submit a detailed construction schedule specific to Phase Three.  

C. The permittee shall provide a project area site plan that includes the entire project proposal as 
approved in this plan revision. 

D. The permittee shall provide a project area site plan for Phase Three that clearly identifies all work 
associated with Phase Three, and includes work completed in previous Phases in a lighter shade. 
Work associated with future Phases will not be included.  The intent is to clearly identify work 
associated with the current Phase in relation to work completed in previous Phases.  

E. The permittee shall amend the SWPPP to include the activities in Phase Three. The amended 
SWPPP shall be submitted to TRPA for review, and shall function as the temporary construction 
BMP plan for Phase Three.   

F. The permittee shall submit a phase-specific Grading Plan to TRPA for review and approval.  See 
Special Conditions 3.H 1-8 for content requirements.  

G. The permittee shall submit a phase-specific Restoration and Revegetation Plan for TRPA review 
and approval to delineate the restoration plan for areas where land coverage will be removed 
and the revegetation plan for areas which have been disturbed. 

H. The permittee shall submit a Landscape Plan to TRPA which shall include: 
 

1. A plant list, a planting plan, planting and maintenance techniques, and measures 
to control the introduction or spread of invasive plants. Plant Species on the 
TRPA Recommended Native and Adapted Plant List shall be used for lawns and 
landscaping per Code Section 36.7.1. Plant species not found on the TRPA 
Recommended Native and Adapted Plant List may be used for landscaping as 
accent plantings per Code Section 36.7.3. Such plants shall be limited to borders, 
entryways, flower-beds, and other similar locations to provide accents to the 
overall native or adapted landscape design.  

 
2. The locations of proposed erosion control facilities as identified in Special  

Condition 6.E of this permit (i.e., snow storage areas, drywells, infiltration 
facilities, and storm water basins). Appropriate landscaping (species and 
irrigation) shall be proposed in and around these areas/facilities.  

 
3. A fertilizer and irrigation management plan in accordance with the standards 

required in Section 60.1.8 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances for TRPA review and 
approval.  

I. The permittee shall submit clubhouse elevations to TRPA for review prior to requesting 
acknowledgement of Phase Three. The permittee shall submit Clubhouse Elevations to include: 

(a) Outline of existing and proposed grade for each view aspect. 

(b) Elevation of the lowest point of the foundation wall at existing grade. 

(c) Finish Floor Elevations (with respect to contour elevations shown on site plan) 

(d) Elevation of the highest roof ridge. 

(e) Roof pitch of each roof plane. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
175



(f) Allowable and proposed height calculations. 

(g) Outline of the proposed excavation depth, to scale in relation to existing grade. 

J. The Permittee shall submit clubhouse floor plans to include: 

(a) the location and type/model of proposed woodstoves, fireplaces, gas heaters, 
etc. 

(b) scaled dimensions 

(c) all exterior entrances and exits 

K. Notes indicating conformance to the following design standards for color, roofs, and fences: 

(i) Color: The color of this structure, including any fences on the property, shall be 
compatible with the surroundings. Subdued colors in the earthtone and 
woodtone ranges shall be used for the primary color of the structure. Hues shall 
be within the range of natural colors that blend, rather than contrast, with the 
existing vegetation and earth hues. Earthtone colors are considered to be shades 
of reddish brown, brown, tan, ochre, and umber. 

(ii) Roofs: Roofs shall be composed of non-glare earthtone or woodtone materials 
that minimize reflectivity. 

(iii) Fences: Wooden fences shall be used whenever possible. If cyclone fence must 
be used, it shall be coated with brown or black vinyl, including fence poles. 

L. The permittee shall submit plans, cost estimates and installation schedule for the installation of 
all required water quality improvements (BMPs) for Phase Three. The security required under 
Standard Condition A.1 (3) of Attachment R shall be equal to 110 percent of the estimated BMP 
costs, or $5,000, whichever is more. All required permanent BMPs associated with Phase Three 
shall be installed prior to or upon completion of Phase Three.  

M. The permittee shall submit a snow removal/snow storage plan to TRPA for review and approval 
for the access driveway, construction staging, clubhouse parking areas, pedestrian walkways, and 
construction access), which shall provide year round access to emergency vehicles & pedestrians. 
This snow removal plan shall be applicable for all necessary snow removal necessary for all 
proposed Phase Three work. All areas proposed for snow storage shall comply with Section 4.2-C 
of the TRPA BMP Handbook. 

N. The permittee shall submit to TRPA for review and approval an exterior lighting plan consistent 
with TRPA Code Section 36.8 and the Tahoe City Lodge EIR/EIS. 
 

O. Pursuant to TRPA Code of Ordinances 67.3.1, if historical, pre-historical, or paleontological 
materials appearing to be 50 years or older are discovered during grading or construction activity 
and have not been accounted for by TRPA, all activity shall cease and TRPA shall be notified 
immediately. The permittee shall consult with a qualified archaeologist to evaluate and 
determine the potential significance of the resource and potential mitigation measures. The 
permittee shall also provide protection for the discovered resource during this evaluation period. 
  

P. If an event takes place utilizing the conference space associated with the clubhouse where: 1) 
more than 50 percent of attendees are not guests of the Lodge; and, 2) the event takes place on 
weekend days in June and on any day from July 1 through Labor Day; and, the Lodge occupancy 
on the following evening is forecast to be more than 80 percent full, then the Lodge owner or 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
176



organizer of the event shall make arrangements to mitigate the parking demand by: a) providing 
adequate off-site parking within a 400-foot walking distance; or, b) providing a valet parking 
arrangement; or, c) provide a transit shuttle service. 

Q. Prior to acknowledgement of Phase Three, a Parking Management Plan addressing both winter 
and summer peak parking conditions shall be submitted to and approved by TRPA.  The Parking 
Management Plan shall address any parking deficiencies.  This Plan will ensure that adequate 
parking and any proposed shuttle service operations are in place in order to accommodate any 
required off-site peak project parking. 

Prior to Phase Three approval, an agreement between Placer County, TCPUD, and the applicant 
to implement the Parking Management Plan, along with the detailed plan, shall be signed and 
recorded (?), with a copy provided to TRPA. 

R. The permittee shall submit three sets of final construction drawings and site plans for Phase 
Three to TRPA. 
 

O.  If grading or trenching is necessary within the root zone of trees greater than 14-inches dbh that  
are to be retained, the work will be supervised by a certified arborist, an RPF, or other qualified 
biologist, and the following measures shall be implemented:  

 
1. Soil shall be removed in lines radial to, rather than tangential to the tree to avoid 

excessive ripping and shattering of roots; 
 

2. If root cutting cannot be avoided, roots shall be cut cleanly at a 90-degree angle; 
 

3. A minimum of 6 inches of soil or sand shall be placed over exposed cuts and  
roots to reduce soil desiccation until the area is back-filled;  

 
4. Native soil shall be used to back-fill cuts whenever possible, unless applicable 

building codes or the geotechnical engineer require non-native materials for 
necessary drainage or compaction. 

  
8. It is the permittee's responsibility to obtain any required permits from other local or state 

agencies or entities for any and all aspects of the proposed project, as and when required per the 
approved phasing plan.  

 
9. To the maximum extent allowable by law, the Permittee agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold 

harmless TRPA, its Governing Board, its Planning Commission, its agents, and its employees 
(collectively, TRPA) from and against any and all suits, losses, damages, injuries, liabilities, and 
claims by any person (a) for any injury (including death) or damage to person or property or (b) 
to set aside, attack, void, modify, amend, or annul any actions of TRPA.  The foregoing indemnity 
obligation applies, without limitation, to any and all suits, losses, damages, injuries, liabilities, and 
claims by any person from any cause whatsoever arising out of or in connection with either 
directly or indirectly, and in whole or in part (1) the processing, conditioning, issuance, or 
implementation of this permit; (2) any failure to comply with all applicable laws and regulations; 
or (3) the design, installation, or operation of any improvements, regardless of whether the 
actions or omissions are alleged to be caused by TRPA or Permittee.   

 
Included within the Permittee's indemnity obligation set forth herein, the Permittee agrees to 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
177



pay all fees of TRPA’s attorneys and all other costs and expenses of defenses as they are incurred, 
including reimbursement of TRPA as necessary for any and all costs and/or fees incurred by TRPA 
for actions arising directly or indirectly from issuance or implementation of this permit.  
Permittee shall also pay all costs, including attorneys’ fees, incurred by TRPA to enforce this 
indemnification agreement.  If any judgment is rendered against TRPA in any action subject to 
this indemnification, the Permittee shall, at its expense, satisfy and discharge the same. 

 
10. The following monitoring reports will be required: 

 
1. After completion of construction the permittee shall submit an annual 

monitoring report on the compliance with TRPA Code of the storm water basins, 
infiltration trenches, swales, drywells, and other erosion control facilities 
included in the approved permanent BMP plans. These facilities shall be 
inspected as outlined in the approved permanent BMP maintenance plan (as 
such inspection and maintenance intervals may be adjusted from time to time) 
to ensure they are functioning properly to remove storm water contaminants 
and to ensure debris is removed from the flow path consistent with the TRPA 
Code. The report shall include the dates that inspections were completed and 
any maintenance work performed at those times. This report shall be due on July 
1 of each year after completion of construction for a reasonable period of time as 
determined by TRPA. If the monitoring report reveals that contaminants are not 
being properly contained by the storm water filter system and/or other facilities 
as designed, the permittee shall work with TRPA to retrofit the system and/or 
maintenance schedule to adequately treat the storm water runoff to comply with 
the TRPA Code.   

   
11.  Construction contractors shall retain a copy of the approved SWPPP, or amended SWPPP, on the  

construction site.  
12.  In the event that human remains are discovered, the Placer County Coroner shall be contacted  

and, if the remains are determined to be Native American, also the California Office of Historic 
Preservation in accordance with Section 383.170 of the Nevada State Revised Statutes. Section 
383.170 directs the SHPO to consult immediately with the Nevada Indian Commission and notify 
the appropriate Indian tribe. This section also authorizes the Indian tribe, with the permission of 
the landowner, to inspect the site and recommend an appropriate means for the treatment and 
disposition of the site and all associated artifacts and human remains.] 
 

13. All waste resulting from the saw-cutting of pavement shall be removed using a vacuum (or other  
TRPA approved method) during the cutting process or immediately thereafter. Discharge of 
waste material to surface drainage features is prohibited and constitutes a violation of this 
permit.  

 

END OF PERMIT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
178



Attachment B-1 
 

Required Findings for Approval of the Tahoe City Lodge Project Alternative 1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
179



Required Findings for Approval of the Tahoe City Lodge Project Alternative 1 
 
The following is a list of the required findings as set forth in Chapters 3, 4, 30, 37, and 61 of the 
TRPA Code of Ordinances.  Following each finding, Agency staff has provided the rationale for why 
there is sufficient evidence contained in the record to make the applicable findings or has briefly 
summarized the evidence on which the finding can be made.  
 
1. Chapter 3 – Environmental Impact Statement Findings: Prior to approving a project for 

which an EIS was prepared, TRPA shall make either of the following findings for each 
significant adverse effect identified in the EIS. 

(a) Changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project 
which avoid or reduce the significant adverse environmental effects to a less than 
significant level, or 

Specific considerations, such as economic, social, or technical, make infeasible the 
mitigation measure or project alternatives discussed in the environmental impact 
statement on the project.  

The Findings provided in Table 2-1 of the Draft EIS (and as modified in the Final 
EIS) summarize the significant environmental effects presented in the EIR/EIS for 
the PCTBAP and Tahoe City Lodge Project, the extent to which any applicable 
revisions would affect the environmental analysis, and a discussion of the 
rationale supporting these findings. The Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan and 
Tahoe City Lodge Project EIS analyzed the environmental effects of four 
alternatives, including the proposed project and no project alternative. Separate 
findings have been adopted for the PCTBAP and PCTBAP alternatives, which are 
incorporated herein by reference, so that the discussion herein is focused on the 
Tahoe City Lodge Project. Additional rationale supporting these findings for the 
Tahoe City Lodge Project is included below: 

All of the adverse environmental effects associated with the Tahoe City Lodge 
Project may be avoided or reduced to a less-than-significant level with the 
adoption of the mitigation measures set forth in these findings, with the 
exception of the Impact 10-3, Intersection LOS. The Tahoe City Lodge Project 
would slightly increase the traffic volumes through the SR 28/Grove Street 
intersection during the peak hour (Impact 10-3). Although the increase would be 
minimal, the resulting increase in traffic delays would exacerbate the existing LOS 
F condition at this intersection. Implementation of Mitigation Measures 10-3a 
and 10-3b would require that the lodge project applicant be responsible for 
annual transit fees beginning with the first year of operation, which would 
provide new funding for increased transit operations partially offsetting this 
impact; and implement a travel demand management plan. After implementation 
of Mitigation Measures 10-3a and 10-3b some additional vehicle trips would still 
likely exacerbate the existing LOS F condition. Because no additional mitigation 
measures are feasible, this impact would remain significant and unavoidable for 
the Tahoe City Lodge. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
180



In considering revisions to the proposed Tahoe City Lodge Project (i.e., Final 
EIR/EIS Alternative 1), TRPA has been cognizant of its legal obligation under the 
Compact to avoid or reduce the significant adverse environmental effects to a 
less-than-significant level, to the extent feasible. The Governing Board’s 
discretionary action to incorporate revisions into the Tahoe City Lodge Project 
involve the consideration of whether the proposed suggestion relates to an 
environmental effect discussed in the Draft EIR/EIS; if the proposed language 
represents a clear improvement from an environmental standpoint over the 
proposed Tahoe City Lodge Project; that the recommendations are feasible from 
an economic, technical, and legal standpoint; and that the proposed language is 
consistent with the objectives of the Tahoe City Lodge Project. Chapter 2 of the 
Final EIR/EIS describes the changes in the proposed Tahoe City Lodge Project, 
which was analyzed as Alternative 1 (as modified in the Final EIR/EIS). 

Some comments on the Draft EIR/EIS proposed new mitigation measures or 
modifications of existing mitigation measures for impacts already found to be less 
than significant. The Final EIR/EIS reflects TRPA’s response to all such proposals. 
The Governing Board hereby adopts the responses set forth in the Final EIR/EIS. 
The Governing Board notes that, because many of Tahoe City Lodge Project’s 
impacts have already been determined to be less than significant, the TRPA need 
not adopt new or additional mitigation measures with respect to such impacts.  

In response to comments on the Draft EIR/EIS, the Final EIR/EIS included 
additional mitigation measures or refinements to mitigation measures in the 
areas of Transportation and Circulation, Greenhouse Gas Emissions, Air Quality, 
and Scenic Resources, among others. The Final EIR/EIS provided a detailed 
description of the rationale describing why other recommended measures were 
infeasible. No additional feasible mitigation is available. 

Placer County and TRPA have prepared the PCTBAP to implement the TRPA 
Regional Plan and Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), adopted on December 12, 
2012, and to implement the Placer County General Plan in the Tahoe Basin 
portion of Placer County. A key objective of the Regional Plan is to concentrate 
redevelopment within Town Centers. To achieve this goal, the 2012 Regional Plan 
provides incentives to encourage such redevelopment within Town Centers in 
exchange for providing environmental benefits such as improved stormwater 
controls, public transit facilities, stream environment zone (SEZ) restoration, and 
the like. This approach, to encourage redevelopment while aiming to achieve 
environmental threshold gain, has been termed “environmental redevelopment.” 
Regional Plan incentives include allowing increased density and height. The Tahoe 
City Lodge Project is proposed as an “environmental redevelopment” project 
under the PCTBAP.  It provides significant economic, social, and environmental 
benefits, including: 

• Redevelopment at the Tahoe City Lodge site will replace the existing 
blighted appearance of the existing project site with new buildings, 
resulting in a visually beneficial impact that will assist TRPA in achieving 
and maintaining its scenic thresholds; 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
181



• The Tahoe City Lodge Project will further improve the environment by 
incorporating BMPs on the project site, reducing land coverage relative to 
existing conditions, providing 1.7 acres of SEZ restoration, constructing an 
expanded clubhouse that will be an asset to the community, and 
constructing all structures to meet current Green Building and energy 
efficiency standards; 

• The Tahoe City Lodge project would be the first new hotel or motel to be 
constructed on the North Shore in 50 years, provided much-needed high-
quality accommodations; 

• The Tahoe City Lodge Project will also demonstrate the potential for 
economic revitalization of Tahoe City and increase tax revenues to the 
County. The record indicates, the Tahoe Lodge Project will: 

o Result in millions of dollars in tax revenues, including but not 
limited to an estimated $500,000 in Transient Occupancy Taxes 
(TOT) and $600,000k in property taxes annually 

o Directly create hundreds jobs at the project site (including 
construction jobs and 76 annual jobs) 

o Improve the local economy (and sales taxes revenues) by 
increasing visitors and visitor spending, which will result in 
additional indirect job creation; 

o Increase property values for neighbors; 
o Improve Tahoe City parking through a joint-use strategy with 

Tahoe City Golf Course; 
o Leverages transit options with regular bus stops in front of the 

property and bike racks to encourage use of trails; and  
o Inspire new and upgraded business revitalization in Tahoe City. 

The Governing Board finds that, as part of the process of obtaining project 
approval, all significant effects on the environment from implementation of the 
Tahoe City Lodge have been eliminated or substantially lessened where feasible. 
All mitigation measures proposed in the Final EIS that are applicable to the Tahoe 
City Lodge are adopted as part of this approval action.  

Alternatives Considered 

The EIR/EIS evaluated four alternatives to Tahoe City Lodge Project to present a 
reasonable range of options. The range of alternatives considered in the EIR/EIS 
complies with Article VII (a) (3) of the Tahoe Regional Planning Compact and 
Section 3.7 of the TRPA Code of Ordinances. Each alternative is potentially 
feasible, based on relevant economic, environmental, social, technological, and 
legal factors. The alternatives were presented and accepted by the Regional Plan 
Implementation Committee (RPIC) at the RPIC Meeting on September 24, 2015. A 
reasonable range of alternatives that best met the objectives of the PCTBAP and 
Tahoe City Lodge Project, and that offered an environmental advantage over the 
proposed project by avoiding or reducing at least one significant impact, were 
selected. 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
182



The proposed PCTBAP and Tahoe City Lodge Project is evaluated as Alternative 1 
(as modified in the Final EIS). Other alternatives include reasonable variations in 
features of the Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge Project. 

The Alternatives, described in detail below, are: 

• Alternative 1 – Proposed Area Plan/Proposed Lodge (project);  
• Alternative 2 – Area Plan with No Substitute Standards/Reduced Scale 

Lodge;  
• Alternative 3 – Reduced Intensity Area Plan/Reduced Height Lodge; and 
• Alternative 4 – No Project. 

 
A good faith effort was made to evaluate a range of feasible alternatives in the 
EIR/EIS that are reasonable alternatives to the proposed Tahoe City Lodge 
Project, even when the alternatives might not fully achieve the Tahoe City Lodge 
Project objectives or might be more costly. As a result, the scope of alternatives 
analyzed in the EIR/EIS is not unduly limited or narrow. 
 
The EIR/EIS analyzed Alternatives 1, 2, 3, and 4. The EIS contains a detailed 
analysis of the impacts of each of these alternatives including detailed responses 
to all public comments on the adequacy or completeness of the environmental 
review. Table 2-1 in the Draft EIR/EIS summarizes the EIS conclusions concerning 
the impacts of, and mitigation measures applicable to, each alternative. Minor 
changes to Table 2-1 are included in Chapter 2, Corrections and Revisions to the 
Draft EIR/EIS, in the Final EIS. Table2-1 of the Draft EIS, with revisions as identified 
in the Final EIS, outlines all potentially significant project impacts, and the 
proposed mitigation measures that make those impacts less than significant.    

Alternative 2 – Area Plan with No Substitute Standards/Reduced Scale Lodge 

Alternative 2 was developed in response to scoping comments concerned with 
the potential environmental effects of the substitute standards included in the 
proposed Area Plan. Rather than creating new development standards, 
Alternative 2 uses existing TRPA standards, which results in a reduced scale Tahoe 
City Lodge. The number of TRPA Code revisions would be fewer than Alternative 
1. The lodge project would be limited to 56 units with this alternative. The golf 
course enhancements, clubhouse expansion and relocation, and SEZ restoration 
on the Tahoe City Golf Course would not occur with Alternative 2. 

The Area Plan with No Substitute Standards/Reduced Scale Lodge would further 
most of Tahoe City Lodge Project objectives. The Area Plan with No Substitute 
Standards/Reduced Scale Lodge would have similar/less impacts compared to all 
areas studied, with one exception as it relates to the Tahoe City Lodge. Lodge 
Alternative 2 would reduce traffic volumes at the SR 28/Grove Street intersection 
by approximately 1.3 percent. However, while for this one impact, Lodge 
Alternative 2 would incrementally lessen intersection LOS, it would not avoid the 
significant and unavoidable intersection LOS impacts for the PCTBAP. This 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
183



alternative also contributes incrementally less greenhouse gas emissions than for 
the project. 

Alternative 1 has significant environmental benefits that are not included in 
Alternative 2 (while described in the EIR/EIS are not indicated by the impact 
conclusions in EIS), such as restoration of SEZ area. Alternative 2 would not 
achieve many of the benefits of the project set forth above. Additionally, the 
Board finds that Alternative 1 meets more of the County’s and TRPA’s Project 
Objectives when compared to Alternative 2.  

Alternative 3 – Reduced Intensity Area Plan/Reduced Height Lodge 

Alternative 3 includes all the elements of Alternative 1, the proposed project, but 
certain aspects have been modified to respond to scoping comments related to 
potential effects on scenic resources, water quality, air quality, and affordable 
housing. As with Alternative 1, Alternative 3 would allow redevelopment of the 
commercial complex at the Tahoe City Lodge site. However, because the Area 
Plan under Alternative 3 would limit building heights to three stories in the Tahoe 
City Town Center, the lodge complex buildings would also be limited to three 
stories, but would occupy a larger footprint so as to maintain up to 118 units. This 
would result in less water quality improvements when compared to the project.  
Alternative 3 would include reconstruction and expansion of the clubhouse, golf 
course enhancements, and golf course SEZ restoration, consistent with 
Alternative 1. 

The Reduced Intensity Area Plan/Reduced Height Lodge would have similar/less 
impacts compared to the project in all areas studied. This alternative would result 
in the similar significant and unavoidable impacts in the areas of Transportation 
and Circulation. Thus, this alternative would not avoid any of the significant and 
unavoidable impacts of the project. Although this alternative would incrementally 
reduce greenhouse gas emissions as compared to the project, it would result in 
incrementally more roadway congestion between the Tahoe City Wye and Grove 
Street and at the SR 28/Grove Street Intersection, as the westbound direction on 
SR 28 would degrade by one additional level (to LOS F), as compared with the 
project (Alternative 1). 

The Reduced Intensity Area Plan/Reduced Height Lodge Density Alternative 
would further most of the Tahoe City Lodge Project objectives. Alternative 3 
would result in significant and unavoidable impacts similar to the project.  The 
Governing Board approves Tahoe City Lodge Project (Alternative 1) based on 
project’s water quality benefits that are not included in Alternative 3 and finds  
Alternative 3 is infeasible for this reason.  

Alternative 4 – No Project 

Under Alternative 4, the No Project Alternative, the Area Plan and Tahoe City 
Lodge would not be approved, and no development would occur the lodge site. 
Under this scenario, it is expected that the Tahoe City Lodge project applicant 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
184



would renovate the existing commercial center to increase occupancy relative to 
existing conditions. 

The No Project Alternative would have impacts generally similar to the project, 
but without a mechanism for mitigation, future environmental conditions without 
the Area Plan and Lodge would be worse. This alternative would result in the 
same significant and unavoidable impacts in the areas of Transportation and 
Circulation and Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Climate Change, but would also 
result in additional significant and unavoidable impacts as described in the 
EIR/EIS. Because mitigation cannot be required of a no project alternative, these 
impacts would be significant and unavoidable. 

The No Project Alternative would not meet any of the Area Plan or Tahoe City 
project objectives. In addition, the No Project Alternative would not achieve any 
of the beneficial economic objectives of the project, nor would it contribute to 
regional transit needs.  

2. Chapter 4 – Required Findings: 
 

(a) The project is consistent with and will not adversely affect implementation of the 
Regional Plan, including all applicable Goals and Policies, Plan Area Statements 
and maps, the Code and other TRPA plans and programs. 

 
(1) Land Use:  The proposed project is consistent with the relevant goals and 

policies of the Regional Plan and the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan, 
and the findings for the Area Plan are herein incorporated by reference. 
The proposed uses are compatible with the surrounding uses and are 
consistent with the scale, density, intensity, and type of uses envisioned 
in the Regional Plan and the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan. 

 
(2) Transportation: The Final EIS includes an analysis of traffic, parking, and 

circulation to assess potential impacts associated with the project.  This 
analysis concluded that the proposed project is estimated to decrease 
site generated daily vehicle trip ends (dvte) by a total 199 trips from 
existing land uses. Since the daily vehicle trip ends will decrease as a 
result of the proposed project, an air quality mitigation fee is not required 
to offset any potential traffic and air quality impacts.  

Overall perking demand for the Tahoe City Lodge project, inclusive of the 
TCPUD Golf Course, clubhouse, and conference space, was identified by 
applying a series of hourly demand factors for the non-golf course uses, 
as identified in the Urban Land Institute’s Shared Parking (2nd Edition).  
The analysis was combined with the parking demand for the existing golf 
course and clubhouse use rates.  The EIS considered all of the parking 
needs at the site including the existing golf course and clubhouse uses 
and the lodge.  Reductions were applied for visitors that are already on-
site for another purpose, non-auto travel, and the potential for shared 
parking.  The peak parking demand is then compared to the proposed 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
185



parking supply.  Comparing the proposed parking supply (132 spaces) 
with peak parking demand (132 spaces) assuming shared parking among 
the mixed uses on-site, the lodge would result in an overall parking 
balance during peak periods.  The use of the new meeting space above 
the clubhouse will be managed to avoid creating any additional increase 
in total peak parking demand.  The ability to fully share parking among all 
of the uses reduced the overall parking need for the lodge project by 27 
spaces, or approximately 17 percent. Additionally, prior to permit 
acknowledgement, the applicant, Placer County, and the TCPUD will draft 
and implement a Parking Management Plan for TRPA review and 
approval. 

A significant and unavoidable impact to the Level of Service at the 
intersection of Grove Street and SR 28 was identified in the DEIS.  
Mitigation measures to minimize the significant and unavoidable impact 
to Intersection Level of Service that Placer County is responsible for 
implementing as a part of the Area Plan include implementing a 
pedestrian crossing improvement and establishment of a County Service 
Area Zone of Benefit to fund expansion of transit capacity. Mitigation 
measures to address the significant and unavoidable impact to 
Intersection Level of Service that the applicant is responsible for 
implementing is a payment of traffic mitigation fees to Placer County.  
There are no other feasible or effective measures that would reduce the 
impact on Intersection Level of Service to a less-than-significant impact 
and so while the impact is minimized through the aforementioned 
mitigation measures it remains significant and unavoidable.  With the 
exception of the impact to intersection level of service, the project is in 
compliance with the TRPA Regional Plan and Code requirements.     

 
(3) Conservation:  The proposed project will be visible from a TRPA 

designated roadway travel unit, Lake Tahoe Roadway Unit 15, Tahoe City 
which is in attainment.  Compared to the existing buildings on-site, the 
proposed buildings for the lodge will create an increase in the amount of 
human-made features in view from SR 28. However the improved 
aesthetics of the new buildings and elimination of the existing visual 
blight would maintain or improve the current rating for human-made 
features within this roadway unit. Therefore, the composite score would 
be maintained or improved.  The nearest roadway scenic resource 
(resource 15-4) is a view from SR 28 just west of Grove Street looking 
westward down the highway.  The lodge does not appear within this 
scenic resource view primarily because the project site is further down 
the highway and lower in elevation that the scenic resource viewpoint.  

 
The proposed Tahoe City Lodge is located in Shoreline Travel Unit 15, 
Tahoe City, the portion of Lake Tahoe in front of and adjacent to Tahoe 
City. This shoreline travel unit is in non-attainment.  The increase in 
height of the proposed project over the existing project will have a minor 
influence on the view of the shoreline from Lake Tahoe, but primarily sits 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
186



behind and above the Tahoe Marina Lodge on an area of shoreline that is 
already populated with man-made features. Therefore the current 
composite score will be maintained.  Shoreline scenic resource point 15-3 
is a view from the waters of Lake Tahoe looking toward the vicinity of 
Commons Beach. This resource point includes views of Tahoe City above 
the shoreline, including the area where the proposed project would be 
located.  From this point, the project would be minimally visible and 
would blend in more with the surrounding environment with the use of 
more natural materials and colors than the existing building. As a result, 
the lodge project does not degrade this scenic resource point.   
 
The shared-use parking, golf course enhancements, and clubhouse 
reconstruction elements of the lodge project are located within the Tahoe 
City Golf Course Special Planning Area (the Tahoe City Town Center 
boundary modification area) and are therefore subject to the SEZ 
restoration requirement in the TBAP Implementing Regulations. This 
requirement calls for an equal or greater area of disturbed SEZ land be 
restored prior to or concurrent with development, and that at least 50 
percent of the restoration areas must be within 0.5 mile of the project 
site.  The lodge project proposes to use approximately 1.7 acres of land 
within the Tahoe City Golf Course SPA and therefore 1.7 acres of SEZ 
restoration is required to occur with this project.  There are five areas 
within the Tahoe City Golf Course that are targeted for this required 
restoration, all within 0.5 mile of the project site.  The goal of the 
restoration is to restore hydrologic function throughout the soil profile in 
the five restoration areas.  Construction and SEZ restoration on the golf 
course will create temporary disturbance in the SEZ, however, temporary 
BMPs will be put into place to protect against temporary disturbance. 

The records search and the pedestrian survey for the project site did not 
identify any previously unrecorded archaeological resources, and the 
cultural resources reports determined that the sensitivity of the lodge site 
for buried prehistoric archaeological deposits is low.  However, project 
construction and other ground disturbing activities could reveal and 
potentially previously undiscovered or unrecorded sites.  Mitigation 
measures and permit conditions for project approval require 
archaeological monitoring during construction to reduce the potential 
impact on cultural and historic resources.   
 

(4) Recreation:  Public access to the golf course and the associated winter 
recreation amenities would remain as a result of the lodge project. 
Additionally, the variety of recreation opportunities near the project site 
and throughout the Basin meet both the existing and the proposed 
recreation demand.  The project would not have any direct impacts on 
recreational facilities outside of the project site. 

     
(5) Public Service and Facilities:  The increased demand associated with the 

project development for all public services will not create adverse 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
187



impacts to public service and facilities as there is sufficient available 
water supply, wastewater treatment, fire, law protection and emergency 
medical services, public schools, natural gas, electric and 
telecommunications. Additionally, the project applicant will provide and 
implement an Emergency Preparedness and Evacuation Plan (EPEP) 
consistent with the requirement found in the Placer County Tahoe Basin 
Area Plan Policy N-H-P-6.   

 
(6) Implementation:  No additional development rights or allocations will be 

needed to construct the project.  The new lodge project will convert the 
on-site CFA to TAUs per TBAP Implementing Regulations Section 3.13.B. 
The balance of TAUs required to complete the project will be transferred 
from other areas in the Basin.  There is no additional commercial floor 
area needed for the lodge or the reconstructed and relocated clubhouse.  

 
(b) The project will not cause the environmental threshold carrying capacities to be 

exceeded. 
 

The basis for this finding is provided on the checklist entitled Project Review 
Conformance Checklist and Article (V)g Findings in accordance with Chapter 6, 
Subsection 6.3.B of the TRPA Code of Ordinances. All responses in the checklist 
indicate compliance with the environmental threshold carrying capacities. Also, 
an EIS has been prepared for the proposed project, which is incorporated in full 
herein.  One unmitigated significant impact was identified for the Level of Service 
for the intersection at Grove Street and SR 28.  This impact has been mitigated to 
minimize a significant and unavoidable impact as demonstrated in the DEIS (see 
Attachment B-2, Finding 6). There were no other unmitigated significant impacts 
to thresholds identified in the environmental document.  A copy of the checklist 
and Final EIS have been made available to the APC and Governing Board members 
and at TRPA.  

 
(c) Wherever federal, state or local air and water quality standards applicable for the 

Region, whichever are strictest, must be attained and maintained pursuant to 
Article V(g) of the TPRA Compact, the project meets or exceeds such standards. 

 
 The basis for this finding is provided on the checklist entitled Project Review 
Conformance Checklist and Article (V)g Findings in accordance with Chapter 6, 
Subsection 6.3.B of the TRPA Code of Ordinances. All responses in the checklist 
indicate compliance with the applicable federal, state and/or local air and water 
quality standards.  Also, an EIS has been prepared for the proposed project, which 
is incorporated in full herein.  There were no unmitigated significant impacts to 
federal, state or local air and water quality standards applicable to the Region 
identified in the environmental document.  A copy of the checklist and Final EIS 
have been made available to the APC and Governing Board members and at 
TRPA. 
 
 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
188



4. Chapter 30- Coverage Relocation Findings  

(a) The relocation is to an equal or superior portion of the parcel or project area, as 
determined by reference to the following factors: 

 
 (1) Whether the area of relocation already has been disturbed. 
 
 (2) The slope and natural vegetation on the area of relocation. 
 
 (3) The fragility of the soil on the area of relocation. 

 
(4) Whether the area of relocation appropriately fits the scheme of use of 

the property. 
 

(5) The relocation does not further encroach into a stream environment 
zone, backshore, or the setbacks established in the Code for the 
protection of stream environment zones or backshore. 

 
(6) The project otherwise complies with the land coverage mitigation 

program set forth in Section 30.6. 
 
 

Table 14-8 on page 14-27 of the DEIS provides a description of the existing and 
proposed coverages for the three on-site land capabilities, LCD 1b, 3, and 5.  
Overall, coverage in LCDs 1b and 5 are being reduced by 3,205 square feet and 
11,202 respectively.  The Class 1b portion of the project area is largely disturbed 
with existing development and is surrounded by SR 28 to the south/southeast, by 
adjacent commercial development to the east, and by Class 5 land to the 
west/northwest.  Within this Class 1b corner of the project area, there is a net 
reduction in coverage.  The area where new coverage will be added is close to SR 
28 and the adjacent commercial development to the east of the project area and 
is relatively impacted by this surrounding usage. This area is also flat and not 
currently well vegetated. This area is to be used for a concrete walkway, which 
fits the scheme of the proposed project as necessary access to all parts of the 
lodge.  Overall, there is a net benefit to the project area as coverage reduction 
within the Class 1b area equals 3,205 square feet. Furthermore, the SEZ 
restoration component of the project would restore the health and function of 
74,502 square feet of disturbed, but not covered, SEZ areas.  It has been 
determined that the coverage relocation in the 1b area will be to an equal or 
superior portion of the project area as referenced to the above six factors.  
 
There are two non-contiguous Class 5 areas of land within the larger lodge project 
area.  There will be an overall Class 5 coverage reduction in the area of the 
proposed lodge buildings.  The portion of the site to which the Class 5 coverage 
will be relocated is relatively disturbed due to the surrounding commercial 
development, flat slope, and lack of natural vegetation. On this particular portion 
of the project area, the Class 5 area where coverage will be relocated to will be 
specifically for the lodge buildings and therefore fits the scheme of the proposed 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
189



project.  The second Class 5 portion of the project area includes a portion of the 
lodge and golf course clubhouse parking as well as the relocated golf course 
clubhouse. The existing golf course parking area will be expanded and the 
locations of the existing clubhouse and putting green would be swapped. One 
area where relocation will occur has already been disturbed as it is an existing 
putting green.  The other area where relocation will occur is essentially an 
expansion of the existing golf course parking and access area. The topography and 
vegetation of this area is comparable to the area of existing clubhouse and 
parking from where the coverage will be removed. 
 
There will be an overall increase in Class 3 project area.  A portion of this increase 
will be Class 3 coverage that has been relocated within the Class 3 area and the 
other portion will be coverage that has been removed from Class 1b and 
relocated into Class 3, consistent with this code section.   

 
(b) The area from which the land coverage was removed for relocation is restored in 

accordance with Subsection 61.4. 
 

As required by TRPA Code, the area from which the land coverage is proposed for 
removal for relocation would be restored in accordance with Subsection 61.4.5 
and in accordance with the proposed landscaping plans submitted to TRPA as a 
required condition of approval. A majority of areas where coverage would be 
removed and banked would be revegetated with appropriate plant species for 
LCDs 1b, 3, and 5 respectively and the soil would be stabilized. The primary SEZ 
benefit would be the net reduction in 1b coverage and restoration of an 
additional 1.7 acres of SEZ that are not covered with impervious surface but are 
disturbed. The removal would also provide the opportunity to reestablish 
functioning SEZ soils and vegetation and habitat in the area, a compliment to the 
1.7 acres of SEZ restoration that will occur as part of the project. 

 
(c) The relocation is not to Land Capability Districts 1a, 1b, 1c, 2 or 3 from any higher 

numbered land capability district. 
 

The only inter-Land Capability District (LCD) coverage relocation would include 
using existing coverage from LCD 1b and transferring it to LCD 3, a higher LCD 
designation.  Therefore, no high land capability coverage will be relocated to LCDs 
1a, 1b, 1c, 2 or 3. 

(d) If the relocation is from one portion of a stream environment zone to another 
portion, there is a net environmental benefit to the stream environment zone.  
For projects involving the relocation of more than 1000 square feet of land 
coverage within a stream environment zone, a finding, based on a report 
prepared by a qualified professional, that the relocation will improve the 
functioning of the stream environment zone and will not negatively affect the 
quality of existing habitats. 

The Tahoe City Lodge Project is proposing to remove 3,317 square feet of existing 
hard coverage in land capability district 1b, of which 1,233 square feet will be 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
190



relocated within those areas, for a net SEZ coverage reduction of 2,084 square 
feet prior to any retirement of SEZ coverage as mitigation to the relocation. 
According to a Tahoe City Lodge SEZ Coverage Relocation report submitted by 
Integrated Environmental Restoration Services dated December 12, 2016, all 
areas where coverage is proposed to be removed are currently parking lot or 
building uses, which provide no habitat value or SEZ function.  All proposed 
coverage removal areas will be converted to landscaping using native or adapted 
vegetation and include soil treatments that will allow for infiltration and 
groundwater recharge.  

The majority of areas proposed for coverage relocation would be used for parking 
spaces with a few small areas used for new building. Nearly all relocated coverage 
to be used for parking would simply extend or formalize existing parking lot areas.  
According to the same SEZ Coverage Relocation Report Most of the areas where 
coverage relocation is proposed outside of existing parking lot or building areas 
are characterized by compacted soil (from vehicle parking or foot traffic) or golf 
course sod, neither of which provides significant habitat value or SEZ function.  
The report summarizes that there are no high-functioning SEZ areas or areas with 
notable habitat value that would be impacted by the relocated hard coverage. 
With the addition of stormwater treatment BMPs associated with the new 
parking lot areas, it is likely that the overall SEZ function will be improved by the 
proposed relocation of coverage at this site. 

6. Chapter 37- Additional Height Findings: 

(a) When viewed from major arterials, scenic turnouts, public recreation areas or the 
waters of Lake Tahoe, from a distance of 300 feet, the additional height will not 
cause a building to extend above the forest canopy, when present, or a ridgeline.  
For height greater than that set forth in Table 37.4.1-1 for a 5:12 roof pitch, the 
additional height shall not increase the visual magnitude beyond that permitted 
for structures in the shoreland as set forth in subsection 66.3.7, Additional Visual 
Magnitude, or Appendix H, Visual Assessment Tool, of the Design Review 
Guidelines. 

 
The project’s scenic impact has been evaluated based on Chapter 13, Area Plans, 
of the TRPA Code of Ordinances, which permits building heights greater than 
those set forth in TRPA Code of Ordinances Chapter 37 if the project site is 
located within a Town Center Overlay District.  The additional height allowances 
and requirements for Town Centers are outlines in Subsection 37.2.09.A, Town 
Center Overlay District, of the TBAP Implementing Regulations. The lodge project 
is located within the Tahoe City Overlay District and is considered a mixed-use 
Town Center.  The maximum building height within the Town Center core areas is 
three and four stories and 56 feet, provided the project can make the findings per 
37.7.16 (findings 1, 3, 5, and 9 in code section 37.7) in the TRPA Code of 
Ordinances.  
 
The proposed lodge is comprised of three buildings, Building 1, Building 2, and 
Building 3.  A reconstructed clubhouse for use by Tahoe City Golf Course and 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
191



Tahoe City Lodge is also part of the proposed lodge project. The proposed height 
is 53 feet for Building 1, 55 feet 4 inches for Building 2, and 53 feet 5 inches for 
Building 3.  The proposed height is 49 feet 3 inches for the reconstructed 
clubhouse.  The proposed lodge buildings are located on a site that is already 
heavily developed with an existing commercial building.  The existing forest 
canopy is minimal in the immediate vicinity and is primarily made up of large 
cottonwood.  The proposed lodge buildings will not extend above the tree canopy 
that dominates this portion of the site.  As demonstrated in Exhibit 9-12 of the 
FEIR, the tallest portion of the lodge building will not extend beyond the 
background ridgeline to the west of the project area when viewed from Roadway 
Unit 15 at a distance of 300 feet.  The relocated clubhouse, at a height of 49 feet 
3 inches, will sit well below the existing forest canopy on this portion of the site, 
which is more densely forested than other parts of the site.  Also, the clubhouse is 
being moved further away from the roadway unit and will be reconstructed using 
materials and colors that blend with the natural wooded, golf course setting.  
Considering the new location and the proposed colors and materials, the 
clubhouse will not extend above the tree canopy in this vicinity or above the 
backdrop ridgeline to the west of the project area when viewed from the 
roadway unit.  Given that the reconstructed clubhouse will sit approximately 1000 
feet from the shoreline unit and is heavily screened by existing trees, the 
clubhouse height will have little to no impact on scenic quality from Shoreline 
Unit 15. 
 
The proposed lodge buildings will be partially visible from Shoreline Unit 15, 
scenic resource point 15-3.  The additional building height will be visible, and 
extend above the existing development lakeward of the lodge project. However, 
the additional height will not extend above the tree canopy in the immediate 
vicinity or the tree canopy in the background.  Additionally, the additional height 
will not cause the lodge buildings to extend above the background ridgeline when 
seen from scenic resource point 15-3. Lastly, the lodge would be constructed out 
of materials and colors that blend with the background environment, limiting any 
contrast between the lodge buildings and the surrounding environment.    
 
The proposed lodge structure and the relocated, expanded clubhouse are both 
visible from Roadway Travel Unit 15 – Tahoe City. The nearest roadway scenic 
resource (resource 15-4) is a view from SR 28 just west of Grove Street looking 
westward down the highway.  The lodge project does not appear within this 
scenic resource view primarily because the project site is further down the 
highway and lower in elevation than the scenic resource viewpoint.  The lodge 
project is also located within Shoreline Travel Unit 15, in front of and adjacent to 
Commons Beach in Tahoe City.  While the lodge project is visible from this 
shoreline unit, the influence on this shoreline unit is minor due to the project’s 
location on the mountainside of SR 28 and the use of colors that would blend in 
to the forested background so that the impact of the portion that is visible is 
minimal.  The relocated clubhouse will be minimally visible from SR 28, due to its 
new location further from SR 28 and the grove of existing pine trees that sits 
between it and SR 28.  
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
192



(b) With respect to that portion of the building which is permitted the additional 
height, the building has been designed to minimize interference with existing 
views within the area to the extent practicable.  

The lodge buildings and the clubhouse will be constructed on relatively level 
ground, and the additional height requested will not interfere with existing views 
within the project area, including views to ridgelines beyond the property, over 
what would be impacted by a building constructed without additional height.   

(c) The portion of the building that is permitted additional building height is 
adequately screened, as seen from major arterials, the waters of lakes, and other 
public areas from which the building is frequently viewed. In determining the 
adequacy of screening, consideration shall be given to the degree to which a 
combination of the following features causes the building to blend or merge with 
the background. 

(1) The horizontal distance from which the building is viewed; 
(2) The extent of screening; and 
(3) Proposed exterior colors and building materials. 
 
The new construction has been evaluated for scenic impacts in the environmental 
documentation prepared for the project.  Detailed analysis based on Chapter 66 
of the TRPA Code of Ordinances, the TRPA Design Review Guidelines, and a scenic 
simulation and evaluation from both the roadway and the shoreline units have 
concluded that the additional height will be adequately screened and will blend 
with the background of trees.  The natural wood siding, rock and slate materials 
and dark, muted colors of the buildings are consistent with the TRPA Code of 
Ordinances and will contribute to the blending of the additional height into the 
background.  

  
 (d) When viewed from a TRPA scenic threshold travel route. The additional height  

granted a building or structures shall not result in the net loss of views to a scenic 
resource identified in the 1982 Lake Tahoe Basin Scenic Resource Inventory. TRPA 
shall specify the method used to evaluate potential view loss. 
 
The lodge buildings will be visible from Shoreline Unit 15 – Tahoe City, resource 
15-3, which is a view from Lake Tahoe looking towards Commons Beach in Tahoe 
City.  Exhibit 9-16 in the FEIS is a visual simulation which demonstrates the 
existing condition and the result of the additional height for the lodge project.  
This resource was given a scenic quality score of 7 in 1982 and has not changed 
since that time.  The lodge will be minimally visible and the material colors would 
result in the structure blending into the background and therefore the lodge 
project would not degrade this view.  The proposed project does not appear in 
any other shoreline scenic resources.  The clubhouse would not be visible from 
this shoreline scenic resource point. 
 
Both the lodge buildings and the clubhouse will be visible from Roadway Unit 15.  
The nearest roadway scenic resource (resource 15-4) is a view from SR 28 just 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
193



west of Grove Street to the east looking westward down the highway.  The score 
for this roadway scenic resource was last changed from a score of 5 to 7 in 2001 
(an improvement).  None of the proposed lodge buildings, nor the clubhouse 
building, are visible from this roadway scenic resource as the project site is 
approximately 1,500 feet farther down the highway and at a lower elevation than 
the roadway scenic resource viewpoint. 
 
The nearest roadway scenic resource point to the proposed clubhouse is scenic 
resource 15-6.  While the clubhouse will be relocated to be approximately 75 feet 
closer to the scenic resource point than it currently sits, it will be mostly screened 
by existing coniferous trees.  Even considering that some of these existing trees 
will be removed as a result of the golf course access road realignment and 
improvements to the parking area, much of the existing trees will remain to serve 
as screening. Additionally, the clubhouse is not a visually dominant feature from 
this roadway scenic resource as the it would be located approximately 500 feet 
from SR 28 and 100 feet from roadway scenic resource point 15-6.   
 

  

7. Chapter 61- General Tree Removal Findings 

(a) Before tree-related projects and activities are approved by TRPA, TRPA shall find, 
based on a report from a qualified forester, that the project or activity is 
consistent with this chapter and the Code. TRPA may delegate permit issuance to 
a federal, state, or other qualified agency through a memorandum of 
understanding. 

There are several large trees present on the building site.  The proposed project is 
designed to preserve several large trees between Buildings 1 and 2, the 
northwest corner of Building 2 and the northeast corner of Building 1.  As a 
condition of project approval, the applicant will be required to implement tree 
protection measures that are set forth in a report prepared by a certified arborist 
to preserve all aforementioned trees during final design and construction of the 
project. As a part of this report, the forester will determine if the proposed 
project’s tree removal plan is consistent with the TRPA Code, is in compliance 
with TRPA thresholds as well as the standards and regulations in Code Chapters 
61 and 62.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
194



Attachment B-2 
 

Required Findings for Certification of the Final EIS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
195



Required Findings for Certification of the Final EIS 
 
Article VII(d) and Code Chapter 3 Findings for the EIS:  These findings with respect to an 
Environmental Impact Statement must be made prior to the certification of the Tahoe City Lodge 
Project Final EIS.  Specific mitigations proposed for each issue area are detailed in Table 1-1 of the 
Final EIS. 
 

1. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on  
LAND USE identified in the EIS, changes or alterations have been required 
in or incorporated into the project which avoid or reduce the potentially 
significant adverse effects to a less than significant level.  

Rationale: The identified land use impacts associated with the project are not 
significant as demonstrated in the DEIS (see Chapter 5.4.3).  The project is 
in compliance with the TRPA Regional Plan and Code requirements 
relating to land use which provides assurances that no adverse impacts 
will occur. 

 
2. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on  

POPULATION AND HOUSING identified in the EIS, changes or alterations 
have been required in or incorporated into the project which avoid or 
reduce the potentially significant adverse effects to a less than significant 
level.  

Rationale: The identified population and housing impacts associated with the 
project are not significant as demonstrated in the DEIS (See 
Chapter6.4.3)).  Although the Tahoe City Lodge project would generate 
approximately 66 full-time equivalent (FTE) employees (an increase of 
approximately 29 FTE as compared to baseline), the project conforms to 
the Area Plan and thus the Regional Plan and would result in a less-than 
significant cumulative effect on population, employment, and housing. 
The degree of change between the baseline and the additional FTE is 
considered to be negligible in the context of the cumulative development 
in the region and therefore the Project’s impact on cumulative housing 
demand would not be cumulatively considerable   Construction of the 
Project would be expected to generate a temporary demand for 
approximately 100-200 construction workers. It is anticipated that this 
demand will be met by local and nearby residents and therefore the 
impact of temporary project construction activities on population growth 
and housing demand would be less-than-significant. Additionally, the 
Lodge project would be required to comply with Placer County workforce 
housing requirements to provide further assurances that no adverse 
impacts will occur.   

 

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
196



3. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on  
BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES identified in the EIS, changes or alterations have 
been required in or incorporated into the project which avoid or reduce 
the potentially significant adverse effects to a less than significant level.  

Rationale: There were either no impacts created by the project to biological 
resources or the impacts on biological resources of the Lodge project 
were considered to be less-than-significant as demonstrated in the Draft 
EIS (See Chapter 7.4.3). There are no sensitive biological communities in 
the Lodge project area, nor does the Lodge site provide suitable habitat 
for special-status species and therefore the Lodge project does not have 
an impact on these biological resource areas.  And lastly, there will be less 
than 100 trees removed as a result of the Lodge project, a less-than-
significant impact. The project is in compliance with the TRPA Regional 
Plan and Code requirements relating to fisheries, wildlife and vegetation 
which provides assurances that no adverse impacts will occur.  

4. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on  
CULTURAL RESOURCES identified in the EIS, changes or alterations have 
been required in or incorporated into the project which avoid or reduce 
the potentially significant adverse effects to a less than significant level.  

Rationale: The identified cultural resource impacts associated with the project are 
either less than significant or are mitigated to a less than significant level 
as demonstrated in the DEIS (see Chapter 8.4.3).  The FEIS includes 
mitigation measures that will ensure detection and protection of any 
previously undiscovered cultural resources, including archaeological 
monitoring of known heritage resources during construction (See FEIS 
Chapter 4, Table 4-1). 

5. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on SCENIC  
RESOURCES identified in the EIS, changes or alterations have been 
required in or incorporated into the project which avoid or reduce the 
potentially significant adverse effects to a less than significant level.  

Rationale: The identified scenic resource impacts associated with the project are  
less than significant as demonstrated in the Draft EIS (see Chapter 9.4.3).  
The aesthetic improvements to the existing building and project site that 
will take place as a result of the Lodge project will be compliant with the 
Regional Plan, Tahoe Basin Area Plan, and Code of Ordinances as well as 
compliant with TRPA design standards and guidelines, and lighting 
standards.  Additionally, the applicant is proposing to implement LEED 
building standards, including Credit SS8.0 for Light Pollution Reduction.  
By complying with the Regional Plan, the Tahoe Basin Area Plan, and the 
TRPA Code of Ordinances, the project will have a less-than-significant 
impact on scenic/visual quality, community character, and light and glare.  

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
197



6. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on  
TRANSPORTATION AND CIRCULATION identified in the EIS, changes or 
alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project which 
avoid or reduce the potentially significant adverse effects to a less than 
significant level.  

Rationale: The identified transportation and parking impacts associated with the 
project are either less than significant or are mitigated to minimize a 
significant and unavoidable impact as demonstrated in the Draft EIS (see 
Chapter 10.4.3).  Mitigation measures to address the significant and 
unavoidable impact to Intersection Level of Service that Placer County is 
responsible for implementing as a part of the Area Plan include 
implementing a pedestrian crossing improvement and establishment of a 
County Service Area Zone of Benefit to fund expansion of transit capacity. 
Mitigation measures to address the significant and unavoidable impact to 
Intersection Level of Service that the applicant is responsible for 
implementing is a payment of traffic mitigation fees to Placer County.  
There are no other feasible or effective measures that would reduce the 
impact on Intersection Level of Service to a less-than-significant impact 
and so while the impact is minimized through the aforementioned 
mitigation measures it remains significant and unavoidable.  With the 
exception of the impact to intersection level of service, the project is in 
compliance with the TRPA Regional Plan and Code requirements. 

7. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on AIR  
QUALITY identified in the EIS, changes or alterations have been required 
in or incorporated into the project which avoid or reduce the potentially 
significant adverse effects to a less than significant level.  

Rationale: The identified air quality impacts associated with the project are either 
less than significant or are mitigated to a less than significant level as 
demonstrated in the Draft EIS (see Chapter 11.4.3).  The project is in 
compliance with the TRPA Regional Plan and Code requirements relating 
to air quality, including required dust control measures, which provides 
assurances that no adverse impacts will occur.  Mitigation measures 
include reducing construction-generated emissions of ROG.   

8. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on 
GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS AND CLIMATE CHANGE identified in the 
EIS, changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the 
project which avoid or reduce the potentially significant adverse effects 
to a less than significant level.  

Rationale: The identified greenhouse gas emissions and climate change impacts 
associated with the project are either less than significant or are 
mitigated to a less than significant level as demonstrated in the Draft EIS 
(see Chapter 12.4.3).  The project is in compliance with the TRPA Regional 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
198



Plan and Code requirements relating to greenhouse gas emissions and 
climate change. 

 9. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on NOISE  
Identified in the EIS, changes or alterations have been required in or 
incorporated into the project which avoid or reduce the potentially 
significant adverse effects to a less than significant level.  

Rationale: The identified noise impacts associated with the project are either less 
than significant or are mitigated to a less than significant level as 
demonstrated in the Final EIS (see Chapter 4, Table 4-1).  The project is in 
compliance with the TRPA Regional Plan and Code requirements relating 
to noise, as well as TRPA’s Best Construction Practices Policy for the 
Minimization of Exposure of Construction-Generated Noise, which 
provides assurances that no adverse impacts will occur. Mitigation 
measures include measures to avoid exposure of off-site buildings to 
adverse levels of ground vibration, measures to ensure compliance of 
rooftop terrace activities with noise ordinances at the Tahoe Marina 
Lakefront Property, and measures to ensure compliance by outdoor 
events at the Tahoe City Golf Course with noise ordinances at nearby 
residential land uses.    

10. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on  
GEOLOGY,SOILS, LAND CAPABILITY, AND COVERAGE identified in the EIS, 
changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the 
project which avoid or reduce the potentially significant adverse effects 
to a less than significant level.  

Rationale: The identified geology and soil impacts associated with the project are 
either less than significant or are mitigated to a less than significant level 
as demonstrated in the Draft EIS (see Chapter 14.4.3).  The project is in 
compliance with the TRPA Regional Plan and Code requirements relating 
to geology, soils, land capability, and coverage which provides assurances 
that no adverse impacts will occur.  The primary mitigation measures 
identified in the Draft EIS and the Final EIS are a net reduction of 1,304 
square feet of coverage in LCD 3 to comply with TRPA limits, 
implementation of BMPs and Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan, 
preparation and submittal of Improvements plans to Placer County, a 
revegetation plan to address areas of ground disturbance, submittal of a 
geotechnical investigation for the Lodge project site, preparation of an 
emergency response and evacuation plan and implementation of a 
dewatering plan.   

11. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on  
HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY identified in the EIS, changes or  
alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project which 
avoid or reduce the potentially significant adverse effects to a less than 
significant level.  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
199



Rationale: The identified hydrology and water quality impacts associated with the 
project are either less than significant or are mitigated to a less than 
significant level as demonstrated in the Draft EIS (see Chapter 15.4.3).  
The project is in compliance with the TRPA Regional Plan and Code 
requirements relating to water quality and provides mitigation for 
hydrology and water quality impacts.  The primary mitigation measures 
identified in the Final EIS are preparation and implementation of a 
Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan, implementation of water quality 
BMPs, and submittal of a final drainage report.   

12. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on  
PUBLIC SERVICES AND UTILITIES identified in the EIS, changes or 
alterations have been required in or incorporated into the project which 
avoid or reduce the potentially significant adverse effects to a less than 
significant level.  

Rationale: The identified public services and utilities impacts associated with the 
project are less than significant as demonstrated in the Draft EIS (see 
Chapter 16.4.3).  The project is in compliance with the TRPA Regional 
Plan, Code and permit requirements relating to public services and 
utilities which ensures that any impacts are less than significant. 

11. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on  
RECREATION identified in the EIS, changes or alterations have been 
required in or incorporated into the project which avoid or reduce the 
potentially significant adverse effects to a less than significant level.  

Rationale: The identified recreation impacts associated with the project are less than 
significant or there is no impact as demonstrated in the Draft EIS (see 
Chapter 17.4.3).  The project is in compliance with the TRPA Regional 
Plan, Code and permit requirements relating to recreation which ensures 
that any impacts are less than significant. 

12. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on  
HAZARDS, HAZARDOUS MATERIALS, AND RISK OF UPSET identified in the 
EIS, changes or alterations have been required in or incorporated into the 
project which avoid or reduce the potentially significant adverse effects 
to a less than significant level.  

Rationale: The identified hazards, hazardous materials and risk of upset impacts 
associated with the project are either less than significant or are 
mitigated to a less than significant level as demonstrated in the Draft EIS 
(see Chapter 18.4.3).  By implementing the mitigation measures outlined 
in the Final EIS, identified effects on human health and risk of upset will 
be mitigated to a less than significant level.  Some of the mitigation 
measures include conducting an investigation and contamination 
removal, remove or properly abandon the existing septic system, conduct 
surveys for asbestos-containing materials and lead based paint and 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
200



coatings, and prepare and implement a traffic control plan in 
coordination with affected agencies.  

13. Finding:  With respect to the significant and possibly significant effects on  
CUMULATIVE IMPACTS identified in the EIS, changes or alterations have 
been required in or incorporated into the project which avoid or reduce 
the potentially significant adverse effects to a less than significant level.  

Rationale: The identified cumulative impacts associated with the project are less 
than significant and no mitigation is required as demonstrated in the 
Draft EIS (see DEIS Chapter 19)  

 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
201



Attachment C 

Exhibits (Conceptual Site Plan, Floor Plans, Elevations) 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
202



 

Appendix A 

Revised Tahoe City Lodge Concept Plans 

  

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
203



R
A

-5
.32 A

C
.

R
A-4

.14 AC
.

R
A-3

.15 AC
.

R
A

-2
1.22 A

C
.

6

R
A

-1
.07 A

C
.

EX.
B

U
ILD

.

B
U

ILD
.

B
U

ILD
.

EX.

B
U

ILD
.

EX.

C
lass 6

C
lass 1b

EX.
B

U
ILD

.

B
U

ILD
.

EX.

B
U

ILD
.

EX.

B
U

ILD
.

EX.

C
lass 1b

C
lass 3

C
lass 3

C
lass 6

TEE

TEE
TEE

TEE

TEE

TEE
TEE

TEE

TEE

G
R

EEN

G
R

EEN

TEE

G
R

EEN

G
R

EEN

G
R

EEN

C
lass 1b

6310

6
3
5
0

6
3
3
0

6
3
3
0

6320

6340

6250

6
2
7
0

6280

6260

6270

6
2
8
0

6
2
9
0

6300

6310

6
3
2
0

6250

6290

6
2
8
0

6
2
7
0

6240

6250

6260

6
2
4
0

6
2
5
0

6
2
6
0

6260

6
2
4
0

6
2
5
0

6
2
6
0

6240

6240

TA
H

O
E C

ITY LO
D

G
E SITE

N
O

R
TH

 LA
K

E B
LVD

 (H
W

Y. 28)

FA
IR

W
A

Y D
R

.

C
lass 5

\pxqc;{\Fromans|c0;APN 094-060-016}

\pxqc;{\Fromans|c0;APN 094-540-003}

\pxqc;{\Fromans|c0;APN 094-540-011}

{\From
ans|c0;A

P
N

 094-020-006}

C
lass 5

C
lass 1b

C
lass 5

C
lass 3

0
G

R
A

P
H

IC
 S

C
A

LE

1 IN
C

H
 =          FE

E
T

100
100

100

PR
O

PO
SED

 SEZ R
ESTO

R
A

TIO
N

 A
R

EA
(R

A
 - N

A
M

E)
(A

R
EA

)

LA
N

D
 C

A
PA

B
ILITY C

LA
SS B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

TC
 G

O
LF C

O
U

R
SE PR

O
PER

TY B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

N
/A

1" = 100'

1

COVER SHEET
PROJECT EXHIBIT

C
1

SITE

JACKPINE ST
RED CEDAR ST
PIONEER WY

GROVE ST

NORTH ST

TAHOE ST

BUNKER

ROAD

DRIVE

C
O

M
M

O
N

S
 B

E
A

C
H

 R
D

M
A

C
K

IN
A

W
 R

D

G
R

O
V

E
 S

T
.

F A R W A Y

T
A

H
O

E
 C

IT
Y

G
O

L
F

C
O

U
R

S
E

L
a
ke

T
a
h
o
e

TA
H

O
E

 C
ITY

89
89

28

TO TRUCKEE

TO HOMEWOOD

TO KINGS BEACH

L
A

K
E

 T
A

H
O

E
 D

A
M

VICINITY MAPC
1  

C
O

V
E

R
 S

H
E

E
T

 - P
R

O
JE

C
T

 E
X

H
IB

IT
C

2   
T

A
H

O
E

 C
IT

Y
 L

O
D

G
E

 L
A

Y
O

U
T

C
3.1

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 A
R

E
A

 A
N

D
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 C

O
V

E
R

A
G

E
C

3.2
P

R
O

P
O

S
E

D
 P

R
O

JE
C

T
 L

A
N

D
 C

O
V

E
R

A
G

E
C

3.3
E

X
IS

T
IN

G
 A

N
D

 P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 C
O

V
E

R
A

G
E

 C
A

L
C

S
.

C
4

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L

 G
R

A
D

IN
G

 A
N

D
 D

R
A

IN
A

G
E

 P
L

A
N

C
5

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L

 U
T

IL
IT

Y
 P

L
A

N
C

6
C

O
N

C
E

P
T

U
A

L
 S

N
O

W
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 P

L
A

N

12345678

TO
W

N
 C

EN
TER

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

LEGEND

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
 P

L
A

N
S

 F
O

R
 

T
A

H
O

E
 C

IT
Y

,     P
L

A
C

E
R

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

,    C
A

L
IF

O
R

N
IA

T
A

H
O

E
 C

IT
Y

 L
O

D
G

E
K

IL
A

 T
A

H
O

E
 

TA
H

O
E C

ITY LO
D

G
E A

R
EA

S

A
C

C
ESS A

N
D

 PA
R

K
IN

G
 A

R
EA

S
(N

O
T IN

C
LU

D
ED

 IN
 PR

O
JEC

T A
R

EA
 FO

R
 D

EN
SITY C

A
LC

U
LA

TIO
N

 PU
R

PO
SES)

G
O

LF C
O

U
R

SE EN
H

A
N

C
EM

EN
T A

R
EA

PO
TEN

TIA
L A

C
C

ESS A
N

D
 STA

G
IN

G
 D

ISTU
R

B
A

N
C

E

NOTES

1.
M

A
TER

IA
L STA

G
IN

G
 W

ILL PR
IM

A
R

ILY B
E LO

C
A

TED
 W

ITH
IN

 TH
E

R
ESTO

R
A

TIO
N

S A
R

EA
S, O

R
 A

LTER
N

A
TIVELY O

N
 PA

VED
 SU

R
FA

C
ES

A
D

JO
IN

IN
G

 TH
E TC

G
C

.
2.

N
O

 A
D

D
ITIO

N
A

L IR
R

IG
A

TIO
N

 TR
EN

C
H

IN
G

 TO
 SER

VE TH
E R

ESTO
R

A
TIO

N
A

R
EA

S IS A
N

TIC
IPA

TED
 TO

 B
E R

EQ
U

IR
ED

.

CIV IL EN GIN EERIN G L A N D SU R VE YIN G E N V IRON M EN TA L P L A N N IN G
P RO GR A M M A N A GEM EN T A N D P L A N N IN G

V O E (5 3 0 ) 1 -1 6 F A X
WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM

IC 5 8 11 (5 3 0 ) 1 - 3 65 8 1 2
P.O. B O X  5 3 9 9      6 4 5  W. L A K E  B L V D.      T A H O E  C I T Y      C A L I F O R N I A  9 6 1 4 5

H
O

R
IZO

N
TA

L

V
E

R
TIC

A
L

B
A

R
 IS

 O
N

E
 IN

C
H

 O
N

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L D

R
A

W
IN

G
0

1

S
C

A
LE

S
:

S
H

E
E

T:
of

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 D
A

TE
:

D
R

A
FTIN

G
 B

Y
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 B

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 B
Y

:

D
A

TE
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T N

U
M

B
E

R
:

W
A

X
X

X

S
M N
C

X
X

X
2216.00 PLACER COUNTYTAHOE CITY CALIFORNIA8

S
E

P
TE

M
B

E
R

 14, 2016

E DT
S LAW

T

R E G I S
E R

O
F E

S
S

IO

EER
N

o. C
34303

Exp. 9/30/17

LL

CO
E T

A
I

V I

A
C

F
NRO

FI
AI

T
R P

R

E
.

R
G

R E
B

IN
A

L
NA

U
A

EN CH

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R IN
ITIA

L
D

A
TE

RE
CO

RD
 D

RA
W

IN
G

THIS DOCUMENT & THE IDEAS & DESIGNS INCORPORATED HEREIN, AS AN INSTRUMENT OF
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY OF AEC & IS NOT TO BE USED, IN WHOLE OR

IN PART, FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT WITHOUT THE WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF AEC.

REUSE OF DOCUMENTS

REV DATE BY

TAHOE CITY LODGE

REVISIONS

KILA TAHOE

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
204

http://WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM


1c

2c

3c

4c

5c

6c

7c

8c

9c

10c

12c

13c

11c

14c

15c

16c

17c

18c

19c

20c

21c

23c

24c

25c

26c

27c

22c

29

30

313233

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41
42

43

44

46
47

48
49

50

52c

64

65

66

67

68

69
74

75

76

77

78

80

81

82

83

84

85
86

87
88

89
90

91
92

93
94

95
96

97
98

99
100

102

106
107

108
109

110
111

112
113

114
115

116
117

118
119

120
121

122
127C

128C
129C

130C131C

53c
54c

55c
56c

57c
58c

59c
60c

62
63c

70

71

72

28c

45

51

61c

73

79

103
104

105
101

123C
124C

125C
126C

132C

E
X

IS
TIN

G
9TH

 G
R

E
E

N

E
X

IS
TIN

G
3R

D
 G

R
E

E
N

E
X

IS
TIN

G
1S

T TE
E

R
E

LO
C

A
TE

D
6TH

 TE
E

R
E

LO
C

A
TE

D
P

U
TTIN

G
 G

R
E

E
N

E
X

IS
TIN

G
B

U
N

K
E

R

E
X

IS
TIN

G
5TH

 G
R

E
E

N

R
E

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TE

D
C

LU
B

H
O

U
S

E
 &

M
E

E
TIN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

A
R

E
A

 2

A
R

E
A

 1

A
R

E
A

 8

A
R

E
A

 7

NORTH LAKE BLVD. (HW
Y 28)

V
E

H
IC

LE
TU

R
N

A
R

O
U

N
D

&
 LO

A
D

IN
G

C
LA

S
S

 5

C
LA

S
S

 5

C
LA

S
S

 3

C
LA

S
S

 3

C
LA

S
S

 1b

C
LA

S
S

 1b

C
LA

S
S

 5

C
LA

S
S

 1b

E
X

IS
TIN

G
B

U
N

K
E

R

A
R

EA
 6

A
R

EA
 5A

R
EA

 3

A
R

EA
 4

N
/A

1" = 50'

2

TAHOE CITY LODGE
LAYOUT

C
2

LA
N

D
 C

A
PA

B
ILITY C

LA
SS B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

PR
O

JEC
T B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

A
R

EA
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

PR
O

PER
TY B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

0
G

R
A

P
H

IC
 S

C
A

LE

1 IN
C

H
 =          FE

E
T

50
50

50

LEGEND

S
C

A
L

E
: 1" = 50'

P
L

A
N

CIV IL EN GIN EERIN G L A N D SU R VE YIN G E N V IRON M EN TA L P L A N N IN G
P RO GR A M M A N A GEM EN T A N D P L A N N IN G

V O E (5 3 0 ) 1 -1 6 F A X
WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM

IC 5 8 11 (5 3 0 ) 1 - 3 65 8 1 2
P.O. B O X  5 3 9 9      6 4 5  W. L A K E  B L V D.      T A H O E  C I T Y      C A L I F O R N I A  9 6 1 4 5

H
O

R
IZO

N
TA

L

V
E

R
TIC

A
L

B
A

R
 IS

 O
N

E
 IN

C
H

 O
N

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L D

R
A

W
IN

G
0

1

S
C

A
LE

S
:

S
H

E
E

T:
of

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 D
A

TE
:

D
R

A
FTIN

G
 B

Y
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 B

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 B
Y

:

D
A

TE
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T N

U
M

B
E

R
:

W
A

X
X

X

S
M N
C

X
X

X
2216.00 PLACER COUNTYTAHOE CITY CALIFORNIA8

S
E

P
TE

M
B

E
R

 14, 2016

E DT
S LAW

T

R E G I S
E R

O
F E

S
S

IO

EER
N

o. C
34303

Exp. 9/30/17

LL

CO
E T

A
I

V I

A
C

F
NRO

FI
AI

T
R P

R

E
.

R
G

R E
B

IN
A

L
NA

U
A

EN CH

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R IN
ITIA

L
D

A
TE

RE
CO

RD
 D

RA
W

IN
G

THIS DOCUMENT & THE IDEAS & DESIGNS INCORPORATED HEREIN, AS AN INSTRUMENT OF
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY OF AEC & IS NOT TO BE USED, IN WHOLE OR

IN PART, FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT WITHOUT THE WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF AEC.

REUSE OF DOCUMENTS

REV DATE BY

TAHOE CITY LODGE

REVISIONS

KILA TAHOE

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
205

http://WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM


E
X

IS
TIN

G
 6TH

TE
E

X

X

X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X

X
X

X

X
X

X

X

G

G
G

G

G

GG G

IRR

IRR

X

SS

SS

SS

6a

8cw

6a6A

X

X

X

G

G

G G

G

3

GG

15'w

52st

W

TRANS

TRANS

E
X

IS
TIN

G
G

R
E

E
N

AC ROAD/ PARKING

EX.BUILD.
EX.BUILD.

EX.

BUILD.

E
X

IS
TIN

G
9TH

 G
R

E
E

N

E
X

IS
TIN

G
3R

D
 G

R
E

E
N

E
X

IS
TIN

G
1S

T TE
E

E
X

IS
TIN

G
6TH

 TE
E

E
X

IS
TIN

G
B

U
N

K
E

R

E
X

IS
TIN

G
5TH

 G
R

E
E

N

A
R

EA
 2

A
R

EA
 1

A
R

EA
 8

A
R

EA
 7

NORTH LAKE BLVD. (HW
Y 28)

C
LA

S
S

 5

C
LA

S
S

 5

C
LA

S
S

 3

C
LA

S
S

 3
C

LA
S

S
 1b

C
LA

S
S

 1b

C
LA

S
S

 5

C
LA

S
S

 1b

094-020-007

094-540-011

094-540-003

094-020-006

094-540-004

094-070-001

094-070-006

094-070-002

E
X

IS
TIN

G
B

U
N

K
E

R

C
LA

S
S

 3

EX.

BUILD.

A
R

EA
 6

A
R

EA
 5A

R
EA

 3

A
R

EA
 4

0
G

R
A

P
H

IC
 S

C
A

LE

1 IN
C

H
 =          FE

E
T

50
50

50

N
/A

1" = 50'

3

PROJECT AREA AND
EXISTING COVERAGE

C
3.1

EXISTIN
G

 B
U

ILD
IN

G

LA
N

D
 C

A
PA

B
ILITY C

LA
SS B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

PR
O

PER
TY B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

A
C

 PA
VEM

EN
T

A
R

EA
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

LEGEND

PR
O

JEC
T B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

CIV IL EN GIN EERIN G L A N D SU R VE YIN G E N V IRON M EN TA L P L A N N IN G
P RO GR A M M A N A GEM EN T A N D P L A N N IN G

V O E (5 3 0 ) 1 -1 6 F A X
WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM

IC 5 8 11 (5 3 0 ) 1 - 3 65 8 1 2
P.O. B O X  5 3 9 9      6 4 5  W. L A K E  B L V D.      T A H O E  C I T Y      C A L I F O R N I A  9 6 1 4 5

H
O

R
IZO

N
TA

L

V
E

R
TIC

A
L

B
A

R
 IS

 O
N

E
 IN

C
H

 O
N

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L D

R
A

W
IN

G
0

1

S
C

A
LE

S
:

S
H

E
E

T:
of

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 D
A

TE
:

D
R

A
FTIN

G
 B

Y
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 B

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 B
Y

:

D
A

TE
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T N

U
M

B
E

R
:

W
A

X
X

X

S
M N
C

X
X

X
2216.00 PLACER COUNTYTAHOE CITY CALIFORNIA8

S
E

P
TE

M
B

E
R

 14, 2016

E DT
S LAW

T

R E G I S
E R

O
F E

S
S

IO

EER
N

o. C
34303

Exp. 9/30/17

LL

CO
E T

A
I

V I

A
C

F
NRO

FI
AI

T
R P

R

E
.

R
G

R E
B

IN
A

L
NA

U
A

EN CH

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R IN
ITIA

L
D

A
TE

RE
CO

RD
 D

RA
W

IN
G

THIS DOCUMENT & THE IDEAS & DESIGNS INCORPORATED HEREIN, AS AN INSTRUMENT OF
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY OF AEC & IS NOT TO BE USED, IN WHOLE OR

IN PART, FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT WITHOUT THE WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF AEC.

REUSE OF DOCUMENTS

REV DATE BY

TAHOE CITY LODGE

REVISIONS

KILA TAHOE

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
206

http://WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM


1c

2c

3c

4c

5c

6c

7c

8c

9c

10c

12c

13c

11c

14c

15c

16c

17c

18c

19c

20c

21c

23c

24c

25c

26c

27c

22c

29

30

313233

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41
42

43

44

46
47

48
49

50

52c

64

65

66

67

68

69
74

75

76

77

78

80

81

82

83

84

85
86

87
88

89
90

91
92

93
94

95
96

97
98

99
100

102

106
107

108
109

110
111

112
113

114
115

116
117

118
119

120
121

122
127C

128C
129C

130C131C

53c
54c

55c
56c

57c
58c

59c
60c

62
63c

70

71

72

28c

45

51

61c

73

79

103
104

105
101

123C
124C

125C
126C

132C

C
LA

S
S

 5

C
LA

S
S

 5

C
LA

S
S

 3

C
LA

S
S

 3

C
LA

S
S

 1b

C
LA

S
S

 1b

C
LA

S
S

 5

C
LA

S
S

 1b

C
LA

S
S

 3

R
ELO

C
A

TED
B

O
C

C
E  B

A
LL

C
O

U
R

TS

A
R

EA
 6

A
R

EA
 5A

R
EA

 3

A
R

EA
 4

R
E

LO
C

A
TE

D
P

U
TTIN

G
 G

R
E

E
N

R
EC

O
N

STR
U

C
TED

C
LU

B
H

O
U

SE &
M

EETIN
G

 SPA
C

E

R
ELO

C
A

TED
6TH

 TEE

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 9TH

G
R

E
E

N

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 3R

D
G

R
E

E
N

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 1S

T
TE

E

E
X

IS
TIN

G
B

U
N

K
E

R

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 5TH

G
R

E
E

N

B
U

N
K

ER

094-020-007

094-540-011

094-540-003

094-020-006

094-540-004

094-070-001

094-070-006

094-070-002

A
R

EA
 2

A
R

EA
 1

A
R

EA
 8

A
R

EA
 7

V
E

H
IC

LE
TU

R
N

A
R

O
U

N
D

&
 LO

A
D

IN
G

NORTH LAKE BLVD. (HW
Y 28)

N
/A

1" = 50'

4

PROPOSED PROJECT
LAND COVERAGE

C
3.2

0
G

R
A

P
H

IC
 S

C
A

LE

1 IN
C

H
 =          FE

E
T

50
50

50

PR
O

PO
SED

 B
U

ILD
IN

G

LA
N

D
 C

A
PA

B
ILITY C

LA
SS B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

PR
O

PER
TY B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

PR
O

PO
SED

 A
C

 PA
VIN

G

A
R

EA
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

LEGEND

PR
O

JEC
T B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

CIV IL EN GIN EERIN G L A N D SU R VE YIN G E N V IRON M EN TA L P L A N N IN G
P RO GR A M M A N A GEM EN T A N D P L A N N IN G

V O E (5 3 0 ) 1 -1 6 F A X
WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM

IC 5 8 11 (5 3 0 ) 1 - 3 65 8 1 2
P.O. B O X  5 3 9 9      6 4 5  W. L A K E  B L V D.      T A H O E  C I T Y      C A L I F O R N I A  9 6 1 4 5

H
O

R
IZO

N
TA

L

V
E

R
TIC

A
L

B
A

R
 IS

 O
N

E
 IN

C
H

 O
N

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L D

R
A

W
IN

G
0

1

S
C

A
LE

S
:

S
H

E
E

T:
of

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 D
A

TE
:

D
R

A
FTIN

G
 B

Y
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 B

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 B
Y

:

D
A

TE
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T N

U
M

B
E

R
:

W
A

X
X

X

S
M N
C

X
X

X
2216.00 PLACER COUNTYTAHOE CITY CALIFORNIA8

S
E

P
TE

M
B

E
R

 14, 2016

E DT
S LAW

T

R E G I S
E R

O
F E

S
S

IO

EER
N

o. C
34303

Exp. 9/30/17

LL

CO
E T

A
I

V I

A
C

F
NRO

FI
AI

T
R P

R

E
.

R
G

R E
B

IN
A

L
NA

U
A

EN CH

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R IN
ITIA

L
D

A
TE

RE
CO

RD
 D

RA
W

IN
G

THIS DOCUMENT & THE IDEAS & DESIGNS INCORPORATED HEREIN, AS AN INSTRUMENT OF
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY OF AEC & IS NOT TO BE USED, IN WHOLE OR

IN PART, FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT WITHOUT THE WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF AEC.

REUSE OF DOCUMENTS

REV DATE BY

TAHOE CITY LODGE

REVISIONS

KILA TAHOE

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
207

http://WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM


N
O

TES:
1.

PR
O

JEC
T A

R
EA

 A
N

D
 LA

N
D

 C
O

VER
A

G
E C

A
LC

U
LA

TIO
N

S FO
R

 A
R

EA
S 1 A

N
D

 2 TA
K

EN
 FR

O
M

TR
PA

-A
PPR

O
VED

 LC
V D

A
TED

 JU
LY 30,2015

2.
PR

O
JEC

T A
R

EA
 A

N
D

 LA
N

D
 C

O
VER

A
G

E C
A

LC
U

LA
TIO

N
S FO

R
 A

R
EA

S 4,6,7,8,9 TA
K

EN
 FR

O
M

TR
PA

-A
PPR

O
VES LVC

 D
A

TED
 A

PR
IL 21, 2015

3.
PR

O
JEC

T A
R

EA
 A

N
D

 LA
N

D
 C

O
VER

A
G

E C
A

LC
U

LA
TIO

N
S FO

R
 A

R
EA

 3 TA
K

EN
 FR

O
M

 O
TH

ER
 SU

R
VEY

IN
FO

R
M

A
TIO

N
. LA

N
D

 C
A

PA
B

ILITY A
N

D
 LA

N
D

 C
O

VER
A

G
E A

R
E U

N
VER

IFIED
.

N
/A

N
/A

5

EXISTING AND PROPOSED
COVERAGE CALCS.

C
3.3

CIV IL EN GIN EERIN G L A N D SU R VE YIN G E N V IRON M EN TA L P L A N N IN G
P RO GR A M M A N A GEM EN T A N D P L A N N IN G

V O E (5 3 0 ) 1 -1 6 F A X
WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM

IC 5 8 11 (5 3 0 ) 1 - 3 65 8 1 2
P.O. B O X  5 3 9 9      6 4 5  W. L A K E  B L V D.      T A H O E  C I T Y      C A L I F O R N I A  9 6 1 4 5

H
O

R
IZO

N
TA

L

V
E

R
TIC

A
L

B
A

R
 IS

 O
N

E
 IN

C
H

 O
N

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L D

R
A

W
IN

G
0

1

S
C

A
LE

S
:

S
H

E
E

T:
of

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 D
A

TE
:

D
R

A
FTIN

G
 B

Y
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 B

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 B
Y

:

D
A

TE
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T N

U
M

B
E

R
:

W
A

X
X

X

S
M N
C

X
X

X
2216.00 PLACER COUNTYTAHOE CITY CALIFORNIA8

S
E

P
TE

M
B

E
R

 14, 2016

E DT
S LAW

T

R E G I S
E R

O
F E

S
S

IO

EER
N

o. C
34303

Exp. 9/30/17

LL

CO
E T

A
I

V I

A
C

F
NRO

FI
AI

T
R P

R

E
.

R
G

R E
B

IN
A

L
NA

U
A

EN CH

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R IN
ITIA

L
D

A
TE

RE
CO

RD
 D

RA
W

IN
G

THIS DOCUMENT & THE IDEAS & DESIGNS INCORPORATED HEREIN, AS AN INSTRUMENT OF
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY OF AEC & IS NOT TO BE USED, IN WHOLE OR

IN PART, FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT WITHOUT THE WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF AEC.

REUSE OF DOCUMENTS

REV DATE BY

TAHOE CITY LODGE

REVISIONS

KILA TAHOE

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
208

http://WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM


C
LA

S
S

 5

C
LA

S
S

 3

C
LA

S
S

 3

C
LA

S
S

 1b

C
LA

S
S

 1b

C
LA

S
S

 5

C
LA

S
S

 1b

C
LA

S
S

 3

TRANS

TRANS

TRANS

TRANS

R
E

LO
C

A
TED

P
U

TTIN
G

 G
R

EEN

R
E

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TED

C
LU

B
H

O
U

S
E

 &
M

E
E

TIN
G

 S
PAC

E

E
X

IS
TIN

G
5TH

 G
R

EEN

R
E

LO
C

A
TED

6TH
 TEE

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 5TH

G
R

E
EN

3:1

3:1

0. 8%

2%

1%

1.4%

2%

8%

3%

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 9TH

G
R

E
EN

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 3R

D
G

R
E

EN

E
XIS

TIN
G

 1ST
TE

E

E
X

IS
TIN

G
B

U
N

KER

E
X

IS
TIN

G
B

U
N

KER

F
F

 =
 6

2
6
70. 8%

T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T

T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T

T
R
E
A
T
M

E
N
T

7%

2%

2%

5%

0.6%

R
E

L
O

C
A

T
E

D

B
O

C
C

E
  B

A
L

L

C
O

U
R

T
S

F
G

 6
2

6
6

.4

F
G

 6
2

6
5

.4

F
G

 6
2

6
4

.9

F
G

 6
2

6
2

.6

F
G

 6
2

5
9

.8

F
G

 6
2

6
1

.8

F
G

 6
2

6
1

.4

T
R

U
C

K

L
O

A
D

IN
G

/

T
U

R
N

A
R

O
U

N
D

F
G

 6
2

4
8

.0

F
G

 6
2

4
7

.4

F
G

 6
2

4
6

.2

F
G

 6
2

5
0

.2

F
G

 6
2

4
8

.2

M
E

 6
2

4
5
.2

 ±

M
A

T
C

H
 (E

)

P
A

T
H

F
G

 6
2

5
3

.4F
G

 6
2

5
2

.8

M
E

 6
2

5
6
.2

 ±

F
G

 6
2

5
4

.0

F
G

 6
2

5
8

.0

F
G

 6
2

5
3

.4

F
G

 6
2

5
3

.8

F
G

 6
2

5
4

.4

F
G

 6
2

5
3

.8

F
G

 6
2

5
2

.0
F

G
 6

2
5
3

.4

NORTH
LAKE

BLVD. (HW
Y

28)

G
R

AD
IN

G
LIM

ITS,
TYPIC

AL

N
/A

1" = 40'

6

CONCEPTUAL GRADING

AND DRAINAGE PLAN

C
4

G
R

A
P

H
IC

 SC
ALE

1 IN
C

H
 =          FEET

40

P
R

O
P

E
R

T
Y

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 B
O

U
N

D
A

R
Y

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 T
C

U
IP

 S
T

O
R

M
 D

R
A

IN

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 B
Y

P
A

S
S

 / U
N

T
R

E
A

T
E

D

S
T

O
R

M
 D

R
A

IN

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
T

O
R

M
 D

R
A

IN

D
R

A
IN

 IN
L

E
T

 W
IT

H
 F

IL
T

E
R

IN
S

E
R

T
S

T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
S

T
O

R
M

 W
A

T
E

R
 T

R
E

A
T

M
E

N
T

(S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E
, B

A
S

IN
, O

R
 S

U
R

F
A

C
E

T
R

E
A

T
M

E
N

T
 O

U
T

L
E

T

F
G

F
IN

IS
H

 G
R

A
D

E

M
E

M
A

T
C

H
 E

X
IS

T
IN

G

G
R

A
D

IN
G

 L
IM

IT
S

CIV IL EN GIN EERIN G L A N D SUR VE YIN G EN V IRON MEN TA L PL A NN IN G
P RO GR A M M A N A GEMEN T A ND PL A NN IN G

V O E (5 3 0 ) 1 -1 6 F A X
WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM

IC 5 8 11 (5 3 0 ) 1 - 3 65 8 1 2
P.O. B O X 5 3 9 9 6 4 5 W. L A K E B L V D. T A H O E C I T Y C A L I F O R N I A 9 6 1 4 5

H
O

R
IZO

N
TAL

V
ER

TIC
AL

B
AR

 IS O
N

E IN
C

H
 O

N
 O

R
IG

IN
AL D

R
AW

IN
G

0
1

S
C

ALES:

S
H

E
ET:

of

C
H

EC
KED

 BY:

S
U

R
V

EY D
ATE:

D
R

AFTIN
G

 BY:
D

ESIG
N

 BY:

S
U

R
V

EY BY:

D
ATE:

P
R

O
JEC

T N
U

M
BER

:

W
A

X
XX

S
M N
C

X
XX

2216.00 PLACER COUNTYTAHOE CITY CALIFORNIA8

S
EP

TE
M

B
ER

 14, 2016

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R IN
ITIA

L
D

A
TE

R
E

C
O

R
D

 D
RA

W
IN

G

THIS DOCUMENT & THE IDEAS & DESIGNS INCORPORATED HEREIN, AS AN INSTRUMENT OF
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY OF AEC & IS NOT TO BE USED, IN WHOLE OR

IN PART, FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT WITHOUT THE WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF AEC.

REV DATE BY

TAHOE CITY LODGE

REVISIONS

KILA TAHOE

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
209



SS

SS

SSSS S
S

WW

W

W

OHU

OHU

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

WW

SS

SS

W

S
S

SS

SS

SS

W

W

S
S

SS

S
S

S
S

TRANS

TRANS

W

W

SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS
SS

SS

SS

SS

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

SS

W

W

W

W

W

S
S

SS

S
S

SS

SS

S
S

SS

S
S

E
X

IS
TIN

G
9TH

 G
R

E
E

N

E
X

IS
TIN

G
3R

D
 G

R
E

E
N

E
X

IS
TIN

G
1S

T TE
E

E
X

IS
TIN

G
6TH

 TE
E

R
E

LO
C

A
TE

D
P

U
TTIN

G
 G

R
E

E
N

E
X

IS
TIN

G
B

U
N

K
E

R

E
X

IS
TIN

G
5TH

 G
R

E
E

N

R
E

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TE

D
C

LU
B

H
O

U
S

E
 &

M
E

E
TIN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

V
E

H
IC

LE
TU

R
N

A
R

O
U

N
D

&
 LO

A
D

IN
G

{\Ftxt|c0;094-540-011}

{\Ftxt|c0;094-540-003}

{\Ftxt|c0;094-020-006}

{\Ftxt|c0;094-540-004}

{\Ftxt|c0;094-070-001}

{\Ftxt|c0;094-070-002}

C
LA

S
S

 5

E
X

IS
TIN

G
B

U
N

K
E

R

PR
O

PO
SED

FIR
E H

YD
R

A
N

T

EXISTIN
G

SEW
ER

 M
A

IN

EXISTIN
G

SEW
ER

 M
A

IN

EXISTIN
G

 FIR
E

H
YD

R
A

N
T

PR
O

PO
SED

W
A

TER
 SER

VIC
E

ELEC
TR

IC
A

L SER
VIC

E

W
A

TER
 SER

VIC
E

SEW
ER

 SER
VIC

E

TO
 B

E R
EM

O
VED

NORTH LAKE BLVD. (HW
Y 28)

N
/A

1" = 40'

7

CONCEPTUAL
UTILITY PLAN

C
5

0
G

R
A

P
H

IC
 S

C
A

LE

1 IN
C

H
 =          FE

E
T

40

40

P
R

O
P

E
R

TY
 B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

LEGEND

P
R

O
JE

C
T B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 W

A
TE

R
 LIN

E

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 W
A

TE
R

 LIN
E

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 FIR

E
 H

Y
D

R
A

N
T

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 FIR
E

 H
Y

D
R

A
N

T

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 S

A
N

ITA
R

Y
 S

E
W

E
R

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 S
A

N
ITA

R
Y

 S
E

W
E

R

E
X

IS
TIN

G
 TR

A
N

S
FO

R
M

E
R

CIV IL EN GIN EERIN G L A N D SU R VE YIN G E N V IRON M EN TA L P L A N N IN G
P RO GR A M M A N A GEM EN T A N D P L A N N IN G

V O E (5 3 0 ) 1 -1 6 F A X
WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM

IC 5 8 11 (5 3 0 ) 1 - 3 65 8 1 2
P.O. B O X  5 3 9 9      6 4 5  W. L A K E  B L V D.      T A H O E  C I T Y      C A L I F O R N I A  9 6 1 4 5

H
O

R
IZO

N
TA

L

V
E

R
TIC

A
L

B
A

R
 IS

 O
N

E
 IN

C
H

 O
N

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L D

R
A

W
IN

G
0

1

S
C

A
LE

S
:

S
H

E
E

T:
of

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 D
A

TE
:

D
R

A
FTIN

G
 B

Y
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 B

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 B
Y

:

D
A

TE
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T N

U
M

B
E

R
:

W
A

X
X

X

S
M N
C

X
X

X
2216.00 PLACER COUNTYTAHOE CITY CALIFORNIA8

S
E

P
TE

M
B

E
R

 14, 2016

E DT
S LAW

T

R E G I S
E R

O
F E

S
S

IO

EER
N

o. C
34303

Exp. 9/30/17

LL

CO
E T

A
I

V I

A
C

F
NRO

FI
AI

T
R P

R

E
.

R
G

R E
B

IN
A

L
NA

U
A

EN CH

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R IN
ITIA

L
D

A
TE

RE
CO

RD
 D

RA
W

IN
G

THIS DOCUMENT & THE IDEAS & DESIGNS INCORPORATED HEREIN, AS AN INSTRUMENT OF
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY OF AEC & IS NOT TO BE USED, IN WHOLE OR

IN PART, FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT WITHOUT THE WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF AEC.

REUSE OF DOCUMENTS

REV DATE BY

TAHOE CITY LODGE

REVISIONS

KILA TAHOE

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
210

http://WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM


C
LA

S
S

 5

C
LA

S
S

 5

C
LA

S
S

 3

C
LA

S
S

 3

C
LA

S
S

 1b

C
LA

S
S

 1b

C
LA

S
S

 5

C
LA

S
S

 1b

C
LA

S
S

 3

W

E
X

IS
TIN

G
9TH

 G
R

E
E

N

E
X

IS
TIN

G
3R

D
 G

R
E

E
N

E
X

IS
TIN

G
1S

T TE
E

E
X

IS
TIN

G
6TH

 TE
E

R
E

LO
C

A
TE

D
P

U
TTIN

G
 G

R
E

E
N

E
X

IS
TIN

G
B

U
N

K
E

R

E
X

IS
TIN

G
5TH

 G
R

E
E

N

R
E

C
O

N
S

TR
U

C
TE

D
C

LU
B

H
O

U
S

E
 &

M
E

E
TIN

G
 S

P
A

C
E

V
E

H
IC

LE
TU

R
N

A
R

O
U

N
D

&
 LO

A
D

IN
G

{\Ftxt|c0;094-540-011}

{\Ftxt|c0;094-540-003}

{\Ftxt|c0;094-020-006}

{\Ftxt|c0;094-540-004}

{\Ftxt|c0;094-070-001}

{\Ftxt|c0;094-070-002}

E
X

IS
TIN

G
B

U
N

K
E

R

NORTH LAKE BLVD. (HW
Y 28)

N
/A

1" = 40'

8

CONCEPTUAL SNOW
MANAGEMENT PLAN

C
6

0
G

R
A

P
H

IC
 S

C
A

LE

1 IN
C

H
 =          FE

E
T

40

40

LA
N

D
 C

A
PA

B
ILITY C

LA
SS B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

PR
O

PER
TY B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

LEGEND

PR
O

JEC
T B

O
U

N
D

A
R

Y

SN
O

W
 STO

R
A

G
E

CIV IL EN GIN EERIN G L A N D SU R VE YIN G E N V IRON M EN TA L P L A N N IN G
P RO GR A M M A N A GEM EN T A N D P L A N N IN G

V O E (5 3 0 ) 1 -1 6 F A X
WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM

IC 5 8 11 (5 3 0 ) 1 - 3 65 8 1 2
P.O. B O X  5 3 9 9      6 4 5  W. L A K E  B L V D.      T A H O E  C I T Y      C A L I F O R N I A  9 6 1 4 5

H
O

R
IZO

N
TA

L

V
E

R
TIC

A
L

B
A

R
 IS

 O
N

E
 IN

C
H

 O
N

 O
R

IG
IN

A
L D

R
A

W
IN

G
0

1

S
C

A
LE

S
:

S
H

E
E

T:
of

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 D
A

TE
:

D
R

A
FTIN

G
 B

Y
:

D
E

S
IG

N
 B

Y
:

S
U

R
V

E
Y

 B
Y

:

D
A

TE
:

P
R

O
JE

C
T N

U
M

B
E

R
:

W
A

X
X

X

S
M N
C

X
X

X
2216.00 PLACER COUNTYTAHOE CITY CALIFORNIA8

S
E

P
TE

M
B

E
R

 14, 2016

E DT
S LAW

T

R E G I S
E R

O
F E

S
S

IO

EER
N

o. C
34303

Exp. 9/30/17

LL

CO
E T

A
I

V I

A
C

F
NRO

FI
AI

T
R P

R

E
.

R
G

R E
B

IN
A

L
NA

U
A

EN CH

E
N

G
IN

E
E

R IN
ITIA

L
D

A
TE

RE
CO

RD
 D

RA
W

IN
G

THIS DOCUMENT & THE IDEAS & DESIGNS INCORPORATED HEREIN, AS AN INSTRUMENT OF
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE, IS THE PROPERTY OF AEC & IS NOT TO BE USED, IN WHOLE OR

IN PART, FOR ANY OTHER PROJECT WITHOUT THE WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF AEC.

REUSE OF DOCUMENTS

REV DATE BY

TAHOE CITY LODGE

REVISIONS

KILA TAHOE

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
211

http://WWW.AUERBACHENGINEERING.COM


TO
IL

ET
TO

IL
ET

KI
TC

HE
N

RE
ST

AU
RA

NT
LO

BB
Y

ST
OR

.

PO
RT

E
CO

CH
ER

E

PO
RC

H

BU
IL

DI
NG

 1
GR

OU
ND

 L
VL

. (
+

48
)

BU
IL

DI
NG

 2
GR

OU
ND

 L
VL

. (
+

48
)

SE
RV

IC
E 

PA
TH

W
AY

M
UL

TI
PU

RP
OS

E
PA

VI
LI

ON

TO
IL

ET

ST
OR

.

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

M
EC

H.
BR

EA
KR

OO
M

BA
G.

BU
IL

DI
NG

 3
Gr

ou
nd

 L
VL

. (
+

56
)

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

HK
G

EN
GI

NE
ER

IN
G

RE
C.

SE
C.

Of
fic

e

Co
nc

ie
rg

e
H.

R.

LO
CK

.

AD
M

IN
.

LO
CK

.
AC

CO
UN

T.

M
EC

H.

M
AI

NT
.

OF
FI

CE
S

TR
UC

K
LO

AD
IN

G/
TU

RN
AR

OU
ND

TR
AS

H

2 
BR

15
72

0
2

CO
NC

EP
T 

PL
AN

 - 
PR

OJ
EC

T 
LE

VE
L 

1
09

.0
1.

20
15

40
80

20
1"

=4
0'

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.212



BU
IL

DI
NG

 1
LV

L.
 2

 (+
60

)

BU
IL

DI
NG

 2
LV

L.
 2

 (+
60

)

SE
RV

IC
E 

PA
TH

W
AY

TR
UC

K 
LO

AD
IN

G/
TU

RN
AR

OU
ND

BU
IL

DI
NG

 3
LV

L.
 2

 (+
68

)

KI
NG

QU
EE

N
KI

NG
QU

EE
N

KI
NG

KI
NG

QU
EE

N
QU

EE
N

KI
NG

QU
EE

N

1 
BR

1 
BR

LO
BB

Y

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

KI
NG

QU
EE

N
KI

NG
QU

EE
N

KI
NG

KI
NG

QU
EE

N
KI

NG
QU

EE
N

QU
EE

N

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

1 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

15
72

0
3

CO
NC

EP
T 

PL
AN

 - 
PR

OJ
EC

T 
LE

VE
L 

2
09

.0
1.

20
15

40
80

20
1"

=4
0'

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.213



BU
IL

DI
NG

 1
LV

L.
 3

 (+
70

)

BU
IL

DI
NG

 2
LV

L.
 3

 (+
70

)

QU
EE

N
KI

NG
KI

NG
QU

EE
N

BU
IL

DI
NG

 3
LV

L.
 3

 (+
78

)

QU
EE

N
QU

EE
N

KI
NG

QU
EE

N
KI

NG

KI
NG

1 
BR

1 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

KI
NG

QU
EE

N
KI

NG
QU

EE
N

KI
NG

QU
EE

N
KI

NG
QU

EE
N

KI
NG

QU
EE

N

2 
BR

15
72

0
4

CO
NC

EP
T 

PL
AN

- P
RO

JE
CT

 L
EV

EL
 3

09
.0

1.
20

15

40
80

20
1"

=4
0'

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.214



BU
IL

DI
NG

 1
LV

L.
 4

 (+
81

)

BU
IL

DI
NG

 2
LV

L.
 4

 (+
81

)

BA
R

PO
OL

 E
QU

IP
.

F&
B 

DE
CK

PO
OL

 D
EC

K

BU
IL

DI
NG

 3
LV

L.
 4

 (+
88

)

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

2 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR

1 
BR TO

IL
ET

TO
IL

ET

TO
IL

ET
TO

IL
ET

KI
TC

HE
N

2 
BR

15
72

0
5

CO
NC

EP
T 

PL
AN

 - 
PR

OJ
EC

T 
LE

VE
L 

4
09

.0
1.

20
15

40
80

20
1"

=4
0'

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.215



TO
IL

ET
S/

LO
CK

ER
S/

CH
AN

GI
NG

RO
OM

S

TO
IL

ET
S/

LO
CK

ER
S/

CH
AN

GI
NG

RO
OM

S

PR
O 

SH
OP

/
BA

G 
RE

NT
AL

FO
OD

 A
ND

BE
VE

RA
GE

KI
TC

HE
N

AD
M

IN

M
EE

TI
NG

SP
AC

E

ST
OR

AG
E/

M
EP

15
72

0
6

GO
LF

 C
LU

BH
OU

SE
 P

LA
NS

09
.0

1.
20

15

L
E

V
E

L
 1

L
E

V
E

L
 2

16
32

8
1"

=1
6'

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.216



15
72

0
8

VI
EW

 1
- L

OO
KI

NG
 N

OR
TH

EA
ST

09
.0

1.
20

15

E
XI

ST
IN

G
PR

O
PO

SE
D

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
217



15
72

0
9

VI
EW

 2
-L

OO
KI

NG
 S

OU
TH

W
ES

T
09

.0
1.

20
15

E
XI

ST
IN

G
PR

O
PO

SE
D

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
218



15
72

0
10

VI
EW

 3
-F

RO
M

 A
CR

OS
S 

TH
E 

ST
RE

ET
09

.0
1.

20
15

E
XI

ST
IN

G
PR

O
PO

SE
D

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
219



1 17

1 19

1 18

NA
TU

RA
L G

RO
UN

D 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N-

62
52

'
(P

ER
 T

RP
A 

CO
DE

 S
EC

TI
ON

 37
.3.

2)
FO

R 
BU

ILD
IN

G 
3

NA
TU

RA
L G

RO
UN

D 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N-

62
45

'
(P

ER
 T

RP
A 

CO
DE

 S
EC

TI
ON

 37
.3.

2)
FO

R 
BU

ILD
IN

G 
1 +

 2

15
72

0
16

SI
TE

 P
LA

N 
- S

EC
TI

ON
 M

AP
09

.0
1.

20
15

N
T

S

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
220



Bu
ild

in
g 

1 
Le

ve
l 0

1
62

48
' -

 0
"

Bu
ild

in
g 

1 
Le

ve
l 0

2
62

61
' -

 0
"

Bu
ild

in
g 

1 
Le

ve
l 0

3
62

71
' -

 0
"

Bu
ild

in
g 

1 
Le

ve
l 0

4
62

82
' -

 0
"

NA
TU

RA
L G

RO
UN

D 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N-

62
45

'
(P

ER
 T

RP
A 

CO
DE

 S
EC

TI
ON

 37
.3.

2)

BO
H

BA
R

GU
ES

TR
OO

M
GU

ES
TR

OO
M

GU
ES

TR
OO

M
GU

ES
TR

OO
M

BO
H

RE
ST

AU
RA

NT

53' - 0"

15
72

0
17

SE
CT

IO
N-

BL
DG

 1
09

.0
1.

20
15

8
16

4
1"

=8
'

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
221



Bu
ild

in
g 

2 
Le

ve
l 0

1
62

48
' -

 0
"

Bu
ild

in
g 

2 
Le

ve
l 0

2
62

61
' -

 0
"

Bu
ild

in
g 

2 
Le

ve
l 0

3
62

71
' -

 0
"

Bu
ild

in
g 

2 
Le

ve
l 0

4
62

82
' -

 0
"

NA
TU

RA
L G

RO
UN

D 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N-

62
45

'
(P

ER
 T

RP
A 

CO
DE

 S
EC

TI
ON

 37
.3.

2)

55' - 4"

GU
ES

TR
OO

M
GU

ES
TR

OO
M

GU
ES

TR
OO

M
GU

ES
TR

OO
M

GU
ES

TR
OO

M
GU

ES
TR

OO
M

GU
ES

TR
OO

M
GU

ES
TR

OO
M

15
72

0
18

SE
CT

IO
N-

BL
DG

 2
09

.0
1.

20
15

8
16

4
1"

=8
'

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
222



Bu
ild

in
g 

3 
Le

ve
l 0

1
62

56
' -

 0
"

Bu
ild

in
g 

3 
Le

ve
l 0

2
62

68
' -

 0
"

Bu
ild

in
g 

3 
Le

ve
l 0

3
62

78
' -

 0
"

Bu
ild

in
g 

3 
Le

ve
l 0

4
62

88
' -

 0
"

NA
TU

RA
L G

RO
UN

D 
EL

EV
AT

IO
N-

62
52

'
(P

ER
 T

RP
A 

CO
DE

 S
EC

TI
ON

 37
.3.

2)

53' - 5"

GU
ES

TR
OO

M
GU

ES
TR

OO
M

GU
ES

TR
OO

M
GU

ES
TR

OO
M

GU
ES

TR
OO

M
GU

ES
TR

OO
M

GU
ES

TR
OO

M
GU

ES
TR

OO
M

15
72

0
19

SE
CT

IO
N-

BL
DG

 3
09

.0
1.

20
15

8
16

4
1"

=8
'

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
223



1
5
7
2
0

1
1

V
IE

W
 4

 O
V

E
R

L
O

O
K

IN
G

 G
O

L
F
 C

O
U

R
S

E
0
9
.0
1
.2
0
1
5

E
X
IS
TI
N
G

P
R
O
P
O
S
E
D R

E
V

IS
E

D
9.

15
.2

01
6

T
R

A
N

S
V

E
R

S
E

 S
E

C
T

IO
N

 T
H

R
U

 G
O

LF
 C

LU
B

H
O

U
S

E
11

.1
7.

20
16

   
  2

5

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
224



Attachment D 
 

SUBDIVISION DRAFT PERMIT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
225



SUBDIVISION DRAFT PERMIT 
 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Subdivision of Existing TAUs (post-1987) APNs 094-070-001 
 
PERMITTEE(S):  Kila Tahoe LLC     FILE #: SUBD2016-1150 
 
COUNTY/LOCATION:  Placer/255 & 265 North Lake Boulevard 
 
Having made the findings required by Agency ordinances and rules, the TRPA Governing Board approved 
the project on January 25, 2017 subject to the special conditions found in this permit. 
 
This permit shall expire on January 25, 2020 without further notice.  The expiration date shall not be 
extended unless the project is determined by TRPA to be the subject of legal action which delayed or 
rendered impossible the diligent pursuit of the permit. 
 
THE SUBDIVISION MAP SHALL NOT BE RECORDED UNTIL THE PERMITTEE OBTAINS A COUNTY PERMIT.  
THE COUNTY PERMIT AND THE TRPA PERMIT ARE INDEPENDENT OF EACH OTHER AND MAY HAVE 
DIFFERENT EXPIRATION DATES AND RULES REGARDING EXTENSIONS.  THE SUBDIVISION MAP SHALL 
NOT BE RECORDED UNTIL ALL PRE-RECORDING CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL ARE SATISFIED AS 
EVIDENCED BY TRPA’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF THIS PERMIT.  IN ADDITION, THE SUBDIVISION MAP 
SHALL NOT BE RECORDED UNTIL TRPA RECEIVES A COPY OF THIS PERMIT UPON WHICH THE 
PERMITTEE(S) HAS ACKNOWLEDGED RECEIPT OF THE PERMIT AND ACCEPTANCE OF THE CONTENTS OF 
THE PERMIT.  TRPA’S ACKNOWLEDGEMENT IS NECESSARY TO OBTAIN A COUNTY PERMIT. 
 
_____________________________________   ______________________ 
TRPA Executive Director/Designee     Date 
 
 
PERMITTEE’S ACCEPTANCE:  I have read the permit and the conditions of approval and understand and 
accept them.  I also understand that I am responsible for compliance with all the conditions of the 
permit and am responsible for my agents’ and employees’ compliance with the permit conditions.  I also 
understand that if the property is sold, I remain liable for the permit conditions until or unless the new 
owner acknowledges the transfer of the permit and notifies TRPA in writing of such acceptance.  I also 
understand that certain mitigation fees associated with this permit are non-refundable once paid to 
TRPA.  I understand that it is my sole responsibility to obtain any and all required approvals from any 
other state, local or federal agencies that may have jurisdiction over this project whether or not they are 
listed in this permit. 
 
Signature of Permittee(s) ________________________________ Date ________________ 
 
 

PERMIT CONTINUED ON NEXT PAGE 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
226



 
APNs 094-070-001 

FILE NO. SUBD2016-1150 
 
Security Posted:   N/A  
 
Required plans determined to be in conformance with approval:  Date: _________ 
 
TRPA ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:  The permittee has complied with all pre-construction conditions of 
approval as of this date and is eligible for a county building permit: 
 
 
_____________________________________   ________________________________ 
TRPA Executive Director/Designee    Date 
 
 

SPECIAL CONDITIONS 
 

1. This permit specifically authorizes the subdivision of an existing hotel/lodge into condominium hotel 
units and lots, and will continue to use TAUs under the TRPA definition of “Hotels, Motels, and 
Other Transient Dwellings”.  The existing 118-room Tahoe City Lodge shall be subdivided into 78 
separate ownership lots to contain one tourist accommodation unit each, as demonstrated on the 
Subdivision Maps submitted to TRPA on December 12, 2016 and in accordance with the Vesting 
Tentative Map approved by Placer County Board of Supervisors on December 6, 2016.  The 
remaining 40 standard hotel rooms will operate as traditional tourist accommodation units and will 
remain under ownership of Kila Tahoe LLC. No additional development potential will be created as a 
result of this subdivision.  The parking calculations for the project are consistent with and reflect the 
parking analysis adopted as a part of the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan and Tahoe City Lodge 
EIS.  The shared parking and the new clubhouse management at the Tahoe City Golf Course will be 
addressed through an agreement with the Tahoe City Public Utility District and are not subject to 
the subdivision. 

 A condominium hotel is a hotel wherein each unit of the hotel is separately owned by an individual 
or entity.  Each room is available for use by the owner no more than ninety days in a calendar year, 
with a limit of no more than 30 days of use in any calendar quarter.  Each hotel unit is foreclosed 
from use permanently or solely as a residence.     

2. Prior to permit acknowledgement, the following special conditions of approval must be satisfied: 

A. The permittee shall provide evidence that Phase Two of the New Tourist Accommodation   
permit for this project area (TRPA File Number ERSP2015-0097) has been acknowledged. 

B. The permittee shall provide, prior to final recordation, a final Mylar map or a similar 
document for the approved subdivision which contains a signature block for TRPA to 
document regional approval, and three copies of the subdivision map.  

 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
227



228



C. The permittee shall submit final covenants, conditions, and restrictions (CC&Rs) pursuant to 
Subsection 39.2.4.M of the TRPA Code of Ordinances for review and approval which must 
include the following: 

 (1) A restriction that owners of the hotel units are limited to a maximum occupancy of 
ninety (90) days of use in any calendar year, with a limit of no more than thirty (30) 
days of use in any calendar quarter. Each hotel unit is foreclosed from use 
permanently or solely as a residence.     

D. The permittee shall provide the latest recorded grant deeds for Assessor’s Parcel 
Numbers (APNs) 094-070-001 and 094-070-002.  Once the grant deeds are received, 
TRPA will prepare a deed restriction to restrict the use of the tourist accommodation 
units (condominium hotel units) by the current or future individual owners to a 
maximum occupancy of ninety (90) days of use in any calendar year, with a limit of no 
more than thirty (30) days of use in any calendar quarter. Each hotel unit is foreclosed 
from use permanently or solely as a residence.     

E. The permittee shall record the deed restriction required in Special Condition 2.D of this 
permit and provide a conformed copy to TRPA. 

F. If the approval for the construction of the Tahoe City Lodge expires (TRPA File Number 
ERSP2015-0097), in whole or in part, then the subdivision map approval is void as to the 
subdivision of incomplete or unbuilt units.  The final subdivision map, if recorded prior to 
completion of all units, shall include, on its face, this condition.   

G. The permittee shall submit a Condominium Map indicating the number and the locations of 
the 78 air space or condo-hotel units, as well as any reference to CC&Rs and deed 
restrictions, to TRPA for review and approval prior to acknowledgement of this permit. 

3. Within 30 days of recordation, the permittee shall provide to TRPA a copy of the recorded 
subdivision map and any new Assessor’s Parcel Numbers. 

END OF PERMIT 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
229



Attachment E 
 

Required Findings for Approval of the Subdivision of Existing Structures 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
230



Required Findings for Approval of the Subdivision of Existing Structures 
 
The following is a list of the required findings as set forth in Chapters 4, 30, 31, and 39 of the TRPA 
Code of Ordinances.  Following each finding, Agency staff has indicated if there is sufficient 
evidence contained in the record to make the applicable findings or has briefly summarized the 
evidence on which the finding can be made.  
 

1. Chapter 4 – Required Findings: 
 

(a) The project is consistent with and will not adversely affect implementation of the 
Regional Plan, including all applicable Goals and Policies, Plan Area Statements 
and maps, the Code and other TRPA plans and programs. 

 
(a) The proposed project is consistent with the relevant goals and policies of 

the Regional Plan and the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan. The 
proposed uses are compatible with the surrounding uses and are 
consistent with the scale, density, intensity, and type of uses envisioned 
in the Regional Plan and the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan.  The 
proposed project will not impact environmental threshold carrying 
capacities. Temporary and permanent BMPs are proposed in conjunction 
with the associated Tourist Accommodation Project (ERSP2015-0857), to 
be acknowledged prior to the acknowledgement of this subdivision. 

 
 

(b) The project will not cause the environmental threshold carrying capacities 
to be exceeded. 

 
The basis for this finding is provided on the checklist entitled Project 
Review Conformance Checklist and Article (V)g Findings in accordance 
with Chapter 6, Subsection 6.3.B of the TRPA Code of Ordinances. All 
responses in the checklist indicate compliance with the environmental 
threshold carrying capacities. Also, an EIS has been prepared for the 
proposed tourist accommodation project associated with this subdivision 
of existing structure permit, which is incorporated in full herein.  There 
were no unmitigated significant impacts to thresholds identified in the 
environmental document.  A copy of the checklist and Final EIS have been 
made available to the APC and Governing Board members and at TRPA.  

 
(c) Wherever federal, state or local air and water quality standards 

applicable for the Region, whichever are strictest, must be attained and 
maintained pursuant to Article V(g) of the TPRA Compact, the project 
meets or exceeds such standards. 

 
The basis for this finding is provided on the checklist entitled Project 
Review Conformance Checklist and Article (V)g Findings in accordance 
with Chapter 6, Subsection 6.3.B of the TRPA Code of Ordinances. All 
responses in the checklist indicate compliance with the applicable federal, 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
231



state and/or local air and water quality standards.  Also, an EIS has been 
prepared for the proposed tourist accommodation project associated 
with this subdivision of existing structures, which is incorporated in full 
herein.  There were no unmitigated significant impacts to federal, state or 
local air and water quality standards applicable to the Region identified in 
the environmental document.  A copy of the checklist and Final EIS have 
been made available to the APC and Governing Board members and at 
TRPA. 
 

2. Chapter 30- Coverage Relocation Findings 

(a) The relocation is to an equal or superior portion of the parcel or project area, as 
determined by reference to the following factors: 

 
 (1) Whether the area of relocation already has been disturbed. 
 
 (2) The slope and natural vegetation on the area of relocation. 
 
 (3) The fragility of the soil on the area of relocation. 

 
(4) Whether the area of relocation appropriately fits the scheme of use of 

the property. 
 

(5) The relocation does not further encroach into a stream environment 
zone, backshore, or the setbacks established in the Code for the 
protection of stream environment zones or backshore. 

 
(6) The project otherwise complies with the land coverage mitigation 

program set forth in Section 30.6. 
 
 

The proposed subdivision of existing structures does not propose any relocation 
of existing location.  All coverage relocation will occur with the associated tourist 
accommodation permit (TRPA File # ERSP 2015-0857) and coverage relocation 
findings have been made accordingly. 

 
(b) The area from which the land coverage was removed for relocation is restored in 

accordance with Subsection 61.4. 
 
 The proposed subdivision of existing structures does not propose any relocation 

of existing location.  All coverage relocation will occur with the associated tourist 
accommodation permit (TRPA File # ERSP 2015-0857) and coverage relocation 
findings have been made accordingly. 

 
(c) The relocation is not to Land Capability Districts 1a, 1b, 1c, 2 or 3 from any higher 

numbered land capability district. 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
232



The proposed subdivision of existing structures does not propose any relocation 
of existing location.  All coverage relocation will occur with the associated tourist 
accommodation permit (TRPA File # ERSP 2015-0857) and coverage relocation 
findings have been made accordingly.  

(d) If the relocation is from one portion of a stream environment zone to another 
portion, there is a net environmental benefit to the stream environment zone.  
For projects involving the relocation of more than 1000 square feet of land 
coverage within a stream environment zone, a finding, based on a report 
prepared by a qualified professional, that the relocation will improve the 
functioning of the stream environment zone and will not negatively affect the 
quality of existing habitats. 

The proposed subdivision of existing structures does not propose any relocation 
of existing location.  All coverage relocation will occur with the associated tourist 
accommodation permit (TRPA File # ERSP 2015-0857) and coverage relocation 
findings have been made accordingly. 

3. Chapter 31 - Density: 

(a) On parcels where tourist accommodation uses are permissible, density up to the 
limits in the Table 31.3.2-1 or as established in the applicable plan area statement 
or adopted plan, whichever is more restrictive, may be developed by transfer of 
existing development in accordance with Chapter 51 or by obtaining tourist 
accommodation bonus units in accordance with Chapter 52. 

 
The maximum density for the tourist accommodation has been established by the 
Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan (PCTBAP) at 40 units per acre for a tourist 
use located within a Town Center Overlay. The Tahoe City Lodge has 118 tourist 
accommodation units and the project area is 3.1 acres in size, allowing for a 
density of approximately 120 tourist accommodation units. Tourist 
accommodation is a permissible use within the Tahoe City Mixed Use Town 
Center Overlay. A portion of the on-site tourist accommodation units were the 
result of the on-site conversion of commercial floor area to tourist 
accommodation units, as allowed with the  (PCTBAP).  The remaining balance of 
tourist accommodation units will be transferred to the site in accordance with 
Code Chapter 51.  

 

4. Chapter 39- Subdivision of Post – 1987 Projects 

(a) Subdivisions shall comply with the applicable density standards for the resulting 
use.  For purposes of this chapter, the density standard for single-family 
residential units shall be the multi-family density standard on the applicable plan 
area statement. If multi-family is not a permitted use, then the density standard 
for single-family residential units shall be four units per acre.  

 The maximum density for the tourist accommodation has been established by the 
Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan (PCTBAP) at 40 units per acre for a tourist 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
233



use located within a Town Center Overlay. The Tahoe City Lodge has 118 tourist 
accommodation units and the project area is 3.1 acres in size, allowing for a 
density of approximately 120 tourist accommodation units. Tourist 
accommodation is a permissible use within the Tahoe City Mixed Use Town 
Center Overlay. 

(b) Subdivisions shall comply with the standards in Chapter 32: Basic Services, except 
that TRPA shall not waive the paved road or fireflow requirements. 

 The subdivision complies with the standards set forth in Chapter 32: Basic 
Services as demonstrated in the FEIS for the Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan 
and Tahoe City Lodge.  The applicant is not seeking a waiver for either paved road 
access nor fireflow requirements.  The project is accessed via Highway 28/North 
Lake Boulevard and the project is within the service area of the North Tahoe 
Protection District.  

(c) Subdivisions of post-1987 projects shall comply with the parking standards for the 
resultant use, as set forth in Chapters 34 and 36 and Ordinance 87-8, or the 
adopted community plan, as applicable. 

 The use to which the subdivision of existing structures applies is tourist 
accommodation.  The tourist accommodation was approved, consistent with the 
Placer County Tahoe Basin Area Plan/Tahoe City Lodge FEIS.  As a part of this EIS, 
a parking analysis was conducted and approved for the lodge specifically.  The 
subdivision of existing structures maintains the assumptions used in the FEIS 
parking analysis and complies with all of the conditions carried forward as a result 
of the parking analysis.  

(d) Subdivisions of post-1987 projects shall comply with the signage standards for the 
resultant use as set forth in Chapter 38 or the adopted community plan, as 
applicable.   

 The applicant will submit a separate application for signage consistent with the 
standards as set forth in Chapter 38 concurrent with the acknowledgement of the 
subdivision of existing structures (SUBD2016-1150). 

(e) TRPA may require covenants, conditions and restrictions (CC&Rs), or deed 
restrictions, as appropriate to ensure compliance with the Code and conditions of 
approval.  The final subdivision map shall include a reference to any CC&Rs or 
deed restrictions, as appropriate. 

 The applicant will provide to TRPA for review and approval, prior to 
acknowledgement of the subdivision of existing structures permit, the final CC&Rs 
for the Tahoe City Lodge.  The CC&Rs will be required to reflect owner usage of 
the 78 condo-hotel units as reviewed by and agreed upon by TRPA staff and 
Placer County staff.  TRPA will prepare a deed restriction to restrict the use of the 
tourist accommodation units (condominium hotel units) by the current or future 
individual owners to a maximum occupancy of ninety (90) days of use in any 
calendar year, with a limit of no more than thirty (30) days of use in any calendar 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
234



quarter.  The applicant will record the deed restriction prior to acknowledgement 
of the subdivision permit. 

(f) TRPA shall only approve subdivisions of post-1987 projects after approval of the 
underlying project.  The subdivision approval shall expire if the underlying 
approval expires or the project is not completed.  TRPA shall require compliance 
with the project conditions of approval and the subdivision approval through 
recordation of deed restrictions, CC&Rs, or other covenants running with the 
land, as deemed necessary. 

 The Tahoe City Lodge project is the underlying project for this subdivision. The 
subdivision of existing structures permit cannot take effect until Phases One and 
Two of the Tahoe City Lodge tourist accommodation project has been 
acknowledged. The applicant will comply with all permit conditions associated 
with the Tahoe City Lodge and will provide CC&Rs to TRPA for review prior to 
acknowledgement of the subdivision permit.  Finally, TRPA will prepare a deed 
restriction to restrict the use of the tourist accommodation units (condominium 
hotel units) by the current or future individual owners to a maximum occupancy 
of ninety (90) days of use in any calendar year, with a limit of no more than thirty 
(30) days of use in any calendar quarter.  The applicant will record the deed 
restriction prior to acknowledgement of the subdivision permit. 

 
 
 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VII.C.
235



236



 
 

  

Strategic Initiatives Monthly Report - January 2017 
Strategic Initiatives Status 

1. Development 
Rights  

 

Progress/Accomplishments: 
• Held second working group meeting and defined criteria and 

goals for evaluating alternatives 
• Interviewed and hired a consultant team to help with best 

practices research and alternative development 
• Awarded technical assistance grant from the California 

Strategic Growth Council to gain an assessment of fiscal 
impacts associated with different land use scenarios 

Future Focus: 
• Research and summarize best practices related to the scope 

of work  
Team Lead: Jennifer Cannon, Senior Planner, (775) 589-5297 
or jcannon@trpa.org 

2. Forest Health & 
Fuels 
Management 

Progress/Accomplishments: 
• TRPA joined the core team for the Lake Tahoe West 

Collaborative project and Mike Vollmer was named the 
Interagency Design Team Lead 

• Six of the Tahoe Forest Fuels Team (TFFT) coordinated 
SNPLMA proposals were awarded a total $27,397,653 

• Mike Vollmer was named the Task Leader for the Tahoe 
Basin Tree Mortality Task Force and will be leading this 
effort going forward 

Future Focus: 
• The Lake Tahoe West Collaborative core team is moving 

forward under the direction of the new Project Coordinator 
• The TFFT will strategize for the next round of SNPLMA 

(White Pine Bill) funding at their annual winter retreat this 
February 

• TRPA will continue to work with partners toward a 
sustainable forestry program for the Tahoe Basin through 
coordination among partners and the Lake Tahoe West 
Collaborative project 
 

Team Lead: Mike Vollmer, Environmental Improvement 
Program Manager, (775) 589-5268 or mvollmer@trpa.org 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1.
237

mailto:mvollmer@trpa.org


 
 

  

Strategic Initiatives Status 

3. Aquatic Invasive 
Species Control 

Progress/Accomplishments: 
• Funding from the following sources has been awarded to AIS 

Program partners: 
o SB 630 (CTC) 
o Prop 1 (CTC) 
o License Plate (NDSL) 
o USFWS 
o Truckee River Fund 
o Tahoe Fund 
o Integrated Regional Water Management (CA DWW) 

   Total funding awarded is approximately $1.3 million.  
 

Future Focus: 
•  Continue to pursue funds through the following: 

o Bureau of Reclamation 
o US Army Corps of Engineers 
o NDEP 

• TRPA, Lahontan and other stakeholders continue to work with the 
Tahoe Keys POA on their efforts to control invasive aquatic weeds in 
the lagoons and channels 

• USFWS funds awarded to TRPA for AIS control in the Tahoe Keys 
(West Channel) was approved to be used to reimburse costs 
associated with “Boat Back-up Stations” (intended to remove plants 
from props prior to leaving entering the Lake proper), plant 
fragment collection trials and sampling.  These efforts were 
approximately $48,000.  

• AIS Control projects implemented by Tahoe RCD in 2016 include the 
following locations, treating a total of 4.5 acres: Lakeside Marina and 
swim area, Truckee River, Fleur de Lac, and Crystal Shores 
Condominiums 

 

Team Lead: Dennis Zabaglo, Aquatic Resources Program Manager, 
(775) 589-5255 or dzabaglo@trpa.org 

4. Stormwater 
Management 
Operations & 
Maintenance 

Progress/Accomplishments: 
• Concluded Phase I of the Strategic Initiative  
• Commenced Phase II to draft the Survey Instrument 

Future Focus: 
• Consulting team to address agency and local government comments 

from October 28, 2016 Stormwater Funding Partnership meeting 
and finalize the draft survey instrument. 

• The next phases of the initiative involves administering the survey, 
analyzing the data to evaluate public support for potential revenue 
options, and seeking stakeholder input following results. 

Team Lead: Shay Navarro, Stormwater Program Manager, (775) 589-
5282 or snavarro@trpa.org 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1.
238

mailto:dzabaglo@trpa.org
mailto:snavarro@trpa.org


 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Strategic Initiatives Status 

5. Shoreline  

Progress/Accomplishments: 
• Worked with the Shoreline Steering Committee to develop 

policy proposals 
• Presented initial policy proposals to RPIC in November 
Focus: 
• Present Steering Committee policy proposals to RPIC in 

January  
• Develop goals, policies, and code and the alternatives to be 

evaluated in the environmental analysis based on the policy 
proposals endorsed by RPIC   

Team Lead: Brandy McMahon, Principal Planner, (775) 589-
5274 or bmcmahon@trpa.org 

6. Transportation 

Progress/Accomplishments: 
• Administrative draft of Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 

in progress 
Future Focus: 
• Release Public Draft RTP in February of 2017 
• Present Draft RTP at multiple association meetings, including 

GB, TTC, and APC 
Team Lead: Morgan Beryl, Senior Transportation Planner, 
(775) 589-5208 or mberyl@trpa.org 

7.  Streamline         
Monitoring & 
Update 
Thresholds  

Progress/Accomplishments: 
• Final 2015 Threshold Evaluation Report issued 12/14 
Future Focus: 
• Work with the Tahoe Science Advisory Council to refine the 

proposed assessment of threshold standards 
Team Lead: Dan Segan, Principal Natural Resource Analyst, 
(775) 589-5233 or dsegan@trpa.org 

AGENDA ITEM NO. VIII.A.1.
239

mailto:dsegan@trpa.org


240


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Agenda Item No. VII.A & B_PCTBAP_FEIS_kh.pdf
	Regional Plan Update Process
	Regional Plan Update Amendments
	TABLE E-1: PLACER COUNTY TAHOE BASIN AREA PLAN
	Updated_PCTBAP_kh.pdf
	Regional Plan Update Process
	Regional Plan Update Amendments


	Agenda Item No. VII.A & B_PCTBAP_FEIS_kh.pdf
	Regional Plan Update Process
	Regional Plan Update Amendments
	TABLE E-1: PLACER COUNTY TAHOE BASIN AREA PLAN
	Updated_PCTBAP_kh.pdf
	Regional Plan Update Process
	Regional Plan Update Amendments


	Agenda Item No. VII.C._TCL.pdf
	Attachment C_ALL.pdf
	2216.00_C1-Ascent
	C1-Ascent

	2216.00_C2
	C2

	2216.00_C3.1
	3.1

	2216.00_C3.2
	3.2

	2216.00_C3.3
	3.3

	2216.00_C4
	C4

	2216.00_C5
	C5

	2216.00_C6
	C6

	Blank Page
	tcl-161117-Golf Clubhouse Bldg Section (3).pdf
	Sheets
	11 - VIEW 4 OVERLOOKING GOLF COURSE



	Attachment D.pdf
	Attachment D
	SUBDIVISION DRAFT PERMIT
	SUBDIVISION DRAFT PERMIT


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Agenda Item No. VIII.A.1_SI Monthly Report.pdf
	Strategic Initiatives Monthly Report - January 2017
	Strategic Initiatives
	Status

	1. Development Rights 
	Progress/Accomplishments:
	Future Focus:
	Team Lead: Jennifer Cannon, Senior Planner, (775) 589-5297 or jcannon@trpa.org

	2. Forest Health & Fuels Management
	Progress/Accomplishments:
	Future Focus:
	Team Lead: Mike Vollmer, Environmental Improvement Program Manager, (775) 589-5268 or mvollmer@trpa.org

	Strategic Initiatives
	Status

	3. Aquatic Invasive Species Control
	Progress/Accomplishments:
	Future Focus:
	Team Lead: Dennis Zabaglo, Aquatic Resources Program Manager, (775) 589-5255 or dzabaglo@trpa.org

	4. Stormwater Management Operations & Maintenance
	Progress/Accomplishments:
	Future Focus:
	Team Lead: Shay Navarro, Stormwater Program Manager, (775) 589-5282 or snavarro@trpa.org

	Strategic Initiatives
	Status

	5. Shoreline 
	Progress/Accomplishments:
	Focus:
	Team Lead: Brandy McMahon, Principal Planner, (775) 589-5274 or bmcmahon@trpa.org

	6. Transportation
	Progress/Accomplishments:
	Future Focus:
	Team Lead: Morgan Beryl, Senior Transportation Planner, (775) 589-5208 or mberyl@trpa.org

	7.  Streamline         Monitoring & Update Thresholds 
	Progress/Accomplishments:
	Future Focus:
	Team Lead: Dan Segan, Principal Natural Resource Analyst, (775) 589-5233 or dsegan@trpa.org


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



